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NOTICE

Notice is hereby given that the Tenth Annual General Meeting of the members of
the Company will be held on Saturday, September 30, 2017 at 3.00 p.m. at
Third Floor, Old No.248/New No.114, Royapettah High Road, Royapettah,
Chennai - 600 014 at shorter notice to transact the following businesses;

Ordinary Business:

1. To receive, consider, approve and adopt the audited financial statements
(including consolidated financial statements) of the Company for the
financial year ended March 31, 2017 together with the reports of the
Board of Directors and Auditors thereon.

2. To consider re-appointment of M/s B. Purushottam & Co., Chartered
Accountants (Registration No. 002808S) as Statutory Auditors of the
Company and in this regard to consider and, if thought fit, to pass with or
without modification(s), the following resolution as an Ordinary
Resolution:

"RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Sections 139, 142 and
all other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 (the “Act”) read
with Rules made thereunder (including any statutory modification(s) or re-
enactment thereof for the time being in force), M/s. B. Purushottam &
Co., Chartered Accountants (Registration No. 002808S) be and are hereby
re-appointed as Statutory Auditors of the Company for a further term of
five (5) years, to hold office from the conclusion of this AGM until the
conclusion of 15" AGM of the Company to be held for the financial year
2021-22, subject to ratification by members at every AGM of the
Company, to examine and audit the accounts of the Company on such
remuneration as may be determined and fixed by the Board of Directors
of the Company from time to time.”

Special Business:

3. To appoint Mr. Grandhi Mallikarjuna Rao as Director of the
Company

To consider and if thought fit, to pass, with or without modification(s), the
following resolution as an Ordinary Resolution:

"RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 149, 152 and all
other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the
Companies (Appointment and Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014
(including any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment thereof for the
time being in force); and subsequent to the RBI approval dated
September 18, 2017, Mr. Grandhi Mallikarjuna Rao (DIN: 00574243), who
was appointed by the Board of Directors as an Additional Director of the
Company with effect from September 25, 2017, in terms of Section 161 of
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the Companies Act, 2013 and Articles of Association of the Company, and
who holds office up to the date of this Annual General Meeting of the
Company, be and is hereby appointed as a Director of the Company.”

. To appoint Mr. Srinivas Bommidala as Director of the Company

To consider and if thought fit, to pass, with or without modification(s), the
following resolution as an Ordinary Resolution:

"RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 149, 152 and all
other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the
Companies (Appointment and Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014
(including any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment thereof for the
time being in force) and subsequent to the RBI approval dated September
18, 2017, Mr. Srinivas Bommidala (DIN: 00061464), who was appointed
by the Board of Directors as an Additional Director of the Company with
effect from September 25, 2017, in terms of Section 161 of the
Companies Act, 2013 and Articles of Association of the Company, and who
holds office up to the date of this Annual General Meeting of the
Company, be and is hereby appointed as a Director of the Company.”

- To appoint Mr. Grandhi Buchi Sanyasi Raju as Director of the
Company

To consider and if thought fit, to pass, with or without modification(s), the
following resolution as an Ordinary Resolution:

"RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 149, 152 and all
other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the
Companies (Appointment and Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014
(including any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment thereof for the
time being in force) and subsequent to the RBI approval dated September
18, 2017,, Mr. Grandhi Buchi Sanyasi Raju (DIN: 00061686), who was
appointed by the Board of Directors as an Additional Director of the
Company with effect from September 25, 2017, in terms of Section 161 of
the Companies Act, 2013 and Articles of Association of the Company, and
who holds office up to the date of this Annual General Meeting of the
Company, be and is hereby appointed as a Director of the Company.”

. To appoint Mr. Grandhi Kiran Kumar as Director of the Company

To consider and if thought fit, to pass, with or without modification(s), the
following resolution as an Ordinary Resolution:

"RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 149, 152 and all
other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the
Companies (Appointment and Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014
(including any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment thereof for the
time being in force) and subsequent to the RBI approval dated September
18, 2017, Mr. Grandhi Kiran Kumar (DIN: 00061669), who was appointed
by the Board of Directors as an Additional Director of the Company with
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effect from September 25, 2017, in terms of Section 161 of the
Companies Act, 2013 and Articles of Association of the Company, and who
holds office up to the date of this Annual General Meeting of the
Company, be and is hereby appointed as a Director of the Company.”

7. To appoint Mr. Venkata Nageswara Rao Boda as Director of the
Company

To consider and if thought fit, to pass, with or without modification(s), the
following resolution as an Ordinary Resolution:

"RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 149, 152 and all
other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the
Companies (Appointment and Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014
(including any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment thereof for the
time being in force) and subsequent to the RBI approval dated September
18, 2017, Mr. Venkata Nageswara Rao Boda (DIN: 00051167), who was
appointed by the Board of Directors as an Additional Director of the
Company with effect from September 25, 2017, in terms of Section 161 of
the Companies Act, 2013 and Articles of Association of the Company, and
who holds office up to the date of this Annual General Meeting of the
Company, be and is hereby appointed as a Director of the Company.”

8. To appoint Mrs. Grandhi Varalakshmi as Director of the Company

To consider and if thought fit, to pass, with or without modification(s), the
following resolution as an Ordinary Resolution:

"RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 149, 152 and all
other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the
Companies (Appointment and Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014
(including any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment thereof for the
time being in force) and subsequent to the RBI approval dated September
18, 2017, Mrs. Grandhi Varalakshmi (DIN: 00061699), who was appointed
by the Board of Directors as an Additional Director of the Company with
effect from September 25, 2017, in terms of Section 161 of the
Companies Act, 2013 and Articles of Association of the Company, and who
holds office up to the date of this Annual General Meeting of the
Company, be and is hereby appointed as a Director of the Company.”

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
For GMR Enterpris d

X
a
pany Secretary

NE

Place: Mumbai
Date: September 29, 2017

Encl.: Consolidated Annual Report 2016-17



NOTES

1 A MEMBER ENTITLED TO ATTEND AND VOTE AT THE ANNUAL
GENERAL MEETING (AGM) IS ENTITLED TO APPOINT A PROXY TO
ATTEND AND VOTE ON A POLL INSTEAD OF HIMSELF / HERSELF AND
THE PROXY NEED NOT BE A MEMBER OF THE COMPANY. Pursuant to
Section 105 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 19 of the Companies
(Management & Administration) Rules, 2014, a person can act as a proxy on
behalf of members not exceeding 50 and holding in the aggregate not more
than 10% of the total share capital of the Company carrying voting rights. In
case a proxy is proposed to be appointed by a member holding more than
10% of the total share capital of the Company carrying voting rights, then
such proxy shall not act as a proxy for any other person or shareholder.
Proxies, in order to be effective, must be received at the registered office of
the Company not less than forty-eight hours before the commencement of
the AGM.,

2. Copies of all documents referred to in the notice and explanatory statement
annexed thereto are available for inspection at the registered office of the
Company between 10.00 a.m. and 1.00 p.m. on all working days till the date
of the AGM.

3. Corporate/Trust members intending to send their authorized representatives
to attend the AGM are requested to send to the Company, a certified copy of
the Board Resolution authorizing their representative to attend and vote on
their behalf at the Meeting.

4. Members or Proxies should bring the attendance slip duly filled in for
attending the AGM.

x
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EXPLANATORY STATEMENT UNDER SECTION 102 OF THE COMPANIES
ACT, 2013

Item No. 3

The Board of Directors at their meeting held on September 25, 2017 had
appointed Mr. Grandhi Mallikarjuna Rao (DIN: 00574243), promoter of the GMR

Group as an Additional y with effect from September 25,
2017, pursuant to Sect es Act, 2013 read with Article 52
of the Articles of Associ pany and compliances as required under

Core Investment Company - Master Direction dated August 25, 2016.

Pur e ions of Section 161 of the Companies Act, 2013,
Mr. li Rao (DIN: 00574243) shall hold office upto the date of
the u ral Meeting (AGM).

Brief details of Mr. Grandhi Mallikarjuna Rao (DIN: 00574243) has been provided
as Annexure to this Notice.

Notice from Grandhi Buchi Sanyasi Raju Trust dated September 1, 2017
pursuant to Section 160 of the Comp ies Act, 2013, proposing the candidature

of Mr. Grandhi Mallikarjuna Rao for Director of the Co has
been received by the Company. Ther ng eligible, it is p to
appoint him as the Director of the who shall not be to

retirement by rotation of Directors at the Annual General Meeting of the
Company and hence this resolution is proposed for the approval of the Members.

The Board recommends passing of the resolution set out in Item No. 3 as an
Ordinary Resolution.

Except Managers, and other key managerial personnel of the Company, all the
Directors and their relatives of Mr. Grandhi Mallikarjuna Rao who is proposed to

be as Director and his im family members namely, Mrs.
Gra akshmi, Mr. Grandhi Buch i Raju, Mr. Grandhi Kiran Kumar
and as Bommidala, are concer ed or interested in the said resolution.
Item No. 4

The Board of Directors at their meeting held on September 25, 2017 had
appointed Mr. Srinivas Bommidala (DIN: 00061464), promoter of the GMR
Group as an Additional Director of the Company with effect from September 25,
2017, pursuant to Section 161 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Article 52
of the Articles of Association of the Company and compliances as required under
Core Investment Company - Master Direction dated August 25, 2016.

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 161 of the Companies Act, 2013,
Mr. Srinivas Bommidala (DIN: 00061464) shall hold office upto the date of the
ensuing Annual General Meeting (AGM).



Brief details of Mr. Srinivas Bommidala (DIN: 00061464) has been provided as
Annexure to this Notice.
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:ceived by the Company. Therefore, being
eligible, it is proposed to appoint him as the Director of the Company who shalil
not be subject to retirement by rotation of Directors at the Annual General
Meeting of the Company and hence this resolution is proposed for the approval
of the Members.

The Board recommends passing of the resolution set out in Item No. 6 as an
Ordinary Resolution.

Except Managers, and other key ma , all
their relatives of Mr. Srinivas Bommi sed t
Director and his immediate family m r. Gr
Rao, Mrs. Grandhi Varalakshmi, Mr. yasi

Kiran Kumar and Grandhi Buchi Sanyasi Raju, are concerned or interested in the
said resolution.

Item No. 5

The Board of Directors at their meeting held on September 25, 2017 had
appointed Mr. Grandhi Buchi Sanyasi Raju (DIN: 00061686), promoter of the
GMR Group as an Additional Director of the Company with effect from
September 25, 2017, pursuant to Section 161 of the Companies Act, 2013 read
with Article 52 of the Articles of Association of the Company and compliances as
required under Core Investment Company - Master Direction dated August 25,
2016,

Pursuant to the provis of Section 161 of the Companies Act, 2013,
Mr. Grandhi Buchi Sanya u (DIN: 00061686) shall hold office upto the date
of the ensuing Annual Ge Meeting (, GM).

Brief details of Mr. Grandhi Buchi Sanyasi Raju (DIN: 00061686) has been
provided as Annexure to this Notice.

Notice from Grandhi Buchi Sanyasi Raju Trust dated September 1, 2017
pursuant to Section 160 of the Companies Act, 2013, proposing the candidature
of Mr. Grandhi Buchi Sanyasi Raju for the office of Director of the Company has
been received by the Company. Therefore, being eligible, it is proposed to

the Direct the Company who shall not be subject to
otation of tors at the Annual General Meeting of the
nce this res n is proposed for the approval of the Members.

The Board recommends passing of the resolution set out in Item No. 4 as an
Ordinary Resolution.



Except Managers, and other key managerial personnel, all the Directors and
their relatives of Grandhi Buchi Sanyasi Raju who is proposed to be appointed
as Director and his immediate family members namely, Mr. Grandhi Mallikarjuna
Rao, Mrs. Grandhi Varalakshmi, Mr. Grandhi Buchi Sanyasi Raju, Mr. Grandhi
Kiran Kumar and Mr. Srinivas Bommidala, are concerned or interested in the
said resolution.

Item No. 6

The Board of Directors at their meeting held on September 25, 2017 had
appointed Mr. Grandhi Kiran Kumar (DIN: 00061669), promoter of the GMR
Group as an Additional Director of the Company with effect from September 25,
2017, pursuant to Section 161 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Article 52
of the Articles of Association of the Company and compliances as required under
Core Investment Company - Master Direction dated August 25, 2016.

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 161 of the Companies Act, 2013,
Mr. Grandhi Kiran Kumar (DIN: 00061669) shall hold office upto the date of the
ensuing Annual General Meeting (AGM).

Brief details of Mr. Grandhi Kiran Kumar (DIN: 00061669) has been provided as
Annexure to this Notice.

Notice from Grandhi Buchi Sanyasi Raju Trust dated September 1, 2017
pursuant to Section 160 of the Companies Act, 2013, proposing the candidature
of Mr. Grandhi Kiran Kumar (DIN: 00061669) for the office of Director of the
Company has been received by the Company. Therefore, being eligible, it is
proposed to appoint him as the Director of the Company who shall not be
subject to retirement by rotation of Directors at the Annual General Meeting of
the Company and hence this resolution is proposed for the approval of the
Members.

The Board recommends passing of the resolution set out in Item No. 5 as an
Ordinary Resolution.

Except Managers, and other key managerial personnel, all the Directors and
their relatives of Mr. Grandhi Kiran Kumar who is proposed to be appointed as
Director and his immediate family members namely, Mr. Grandhi Mallikarjuna
Rao, Mrs. Grandhi Varalakshmi, Mr. Grandhi Buchi Sanyasi Raju, Mr. Srinivas
Bommidala and Grandhi Buchi Sanyasi Raju, are concerned or interested in the
said resolution.

Item No. 7
The Board of Directors at their meeting held on September 25, 2017 had
appointed Mr. Venkata Nageswara Rao Boda (DIN: 00051167), promoter of the

GMR Group as an Additional Director of the Company with effect from
September 25, 2017, pursuant to Section 161 of the Companies Act, 2013 read
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with Article 52 of the Articles of Association of the Company and compliances as
required under Core Investment Company - Master Direction dated August 25,
2016.

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 161 of the Companies Act, 2013,
Mr. Venkata Nageswara Rao Boda (DIN: 00051167) shall hold office upto the
date of the ensuing Annual General Meeting (AGM).

Brief details of Mr. Venkata Nageswara Rao Boda (DIN: 00051167) has been
provided as Annexure to this Notice.

Notice from Grandhi Varalakshmi Mallikarjuna Rao Trust dated September 1,
2017 pursuant to Section 160 of the Companies Act, 2013, proposing the
candidature of Mr. Venkata Nageswara Rao Boda (DIN: 00051167) for the office
of Director of the Company has been received by the Company. Therefore, being
eligible, it is proposed to appoint him as the Director of the Company who shall
not be subject to retirement by rotation of Directors at the Annual General
Meeting of the Company and hence this resolution is proposed for the approval
of the Members.

The Board recommends passing of the resolution set out in Item No. 7 as an
Ordinary Resolution.

Except Mr. Venkata Nageswara Rao Boda (DIN: 00051167), being appointee
and/or his relatives, none of the Directors are concerned or interested,
financially or otherwise, in the resolution set out in Item No. 7.

Item No. 8

The Board of Directors at their meeting held on September 25, 2017 had
appointed Mrs. Grandhi Varalakshmi (DIN: 00061699), promoter of the GMR
Group as an Additional Director of the Company with effect from September 25,
2017, pursuant to Section 161 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Article 52
of the Articles of Association of the Company and compliances as required under
Core Investment Company - Master Direction dated August 25, 2016.

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 161 of the Companies Act, 2013,
Mrs. Grandhi Varalakshmi (DIN: 00061699) shall hold office upto the date of the
ensuing Annual General Meeting (AGM).

Notice from Grandhi Kiran Kumar and Ragini Trust dated September 1, 2017
pursuant to Section 160 of the Companies Act, 2013, proposing the candidature
of Mrs. Grandhi Varalakshmi (DIN: 00061699) for the office of Director of the
Company has been received by the Company. Therefore, being eligible, it is
proposed to appoint her as the Director of the Company who shall not be subject
to retirement by rotation of Directors at the Annual General Meeting of the
Company and hence this resolution is proposed for the approval of the Members.

M/
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Brief details of Mrs. Grandhi Varalakshmi (DIN: 00061699) has been provided as
Annexure to this Notice.

The Board recommends passing of the resolution set out in Item No. 8 as an
Ordinary Resolution.

Except Managers, and other key managerial personnel, all the Directors and
their relatives of Mrs. Grandhi Varalakshmi who is proposed to be appointed as
Director and her immediate family members namely, Mr. Grandhi Mallikarjuna
Rao, Mr. Grandhi Kiran Kumar, and Mr. Grandhi Buchi Sanyasi Raju, Mr. Srinivas
Bommidala, are concerned or interested in the said resolution.

Details of Directorships and Membership in Committees of the Board

(a) Names of entities in which Mr. Grandhi Mallikarjuna Rao holds directorship and
the membership of Committees of the Board:

S. Name of Companies Membership of Committees of
No (Directorship)* the Board
1 L Management Committee-
GMR Infrastructure Limited Chairman
2 GMR Hyderabad International Nil
_Airport Limited

3 GMR Varalakshmi Foundation Nil
4  Delhi International Airport Limited Nil
5 Delhi Aerotropolis Private Limited  Nil
6
7

GMR Airports Limited Nil
AMG Healthcare Destination Nil
Private Limited

8 Parampara Family Business Nil
Institute

9 Kakinada SEZ Limited Nil

10. Andhra Pradesh State Skill Nil
Development Corporation

11.  GMR Goa International Airport Nil
Limited

(b)Names of entities in which Mr. Srinivas Bommidala holds directorship and the
membership of Committees of the Board:

S Name of Companies Membership of Committees of
No (Directorship)* the Board
1 Bommidala Exports Private Nil
Limited
2 Bommidala Tobacco Exporters Nil
Private Limited
3 GMR Infrastructure Limited Management Committee-
Member;

Debenture Allotment Committee-



Member

4 GMR Varalakshmi Foundation Nil
5 Delhi International Airport Limited Share Allotment, Transfer and
Grievance Committee- Member
6 GMR Hyderabad International Nil
Airport Limited
7 GMR Sports Private Limited Nil
8 BSR Holdings Private Limited Nil
9 GMR Aviation Private Limited Audit Committee- Member
10. GMR Airports Limited Corporate Social Responsibility
Committee- Member;
Nomination and Remuneration
Committee- Member
11 Kakinada SEZ Limited Nil
12. AMG Healthcare Destination Nil
Private Limited
13 GMR Aerospace Engineering Nil
Limited
14 Delhi Duty Free Services Private Nil
Limited
15 GMR Goa International Airport Nomination and Remuneration
Limited Committee- Chairman

(c) Names of entities in which Mr. Grandhi Buchi Sanyasi Raju holds directorship
and the membership of Committees of the Board:

S. Name of Companies Membership of Committees of
No (Directorship)* the Board
1 GMR Infrastructure Limited Stakeholders’ Relationship

Committee - Member;
Debenture Allotment
Committee— Member;
Management Committee-
Member;
Corporate Social Responsibility
Committee- Member;
2 GMR Energy Limited Audit Committee- Member;
Shareholders Transfer &
Grievance Committee- Member;
IPO Committee- Member;
Securities Allotment Committee-
Member;
Management Committee-
Member;
GMR Varalakshmi Foundation Nil
Delhi International Airport Limited Nil
Delhi Aerotropolis Private Limited  Nil
GBS Holdings Private Limited Nil
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11.

GMR Kamalanga Energy Limited

GMR Bajoli Holi Hydropower
Private Limited
GMR Warora Energy Limited

(Formerly known as EMCO Energy

Limited)
GMR Goa International Airport
Limited
Raxa Security Services Limited

Audit Committee- Member;
Securities Allotment Committee-
Member;

Management Committee-
Member;

Nil

Nil

Nil

Nil

(d)Names of entities in which Mr. Grandhi Kiran Kumar holds directorship and the
membership of Committees of the Board:

No
1

N oy, W

\o)

Name of Companies
(Directorship)*
GMR Infrastructure Limited

GMR Hyderabad International
Airport Limited

GMR Varalakshmi Foundation
Delhi International Airport Limited

GKR Holdings Private Limited
GMR Airports Limited

GMR Sports Private Limited
GMR Male International Airport
Private Limited

GMR Goa International Airport
Limited

Membership of Committees of

the Board
Management Committee -
Member
Nil
Nil

Share Allotment, Transfer &
Grievance Committee - Member
Nil

Nil

Nil

Nil

Nil

(e)Names of entities in which Mr. Venkata Nageswara Rao Boda holds directorship
and the membership of Committees of the Board:

S
No

Name of Companies
(Directorship)*
GMR Infrastructure Limited

Membership of Committees of
the Board
Stakeholders’ Relationship
Committee- Member;
Management Committee-
Member;
Debentures Allotment
Committee- Member;
Nomination and Remuneration
Committee- Member;



Corporate Social Responsibility
Committee- Member

2 Raxa Security Services Limited Nil
3 GMR Varalakshmi Foundation Nil
GMR Highways Limited Nomination and Remuneration

Committee- Member;
Corporate Social Responsibility
Committee- Member

5 TIM Delhi Airport Advertising Nil

Private Limited

6 Kakinada SEZ Limited Audit Committee- Chairman;
Nomination and Remuneration
Committee- Chairman

7 GMR Hosur EMC Limited Nil

8 GMR Krishnagiri SEZ Limited Nil

(f) Names of entities in which Mrs. Grandhi Varalakshmi holds directorship and the
membership of Committees of the Board:

S. Name of Companies Membership of Committees of
No (Directorship)* the Board

1 GMR Varalakshmi Foundation Nil

2 GMR Bannerghatta Properties Nil

Private Limited

*foreign entities not considered
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GAHR

GMR ENTERPRISES PRIVATE LIMITED

Regd. Off.:

Third Floor, Old No.248/New No.114,
Royapettah High Road, Royapettah,
Chennai - 600 014

CIN: U74900TN2007PTC102389

Tenth Annual General Meeting

ATTENDANCE SLIP
(Please present this slip at the Entrance of the Meeting Hall)

I certify that I am a member/ proxy/authorized representative for the member of the
Company.

I hereby record my presence at the Annual General Meeting of the Company being held
on Saturday, September 30, 2017 at 3.00 p.m. at Third Floor, Old No.248/New No.114,
Royapettah High Road, Royapettah, Chennai - 600 014.

To be signed at the time of handing over the slip at the Meeting Hall,

(Signature of Member/Proxy)

Name:
Regd. Folio No.:



GMR ENTERPRISES PRIVATE LIMITED

Regd. Off.:

Third Floor, Old No.248/New No.114,
Royapettah High Road, Royapettah,
Chennai - 600 014

CIN: U74900TN2007PTC102389

FORM OF PROXY
(Pursuant to section 105(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 19(3) of the Companies
(Management and Administration) Rules, 2014)

Name of the member (s): E-mail Id:
Registered address: Folio No/Client Id*:
DP ID*:
I / We being the members of shares of GMR Enterprises Private Limited, hereby
appoint:
1
e-mail id __or failing him
e-mail id or failing him
3 ng
e-mail id or failing him

as my / our proxy to attend and vote (on a poll) for me / us and on my / our behalf at the Tenth Annual
General Meeting of the Members of GMR Enterprises Private Limited will be held on Saturday, September 30,
2017 at 3.00 p.m. at the Registered Office, Third Floor, Old No.248/New No.114, Royapettah High Road,
Royapettah, Chennai - 600 014 or at any adjournment thereof.

** 1/ We direct my / our proxy to vote on the resolution(s) in the manner as indicated below:

Sl. No Resolutions For Against
1 To receive, consider, approve and adopt the audited financial statements (including
consolidated financial statements) of the Company for the financial year ended March 31,
2017 together with the reports of the Board of Directors and Auditors thereon

2 To re-appoint M/s B. Purushottam & Co., Chartered Accountants (Registration No.
002808S) as Statutory Auditors of the Company to hold office upto 15" AGM of the
Company to be held for the financial year 2021-22, subject to ratification by members at
every AGM of the Company

3 To Appoint Mr. Grandhi Mallikarjuna Rao as Director of the Company
4 To appoint Mr. Srinivas Bommidala as Director of the Company
5 To Appoint Mr. Grandhi Buchi Sanyasi Raju as Director of the Company
6 To Appoint Mr. Grandhi Kiran Kumar as Director of the Company
7 To appoint Mr. Venkata Nageswara Rao Boda as Director of the Company
8 To appoint Mrs. Grandhi Varalakshmi as Director of the Company
Signed this............ day of............ 2017 Affix a 15 paisa

Revenue Stamp
Signature of shareholder

Signature of first Proxy holder Signature of second Proxy holder Signature of third Proxy holder



GAHR

1. The form should be signed across the stamp as per specimen signature registered with the Company.

2. The proxy form should be deposited at least 48 hours before the commencement of the meeting at
the registered office of the Company.

3. A proxy need not be a member of the Company.

4. A person can act as proxy on behalf of members not exceeding fifty (50) and holding in the aggregate
not more than ten percent of the total share capital of the Company carrying voting rights. A member
holding more than ten percent of the total share capital of the Company carrying voting rights may
appoint a single person as proxy and such person shall not act as a proxy for any other person or
member.

5. In the case of joint holders, the vote of the senior who tenders a vote, whether in person or by proxy,
shall be accepted to the exclusion of the vote of the other joint holders. Seniority shall be determined
by the order in which the names stand in the Register of Members.

6. The submission by a member of this form of proxy will not preclude such member from attending in
person and voting at the Meeting.

7. In case a member wishes his / her votes to be used differently, he / she should indicate the number of
shares under the column “For” or “Against” as appropriate.

* Applicable for the members holding shares in electronic form.
** This is optional. Please put a tick mark (V) in the appropriate column against the Resolutions indicated in
the Box. If a member leaves the “For” or “Against” column blank against any or all the Resolutions, the proxy
will be entitled to vote in the manner he/she thinks appropriate
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GMR Enterprises Private Limited

Corporate Office:

New Udaan Bhawan, Ground Floor,
Opp. Terminal 3, IGI Airport,

New Delhi, india 110037

CIN: U74900TN2007PTC 102389

" +91 11 42532846

L www.gmrgroup.in

Board’s Report
Dear Members,

Your Directors have pleasure in presenting the Tenth Annual Board’s Report together
with the Audited Financial Statements of the Company for the financial year ended
March 31, 2017.

Your Company is the ultimate holding company of GMR Group and holds investments
in listed and unlisted companies within the Group. The Company has a valid Certificate
of Registration (CoR) No.C-07.00832 dated August 02, 2017 issued by the Reserve
Bank of India (“RBI”), Chennai (in lieu of earlier CoR No.C.02.00254 dated
December 13, 2012 issued by RBI, Bangalore) for registration of the Company as a
Non-Banking Financial Company- Core Investment Company under Section 45-IA of
the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934, as amended ("RBI Act”).

Your Company continues to comply with the requirements prescribed for a CIC, except
that its holding in the net assets in the form of investment in equity shares, preference
shares, bonds, debentures, debt or loans in group companies during the reporting
period is 84.11% against the stipulated of not less than 90%. Your Company
endeavours to take necessary steps to meet the prescribed limit of not less than 90%.

Further, your Company holds investment in GMR Business & Consultancy LLP (GBC
LLP) through inheritance (post amalgamation of GMR Holdings Private Limited (a non-
CIC company which held investment in GBC LLP), with the Company - Effective date
August 10, 2016 and Appointed date March 30, 2015). Pursuant to RBI Master
Direction DNBR. PD. 003/03.10.119/2016-17 August 25, 2016, CIC's are not allowed
to partner in partnership firms therefore, your Company is in the process of exploring
options for divesting of the said investment in GBC LLP. On written request of the
Company, RBI has allowed time up to the March 31, 2018, for the said divestment.

Your Company has formulated and is implementing a policy known as Policy on
Resource Planning in compliance with the Circular No. RB1/2014-15/475 DNBR (PD)
CC No.021/03.10.001/2014-15 dated February 20, 2015 issued by Reserve Bank of
India ("RBI Private Placement Guidelines”).

Financial Results

Being CIC (NBFC), the Accounting Standards as per IGAAP continue to apply to your
Company up to March 31, 2018 and as IndAS will become applicable effective from
April 1, 2018. Accordingly, the Company has prepared its Financial Statements
(Standalone and Consolidated) as per IGAAP. Presented below the Standalone and
Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2017:

| | | | Regd. Office:
Third Floor, Old No.248/New No.114,
Royapettah High Road, Royapettah,
Chennai - 600 014



Your Company’s Standalone Financial Statements are presented below:

Revenue from operations
OtherIn me
Total In
Finance Cost

er enditu
Total nditure other n de
De reciation
Total Ex ndit re
P Loss befo taxation
Provision for Taxation
- Current Tax
- Earlier rsT x

rred Tax

Profit/(Loss) after Tax

Amount in INR
Particulars March 31, 2017

66.63
27.03
93.66
492.44
11.24
503.96
0.28
504.24
(410.58)

1.42

(409.16)

March 31, 2016
53.21

3.00

56.21

471.98

19.61

491.93

0.34

492.27
(436.06)

0.07

(436.13)

The total income has increased from Rs.56.21 Crores to Rs.93.66 Crores. The
Company has incurred a loss of Rs.409.16 Crores as against Rs.436.13 Crores during
the corresponding financial year 2016-17.

The consolidated revenue, expenditure and results of operations of your Company
including its subsidiaries and Joint Ventures are given as per details below:

Amountin INR n

Particulars 2016-17 2015-16

Reven from eration 14,660.22 13,547.52
Other incom 1,381.52 471.68
Revenue share paid / payable to concessionaire

rantors 2,762.93 2,412.29
@] ti  and administrative ex nditure 4,454.36 4,676.03
Other ex nses 2,429.71 2,159.88
Finance 5.471.54 4,560.14
De reciation and amortization ex n 2,176.92 2,301.73
(Loss) / profit before exceptional items, tax (1,253.71) (2,090.87)
expenses, minority interest and share of

loss fit of associates

ional Items:

Profit on sale of subsidiaries / jointly controlled 129.88 2.31
entities
Reimbursement of expenses pertaining to earlier 51.42

ea received a sub idia
Provision for iminution in val e of investments (39.22)

2



in an associate

Loss on impairment of assets in subsidiaries
Goodwill impairment

Loan prepayment interest & interest rate swap
charges

Impairment of fixed assets

Loss on account of provision towards claims
recoverable

(Loss)/ profit before tax expenses and
minority interest

(Loss)/ profit from continuing operations
before tax expenses, minority interest and
share of (loss)/ profit of associates

Tax expenses (including tax adjustments for
prior vyears, deferred tax and MAT credit
entitlement) of continuing operations

(Loss)/ profit from continuing operations
after tax expenses and before minority
interest and share of (loss)/ profit of
associates

Share of (loss)/ profit of associates (net)

Minority interest - share of loss/ (profit) from
continuina opberations

Loss/(Profit) transferred to Pre acquisition
reserves

(Loss)/ profit after minority interest and
share of (loss)/ profit of associates from
continuing operations (A)

Profit / (loss) from discontinuing
operations before tax expenses and
minority interest

Tax expenses (including tax adjustments for
prior vyears, deferred tax and MAT credit
entitlement) of discontinuinag operations

Profit / (loss) after tax expenses and
before minority interest from discontinuing
operations

Minority interest - share of (profit) / loss from
discontinuing operations

Profit / (loss) after minority interest from
discontinuing operations (B)

(Loss)/ profit after minority interest from
continuing and discontinuing operations
(A+B)

Earnings per equity share (Rs.) - Basic and
diluted (per equity share of Rs.10 each)
Earnings per equity share (Rs.) from continuing
operations - Basic and diluted (per equity share
of Rs. 10 each)

(164.30)

(48.97)

(454.20)

(312.72)
(1,939.72) (2,240.67)
(2,479.82) (1,940.51)
805.17 216.60
(3,284.99) (2,157.11)
(325.23) (5.52)
1,095.41 663.91
5.13
(2,514.81) (1,493.59)
540.10 (300.16)
1.48 1.35
538.62 (301.51)
(122.57) 31.92
416.05 (269.59)
(2,098.76) ( 1,763.18)
(334.86) (281.32)
(401.25) (238.31)



Earnings per equity share (Rs.) from 66.38 (43.01)
discontinuing operations - Basic and diluted (per
u share of Rs. 10 each

Your Company is the ultimate holding company of GMR Group and holds investments
in listed and unlisted companies within the Group. The complete list of Subsidiaries,
Joint Venture and Associate Companies is furnished as ‘Part A of Annexure- 4’ to this

Report.
The brief overview of the developments of the major subsidiaries’ business is

presented below:
GMR Infrastructure Limited

GMR Infrastructure Limited (“GIL"), subsidiary of the Company operates in Airports,
Energy, Transportation and Urban Infrastructure business sectors in India and few
other countries through its subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures. GIL has an
Engineering, Procurement and Construction (EPC) business focusing on execution of
projects of Group SPVs and external customers like Railways in many infrastructure
sectors like Railways, Transportation, Energy etc.

I. Airport Sector

The airport business comprises of 3 operating airports viz., Delhi and Hyderabad
International Airports in India and Mactan Cebu International Airport in Philippines and
one asset under development viz., Greenfield airport at Mopa, Goa. These Indian
airports are owned by your Company’s step down subsidiaries.

The Group has acquired a prominent space in airports sector with more than 27% of
total country’s passenger traffic being routed through the two airports managed by
the Group

An overvicw of these assets during the year is briefly given below:
1.

DIAL is a Joint Venture (JV) between GMR Airports Ltd (GAL) (64%), Airports Authority
of India (AAI) (26%) and Fraport AG Frankfurt Airport Services Worldwide (Fraport)
(10%). DIAL has entered into a long-term agreement to operate, manage and develop
the Indira Gandhi International Airport (IGIA), Delhi.

DIAL surpassed the 57 million passenger mark in FY 2016-17, witnessing a growth of
~20% in traffic over previous year led by domestic growth of ~24%. Strong growth
in domestic cargo segment propelled DIAL to retain its number one position in cargo
traffic in India with an 8% overall growth in FY 2016-17 over the previous year. Due
to delay in determination of tariff for the second control period, the tariffs of the first
control period have continued.



The non-aeronautical revenues continued its double digit growth led by commercial
non-aero sales and land / space rentals. Delhi airport became the first airport to launch
an e-shopping platform.

Strong focus on developing organizational culture based on operational excellence and
customer focused initiatives helped DIAL to emerge as the 2™ best airport in the Asia
Pacific region as well as the 2™ best airport in the group of airports which handle 40+
million passengers per annum (mppa) category.

DIAL also successfully completed the 2nd phase of land monetization by awarding a
23 acre land parcel to Bharti Realty for an Integrated Retail development project.

Awards and Accolades received in FY 2016-17:

e World’s second best airport in the 40 million + pax category as well as second
best airport in Asia Pacific region as rated by Airports Council International.

« Best Airport Staff in India and Central Asia in 2017.

o SKYTRAX World Airport Awards for Third year in a row.

e Best Airport — Central and South Asia, FTE Asia Awards 2016.

e '‘Golden Peacock Award for Social Responsibility’ in the Aviation Transport
Category in 2016.

e First Airport in Asia Pacific region to achieve Carbon Neutral Accreditation.

e First Airport in the world to adopt Green Building Monitoring Platform System -
ARC.

e Platinum Rating from Indian Green Building Council for Terminal 3.

o Network 18 and Honeywell Smart Building award for -

o Smartest Airport in India
o Smartest Building in India.

« Best PR case study, Best corporate event and social media campaign of 2016
at the Public Relations Council Summit.

e Excellence in Cost Management.

e Overall Social Media Strategy Award 2016 for various travellers —friendly social
media initiatives.

e Special Recognition in the 29th Quality Circle Competition by CII.

« CII National Excellence Practice Competition-2016.

2. GMR Hyderabad International Airport Limited (GHIAL)

GHIAL is a JV between GAL (63%), AAI (13%), Government of Telangana (13%) and
MAHB (Mauritius) Private Limited (11%) and has entered into a long-term agreement
to operate, manage and develop the Rajiv Gandhi International Airport (RGIA),
Hyderabad.

GHIAL continued to record strong traffic growth in its Sth year of operation. Passenger

traffic touched 15.29 million, registering a growth of 22% year on year (Y-0-Y).
5



Similarly, Cargo also registered impressive growth to reach 123,489 MT, a growth of
9% Y-0-Y. ATMs also had a strong growth of 23% Y-o0-Y, ending the year with 130,455.
The year also showed remarkable progress towards GHIAL's Mission of being the
Gateway of Choice and Preferred Logistics Hub for South and Central India region,
marked by Air Asia and Go Air launching their passenger operations. With this, all
major Indian carriers have a presence at Hyderabad airport.

Awards and Accolades received in FY 2016-17:

» World’s Best Airport 2016 in ASQ Rating by ACI, in 5-15 mn passenger category.

e “Order of Merit” awarded in the field of environment by CAPA.

o Fastest Growing Cargo Airport 2016 at India Cargo Awards - West and South.

e ASSOCHAM’s Corporate Governance Excellence Award as Runners up under the
unlisted private sector category.

3.

GMCAC, a JV between GMR group (40%) and Megawide Corporation (60%), entered
into a concession agreement with Mactan Cebu International Airport Authority for
development and operation of Mactan Cebu International Airport (Cebu airport) for a
period of 25 years. GMCAC took operational responsibility of the airport in November
2014 and has now been operating the airport for 30 months.

GMCAC has seen international traffic grow by 15% while the domestic traffic has also
grown at 8.8%. In terms of international connectivity, GMCAC has also seen some key
routes being added, viz., Cebu — Dubai, Cebu - Los Angeles and Cebu- Taipei, Cebu-
Xiamen and Cebu — Chengdu

Awards and Accolades received in FY 2016-17:

Routes Asia Marketing award.
e CAPA Asia Pacific Regional Airport of the Year 2016.

4 GMR Goa International

GIL, through its subsidiary GAL, won the right to develop and operate new greenfield
international airport at Mopa, North Goa through international competitive bidding.
The Concession Agreement was signed with Government of Goa in November, 2016.
As per the Concession Agreement, the Group will design, build, finance and operate
the international airport for 40 years with extension option for another 20 years. The
construction period for the first phase of the project is three years and is expected to
be operational by mid of 2020. The project envisages 7.7 mn passenger capacity in
Phase-1 and 232 acres of land for commercial city side development for a period of
60 years. Financial close for the project has been recently achieved.



5.

GMR Group along with its partner Malaysia Airports are engaged in arbitration with
Government of Maldives (GoM) and Maldives Airport Company Ltd. (MACL) after the
latter repudiated the agreement in December 2012. A compensation of $270 million
has been awarded to the GMR-MAHB consortium covering equity, debt and
termination costs incurred by GMR-MAHB consortium as a result of the repudiation
of the concession by GoM. The entire compensation has been received from GoM and
dues to the lenders have been settled.

II. Energy Sector

The Energy Sector companies are operating around 4,600 MWs of Coal, Gas, Liquid
fuel and Renewable power plants in India and around 2,330 MWs of power projects
are under various stages of construction and development, besides a pipeline of other
projects. The Energy Sector has a diversified portfolio of thermal and hydro projects
with a mix of merchant and long term Power Purchase Agreements (PPA).

Following are the major highlights of the Energy Sector:

A. Operational Assets:
i. Generation:
1.
MW:

e The Plant consists of 2 x 300 MW coal fired Units with all associated auxiliaries
and Balance of Plant Systems. GWEL has a Coal supply Agreement with South
Eastern Coalfields Limited (SECL) for a total Annual Contracted Quantity (ACQ)
of 2.6 Million Tonnes per annum.

Regulatory orders for Dadra Nagar Haveli (DNH) and Maharashtra State
Electricity Distribution Company Ltd (MSEDCL) were received during the year.
GWEL has started billing for Change in Law to both these customers.

e During the year, the Plant has achieved availability of 86% and Gross Plant
Load Factor (PLF) of 71%.

e More than 90% ash utilization was achieved during the year.

e Weir construction for water availability by Maharashtra Industrial Development
Corporation (MIDC) is under way and expected to be made ready in August
2017.

2 (MR Kamalanaa Enarnv [jmited (GKEIY — 1 AEN M/

GKEL, subsidiary of GMR Energy Limited, with IIF & IDFC also hold equity stake,
has developed 1050 MW (3x 350) coal fired power plant at Kamalanga Village,
Odisha;

e The plant is supplying power to Haryana through PTC India Limited and to
Cdisha through GRIDCO Limited and to Bihar through Bihar State Power Holding
Company Limited;

85% of the capacity was tied-up in long term PPAs;
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GKEL has received Letter of Assurances from Mahanadi Coalfields Limited (MCL)
for 1,050 MW, of which 500 MW is for firm linkage and 550 MW was for tapering
linkage. GKEL has signed Fuel Supply Agreement (FSA) for firm linkage for 500
MW and is getting coal supply accordingly.

During this year, Ministry of Coal has discontinued the extension of MoU for coal
(earlier tapering linkage) to GKEL w.e.f June 30, 2016.

During this period, GKEL achieved availability of 84% and PLF of 65%.

GKEL received favourable order from CERC for Change in Law in Bihar PPA, on
the basis of which GKEL has raised supplementary bills of Rs. 33 Crore to Bihar.

GCHEPL, has developed 1,370 MW (2 x 685 MW) pulverized coal-fired super
critical technology based power project in Raikheda Village, Tilda Block, Raipur
District, in the State of Chhattisgarh. GCHEPL has received all the necessary
statutory and environmental clearances. The project has achieved COD of Unit
-1 and Unit - 2 on June 01, 2015 and March 31, 2016 respectively and started
commercial operation of Unit - 1 from November 01, 2015. The project
participated in the coal block auction, bid and won two coal blocks, namely
Talabira and Ganeshpur.

The Railway track for movement of rake to site has been completed and siding
operations have commenced.

Following High Court order for Jaiprakash Power Ventures and Others, GCHEL

has decided to surrender the mines asking the Govt. to return the Bank
Guarantee.

Further, the lenders have invoked Strategic Debt Restructuring (SDR) for
GCHEL. As per the SDR scheme, out of the total outstanding debt (including
accrued interest) of Rs. 8,800 Crore, debt to the extent of Rs. 2,992 Crore has
been converted into equity by which the consortium lenders have 52.4%
shareholding and balance 47.6% is held by GMR Group.

Post the conversion, the balance project debt stands at Rs.5,800 Crore with Rs.
2,992 Crore equity held by lenders and Rs. 2,721 Crore equity held by GMR
Group, resulting in the debt-to-equity ratio of L.0x. The lower debt levels would
result in improving the long term viability of the project.

GMR Vemaagiri Power Generation Limited (GVPGL) - 370 MW

GVPGL, a wholly owned subsidiary of GEL operates a 370 MW natural gas-fired
combined cycle power plant at Rajahmundry, Andhra Pradesh.
GVPGL won bid and operated under phase-III of E-RNLG scheme but could not

sell under phase - IV power because of no demand from Discoms.

To benefit from the softened LNG prices world-wide, GVPGL is striving
continuously to import LNG on short term basis to obtain higher PLF.

GVPGL operated at a PLF of 9% in FY 17.



~MD Daishmiindrms Fnarav | imitad ((CDEILY — 7A2 MA/-

GREL, is a 768 MW (2 x 384 MW) combined cycle gas based power project.
GREL secured gas for operations through e-bid RLNG scheme at 30% PLF for

the period April 2016 to September 2016. The plant continued operations from
April 2016 to September 2016 based on the roster decided by AP - Transco. To
benefit with the softened LNG prices world-wide, GREL is striving continuously
to import LNG on short term basis and looking forward to tie up power by
exploring the PPA opportunities available.

Further, lenders have invoked SDR, with lenders owning 55% and balance being
held by GMR Group. As a consequence, outstanding debt of Rs.1,413.99 Crore
(Rs.1,308.57 Crore of debt and Rs.105.42 Crore of Interest accrued thereon)
was converted into equity amounting to 55% shareholding in GREL. Post the
restructuring, the total outstanding debt of GREL would be Rs.2,366 Crore.

Rarna mniintad ar Dlant Af (MR Fnarav | imited ((CEIY Kalinada:

GEL operates 220 MW combined cycle barge mounted power plant at Kakinada,
Andhra Pradesh. There was no generation of power by the barge mounted
power plant during the year ended March 31, 2017 on account of
non-availability of gas.

Plant is kept under preservation since March 2013. Preservation methods were
adopted based on QOriginal Equipment Manufacturers’ (OEM) procedures.

GPCL, in which GEL holds 51% stake, operates a 200 MW diesel powered power
plant and was selling power to Tamil Nadu Generation and Distribution
Corporation Limited (TAGENDCO). There was no generation of power during the
year and currently the plant is kept under preservation.

(-MP Ciiiarat Qnlar sar Driviata | imitad ((2(2QPPIY Chara ba \j|lana Cidarat:

GGSPPL, a wholly owned subsidiary of GEL, operates 25 MW Solar power project
at Charanka village, Patan district, Gujarat. GGSPPL has entered into 25 year
PPA with Gujarat Urja Vikas Nigam Limited for supply of entire power
generation. GGSPPL has achieved commercial operation on March 04, 2012 and
received certificate of commissioning from M/s. Gujarat Energy Development
Agency ("GEDA”). Indu Projects Limited has been awarded the contract for
operation and maintenance of the plant for a period of 5 years. Plant has
achieved a Gross DC PLF of 19% for FY 2016-17 and recorded revenue of Rs.61
Crore for the FY.

M~MP Raiam Qnlar Dawar Drivinta | imitaed ((CRCDDI Y Daiam

GRSPPL, a wholly owned subsidiary of GEL commissioned a 1 MW Solar power
project in Rajam, Andhra Pradesh in January 2016. The Company has signed a
25 year PPA with both GMR Institute of Technology (700KW) and GMR
Varalakshmi Care Hospital (300KW) for the sale of power generated. M/s Enerpac
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10.

11.

i,

has been awarded O&M contract for the Plant for a period of 5 years. Plant has achieved
PLF of 14.35% for FY 2016-17 and recorded revenue of Rs.0.86 Crore for the
FY. Net metering for the Plant was completed in June 2016.

GGAL, a wholly owned subsidiary of GIL commissioned a 2.1 MW wind based
power plant at Moti Sindhodi Village, Kutchh District, Gujarat in July 2011. The
Company has signed a 25 year PPA with Gujarat Urja Vikas Nigam Limited
("GUVNL") with respect to the entire power generated from the Plant. M/s
Suzlon has been awarded O&M contract for the Plant for a period of 5 years and
is doing the O&M for the plant.

GPIL, a wholly owned subsidiary of GIL, commissioned a 1.25 MW wind based
power plant at Muthayampatty Village, Tirupur District, Tamil Nadu in December
2011. The Company has signed a 20 year PPA with TANGEDCO with respect to
the entire power generated from the Plant. M/s Suzlon has been awarded O&M
contract for the Plant for a period of 5 years and is doing the O&M for the plant.

Transmission:

GEL has entered into definitive agreements with Adani Transmission Limited
agreeing to transfer its interest in Aravali Transmission Services Limited
(ATSCL) and Maru Transmission Services Limited (MTSCL). The said transaction
concluded in FY17.

Projects:

CMD Bainli Hali HvAdranAwar Driv ta | imitad (CRHUDEY - 120 MVA/ -

GBHHPL, a wholly owned subsidiary of GEL, is implementing 180 MW hydro
power plant on the river Ravi at Chamba District, Himachal Pradesh.

The construction works of the project are in full swing and Power House and
Dam concreting have commenced. Overall progress of 42% has been achieved
till end of FY 2016-17.

GUKPL, a subsidiary of GEL, is developing 900 MW Upper Karnali Hydroelectric
project (HEP) located on river Karnali in Dailekh, Surkhet and Achham Districts
of Nepal.

Post execution of Project Development Agreement (PDA), several key activities
as have been completed. Technical design of the Project has been finalized post
detailed technical appraisal by a seven member Panel of Experts (empaneled
with IFC) and Hydraulic model studies.

10



The bid submissions for two EPC Packages; EPC-1 for Civil and HM works and
EPC-2 for Electro mechanical works are expected to be completed by September
2017 in first half of FY18.

- 300 MW:

GBHPL, a subsidiary of GEL, is in the process of developing 300 MW
hydroelectric power plant on Alaknanda river in the Chamoli District of
Uttarakhand State. The project has received all major statutory clearances like
Environmental and Techno economic concurrence from Central Electricity
Authority (CEA).

Implementation Agreement has been executed with the Government of

Uttarakhand. However, Hon’ble Supreme Court’s stay order on 24 Hydro
Electric Projects in Uttarakhand (Order dated May 07, 2014) issued while
hearing a civil appeal in the matters of Alaknanda Hydro Power Company
Limited, is in effect till date.

Himtal HyvAdrannwioar Camnanyv Driviata | imitad (HHPPI Y — &NN M\A/

HHPPL, a subsidiary of GEL, is developing 600 MW Upper Marsyangdi-2
Hydroelectric Power Project on the river Marsyangdi in Lamjung and Manang
Districts of Nepal.

Environment Clearance for the project is already in place. PDA negotiation and
execution is underway and post its completion, tender level engineering and
procurement plan will be prepared.

Power Evacuation is proposed through 400KV D/C transmission line from Bus
bar of project to Gorakhpur pooling point of PGCIL in Uttar Pradesh, India. Nepal
portion transmission line (from project’s Bus bar upto Indo-Nepal border) to be
developed by Marsyangdi Transmission Company Pvt. Ltd. (MTCPL), a GMR
Group Company and Indian portion upto Gorakhpur will be developed by Gol.
Post execution of PDA and formulation of cross border regulations, MoU/PPA for
power sale will be executed with selected buyers in India and Bangladesh for
tie-up of power on long term route.

(MR | nnda Hvdrannwer Private | imited (1 HPPI Y - 2285 MW/

GLHPPL, a subsidiary of your Company, is developing a 225 MW project in East
Kameng district in Arunachal Pradesh. The Detailed Project Report (*"DPR"”) has
been prepared and has received techno-economic concurrence from the CEA.
The Expert Appraisal Committee (EAC) of Ministry of Environment, Forest and
Climate Change ("MoEF & CC" or "MoEF") has recommended for Environmental
Clearance and accordingly MoEF & CC had issued in-principle clearance to this
project. However, formal Environmental Clearance shall be granted by MoEF &
CC after obtaining the Forest- stage-I clearance. Defence clearance for setting
up the project has been received from Ministry of Defence, Gol.

11



C. Mining Assets:

1. PT Barasentosa Lestari, (PTBSL):

e GEL had acquired 100% stake in PTBSL in September 2008 which is having coal
mine in South Sumatra Province with more than 650 MT Coal Resources in
~24,385 Hectares and total mineable reserves of about 280 Million Metric Ton
(MMT). Trial coal production and sales have commenced in FY 2015, however
the operations were suspended because of the limitations of Lransportalion of
coal due by barging and distressed market conditions. A conditional share
purchase agreement (CSPA) was signed” with PTGEMS on May 12, 2017 for
sale of PTBSL. Post the approval of CSPA from Singapore Exchange and other
statutory approvals, shares of PTBSL will be transferred to PTGEMS.

2. PT Golden Energy Mines Tbk (PT GEMS):

e GIL, through its overseas subsidiary GMR Coal Resources Pte. Ltd. had acquired
30% stake in PT GEMS, a group company of Sinar Mas Group, Indonesia. PT
GEMS, a limited liability company, is listed on the Indonesia Stock Exchange.
PT GEMS is carrying out mining operations in Indonesia through its subsidiaries
which own coal mining concessions in South Kalimantan, Central Kalimantan
and Sumatra. PT GEMS is also involved in coal trading through its subsidiaries.
Coal mines owned by PT GEMS and its subsidiaries have total resources of more
than 2.0 billion tons and Joint Ore Reserves Committee (JORC) certified
reserves of 620 MT of thermal coal. GMR Group has a Coal off take Agreement
with PT GEMS which entitles GMR to off take coal for 25 years.

III. Highways and Transportation Sector

GMR Highways Limited, wholly owned subsidiary of GIL, is one of the leading
highways developers in India with 7 operating highways assets including (36.01%)
in GMR OSE Hungud Hospet Highways Private Limited (GOHHHPL). During the FY
2017, the Group entered into definitive agreements to divest its entire stake (51%)
in GOHHHPL and divestment of 14.99% was completed. Remaining stake sale is
underway and shall be compleled posl approvals from NHAI and lenders. The Group
also divested minority stakes in Ulunderpet Expressways Private Limited and
Jadcherla Expressways Private Limited during the year. lor Kishangarh-Udaipur-
Ahmedabad (KUA) project which had been terminated in December 2012, a dispute
notice to NHAI was served, invoking arbitration to settle the dispute. In FY17, the
matters with NHAI were resolved for the KUA project.

IV. Urban Infrastructure Sector

The Group is developing a 2,100 acre multi product Special Investment Region (SIR)
at Krishnagiri, near Hosur in Tamil Nadu and 10,000 acre Port-based multi-product
SIR at Kakinada, Andhra Pradesh.
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Krishnagiri SIR

Krishnagiri SIR has an objective of building world class industrial infrastructure in
India, is setting up a SIR at Hosur, Tamil Nadu, just 45 kms from Electronic City,
Bengaluru. The location provides unique advantage of multi-modal connectivity with National and
State Highways and a railway line running alongside. Krishnagiri SIR is planned to be
developed as an integrated city spread across 2,100 acres in the influence area of
proposed Chennai- Bangalore Industrial Corridor. Krishnagiri SIR is being planned to
house the following manufacturing clusters:

Automotive & Ancillary;

Defense and Aerospace;

Precision Engineering;

Machine tools;

Electronics Product Manufacturing;

Designed to encompass a complete ecosystem, Phase 1A of Krishnagiri SIR spread
over 275 acres will contain all that are essential for a large industrial city center.
Krishnagiri SIR has following key offerings to its esteemed clientele:

e Shovel ready developed plot with road, drainage, water supply, Water
Treatment Plants (WTP), Sewage Treatment Plants (STP) and other similar
facilities;

Water-Potable Water
Power- 33 kv level dedicated sub-station with a Solar power plant.

The entire infrastructure shall be developed & maintained by GMR Group underscoring
its commitment to quality, service and timelines. The “integrated” design would
endeavor to provide first world standard residential, social and commercial amenities
making this zone a truly “self-contained”.

Project Progress:
Notwithstanding the political uncertainties in the state in the past year, the company
made good progress in securing the clearances and is aggressively marketing the SIR
for client tie-ups.

Kakinada SIR

Kakinada SIR is developing Kakinada SEZ / SIR in the State of Andhra Pradesh in
proximity to the cities of Vishakapatnam and Kakinada. With an area span of over
10,000 acres, Kakinada SEZ / SIR will be self-contained Port-based Industrial park
with ideally designed core infrastructure, industrial common infrastructure, business
facilitation infrastructure and social infrastructure across varied dedicated areas such
as housing, lifestyle and high-end expat friendly zones. Kakinada SEZ / SIR is
designed for balancing the sensitivity to culture and heritage of the region and also
for integration with the native eco-system.
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Project Progress:

* MoU with GAIL/HPCL for selling up a petrochemical complex with a proposed
investment of Rs.40,000 Crore has been signed. Other MoUs have also been signed
with Deepak Nitrate, DCM Shriram, IIFT among others.

e Regarding our plans to develop Port for the SEZ, public hearing was successfully
held and the implementation plan is on right track.

e Executed lease deeds with AP Transco and Eastern Power Distribution Company of
Andhra Pradesh Limited (APEPDCL) for substations.

e Appreoach roads to existing industries has been completed.

o Laid down the power cables inside the industrial zone and provided industrial power
supply for existing industries.

e Master Plan for Phase 1 development of around 916 acres has been completed.

EPC

Pursuant to the strategic decision taken to pursue EPC opportunities outside GMR
Group and consequent to the Group’s entry into Railway Projects during FY 2015-16,
the Group has started construction of 2 Dedicated Freight Corridor Corporation (DFCC)
projects in the State of Uttar Pradesh. Mobilization and design for the projects is
substantially completed and construction is in full swing.

GMR Group has successfully completed the Kasauli Housing project in the FY 2016-17
and achieved substantial completion of 2 Rail Vikas Nigam Limited (RVNL) projects in
the States of Telangana and Uttar Pradesh that were awarded in FY 2013-14.

GMR Group also won two more packages worth Rs. 2,280 Crore on the Eastern
Dedicated Freight Corridor railway project in FY 2016-17. The first package comprises
175 km single line connecting Sahnewal and Pilkhani that passes through Uttar
Pradesh, Haryana and Punjab. The other package is a 46 km double line corridor in
Uttar Pradesh connecting Dadri and Khurja.

V. Other Companies

1. GMR Sports Private Limited (GSPL):

The period of Apr 2017 - Aug 2017 witnessed the 10 years of completion of your
franchise Delhi Daredevils. The season 10 of IPL was staged in April - May 2017. The
franchise fared in the middle of the table and was 6th on the league standings. As the
league has witnessed completion of 10 years, it has gone under a major financial
model change, wherein henceforth your franchise, will stop paying a fixed franchise
fee which was being paid for last 10 years and move to revenue share mode! with
BCCI. The approaching season of IPL 2018 is critical from the team formation aspect,
as two teams Gujarat Lions and Pune Rising Super Giants will cease to exist and the
banned teams Rajasthan Royals and Chennai Super Kings will be revived. Because of
the same players of GL and PRSG will go into the pool and 2018 will witness a big
auction. The rules of retention and auction will be discussed with BCCI in coming days
in September 2017.
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The GMR group has bought two new franchises Jo'Burg Giants and U.P. Yoddha on the
st th of the equity ted by Delhi Daredevil franch  in IPL. The] urg
Gi are a cricket fra se that will play in the | T/20 !  ue to be hos by
Cricket South Africa in South Africa between Nov 3 - Dec 12 every year starting 2017.
U.P. Yoddha is a Kabaddi franchise based out of Lucknow in the Pro Kabaddi League
(PKL) owned by Star TV. The season of PKL is currently operational and runs between
Jul 28 - Oct 28.

IPL, also w  ssed a major on September 4th the IPL media rights

were decla for the five-y od of IPL seasons -2022) both seasons

included.

2.

During the year, GLGPL won the franch rights to own and op e one of

additional franchisee teams in the Pr baddi League, U.P. hha of

(U.P.).

GLG red into an ag t ashal Sports Priva mited, which organizes

and es the men’s i in India under th gis of and with the co-
ration to a
FI). Th cut e
ally val on I

be extended beyond the said date subject e

finalised with (AKFI) .

As per the Business model of pro-kabaddi league, as a Franchisee, the company would
benefit in the long run and would start earning profit after initial five years of
participation.

The extract of Annual Return in Form MGT-9 pursuant to Section 92(3) of the
Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 12 of Companies (Management and
Administration) Rules, 2014 is appended as ‘Annexure - 1’ forming part of this report.

To the best of their knowledge and belief and according to the information and
explanations obtained by them, your Directors make the following statements in terms
of Section 134(3)(c) of the Companies Act, 2013:

a) that in the preparation of the annual financial statements for the year ended March
31, 2017, the licable accou g stand have been followed along with
proper explana relating to m ial depa s, if any;

b) that such accounting policies as mentioned in the Notes to the Financial Statements
have been selected and applied consistently and judgement and estimates have
been made that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of
the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2017 and of the loss of the
Company for the year ended on that date;
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i es Act, 3
tecting d

d) that the annual financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis;

e) that proper systems have been devised to ensure compliance with the provisions
of all applicable laws and that such systems were adequate and operating
effectively.

f) the directors had devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions
of all applicable laws and that such systems were adequate and operating
effectively.

M/s B. Purushottam & Co., Chartered Accountants, had been appointed as the
Statutory Auditors, to hold office for two (2) years from the conclusion of Eighth
Annual General Meeting held on September 30, 2015 until the conclusion of the
ensuing Annual General Meeting for the financial year ending 2016-17.

The Board of Directors of your Company propose to re-appoint M/s B. Purushottam &
Co., Chartered Accountants (Registration No. 002808S) as Statutory Auditors of the
Company for a term of five consecutive years, to hold office from the conclusion of
the ensuing AGM until the conclusion of 15" AGM of the Company to be held for the
financial year 2021-22, subject to ratification by members at every AGM of the
Company.

M/s B. Purushottam & Co., Chartered Accountants have confirmed by way of a written
consent and certificate as required under Section 139(1) of the Companies Act, 2013
and their re-appointment, if made, shall be in accordance with the conditions
prescribed in Rule 4(1) of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 and that
their re-appointment, if made, would be within the prescribed limits under Section
141(3)(g) of the Companies Act, 2013.

There are no qualifications in the Auditors’ Report to the standalone financial
statements which require any clarification / explanation.

However, there is one qualification in the Consolidated financial statements with
respect to Rajam Enterprises Private Limited (REPL), Subsidiary of the Company. basis
for Qualified Opinion and Qualified opinion form part of the Independent Auditor’s
Report as at March 31, 2017. The same is self-explanatory.

Further, there are certain Emphasis of Matter in the notes to the Consolidated Financial
Statements that forms part of the Independent Auditor’s Report as at March 31, 2017.
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The same are self - explanatory and the opinion of the Auditors is not qualified with
respect to them.

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the
Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014,
the Company has appointed M/s V. Sreedharan & Associates, Company Secretaries, a
firm of Company Secretaries in Practice to conduct the Secretarial Audit of the
Company for the financial year 2016-17. The Secretarial Audit Report in
Form No.MR-3 is appended as ‘Annexure — 2’ to this Report.

There are no qualifications or adverse remarks in the Secretarial Auditors’ Report
which require any clarification / explanation.

Being NBFC, provisions of Section 186 are not applicable on the Company. Disclosure
on particulars relating to Loans, guarantees or investments made by the Company
during the financial year ended March 31, 2017 are explained and provided in the
notes to accounts of audited standalone financial statement of the Company.

All contracts / arrangements / transactions entered by the Company during the
financial year with related parties were in the ordinary course of business and on an
arm’s length basis. During the year, the Company had not entered into any contract
/ arrangement / transaction with related parties which could be considered material.
Your Directors draw attention of the members to notes to accounts of financial
statements which set out related party disclosures.

In view of the losses during the year under review, the Board of Directors has not
recommended any dividend for the financial year 2016-17.

As on the date of this report your Directors are not aware of any circumstances, not
otherwise dealt with in this Report or in the financial statements of the Company,
which would render any amount stated in the accounts of the Company as misleading.
Further, in the opinion of the Directors, no item, transaction or event of a material
and unusual nature has arisen which would affect substantially the results or the
operations of the Company for the financial year in respect of which this report is
made and no material changes and commitments affecting the financial position of
the Company had occurred in the interval between the end of the financial year and
the date of this report.
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There are no orders passed by the Regulators or Courts or Tribunals impacting the
going concern status and the company’s operations in future.

The particulars as prescribed under Section 134(3) (m) of the Companies Act, 2013
read with Rule 8(3) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 are set out hereunder:

A. Conservation of energy:

Your Company is not engaged in any manufacturing activity and hence the furnishing
of particulars is not applicable to the Company.

B. Technology absorption:

Your Company is not engaged in any manufacturing activity and hence the furnishing
of particulars is not applicable to the Company.

C. Foreign exchange earnings and Outgo:

There was no Foreign Exchange Earnings and Outgo during the year 2016-17.

The Company has robust business risk management framework capable of identifying
business risks, commensurate with its activities. In the opinion of the Board, presently
the Company is not facing business risk which may threaten the existence of the
Company.

Y any a n c his th e ng
a sing pl la h , your o} es
e tor rt g t | or ot n he

stakeholders, any conduct that results in violation of the Company’s Code of Business
Conduct to management (on an anonymous basis, if employees so desire.) Likewise,
under this policy, we have prohibited discrimination, retaliation or harassment of any
kind against any employees, who based on the em ployee’s reasonable belief that such
conduct or practice have occurred or are occurring, reports that information or
participates in the said investigation. The Audit Committee shall periodically review
the functioning of this mechanism.

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule
9 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 (“the Act”), the Company has constituted
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Corporate Social Responsibility Committee (CSR Committee) of the Board on October
27, 2016, which is responsible for formulating and monitoring the CSR policy of the
Company.

The provisions of the Act were not applicable for contributing any amount towards the
CSR activities. The Board opined not to make any voluntary contribution towards CSR
activities for the financial year 2016-17 in absence of profits and in view of the growing
needs of the business.

The disclosure of contents of CSR Policy in the Board’s Report as per Rule 9 of the
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 is appended as ‘Annexure-3’ forming part of this
report.

There is no change in the nature of business of the company during the financial year
2016-17. However, in furtherance of the Amalgamation of GMR Holdings Private
Limited (Transferor Company 1 or GHPL) and GMR Projects Private Limited (Tra nsferor
Company 2 or GPPL) with GMR Enterprises Private Limited (Transferee Company or
GEPL or Company) and to fully effectuate the Order of the Hon’ble High Court duly
passed on July 06, 2016; and to ensure that all the businesses of the Transferor
Company 1 and Transferor Company 2 can effectively be carried and continued under
the Transferee Company, post end of financial year 2016-17, the Company has
amended the Memorandum of Association on August 01, 2017

Your Company carries its businesses through its several Subsidiaries and Associate/
Joint Venture Companies which are formed either directly or as step-down
subsidiaries.

As on March 31, 2017, your Company has total 151 subsidiary companies, 4 associate
companies and 31 Joint Ventures.

The complete list of subsidiary companies, associate companies and joint ventures as
on March 31, 2017 is appended as ‘Part A of Annexure - 4’ to this Report.

In accordance with Section 129(3) of the Companies Act, 2013, the Company has
prepared a consolidated financial statements of the Company and all its subsidiary
companies, which is forming part of the Annual Report. A statement containing salient
features of the financial statements of the subsidiary companies in Form AOC-1 is
appended as ‘Part B of Annexure - 4’ to this Report.

During the year under review, the Company, being CIC, has not accepted any deposits
from public during the financial year ended on March 31, 2017.
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The Company has in place adequate internal financial controls with reference to
financial statements. During the year under review, such controls were tested and no
reportable material weakness in the design or operation was observed.

Your Company has in place an Anti-Sexual Harassment Policy in line with the
requirements of The Sexual Harassment of Women at the Workplace (Prevention,
Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013. At GMR Group Level, Internal Complaints
Committee (ICC) has been set up to address complaints received regarding sexual
harassment. All employees (permanent, contractual, temporary, trainees) are covered
under this Policy.

The following is a summary of sexual harassment complaints received and disposed
off during the financial year ending March 31, 2017:

Sl No. of complaints No. of complaints
No. Category filed during the pending as on end of
financial vear the financial vear
Sexual Harassment of Nil Nil

women at workplace

During the year under review, on account of amalgamation of GMR Holdings Private
Limited and GMR Projects Private Limited with the Company vide Order No.8471/16
of the Hon'ble High Court of Madras dated July 06, 2016 (Effective Date: August 10,
2016 and Appointed Date: March 30, 2015), the Authorized Share Capital of the
Company stood increased to Rs. 112.55 Crore from existing Rs. 12.14 Crore from the
Appointed Date, i.e. March 30, 2015 as per the terms of the said Scheme.

Further, in order to allol Lhe required number of equity shares to the shareholders of
the GMR Holdings Private Limited (Transferor No. 1 Company) as per the said Scheme
of Amalgamation and Arrangement, the Authorized Capital of the Company was
reclassified pursuant to the Special Resolution passed by Members of the Company in
their Extra Ordinary General Meeting of the Company held on August 20, 2016 and
the total Authorized Share Capital of the Company: Rs. 112,55,00,000 (Rupees One
Hundred Twelve Crore Fifty Five Lakhs Only) was divided into 6,50,00,000 (Six Crore
Fifty Lakhs) Equity shares of Rs. 10/- (Rupees Ten Only) each aggregating to Rs.
65,00,00,000 (Rupees Sixty Five Crore Only) and 4,75,50,000 (Four Crore Seventy
Five Lakhs Fifty Thousand) Preference Shares of Rs. 10/- (Rupees Ten Only) each
aggregating to Rs. 47,55,00,000 (Rupees Forty Seven Crore Fifty Five Lakhs Only).
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6,06,74,948 (Six Crore Seventy Four La F t e

shares of Rs.10 each were allotted to the e e le
Holdings Private Limited on August 11, 20 r i pl
with the provisions of the said Scheme and the total Paid up Share Capital is
Rs.62,67 80 (Ru ) Two Crore Sixty Forty Nine Thousand
Four Hun Eighty ) ( ctive from the Ap i.e., March 30, 2015).

As per Regulation 53 of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations
and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, the contact details of the Debenture
Trustees of the Company are provided in ‘Annexure6’ that forms part of this Report:

merely pliance and simply a r of
is consi d as a continuous pr for
with a view to translate opportunities into
ompany had ted Code of Cond
and Code of ness Conduct and
with effect from August 03, 2011. The p
orate culture of conscience and cons
ness operations, fairness and ac
transactions, having the propriety, equity
ethical practices and to develop capabilities and identify opportunities that best serve
the goal of value creation, thereby creating an outstanding company in the field it is
engaged in.

The management ensures that transactions carried out has the authorization and are
recorded properly in the accounting records to enable the preparation of the financial
statements at the year end, conforming to the generally accepted accounting practices
and principles.

The information required pursuant to Section 197 of the Companies Act, 2013 read
with Rule 5 of The Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial
Personnel) Rules, 2014 in respect of employees of the Company, will be provided upon

es Act, 2013, theR rtan nts

led thereto, exclud  thei jon

ble for inspection by the Members at the

1g business hours on working d the

Company up to the date of the ensuing Annual General Meeting. If any ris

interested in obtaining a copy thereof, such Member may write to the Company in this
regard.
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ompany e vors Lo fol phi onducting the business with due

ance of rules, re S internal control systems and
procedures.
Is respect to Board, Key Managerial Personnel and its Committees are as
b .
1.
of Dire met fifteen times on April
, ust 10, . August 11, 2016, August

r 14, 2016, October 27, 2016, November
14, 2016, December 13, 2016, January 11, 2017, February 01, 2017, February
20, 2017 and March 23, 2017.

The interval between the Board Meetings was within the period prescribed under
the Companies Act, 2013.

Number of the Board meetings attended by the Directors during the financial year
2016-17 is as follows:

Name of the Director Number of the Board meeti ded
Mr. Govinda ul T 15
Mr. M.V. Srinivas 15
Mr. Chakka Srinivasa 10
2 nel:

During the period under review, there was no change in the composition of the
Board.

H r, the following changes place in the com of the rd of
D s and Key Managerial Per [ of the Company of fina year
2016-1/:

(a) Resignation of Directors post Financial Year ended March 31, 2017

i Mr. Govindarajulu T. (DIN: 02734169) has resigned from the
Directorship of the Company w.e.f. September 06, 2017.

ii.  Mr. M.V, Srinivas (DIN: 02477894) and Mr. Chakka Srinivasa Rao
(DIN:03497034) have resigned from the Directorship of the Company
w.e.f. September 26, 2017.

ed its M ulu T, 02734 ,
(DIN: a ka Sr a Rao
viding le he Co Y.
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(b) Appointment of Additional Directors post Financial Year ended March 31,

i
ii.
iii.
iv.
V.
Vi.

Mr.
Mr,
Mr.
Mr.
Mr.
Ms.

2017 w.e.f. September 25, 2017:

Grandhi Mallikarjuna Rao (DIN: 00574243),

Grandhi Buchi Sanyasi Raju (DIN: 00061686),
Grandhi Kiran Kumar (DIN: 00061669),

Srinivas Bommidala (DIN: 00061464),

Venkata Nageswara Rao Boda (DIN: 00051167); and
Grandhi Varalakshmi (DIN: 00061699).

Their appointments are proposed for regularization by the members of the
Company at the ensuing annual general meeting.

(c) Chang

v,

The Company

2016-17:

es in KMPs:

Mr. Sreemannarayana K was appointed as Chief Financial Officer
of the Company w.e.f. August 12, 2016;

Mr. Ravi Majeti was appointed as Manager of the Company w.e.f.
August 12, 2016;

Ms. Aruna K. resigned as Company Secretary of the Company
w.e.f. August 12, 2016

Ms. Yogindu Khajuria was appointed as Company Secretary of the
Company w.e.f. August 12, 2016.

has constituted following Committees during the financial year

The Board of Directors of the Company has constituted Audit Committee on
October 27, 2016. The composition of Audit Committee as on March 31, 2017 is

as follows:

1. Mr. Govindarajulu T.
2. Mr. M.V. Srinivas
3. Mr. Chakka Srinivasa Rao

ittee:

The Board of Directors of the Company has constituted Nomination and
Remuneration Committee on October 27, 2016. The composition of Nomination
and Remuneration Committee as on March 31, 2017 is as follows:

1. Mr. Govindarajulu T.
2. Mr. M.V. Srinivas
3. Mr. Chakka Srinivasa Rao
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The Board of Directors of the Company has constituted Corporate Social
Responsibility (CSR) Committee on October 27, 2016. The composition of CSR
Committee as on March 31, 2017 is as follows:

1. Mr. Govindarajulu T.
2. Mr. M.V. Srinivas
3. Mr. Chakka Srinivasa Rao

These Committees were reconstituted subsequent to March 31, 2017 effective
from September 26, 2017 as below:

Mr. Grandhi Kiran Kumar;
Mr. Grandhi Buchi Sanyasi Raju;
Mr. Venkata Nageswara Rao Boda

W

1. Mr. Grandhi Mallikarjuna Rao
2. Mr. Grandhi Kiran Kumar;
3. Mr. Srinivas Bommidala

Corporate Social Responsibility Committee

1. Mr. Grandhi Mallikarjuna Rao
2. Mr. Grandhi Kiran Kumar;
3. Mr. Venkata Nageswara Rao Boda

The Company’s Nomination and Remuneration Policy for Directors, Key Managerial
Personnel and senior management is appended as Annexure - 5 to the Board’s Report.

The Directors of your company has carried out an annual evaluation of its own
performance for the period from April 1, 2016 to March 31, 2017, Board Committees
and individual direclors pursuant to the provisions of the Act. The performance of the
Board was evaluated by the Board after seeking inputs from all the directors on the
basis of the criteria such as the Board composition and structure, effectiveness of
board processes, information and functioning etc. The performance of the committees
was evaluated by the Board after seeking inputs from the committee members on the
basis of the criteria such as the composition of committees, effectiveness of committee
meetings etc. The Board and the Nomination and Remuneration Committee reviewed
the performance of the individual directors on the basis of the criteria such as the
contribution of the individual director to the Board and committee meetings like
preparedness on the issues to be discussed, meaningful and constructive contribution
and inputs in meetings, etc. In addition, the Chairman’s performance was evaluated

by the Board.
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ANNEXURE 1
FORM NO. MGT-9

SECTION 92(3) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 READ WITH RULE
12(1) OF THE COMPANIES (MANAGEMENT & ADMINISTRATION)
RULES, 2014

Registration No. U74900TN2007PTC102389

EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN OF

GMR Enterprises Private Limited

as on financial year ended on March 31, 2017



SL.

as on

on 7

Pursuantto Section 92 (3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 12(1) of the Companies
{Management & Administration ) Rules, 2014

I REGISTRATION & OTHER DETAILS

CIN
Registration Date
Name of the Lompany
v Category/Sub-category of the Company
Address of the Registered office
& contact detalls
Vi Whether listed companviYes/No)

U74300TN2007PTC102389
05/06/2007
GMR Cnterprises Private Limited

Private Company/ Limited by shares

Third Floor, Old No.248/New No 114, Royapettah High Road.

011- 49216742
Debt listed

In. PRINCIPAL BUSINESS ACTIVITIES OF THE COMPANY

Allthe or more of the total of the
NIC Code of the
.No. N ct
0. lame & Description of main products/services Product /service
; Otherfm.anclal se'rwce af:t_lVltles, except insurance 64990
and pension funding activities
2 Consultancy activities 70200
n. PARTICULARS OF HOLDING , SUBSIDIARY & ASSOCIATE COMPANIES
NO. NAME OF THE COMPANY# ADDRESS OF THE COMPANY

Direct Subsidiarles:

1 GMR Infrastructure Limited (GIL)

2 5MR Sports Private Limited {GSPL)

3 GMR Infratech Private Limited (GIPL)

Cadence Enterprises Private Limited [Formerly
Cadence Retail Private Limited] (CEPL)

5 GMR League Games Private Limited (GLGPL)

PHL Infrastructure Finance Company Private
Limited (PHL)

! Vijay Nwas Real Lstates Private Limited (VNREPL)

8 Fabuily Propertles Private Limited (FPPL)

9 Kondampeta Properties Private Limited (KPPL)

10 Hyderabad Jabilli Properties Private Limited {HIPP

11 Leora Real Estates Private Limited (LREPL)

12 Pashupati Artex Agencies Private Limited (PAAPL)

13 Ravivaiing Really Private Limited (RRPL)

14 Grandhi Enterprises Private Limited (Grandhi)

15 Rajam Enterprises Private Limited (Rajam)

Naman Centre, 7th Floor,Opp.
Dena Bank, Plot No. C-31,G
Block, Bandra Kurla Comnplex,
Randra (East), Mumbai-100051,
Mahaiashtia

No 25/1, Skip House, Museum
Road, Bangalore - 560 025
Karnataka

No. 25/1, Skip House, Museum
Road, Bangalore - 560 025
Karnataka

4th Floor, Birla Tower, 25,
Barakhamba Road,New Delhi-110
001

No. 25/1, Skip House, Museum
Road, Bangalore - 560 025
Karnataka

1st Floor, Piramal Tower Annexe,
Ganpatraoc Kadam Marg, Lower

IViaharashtra o
No 25/1, Skip House, Museum
Road, Bangalore - 560 025
Karnataka

No. 25/1, Skip House, Museum
Road, Bangalore - 560 025
Karnataka

No. 25/1, Skip House, Museum
Road, Bangalore - 560 025
Karnataka

No. 25/1, Skip House, Museum
Road, Bangalore - 560 025
Karnataka

No. 25/1, Skip House, Museum
Road, Bangalore - 560 025
Karnataka

No. 25/1, Skip House, Museum
Road, Bangalore - 560 025
Karnataka

Sy No.19, Via Keshavagiri,
Saroornagar Mandal, Mamidipa lli
Village, Telangana-500005

No 25/1, Skip House, Museum
Road, Bangalore - 560 025
Karnataka

Mo, 25/1, Ship Huuse, Museum
Road, Bangalore - 560 025
Karnataka

shall be stated
% to total turnover
of the companv

4537%
44 02%

CIN/GLN

L45203MH1996PLC281138

U92410KA2008PTC051176

U45400KA2008PTCO4664?

U52100D1L2008PTC172118

US2412KA2008PTC051177

U65923MH2011PTC222072

U70100KA2007PTC044339

U45200KA2008PTC045234

U45201KA2008PTC045214

U45200KA2008PTC045461

U70101KA2008PTC045936

U51909KA1993PTC038367

U45200TG2005PTC046047

U67120KA1993PTC032115

U87120KA1995PTC033571

Holding /
Subsidiary/
Assoclate

Subsidiary

Subsidiary

Subsidiary

Subsidiary

Subsidiary

Subsidiary

Subsldlary

Subsidiary

Subsidiary

Subsidiary

Subsidiary

Subsidiary

Subsidiary

Subidiary

Subidiary

% of shares held
directly or through
subsldlarles

47 69

5100

100.00

100.00

51.0C

100.00

100.00

100 0C

100 0C

100.00

100 00

100.00

100.0C

100 00

Applicable Section

Section 2(87)

Section 2(87)

Section 2(87)

Section 2{87)

Section 2(87)

Section 2(87)

Section 2{87)

Section 2(87)

Section 2(87)

Section 2(87)

Section 2(87)

Section 2(87)

Section 2{87)

Section 2(87)

Section 2(87)



16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

27

28

29

30

31

32

33

34

35

36

37

38

39

40

Ideaspace Solutions Private Limited {ISPL)

National SEZ Infra Services Private Limited
(NSISPL)

Kakinada Refinery & Petrochemicals Pvt. Ltd.
(KRPPL)

GMR Solar Energy Private Limited

Kothavalasa Infraventures Private Limitad

GMR Business & Consultancy LLP {GBCLLP)

GMR Holdings {Overseas} Limited

Crossridge investments Ltd {CIL)

Interzone Capital Limited {ICL)

AMG Healthcare Destination Pvt. Ltd

Globemerchants, Inc.
Indirect Subsidiarles:

Corporate infrastructure Services Pvt. Ltd

Kirthi Timbers Pvt, Ltd

GMR Bannerghatta Properties Pvt. Ltd.

GMR Holdings {Mauritius) Limited (GHMauL)

GMR Holdings Overseas {Singapore) Pte Limited
GMR Holding {(Malta) Limited
GMR Infrastructure (Malta) Limited

Ellan Vannin International Holdings Limited
[formerly GMR Airport {Global) Limited) (GAGL)

GMR Energy Limited (GEL)

GMR Power Corporation Limited (GPCL)

GMR Vemagiri Power Generation Limited
(GVPGL)

GMR (Badrinath) Hydro Power Generation Private
Limited (GBHPL)

GMR Mining & Energy Private Limited (GMEL)

GMR Kamalanga Energy Limited (GKEL)

No. 25/1, Skip House, Museum
Road, Bangalore - 560 025
Karnataka

No. 25/1, Skip House, Museum
Road, Bangalore - 560 025

Karnatalka

4th Floor, GMR Aero Towers,
Rajiv Gandhi International
Airport, Shamshabad, Hyderabad

Unit No. 604-606, 6th Floor,
World Mark II, Asset 8, Aerocity,
NH 8, New Delhi 110037

No 10/1/13, 2nd Floor, Flat No,
202, Siripuram Fart, Siripuram
Vishakpatnam AP 530003

No 25/1, Skip |louse, Museum
Road, Bangalore - 560 025

Karnataka

Abax Corporate Services Limited
6th Floor, Tower A, 1 CyberCity,
Ebene, Mauritius

Themistokli Dervi, 3, lulia House,
P.C. 1066, Nicosia, Cyprus

Geneva Place, Waterfront
Drive,P.0. Box 3469, Road
Town,Tortola, British Virgin
Islands

4th Floor, GMR Aero Towers,
Rajiv Gandhi International
Airport, Shamshabad, Hyderabad
500 409, Telangana

Mactan Inth Airport Passenger
Terminal, Pusok, Lapu-Lapu City

No, 25/1, Skip House, Museum
Road, Bangalore-560025
Karnataka

No. 25/1, Skip House, Museum
Road, Bangalore-560025
Karnataka

6-2-953, 1st Floor, Krishna Plaza,
Khairatabad, Hyderabad - 500
004 TG

Abax Corporate Services Limited
6th Floor, Tower A, 1 CyberCity,
Ebene, Mauritius

33A Chander Road, Singapore
219539

33 St Barbara Bastion Vallette VLT
19R1 Malta

33 St barbara Bastion Vallette VLT
1961 Malta

33 37 Athol Street, Douglas, Isle
of Man, 1M1 118

701, 7th Floor, Naman Centre,
Plot No. C-31, Bandra Kurla
Complex, Bandra East, Mumbai
Bandra Suburban MH 400051

No. 25/1, Skip House, Museum
Road, Bangalore-560025
Karnataka

No 25/1, Skip House, Museum
Road, Bangalore-560025
Karnataka

House Property No 9, Ganesh
Vatika, GMS- ITBP Road,
Dehradun, Uttarakhand-248001

No 25/1, Skip House, Museum
Road, Bangalore - 560 025
Karnataka

No 25/1, Skip House, Museum
Road, Bangalore - 560 025
Karnataka

U72200KA1993PTC030645

U45201KA2008PTC045469

U23209TG2005PTC047372

U40300DL2016PTC291702

U45200AP2014PTC095683

AAC-6471

082641 - C1/GBL

HE 192634

1794452

U85110TG2011PTCO76813

U70102KA1993PTC014678

U20293KA1995PTC064815

U70102TG2005PTC046465

C078171

201544285E
C 44396

C 44412

U85110MH1996PLC27487:¢

U40105KA1995PLC 016942

U23201KA1997P1C032964

U40101UR2006PTC031381

U13100KA2005PTC03730¢

U40101KA2007PLC0OA480¢

Subidiary

Subidiary

Subldiary

Subsidiary

Subsidiary

Subsidiary

Subsidiary

Subsidiary

Subsidiary

Associate

Associate

Subsidiary

Subsidiary

Subsidiary

Subsidiary

Subsidiary
Subsidiary

Subsidiary

Subsidiary

Subsidiary

Subsidiary

Subsidiary

Subsidiary

Subsidiary

Subsidiary

100 00

99.9¢

100 00

100.00

100 0O

100.00

100.00

100.00

100.00

50.00

40.00

100.00

100.00

100.00

100.00

100.00

100.00

100.00

100 00

5173

5100

5173

5173

68.57

4522

Section 2(87)

Section 2{87)

Section 2(87)

Section 2(87)

Section ?{87)

Section 2{87}

Section 2(87)

Section 2{87)

Section 2(87)

Section 2(6)

Section 2{6)

Section 2{87)

Section 2(87)

Section 2(87)

Section 2(87)

Section 2(87)
Section 2(87)

Section 2(87)

Section 2(87)

Section 2(87)

Section 2{87)

Section 2(87)

Section 2(87)

Section 2{87)

Section 2(87)



41

42

43

45

46

47

48

43

50

51

52

53

54

55

56

57

58

Eh

60

61

62

63

64

65

Himtal Hydro Power Company Private Limited
[HHPPL)

GMR Energy (Mauritius) Limited (GEML)

GMR Lion Energy Limited {GLEL}

GMR Upper Karnali Hydropower Limited {CUKPL)

GMR Energy Trading Limited (GETL)

GMR Consulting Services Limited {GCSL)

GMR Coastal Energy Private Limited (GCEPL)

GMR Bajoli Holi Hydropower Private Limited
(GBHHPL)

GMR Londa Hydropower Private Limited
(GLHPPL)

GMR Kakinada Energy Private Limited (GKEPL)

GMR Energy {Cyprus) Limited (GECL)

GMR Energy {Netherlands) B.V, (GENBV)

PT Dwikarya Sejati Utma {PTDSU)

PT Duta Sarana Internusa (PTDSI)

PT Barasentosa Lestari {PTBSL)

S5JK Powergen Limited {SIK)

PT Unsoco (PT)

GMR Warora Energy Limited {(GWEL) (formerly
EMCO Energy Limiled)

GIVIH Maharashtra Energy Limited {GMALL)

GMR Bundelkhand Energy Private Limited
{GBEPL)

GMR Rajam Solar Power Private Limited {formerly

GMR Uttar Pradesh Energy Private Limited)

GMR Genco Assets Limited
(formerly GMR Hosur Energy Limited) (GGEAL)

GMR Gujarat Solar Power Limited (GGSPPL)

Karnali Transmission Company Private Limited
IKTCPL)

Marsyangdi  Transmission Company  Privote

Limited {MTCPL)

GMR Indo-Nepal Energy Links Limited (GINELL}

Lalitpur District, Lalitpur Sub-
metropolitan City, Ward No. 10,
Chakuval Neval

Abax Management Services
Limited, 6th Floor, Tower A, 1
CvberCitv Ebene Mauritius
Rogers House, 5, President John
Kennedy Street, Port Louis,
Mauritius

Lalitpur District, Lalitpur, Sub-
Metropolitan City, Waid No. 10,
Chakunat Nanal

No. 25/1, Skip House, Museum
Road, Bangalore - 560 025
Karnataka

No. 25/1, Skip House, Museum
Road, Bangalore - 560 025
Karnataka

No. 25/1, Skip House, Museum
Road, Bangalore - 560 025
Karnataka

Rattan Chand Building, VPO —

Kuleth, Sub Tehsil = Holl, Tehsil

Bharmour, Distt Chamba—
Himachal Pradesh

No. 25/1, Skip House, Museum
Road, Bangalore - 560 025
Karnataka

No. 25/1, Skip House, Museum
Road, Bangalore - 560 025
Karnataka

3, Themistocles Dervis Street,
Julia House, CY- 1066, Nicosia,
Zvorus

1043 DP Amsterdam, Orlyplein 10

Prudential Tower, 16th Floor,
Jl.Jend Sudirman Kav. 79 - Jakarta
12910 Indonesia

Prudential Tower, 16th Fioor,
JI.Jend Sudirman Kav. 79 Jakarta
12910 Indonesia

Prudential Tower, 16th Floor,
Jl.Jend Sudirman Kav. 79 Jakarta
12010 Indanesia

No. 25/1, Skip House, Museum
Road, Bangalore - 560 025
Karnataka

Prudential Tower, 16th Floor,

JI lend Sudirman Kav. 79, Jakarta
12910, Indonesia

701/704, 7th Floor, BKC (Bandra
Kurla Complex) Bandra, Mumbai -
400 051, Maharashtra

Nn. ?25/1, Skip House, Museum
Koad, Bangalore - 560 025
Karnataka

No. 25/1, Skip House, Museum
Road, Bangalore, Karnataka

No. 25/1, Skip House, Museum
Road, Bangalore - 560 025
Karnataka

No. 25/1, Skip llouse, Museum
Road, Bangalore - 560 025
Karnataka

No. 25/1, Skip House, Museum
Road, Bangalore - 560 025
Karnataka

Lalitpur District, Lalitpur Sub
Metropolitan City Ward No. 10,
Chukupat, P, Box 148, Lalitpur
Nepal

Lalitpur District, Lalitpur Sub
Metropoliten City Ward No. 10,
Chukupat, P. Box 148, Lalitpur
Nepal

No. 25/1, Skip House, Museum
Road, Bangalore - 560 025
Karnataka

U31200KA2008PLC0O45104

U74200KA2008PLCO45448

U40101KA2008PTC047277

U40101HP2008BPTC030971

U40101KA2008PTC048130

U40101KA2009PTCO48996

U40109KA1998PLCD52000

U40100MH2005PLC1 55140

U40107KA2010PLCO53789

U40101KA2010PTC054124

U40107KA2010PTC054125

U40109KA2010PLC0O58554

U40100KA2008PLC045783

U40107KA2010PLC055826

Subsidiary

Subsidiary

Subsidiary

Sulsidiary

Subsidiary

Subsidiary

Subsidiary

Subsidiary

Subsidiary

Subsidiary

Subsidiary

Subsidiary

Subsidiary

Subsidiary

Subsidiary

Subsidiary

Subsidiary

Subsidiary

Subsidiarv

Subsidiary

Subsidiary

Subsidiary

Subsidiary

Subsidiary

Subsidiary

Subsidiary

42.42

54,14

54,14

90.83

51.21

100.00

51.73

100.00

100.00

100.00

100 00

100.00

100.00

100.00

7000

100.00

51.73

5173

51.73

51,73

100.00

5173

54.14

5414

51.73

Section 2{87)

Sectinn ?{R7)

Section 2 (A7)

Seclivn 2(87)

Section 2(87)

Section 2(87)

Section 2(87)

Section 2(87)

Section 2{87)

Section 2(87)

Section 2(87)

Section 2(87)

Section 2(87)

Section 2(87)

Section 2(87)

Section 2(87)

Section 2{87)

Section 2{87)

Sectinn 7 (A7)

Section 2(87)

Section 2(87)

Section 2(B7)

Section 2(87)

Section 2(87)

Section 2(87)

Section 2(87)
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GMR Indo-Nepal Power Corridors Limited
(GINPCL)

GMR Generation Assets Limited (formerly GMR
Renewable Energy Limited) (GREEL)

Energy Projects {Mauritius) Limited

GMR Infrastructure (Singapore) Pte Limited
aep

GMR Coal Resources Pte Limited {(GCRPL)

GMR Power Infra Limited {GPIL)

GMR Highways Limited (GMRHL)

GMR Tambaram Tindivanam Expressways Limited
{GTTEL)

5MR Tuni Anakapalli Expressways Limited
|GTAEL)

GMR Ambala Chandigarh Expressways Private
Limited (GACEPL)

GMR Pachanpalli Expressways Limited {GPEL)

GMR Hyderabad Vijayawada Exp!
Limited (GHVEPL)

ys Private
GMR Chennai Outer Ring Road Private Limited
{GCORRPL)

GMR Kishangarh Udaipur Ahmedabad

Expressways Limited (GKUAEL)

GMR Highways Projects Private limited {GHPPI)&

GMR Hyderabad International Airport Limited
(GHIAL)

Gateways for India Airports Private Limited
(GFIAL)

Hyderabad Menzies Air Cargo Private Limited
(HMACPL)

Hyderabad Airport Security Services Limited
(HASSL)

GMR Aerostructure Services Limited {Formerly
GMR Hyderabad Airport Resource Management
Limited) (GASL)

GMR Hyderabad Aerotropolis Limited (HAPL)

GMR Hyderabad Aviation SEZ Limited (GHASL)

GMR Aerospace Engineering Limited (formerly
known as MAS GMR Aerospace Engineering
Company Limited) (GAECL)

GMR Aero Technic Limited {formerly known as
MAS GMR Aero Technic Limited) (GATL)

No. 25/1, Skip House, Museum
Road, Bangalore - 560 025
Karnataka
No. 25/1, Skip House, Museum
Road, Bangalore - 560 025
Karnataka

Corporate Services Limited
6th Floor, Tower A, 1 CyberCity,

33A Chander Road, Singapore 218
510

33A Chander Road, Singapore
219539

No. 25/1, Skip House, Museum
Road, Bangalore - 560 025
Karnataka

Naman Centre,7th Floor, Opp.
Dena Bank,Plot No.C-3 G Block,
Bandra Kurla Complex,Bandra
{East) Mumbai MH 400051

No. 25/1, Skip House, Museum
Road, Bangalore - 560 025
Karnataka

No, 25/1, Sklp House, Museum
Road, Bangalore - 560 025
Karnataka

No. 25/1, Skip House, Museum
Road, Bangalore - 560 025
Karnataka

No. 25/1, Skip House, Museum
Road, Bangalore - 560 025
Karnataka

No. 25/1, Skip House, Museum
Road, Bangalore - 560 025
Karnataka

No. 25/1, Skip House, Museum
Road, Bangalore - 560 025
Karnataka

Room No. 110, G+5 Building 101,
T1, IGI Alrport New Delhi-110 037

4th Floor, Birla Tower, 25,
Barakhamha Road, New Delhi—
110 001

GMR Aero Towers, Rajiv Gandhi
Internatlonal Airport,
Shamshabad, Hyderabad - 500
403, Telangana

5-3-866/1/G3, Greenlands,
Begumpet, Hyderabad — 500016
Telangana

Air Cargo Terminal, Rajiv Gandhi
International Airport,
Shamshabad, Hyderabad 500 409,
Talanoana

GMR HIAL Airport Office Rajiv
Gandhl International Airport,
Shamshabad, Hyderabad - 500
403 Telanoana

GMR HIAL Airport Office Rajiv
Gandhi International Airport,
Shamshabad, Hyderabad - 500
40 Telancana

GMR Aero Towers, Rajiv Gandhi
International Airport,
Shamshabad, Hyderabad - 500
409 Telangana

GMR Aero Towers, Rajiv Gandhi
International Airport,
Shamshabad, Hyderabad - 500
409 Telaneana

Plot No. 1, C/o GMR Hyderabad
Aviation SEZ Limited, Rajiv Gandhi
International Airport,
Shamshabad, Hyderabad - 500
409 Telangana

Plot No.1, C/o GMR Hyderabad
Aviation SEZ Limited, Rajiv Gandhi
International Airport,
Shamshabad, Hyderabad - 500
409 Telangana

U40107KA2010PLCO55843

U40104MH2010PLC282702

U40102KA2011PLCO57272

U45203MH2006PLC287171

U45203KA2001PLC0O4S329

U45203KA2001PLC049328

U45203KA2005PTC036773

U45200KA2005PLC049327

U45201KA2009PTC050109

U45203KA2009PTC0S50441

U45200DL2011PLC227902

U45203DL2011PTC225560

U62100TG2002PLC040118

U62100TG2005PTC045123

U62100TG2006PTC049243

U749207G2007PLC0O54862

U749007G2007PLCO54821

U45400TG2007PLCOS4827

U45209TG2007PLC0O56527

U45201TG2008PLC0O67141

U351227G2010PLC0O70483

Subsidiary

Subsidiary

Subsidiary

Subsidiary

Subsidiary

Subsidiary

Subsidiary

Subsidiary

Subsidiary

Subsidiary

Subsidiary

Subsidiary

Subsidiary

Subsidiary

Subsidiary

Subsidiary

Subsidiary

Subsidiary

Subsidiary

Subsidiary

Subsidiary

Subsidiary

Subsidiary

Subsidiary

51.73

100.00

100.00

100.00

100.00

100.00

100 00

86.77

86.77

88.10

99.76

90.00

8517

100.00

100.00

63.00

86,49

3213

63 00

100.00

63.00

63 00

6300

63.00

Section 2(87)

Section 2(87)

Section 2{87)

Section 2{87)

Section 2(87)

Section 2{87)

Scction 2(87)

Section 2(87)

Section 2(87)

Section 2(87)

Sectlon 2(87)

Sectlon 2(87)

Section 2(87)

Section 2{87)

Section 2(87)

Section 2(87)

Section 2(87)

Section 2(87)

Section 2(87)

Section 2(87)

Section 2(87)

Section 2(87)

Section 2(87)

Section 2{87)



91

92

93

94

95

Y

97

98

99

100

101

102

104

105

106

107

108

109

110

111

GMR Airport Developers Liniled (GADL)

5ADL International Limited {GADLIL}

GADL {Mauritius) Limited (GADLML)

GMR Hospitality and Retail
Limited (formerty
GMR Hotels and Resorts Limited) {GHRL)

GMR Hyderabad Airport Power Distribution
Limited (GHAPDL)

Delhi International Airport Private Limited (DIAL)

Delhi Aerotropolis Private Limited {DAPL)

Delhi Duty Free Services Private Limited (DDFS)

Delhi Airport Parking Services Private Limited
{DAPSL)

GMR Airports Limited (GAL)

GMR Malé International Airport Private Limited
IGMIAL)

GMR Airports (Mauritius) Limited (GALM)

GMR Aviation Private Limited (GAPL)

GMR Krishnagiri SEZ Limited (GKSEZ)

Advika Properties Private Limited (APPL)

Aklima Properties Private Limited (AKPP!)

Amartya Properties Private Limited {AMPPL)

BaruniProperties Private Limited (BPPL)

Bougainvillea Properties Private Limited {BOPPL)

Camelia Properties Private Limited (CPPL)

Deepesh Properties Private Limited (DPPL)

GMR HIAL Airport Office, Rajiv
Gandhi International Airport,
Shamshabad, Hyderabad - 500
409 Telangana

33-37, Athol Street, Douglas, Isle
of Man, IM1, 1LB

Abax Corporate Servires 1d fth
Floor, Tower A,1 cyber city,
zbene, Mauritius

Novotel Hyderabad Airport, Rajiv
Gandhi International Airport,
Shamshabad, Hyderabad - 500
409 Telangana

4th Floor, GMR Aero Towers,
Rajiv Gandhi International
Airport, Shamshabad, Hyderabad
500 409 Telangana

New Udaan Bhawan,
Opp.Terminal-3 Indira Gandhi
International Airport New Delhi—
110037

New Udaan Bhawan,
Opp.Terminal-3 Indira Gandhi
International Airport New Delhj—
110037

Building No. 301, Ground Floor,
Opp. Terminal 3, IG| Airport, New
Delhi-110 037

5th Floor, Multi Level Car Parking,
Terminal 3, Indira Gandhi
International Airport, New Delhi-
110037

No. 25/1, Skip House, Museum
Road, Bangalore - 560 025
Karnataka

H Hulhugali, 1st Floor, Kalhuhuraa
Magu, K. Malé, Maldives

Abax Corporate Services Ltd, 6th
Floor, Tower A, 1 CyberCity,
Ebene, Mauritius

25/1, Skip House Museum Road
Bangalore-560025 KA

Riaz Garden, Old No. 12, New Nc
29, Kodambakkam High Road,
Chennai, Tamil Nadu, 600034

Plot No. 59, VG Towers, Near EB
Office, Rayakottai Main Road,
Hosur - 635 109, Krishna giri
District, Tamil Nadu

Plot No. 59, VG Towers, Near EB
OlfiLe, Rayakoltal Maln Road,
Hasur — /35 109, Krishnagiri
vistrier, lamil Nadu

Plot No 59, VG Towers, Near EB
Office, Rayakottai Main Road,
Hosur —635 109, Krishnagiri
District, Tamil Nadu

Plot No. 59, VG Towers, Near EB
Office, Rayakottai Main Road,
Hosur — 635 109, Krishnagiri
District, Tamil Nadu

Plot No. 59, VG Towers, Near £8
Office, Rayakottai Main Road,
Hosur — 635 109, Krishnagiri
District, Tamil Nadu

Plot No. 59, VG Towers, Near EB
Ottice, Rayakottai Main Road,
Hosur—635 109, Krishnagiri
District, Tamil Nadu

Plot No. 59, VG Towers, Near EB
Office, Rayakottai Main Road,
Hosur - 635 103, Krishnagiri
District, Tamil Nadu

U62200TG2008PLCO59646

U55101TG2008PLCOG0866

U40108TG2012PLCOB313C

U63033DL2006PTC146936

U45400D12007PTC163751

U52599DL2009PTC191963

U63030DL2010PTC198985

UB5999KA1992PLC0O37455

UB2200KA2006PTC041278

U45209TN2007PLCO64863

U70102T22008PTC021691

U70101722008PTC022217

U70101T22008PTC022242

U45206T22008PTC021787

U45201722008PTC021770

U70102T22008PTC021850

U70102T22010PTC021792

Subsidiary

Subsidiary

Subsidiary

Subsidiary

Subsidiary

Subsidiary

Subsidiary

Subsidiary

Subsidiary

Subsidiary

Subsidiary

Subsidiary

Subsidiary

Subsidiary

Subsidiary

Subsidiary

Subsidiary

Subsidiary

Subsidiary

Subsidiary

Subsidiary

100.00

100 00

100 00

03.00

63.00

64.00

64 00

4897

7204

100 00

77.00

100.00

100,00

100 00

100 00

100.00

100.00

100 00

100 00

100.00

100 00

Section 2(87)

Section 2(87)

Section 2(87)

Settivi 2{87)

Section 2(87}

Section 2(87)

Section 2(87)

Section 2{87)

Section 2(87)}

Section 2(87)

Section 2(87)

Section 2(87)

Section 2(87)

Section 2(87)

Section 2(87)

Sectlon 2{87)

Section 2{87)

Section 2(87)

Section 2(87})

Section 2{87)

Section 2(87)



112

113

114

115

116

117

118

119

120

121

122

123

124

125

126

127

128

129

Eila Properties Private Limited (EPPL)

Gerbera Properties Private Limited (GPL)

Lakshmi Priya Properties Private Limited {LPPPL)

Honeysuckle Properties Private Limited (HPPL)

Idika Properties Private Limited {IPPL)

Krishnapriya Properties Private Limited (KPPL)

Larkspur Properties Private Limited (LAPPL)

Nadira Properties Private Limited (NPPL)

Padmapriya Properties Private Limited (PAPPL}

Prakalpa Properties Private Limited (PPPL)

Purnachandra Properties Private Limited (PUPPL)

Shreyadita Properties Private Limited (SPPL)

Pranesh Properties Private Limited (PRPPL)

Sreepa Properties Private Limiled (SRPPL)

Radhapriya Properties Private Limited (RPPL)

Asteria Real Estates Private Limited (AREPL}

Lantana Properties Private Limited (formerly
GMR Hosur Industrial City Pvt Ltd)

Namitha Real Estates Private Limited {(NREPL)

No 25/1, Skip House, Museum
Road, Bangalore - 560 025
Karnataka

Plot No 59, VG Towers, Near EB
Office, Rayakottai Main Road,
Hosur — 635108, Krishnagiri
District, Tamil Nadu

Plot No 59, VG Towers, Near EB
Office, Rayakottai Main Road,
Hosur Krishnagiri TN 635109

Plot No 59, VG Towers, Near FR
Office, Rayakottai Main Road,
Hosur - 635109, Krishnagiri
District, Tamil Nadu

Plot No. 59, VG Towers, Near EB
Office, Rayakottai Main Road,
Hosur — 635 103, Krishnagiri
Districl, Tatnil Nadu

Plot No. 59, VG Towers, Near EB
Office, Rayakottai Main Road,

District, Tamil Nadu

Plot No 59, VG Towers, Near EB
Office, Rayakottai Main Road,
Hosur — 635 108, Krishnagiri
District, Tamil Nadu

Plot No, 59, VG Towers, Near EB
Office, Rayakottai Main Road,
Hosur — 635 109, Krishnagiri
District, Tamil Nadu

Plot No 59, VG Towers, Near EB
Office, Rayakottai Main Road,
Hosur — 635 108, Krishnagiri
District, Tamil Nadu

Plot No 59, VG Towers, Near EB
Office, Rayakottai Main Road,
Hosur — 635 109, Krishna giri
District, Tamil Nadu

Plot No 59, VG Towers, Near EB
Office, Rayakottai Main Road,
Hosur ~ 635 109, Krishnagiri
District, Tamil Nadu

Plot No. 59, VG Towers, Near EB
Office, Rayakottai Main Road,
Hosur ~ 635 109, Krishna giri
District, Tamil Nadu

Plot No 59, VG Towers, Near EB
Office, Rayakottai Main Road,
Hosur — 635 108, Krishnagiri
District, Tamil Nadu

Plot No 59, VG Towers, Near EB
Office, Rayakottai Main Road,
Hosur — 635 109, Krishnagiri
District, Tamil Nadu

Plot No. 59, VG Towers, Near EB
OFfice, Rayakottai Main Road,
Hosur - 635 108, Krishnagiri
District, Tamil Nadu

Plot No 59, VG Towers, Near EB
Office, Rayakottai Main Road,
Hosur = 635 109, Krishnagiri
District, Tamil Nadu

Plot No. 59, VG Towers, Near EB
Office, Rayakottai Main Road,
Hosur - 635 109, Krishnagiri
District, Tamil Nadu

Ground Floor, SKIP House, No.
25/1, Museum Road Bangalore-
560025

U45203KA2008PTC045947

U70101TZ2008PTC021802

U452007Z2008PTC028181

U45201722008PTC021847

U70101T22008PTC022222

U70102722007PTC021855

U45200TZ2008PTC021848

U70109T22008PTC022221

U70101TZ2010PTC021798

U70109TZ2008PTC022241

U70102722007PTC02185€

U70109TZ2008PTC021852

U70102722011PTC021849

U70102722007PTC021852

U70102T22011PTC021854

U45200T22008PTC021712

U74120TZ2012PTC021851

U70102KA2008PTC047823

Subsidiary

Subsidiary

Subsidiary

Subsidiary

Subsidiary

Subsidiary

Subsidiary

Subsidiary

Subsidiary

Subsidiary

Subsidiary

Subsidiary

Subsidiary

Subsidiary

Subsidiary

Subsidiary

Subsidiary

Subsidiary

100.00

100.00

100.00

100.00

100.00

100,00

100.00

100.00

100.00

100.00

100.00

100.00

100.00

100.00

100 00

100 00

100 00

100.00

Section 2(87)

Section 2{87)

Section 2(87)

Section 2(87)

Section 2{87)

Section 2(87)

Section 2{87)

Section 2(87)

Section 2(87)

Section 2{87)

Section 2(87)

Section 2(87)

Section 2{87)

Section 2(87)

Section 2{87}

Section 2(87)

Section 2(87)

Section 2{87)



130

131

132

133

134

135

136

137

138

139

140

141

142

143

144

145

146

147

148

149

150

151

152

Honey Flower Estates Private Limited (HFEPL)

GMR Hosur EMC Limited (GHEMC)

GMR SEZ and Port Holdings Limited (GSPHL)

East Godavarl Power Dlstribution Lompany
Private Limited (EGPDCPL)

Suzone Properiies Private Limited (SUPPL)

GMR Utilities Private Limited (GUPL)

Lilliam Properties Private Limited {LPPL)

GMR Corporate Affalrs Private Limited (GCAPL)

Dhruvi Securities Private Limited (DSPL)

Kakinada SEZ Limited (KSL)

GMR Business Process and Services Private
Limited (GBPSPL)

GMR Infrastructure (Mauritius) Limited (GIML)

GMR Infrastructure (Cyprus) Limited (GICL)

GMR Infrastructure Overseas Limited (GIOSL)

GMR Infrastructure {UK) Limited (GIUL}

GMR Infrastructure {Global) Limited (GIGL)

GMR Energy (Global) Limited (GEGL)

GMR Infrastructure {Uverseas) Limited (GIOL)

Raxa Security Services Limited (RAXA)

Indo Tausch Trading DMCC (ITDD)

Kakinada Gateway Port Limited {KGPL}

GMR Goa International Airport Limited (GGIAL)

GMR SEZ Infra Services
Limited (GSISL)

No 25/1, Skip House, Museum
Road, Bangalore - 560 025
Karnataka

Riaz Garden, Old No. 12, New N¢
29, Kodambakham High Road
Chennai, Tamil Nadu 600034

7th Floor, 701,Naman Cente
Bandra Kurla Complex, Plot Nc¢
31, Bandra East Mumbai Bandrs
Suburban MH 400051

4th Floor, GMR Aero Towers,
Kajiv Gandhi International
Airport, Shamshabad, Hyderabad
~ 500109 Telangana

No. 25/1, Skip House, Museum
Road, Bangalore - 560 025
Karnataka

No. 25/1, Skip House, Museum
Road, Bangalore - 560 025
Karnataka

No 25/1, Skip House, Museum
Road, Bangalore - 560 025
Karnataka

No 25/1, Skip House, Museum
Road, Bangalore - 560 025
Karnataka

No 25/1, Skip House, Museum
Road, Bangalore - 560 025
Karnataka

4th Floor, GMR Aero Towers,
Rajiv Gandhi International Airport
Shamshabad, Hyderabad - 500
409, Telangana

No. 25/1, Skip House, Museum
Road, Bangalore - 560 025
Karnataka

Abax Corporate Services Limited,
6th Floor, Tower A, 2, Cyber City,
Ebane, Mauritius

Julia House, 3, Themistokli Dervis
Street, C.Y 1066, Nicosia, Cyprus

Level 2 West, Mercury Tower,
The Exchange Financial and
Busines Centre, Elia Zammit
Street, St Julian’s ST) 3155, Malta

Paperchase Business Services Ltd,
42, Sydenham Road

3337 Athol Street, Douglas, Isle
of Man 1M1 1LB

33 37 Athol Street, Douglas, Isle
nfMan, 1M1 1LB

Abax Cornorate Servires limited
6th Floor, Tower A, 1 CyberCity,
Ebcne, Mouritiuy

25/1, Skip House Museum Road
Banealore-560025

Plot No DMCC-PH2-J&GPlexS,
Jwellery & Gemplex, Dubai,
United Arab Emirates

D No 70-14-15/6, Road No 6,
siddhartha Nagar, Kakinada, tast
Godavari-533003, Andhra
Pradesh

Survey No 381/3, Mathura
Building, 15t Floor, NH-17,
Porvorim-403501, Goa

7lh Floor
No C 31, G Biock, Bandra
Complex, Bandra (East)

Caty 400051

U70100KA2003PTC032917

U74900TN2013PLC092846

U74900MH2008PTC274347

U40101762014PTC093613

U70200KA2011PTC059294

U41000KA2014PTC076930

U70100KA2012PTC065861

U74993KA2006PTC041279

U65900KA2007PTC050828

U45200TG2003PTC041961

U74900KA2011PTC060052

U74920KA2005PLC036865

U45400AP2016PLC103636

U63030GA2016PLC013017

UA5201MH2016PLC281405

Subsidiary

Subsidiary

Subsidiary

Subsidiary

Subsidiary

Subsidiary

Subsidiary

Subsidiary

Subsidiary

Subsidiary

Subsidiary

Subsidiary

Subsidiary

Subsidiary

Subsidiary

Subsidiary

Subsidiary

Subsidiary

Subsidiary

Subsidiary

Subsidiary

Subsidiary

Subsidiary

100.00

100.00

100 00

100.00

100.00

100 00

100 00

100.00

100.00

5100

100 00

100.00

100.00

100 00

100.00

100.00

100.00

100.00

100.00

100.00

5100

100 00

100.00

Section 2(87)

Section 2(87)

Section 2{87)

Section 2(87)

Section 2(87)

Section 2(87)

Section 2(87)

Section 2(87)

Section 2(87)

Section 2(87)

Section 2{87)

Section 2(87)

Section 2(87)

Section 2(87)

Section 2{87)

Section 2(87)

Section 2(87)

Section 2{87)

Section 2(87)

Section 2(87})

Section 2({87)

Section 2(87)

Section 2(87)



153

154

155

156

157

158

159

160

161

162

163

164

GMR Infra Developers Limited

GMR Rajahmundry Energy Limited {(GREL)

GMR Chhattisgarh Energy Limited {GCHEPL)

East Delhi Waste Processing Company Private
Limited (EDWPCPL}

GMR OSE Hungund Hospet Highways Private
Limited (GOSEHHHPL)

Delhl Aviation Services Private Limited

Travel Food Services {Delhi T3} Private Limited

Delhi Aviation Fuel Facllity Private Limited

Celebi Delhi Cargo Terminal Management india
Private Limited

TIM Delhi Airport Advertisement Private Limited

Wipro Airport IT Services Limited

Asia Pacific Flight Training Academy Limited

Naman Centre, 7th Floor,Opp.
Dena Bank, Plot No. C-31,G
Block, Bandra Kurla Complex,
Bandra (East), Mumbai-400051,
Maharashtra

U74999MH2017PLC291718

No. 25/1, Skip House, Museum

Road, Bangalore - 560 025

Karnataka

No. 25/1, Skip House, Museutn

Road, Bangalore - 560 025

Karnataka

4th Floor, Dr Gopal Das n,
Barakhambha Road, New

U40107KA2009PLC051643

U40108KA2008PLC047974

U37100DL2005PLC135148

No. 25/1, Skip House, Museum
Road, Bangalore - 560 025
Karnataka

New Udaan Bhawan, Qpp.
Terminal 3, I1GI Airport, New Delhi ~ U24233DL2007PTC165308
110037

New Udaan Bhawan, Opp.

Terminal 3, IGI Airport, New Delhi U55101DL2009PTC 196639
110037

Aviation Fuelling Station, Shahbad

Mohammad Pur, |G| Airport, New U74999D12009PTC193079
Dalhi-110037

U45201KA2Q10PTC052377

Room No. CE-05, First Floor,
Import Building 2, International

U74300DL20¢ €191

Cargo Terminal, |Gl Airport, New 00 09FT 339
Delhi- 110037

202, G-5 Building, Parking

complex, Domestic Terminal, IGI U74999DL2010PTC203419
Airport, New Delhi-110037

ddak i, Sarj d,
Doddakannell, Sarjapur Roa U72200KA2009PLCO51272

Bangalore, Karnataka- 560035

Subsidiary

Associate

Associate

Associate

Associate

Associate

Associate

Associate

Associate

Associate

Associate

Associate

100.00

45.00

47.62

3135

36.00

32,00

25.60

16.64

16.64

3194

16.64

25.23

Section 2{87)

Section 2(6)

Section 2(6)

Section 2(6)

Section 2(6)

Section 2(6)

Section 2(6}

Section 2(6)

Section 2(6)

Sectlon 2(6)

Sectlon 2(6)

Sectlon 2(6)



165

166

167

168

1689

170

171

172

173

174

175

176

177

178

179

181

182

184

185

Lagshya Hyderabad Airpart Media Private Limited

GMR Megawide Cebu Airport Corporation

Megawide - GISPL Construction JV

Limak GMR Construction JV

Rampia Coal Mine and Encrgy Private Limited

PT Golden Energy Mines Tbk

PT Roundhill Capital Indonesia

PT Borneo Indobara

PT Kuansing Inti Makmur

PT Karya Cemerlang Persada

PT Bungo Bara Utama

PT Bara Harmonis Batang Asam

Berkat Nusantara Permai

PT Tanjung Belit Bara Utama

PT Trisula Kencana Sakti

PT Gems Fnergy Indnnesia

GEMS Trading Resources Pte Limited

PT Karya Mining Selulion
{KMS) (Formerly PT Bumi
Anugerah Semesta)

PT Era Mitra Selaras (EMS)

PT Wahana Rimba

Berkat Satria Abadi

#does not include Company limited by giiarantee.

$ Associates include Joint Ventures

20N. Domingo St , Barangay
Valencia, Quezon City, Metro
Manils

20 N Domingo Street Brgy,

Valencia, Quezon City
Philippines

Istanbul, Sabiha Gokcen
Havaalani, Pendik, Istanbul,
Turkey

Plat No 409 B, Saheed Nagar,
Bhubaneswar - 751007 Orissa

Sinar Mas Land Plaza, Tower Il
5th Floor, IL MH Thamrin No. 51,
lakarta Pusat / Central Jakarta

Sinar Mas Land Plaza, Tower II,
6th Floor, JL MH Thamrin No 51,
Jakarta Pusat/ Central Jakarta

Sinar Mas Land Plaza, Tower li,
6th Floor, JL MH Thamrin No, 51,
lakarta Pusat / Central Jakarta

Desa Tanjung Belil, Jujuhan
Kabupaten, Bungo, Jambi
Desa Tanjung Belit, Jujuhan
Kabupaten, Bungo, Jambi

L Rangkayo Hitam RT/RW:
014/005, Kel, Bungo Timur, Kec.
Pasar Muara Bungo, Kabupaten

Bungo, Jambi

Desa Ujung Tanjung, Jujuhan
Kabupaten, Bungo,
Jambi

Desa Tanjung Belit, Jujuhan
Kabupaten, Bungo,
Jambi

ILRangkayo Hitam RT/RW:
014/005, Muara
Bungo, Kabupaten Bungo, Jambi

JIn. Panti Ajar RT 06RW13 No
63,KEL Lanjas, Kec. Teweh
Tengah, Kab. Barito, Utara, Muara
Teweh, Kalimantan Tengah /
Central of
Kalimantan

“inar Mas Land Plaza, Tower ),
Oth Flour, Jt MH
Thamrin Na. 51, Jolorta Musst /
Central Jakarta
One Raffles Place & 28-U2, lower
1, Sineapore

Sinar Mas Land Plaza, Tower I,
6th Floor, JL MH Thamrin No. 51,
Jakarta Pusat/ Central Jakarta

Republic of China

Sinar Mas Land Plaza, Tower I,
6th Floor, JL MH Thamrin No 51,
Jakarta Pusat / Central Jakarta

Sinar Mas Land Plaza, Tower II,
6th Floor, JL MH Thamrin No, 51,
Jaharta Pusat/ Central Jakarta

Sinar Mas Land Plaza, Tower I,
6th Floor, IL MH Thamrin No 51,
Jakarta Pusat / Central Jakarta

(5201400629

ULULULORZOUBPTCO09827

*Includes 2.85% owned by Welfare Trust of GMR Infra Employees and percentage of effective holding rounded off

& In the process of striking off.
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4000

50,00

50.00
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3000

29.70

29.43

30.00

3000

3000

30.00

3000

3000

21.00

anon

30.00

3000

30.00

30.00

3000
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Section 2(6)
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Section 2(6)

Section 2(6)

Sectlon 2(6)
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Section 2(6)

Section 2{6}

Section 2(6)

Section 2(6)

Section 2(6)

Section 2(6)

Section 216}

Section 2(6)

Section 2(6)

Section 2(6)



{1) Category-wise share holding

Categorv of Shareholders at
Demat Physlcal

A& Pramoters

1} Indian
a) Individual/HUF
b} Central Govt.or
State Govt.
c) Bodies Corporates
dj Bank/H

e} Anv other

297 100

62 674 551
SUB TOTAL (A} (11: 62,674,848 100
12\ Farelan
b} Other Individuals
Bodies Corp.
di Ranke/FI
e} Anv other
SUB TOTAL (Al {2):

Total Shareholding of Promoter
(A)= (AN 1)+{AN2):

6267484¢ 100

B. PUBLIC SHAREHOLDING

"1\ Inctihutinne
1} Mutual Funds
o} Banks/FI
2) Cenntral govt
1 State Gavt
s} Venture Caoital Fund
f Insurance Companies
2 FlIS
h) Forelgn Venture
Capital Funds
Others (specifv

SUB TOTAL [BY1):

2} Non Institutions

a) Bodies

IV Indian

ii) Overseas
Individuals

nominal share capital upto Rs.1
lakhs

i) Individuals shareholders holding

Rs 1 lakhs
tl Others (specifv)

SUB TOTAL [B}21:

Total Public Shareholding
[B)={B)1)+(B}N2)

C. SHARES HELD BY CUSTODIAN
FOR GDRs & ADRs

Grand Total (A+B+C) 62674848 100

Total

397

62.674.551

62 674.948

62674948

62674948

% of Total

Shares

0.00

100.0

100.00

100.00

100.00

Demat

397

62,674,551

62 674.948

62674948

62674948

Physical Total

397

62 674 551

62,674,248

62674948

a 62674948

% change during

% of Total the year*

Shares

100.00

100.00

100.00 0.00



) Shareholding of Promoters
SI No Sharcholder's Name
No. of shares
15,668,613

! Rao Trust*
Grandhi Buchi Sanyasi Raju and

2 15,668,613
Satyavathi Smitha Trust *

3 Grandhi Kiran Kumar and Ragini 15,668,613
Trust *

4 Srinivas Bommidala and Ramadevi 15,668,613
Trust *

5 GMR Holdings Private Limited

6 GMR Familv Fund Trust* 99

7 Mr. G.M Rao 297

8 Mrs. Grandhi Varalakshmi 100

* shares held in the name of trustees
()

Sl. No.
No. of Shares

Rao Trust*

At the beginning of the vear

Date wise increase/decrease in
Promoters Share holding during the
year specifying the reasons for
increase/decrease (e g.
allotment/transfer/bonus/sweat
equity etc) #

15 668 613

Grandhl Buchl $anyasl Raju and
Satvavathi Smitha Trust *

At the beginnineg of the vear

Date wise increase/decrease in
Promoters Share holding during the
year specifying the reasons for
Increase/decrease (e.g.
allotment/transfer/bonus/sweat
eauitv etel #f

Atthe end of the year

15 668 613

15.668.613

Trust *

At the beginning of the vear

Date wise increase/decrease in
Promoters Share holding during the
year specifying the reasons for
increase/decrease (e g.
allotment/transfer/bonus/sweat

15 668 613

At the end of the year 15668 613
Srinivas Bommudala and Hamadev)
Trust *

At the beginning of the vear

Uate wise increase/decrease in
Promoters Share holding during the
year specifying the reasons for
increase/decrease (e g
allotment/transfer/bonus/sweat
equity etc) &

15 668 613

15668 613

Shareluwliling ol the
begginning of the year

% of total
shares
of the
company

% of shares pledged
encumbered to total shares

24.9998
249998
249998

249998

00005
00002

Change In Promoters’ Shareholding (please spedfy, If there Is no change)

% of total
shares of the
company

No of shares

249998 156686813

15,660,613

24 9998 15666 613

15,668,613

24 9998 15,668,613

24 9998 15,660,613

15,668,613

24 9938 15,668,613

24 9998

15 668 813

15,660,613

24 9998 15,668,613

No. of shares

15,668,613

15,660,613

15,668,613

15,668,613

99
297
100

% of total
shares of the
company

24.9998

2500

24,9998

249998

25,00

24.9998

24,9998

25.00

249998

24,9998

2500

24,9998

Sharaholding at the
end of the year

% of total
shares
of the
comoanv

24,9998

24,9998

24.9998

24,9998

00002
0.0005
00002

% of shares pledged
encumbered to total
shares

¥a change In share
holding during the
vear



vy

)

Sl Na

10

11

12

13

93 0.0002 93
Date wise increase/decrease in
Promoters Share holding during the
year specifying the reasons for
increase/decrease {e.g.
allotment/transfer/bonus/sweat
enuity ete) §
At the end of the vear
Mr. G.M Rao

99 0.0002

297 00005 297 00005
Date wise increase/decrease in
Promoters Share holding during the
year specifying the reasons for
increase/decrease (e.g.
allotment/transter/bonus/sweat
eauitv etc)

297 0.0005

Mrs Grandhl Varalakshml

100 00002 100 00002
Date wise increase/decrease in
Promoters Share holding during the
year specifying the reasons for
increase/decrease (e.g.
allotment/transfer/bonus/sweat
eauitv etc)

100 0.0002

100 00002 10 00002
n

Shareholding Pattern of top ten Shareholders {other than Directors, Promoters & Holders of GDRs & ADRs)

Cumulative Sharshnalding din 1a the vear

For Each of the Top 10 Shareholders No.of shares % of total No of shares %5 of total
shares of the shares of the
company company
NIL NIL NIL

Date wise increase/decrease in

year specifying the reasons for

N NIL NIL NIL NIL
increase/decrease (e g.
allotment/transfer/bonus/sweat
eauitv etel
NIL NIL
Shareholding of Directors & KiMP
For Each of the Directors & KMP  No.of shares % of total No of shares % of total
shares of the shares of the
company company

At the beginnine of the vear NIL NiL NIL NIL
Transfer durine the vear NIL NiL NIL NIL

NIL NIL NIL NIL
Mr. M.V, Srinivas

NiL NIL NIL NIL
Transfer durine the vear NIL NIL NIL NIL

NIL NiIL NIL NIL
Mr. Chakka Srinivasa Rao

NIL NIL NIL NIL
Transfer during the vear NIL NIL NIL NIL

NIL NIL NIL NIL
Vir. Sreemannarayana K. (CFO)
Isince Auaust 12. 20161

N NIL NIL NIL
Transfer during the vear NIL NIL NIL NIL

NIL NIL NiL NIL
Mr. Ravl Maletl (Manager) |since
August 12 2016}

N NIL N NiL

NIL NIL NiL NIL

NIL NIL NIL NIL
Ms. Aruna Kotturu {CS) [upto
August 12 2016l
Transfer during the vear NIL NIL NIL NIL

NIL NIL NIL NIL
Ms. Yogindu Khaluria {CS) [since
August 12 20161

NIL NIL NIL NIL

NIL NIL NIL NIL



V. INDEBTEDNESS

Indebtedness of the Company including interest outstanding/accrued but not due for payment

Indebtness at the beginning of tho financial
i) Principal Amount

ii) Interest due but not paid

iii) Interest accrued but not due

(i+ii+iii)

Change in Indebtedness during the financial
Additions

Reduction

Net Change

Indebtedness at the end of the financial

i} Principal Amount

i} Interest due but not paid

i) Interest accrued but not due

Total (i+ii+iii)

Vi REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

Secured Loans
excluding deposits

29141548264.56
0.0¢
2643114842,04

31784663106.60
6,237,850,000 00
5.868.401.637 00
369,448,363 00
29,510,996.627.56
0.00

5,268,156,161.23

34,779.152.788.79

Unsecured
Loans

1261904000.00
000
8374461.48

1270278461.48
2,563,630,300.00
39,072,030.00
2,524,558,270.00
3,786.462,270.00
0.0C

107,315,456.00

3.893.777.726.00

A. Remuneration to Managing Director, Whole time director and/or Monager:

SL.No

1 Gross salary

Particulars of Remuneration

la) Salary as per provisions contained in section 17(1) of the

ncome Tax. 1961.

{b} Value of perquisites u/s 17(2} of the Income tax Act, 1961

{c ) Profits in lieu of salary under section 17(3) of the Income

Tax Act, 1961
Stock option

3 Sweat Equity

4 Commission
as % of profit
others {specify)

5 Others, please specify
Total (A)

8. Remuneration to other directors:

SlNo Particulars of Romuncration

1
{a)Fee for attending board committee meatings
(b) Commission
{c ) Others, please specify

5 Other Non Executive Directors

[a) Fee for attending
[b) Commission

Total (2)
Total (B)=(1+2)

Total Managerial Remuneration (A+B)

Deposits

0.00
0.00
0.00

0.00
0.00
0.00
000
0.00
0.00

0.00

0.00

Total
Indebtedness

30403452264.56

0.0C

2651489303.5?
33054941568.08
8.801,480.300.00
5,907,473,667.00

2,894,006,633.00

33,297.458.897.56

0.00

5,375,471,617.23

38,672,930,514.79

Name of the MD/WTD/Manager

MD

N.A.

N A

N.A.

N.A.
N.A,

N.A,
N.A.
N A,
N.A.

WTD

N.A,

N.A,

N.A

N.A.
N A,

N.A,
N.A,
N.A,
N.A.

Nome of the Directors

Mr. Govindarajulu T

o 0O o O o

N.A.
N A
N.A
N.A.

Mr. M.V. Srinivas

O O o0 oo

Manager [since
August 12. 20161

Mr. Ravi Majeti (p.a.)

2,701,511.00

2,701,511.0C

Mr. Chakka Srinivasa
Rao

O 0O 00 0O oo

Total Amount

2,701,511.00
0
0
0
0
C
C
C
2,701,511.0C

Total Amount

N.A.
N.A
N A.
N A.

0
0
0
0
0
2,

701,511 00



C Remuneration to key managerial personnel other than MD/Manager/WTD

Sk No. Particulars of Remuneration
Company Company .
Gross Salary Secretary [upto August Sacretary [since CFO [since August 12, Total
12, 2016] August 12, 20161 2016]
Mr.
Ms. Aruna Kotturu Ms. Yogindu Khajuria Sreemannarayana K.
(p.a}
'a) Salary as per provisions contained in section 17(1) of the 0 0 6,524 733.00 6.524.733.00
ncome Tax Act, 19G1. e e
'b) Value of perquisites u/s 17(2) of the Income Tax Act, 1961 0 0 0 0
'c ) Profits in lieu of salary under section 17(3) of the Income
Tax Act, 1961 0 0 0 0
Stock Option N.A. N.A. 0 N.A.
3 Sweat Equity N.A, N.A. 0 N.A,
4 Commission
3s % of profit N.A, N.A. 0 N.A.
others specifv N.A. N.A. 0 N.A.
5 Others, please specify N.A, N.A. 0 N.A,

Total 0 0 6,524,733.00 6,524,733.00



vil.

Type

A. COMPANY

Penalty
Punishment
Compounding

B. DIRECTORS
Penalty

Punishment
Compounding

PENALTIES/PUNISHMENT/COMPOUNDING OF OFFENCES

Section of the Description Details of Authority Appeal made, if any
Companies Act Penalty/Punish (RD/NCLT/Court) (give details)
ment/Compoun
ding fees
imposed
NIL
NIL

C. OTHER OFFICERS IN DEFAULT

Penalty
Punishment
Compounding

Place: Mumbai
Date: Septembar 29

NIL

For and on behaif of Board of Directors of
GMR Enterprises Private Limited

MALLIKAR
JUNA RAO KIRANKUMA_______ .
GRANDHI RGRANDHI ____ =
G.M. Rao Grandhi Kiran Kumar
Director Director
DIN: 00574243 DIN: 00061669

, 2017



V. SREEDHARAN AND ASSOCIATES

Company Secretaries

No. 32/33, 1*and 2™ Floor, GNR Complex, 8" Cross,
Wilson Garden, Bengaluru 560 027
C+91 80 222 90 394 M compliance@sreedharancs.com

Form No, MR-3

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT

[Pursuant to section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule No.9 of the
Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014]

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED: 31.03.2017

To,

The Members,

GMR ENTERPRISES PRIVATE LIMITED
Third Floor, Old No.248/New No.114,
Royapettah High Road, Royapettah,
Chennai - 600 014

We have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory
provisions and the adherence to good corporate practices by GMR ENTERPRISES
PRIVATE LIMITED (hereinafter called “the Company”). Secretarial Audit was
conducted in a manner that provided us a reasonable basis for evaluating the

corporate conducts/statutory compliances and expressing our opinion thereon.

Based on our verification of the Company’s books, papers, minute books, forms
and returns filed and other records maintained by the Company, the information
provided by the Company, its officers, agents and authorized representatives
during the conduct of secretarial audit, we hereby report that in our opinion, the
Company has, during the financial year ended March 31, 2017 (the audit peried)
complied with the statutory provisions listed hereunder and also that the Company
has proper Board-processes and compliance-mechanism in place to the extent, in

the manner and subject to the reporting made hereinafter:

9 PGS e B i e U e D e T S R et




We have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and

other records maintained by the Company for the financial year ended March 31,

2017 according to the provisions of:

(i)
(i)

(iii)

(i)

(vi)

The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made thereunder;
The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (‘SCRA’) and the rules made

thereunder;

The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed
thereunder;

Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made
thereunder to the extent of Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct

Investment and External Commercial Borrowing (to the extent applicable);
The following law specifically applicable to the company:

The Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 and the Non-Banking Financial
Companies / Core Investment Companies Regulations made thereunder (to
the extent applicable).

The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities
and Exchange Board of India Act, 1992 (‘SEBI Act’):

a)  The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of
Shares and Takeovers) Regulations, 2011;

b) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider
Trading) Regulations, 2015;

¢) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2009; (Not Applicable to the
Company during the Audit Period)

d) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee
Benefits) Regulations, 2014; (Not Applicable to the Company during
the Audit Period)

e) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt
Securities) Regulations, 2008;



f)  The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and
Share Transfer Agents) Regulations, 1993 regarding the Companies Act

and dealing with client;

g) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares)
Regulations, 2009; (Not Applicable to the Company during the Audit
Period)

h)  The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities)
Regulations, 1998; (Not Applicable to the Company during the Audit
Period)

i) Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015

The Company has listed its Debentures on the Bombay Stock Exchange (BSE) on
November 02, 2016 and is the Holding company of GMR Infrastructure Limited, a
listed company. It is a Core Investment Company (CIC) holding certificate of
registration No.C-07.00832 dated August 02, 2017 issued by RBI Chennai in lieu of
Certificate of Registration No. DNBS (BG) No.765/08.01.018/2012-13 dt. December
13, 2012 surrendered to RBI Bengaluru in view of change in the Registered Office
of the Company from Bangalore to Chennai.

We have also examined compliance with the Secretarial Standards (SS-1) on
meetings of the Board of Directors and Secretarial Standards (55-2) on General

Meetings issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India.

We have not examined compliance by the Company with applicable financial laws,
like direct and indirect tax laws, since the same have been subject to review by

statutory auditors and other designated professionals.

During the period under review, the Company has complied with the provisions of

the Act, Rules, Regulations, Guidelines, Standards, etc. mentioned above.



We further report that:

The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted. Being a private and
debt listed company, the company is not required to maintain any balance relating
to Executive Directors, Non-Executive Directors and Independent Directors, The
changes in the composition of the Board of Directors that took place during the

period under review were carried out in compliance with the pravisions of the Act.

Adequate notice is given to all directors to schedule the Board Meetings. Agenda
and detailed notes on agenda were sent at least seven days in advance or on
shorter notice, and a system exists for seeking and obtaining further information
and clarifications on the agenda items before the meeting and for meaningful

participation at the meeting.

As per the minutes of the meetings duly recorded and signed by the Chairman, the
decisions of the Board were unanimous and no dissenting views have been
recorded.

We further report that based on the compliance certificate furnished by the
Company Secretary and Chief Financial Officer of the company, there are
adequate systems and processes in the Company commensurate with the size and
operations of the Company to monitor and ensure compliance with ather
applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.

We further report that during the audit period, the Company has not undertaken
any actions which are having major bearing on the Company’s affairs in pursuance
of the above referred laws, rules, regulations, guidelines, etc., except the
following:



(i) Pursuant to the Scheme of Amalgamation and Arrangement approved by
the High Court of Madras under Sections 391 to 394 of the Companies
Act, 1956 between GMR Holdings Private Limited (Transferor Company
No. 1) and GMR Projects Private Limited (Transferor Company No. 2)
with the Company (Transferee Company), all the existing Debt listed
Securities held by GMR Holdings Private Limited stands transferred to the
Company with effect from November 02, 2016 as per the confirmation
letter received from BSE. Accordingly the Securities and Exchange Board
of India Act, 1992 shall be applicable for the Company with effect from
November 02, 2016.

(1) Issue and allotment of 2200 listed, rated, redeemable, marketable non-
convertible debentures of face value of Rs. 10,00,000 (Rupees Ten Lakh
Only) each in one or more tranches (“Tranches”) on a private placement

basis.

Place: Bengaluru Fo haran & Associates

Date: September 12, 2017
V. Sreedhagn .

Partner
F.C.S.-2347 : C.P. No. 833

515



ANNUAL REPORT ON CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (CSR) ACTIVITIES
1. A brief outline of the company's CSR policy, including overview of
projects or programs proposed to be undertaken and a reference
to the web-link to the CSR policy and projects or programmes.
CSR Policy is stated herein below.
Weblink: www.gmrgroup.in

2. The Composition of the CSR Commiittee:

The CSR Committee was constituted on October 27, 2016, and as on March
31, 2017 the constitution of the Committee was as follows:

Mr. Govindarajulu T.
Mr. M.V. Srinivas
Mr. Chakka Srinivasa Rao

3. Average net profit/loss of the company for last three financial
years: :

Average net loss: Rs.27,572.80 lakhs

4. Prescribed CSR Expenditure (two per cent of the amount as in item
3 above):

Nil
5. Details of CSR spent during the financial year:
(a) Total amount spent for the financial year:

Not applicable
(b) Amount unspent, if any:

Not applicable

(c) Manner in which the amount spent during the financial year is
detailed below:



(1) (2) (3) (4) (5) (6) (7) (8)
sl CSR Sector Projects or Amount Amount Cumul- Amount
No | projector in Programs outlay spent on ative spent:
activity which (1) Local (budget) the projects | expendit Direct
Identified. the area or project or ure upto or
Project other or Programs the through
is (2) Specify programs Subheads: reportin implem
covered the State wise (1) Direct g period enting
and district expenditure agency
where on projects
projects or or
programs programs
was
undertaken (2)
Overheads

Not applicable

In case the company has failed to spend the two per cent of the
average net profit of the last three financial years or any part
thereof, the company shall provide the reasons for not spending
the amount in its Board’s report:

Not applicable

A responsibility statement of the CSR Committee that the
implementation and monitoring of CSR Policy, is in compliance
with CSR objectives and Policy of the company :

The implementation and monitoring of the CSR Policy is in compliance with
CSR objectives and Policy of the Company.

il by MALLIGAA A A0

MALLIKARJUN

it
GRANDHI i
G.M. Rao Grandhi Kiran Kumar

Member- CSR Committee Member- CSR Committee

Place: Mumbai
Date: September 29, 2017




Corporate Social Responsibility Policy

Creating tomorrow today

Corporate Socia esponsibi ty oicy



Corporate Social Responsibility Policy

S. no
1 Background
2 Philosophy of the foundation
3. Objective
4, Scope

4.1 Sharing the value

4.2 Communities

4.3 Environment

4.4 Product and Services

4.5 Employees

4.6 Legal and Ethical standard
5 Applicability and responsibility

6 Implementation and review
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Corporate Social Responsibility Policy

GMR Group recognizes that its business activities have wide impact on the societies
in which it operates, and therefore effective socially responsible practices are
required, giving due consideration to the interests of its stakeholders including
shareholders, customers, employees, suppliers, business partners, local
communities, other institutions and the environment. This policy encompasses the
requirement of the Companies Act, 2013.

1. BACKGROUND

GMR Group is driven by a vision to
contributing to the economic develop

towards inclusive growth and impro f
communities. Towards this vision, the t
Foundation (GMRVF), partners with com e

drive various initiatives in the areas of Education, health, empowerment and
livelihood, aimed at overall social development.

2. PHILOSOPHY OF THE FOUNDATION

Inclusive growth and maximizing benefit to the community with positive collateral
for business.

3. OBJECTIVE

To recognize our social, economic and environmental responsibilities, and
demonstrate these responsibilities in the local communities through our
actions as per the approved policy guidelines.

To encourage and facilitate employees and their families to spend time
voluntarily in community service related programs.

To comply with all applicable legal, statutory and other requirements.

4., SCOPE
GMR Group is committed to enhance e to Ide roup
will ensure that its managers and s are to and
environmental issues, so that they m int e their

business decision making.

v Group companies/GMRVF | give preference to local areas where the
company operates for CSR d.



Corporate Social Responsibility Policy

v List of the projects / programs to be undertaken shall be within the purview of
Schedule VII of the Companies Act, 2013.

4.1 Sharing the Values

GMR Group Is aspiring to be an in n in perpetuity that will build
entrepreneurial orga ons making a ce to society through creation of
value. The Group will urage and facili teits ke mu
and environmental protection activities so t d em
understanding towards development var es nt

development of the society.

The GMR Group is driven by seven core values and beliefs which are guiding
principles in conducting businesses. They are as follows:

. e nd arrogance
° ry
. i Is raging boundary

less behavior
e Deliver the promise: We value a deep sense of responsibility and self-discipline,
to meet and surpass on commitments made

. ng: Nurtur a y - to que n, share and improve
. Responsib : and meet relevant and emerging needs of
societies

o Respect for Individuals: We will treat others with dignity, sensitivity and honour
4.2 Communities
« Towards this, GMR Group will partner with communities around the business

units and other selected communities, in order to improve the quality of their
lives over a period of time;

In pursuit of this, GMR Gr shall ¢ ribut the elopment of these
communities through initiat in Edu on; h, h ne and sanitation;
Empowerment and livelihoods; and Com  nity opm

These efforts shall reach out to the under-served and the needy in these
communities. This shall be through deep engagement with the community as
the first step of setting up a business;

This partnership will be in the spirit of building the capacities of communities
and their institutions to empower thern selves;

. l e that thes in sul ion wi e
o} ce their S q ity of k
tia will be e f ti to ti 0

ensure their effectiveness;



Corporate Social Responsibility Policy

e To ensure this, GMR Group will take the support of its specialized in-house
Entity, the GMRVF, which will ensure that all activities are planned and carried
out in a professional manner;

Group companies shall financially support the community activities as per the
needs of the communities. These activities may be either done directly by the
company with support from GMRVF, or through donation to GMRVF. Board of
each company will ensure that the company spends at least 2% of its average
net profits made during the three immediately preceding financial years. The
Group shall be driven by the long range vision of the community’s development
and invest as appropriate;

The GMR Group will also contribute to reputed organizations who are involved in
similar causes.

4.3 Environment

Sustainability and the triple bottom line is inherent in the concept of value creation.
The Group will strive to protect environment, conserve natural resources, reduce
energy consumption, improve occupational health and safety performance, and
mitigate risks by adopting optimal production processes and services driven by
environment friendly technologies.

4.4 Products and Services

GMR Group is committed to deliver products and services of superior quality based
on the requirement of its Customers and built to National and International
standards.

4.5 Employees

All employees of the group irrespective of community, race, grade and cadre shall
be encouraged to voluntarily participate in various projects / programs related to
CSR.

4.6 Legal and Ethical Standards

e The Group will comply and endeavor to exceed all applicable legal and other
requirements.

GMR Group expects its employees to maintain high moral and ethical standards.
These standards are characterized by honesty, fairness, equity in interpersonal
and professional relationships as well as in our day-to-day activities and are
enumerated in the Code of Business Conduct and Ethics policy.
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5, APPLICABILITY AND RESPONSIBILITY

The policy is applicable to all employees including full time
Advisors/Consultants.

v The Group will actively influence all their business partners, service providers
and contractors to align with the intent of this policy.

v Business CEOs, Head-Projects and Head-Assets have to take responsibility for
performance of this policy in their respective Businesses, projects and plants.

v GMRVF will undertake the planning and implementation of the community
activities, with contribution and ownership from the Businesses.

6. IMPLEMENTATION & REVIEW

v It will be ensured that the initiatives under CSR are identified and
planned in close association with the local communities and
project/plant heads in a participatory manner that will ultimately result
in better standards of living for surrounding communities.

v All group companies which are required to implement the new CSR rules shall
establish the necessary processes, systems and procedures to implement the
new CSR rules.

v CSR Board level committees shall review the CSR activities at Group/Company
level by going through the reports prepared in prescribed formats on quarterly
basis.

v The initiatives will be fine-tuned from time to time to ensure their effectiveness.

v Various CSR initiatives anchored through GMRVF will be communicated
effectively to create awareness and involvement of employees.

This policy will be in force until a review is made by the Board of Directors for
accommodating the emerging requirements.

[This Policy has been approved in the Board Meeting dated November 14, 2016]
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Part A of Annexure- 4

int Venture and Assoc
E ed

NAME OF THE COMPANY*
Direct Subsidiaries:
GMR Infrastructure Limited (GIL)

GMR Sports Private Limited (GSPL)
GMR Infratech Private Limited (GIPL)
Cadence Enterprises Private Limited [Formerly Cadence Retail Private Limited] {CEPL)

GMR League Games Private Limited (GLGPL)
PHL Infrastructure Finance Company Private Limited (PHL)

Vijay Nivas Real Estates Private Limited (VNREPL)
Fabcity Properties Private Limited (FPPL)
Kondampeta Properties Private Limited (KPPL)

Hyderabad Jabilli Properties Private Limited (HJPPL)
Leora Real Estates Private Limited (LREPL)
Pashupati Artex Agencies Private Limited (PAAPL)
Ravivarma Realty Private Limited (RRPL)

Grandhi Enterprises Private Limited (Grandhi)

Rajam Enterprises Private Limited (Rajam)
Ideaspace Solutions Private Limited (ISPL)

National SEZ Infra Services Private Limited (NSISPL)
Kakinada Refinery & Petrochemicals Pvt. Ltd. (KRPPL)
GMR Solar Energy Private Limited

Kothavalasa Infraventures Private Limited

GMR Business & Consultancy LLP (GBCLLP)
GMR Holdings (Overseas) Limited
Crossridge Investments Ltd. (CIL)

Interzone Capital Limited (ICL)
AMG Healthcare Destination Pvt. Ltd
Globemerchants, Inc

Indirect Subsidiaries:
Corporate infrastructure Services Pvt. Ltd

Kirthi Timbers Pvt. Ltd
GMR Bannerghatta Properties Pvt. Ltd
GMR Holdings (Mauritius) Limited (GHMaul)



31

32
33

34

35
36
37
38
39
40
41

42
43
44

45
46
47
48
49
50
51
52
53
54
55
56
57
58
59
60

61

62

63
64

GMR Holdings Overseas (Singapore) Pte Limited

GMR Holdi  Malta) Limited

GMR Infrastructure Malta Limited

Ellan Vannin International Holdings Limited (formerly GMR Airport (Global) Limited)
(GAG

GMR Energy Limited (GEL)

GMR Power Corporation Limited (GPCL)

GMR Vemagiri Power Generation Limited (GVPGL)

GMR (Badrinath) Hydro Power Generation Private Limited (GBHPL)
GMR Mining & Energy Private Limited (GMEL)

GMR Kamalanga Energy Limited (GKEL)

Himtal Hydro Power Company Private Limited (HHPPL)

GMR Energy (Mauritius) Limited (GEML)
GMR Lion Ene  Limited GLEL)
GMR Upper Karnali Hydropower Limited (GUKPL)

GMR Energy Trading Limited (GETL)

GMR Consulting Services Limited (GCSL)

GMR Coastal Energy Private Limited (GCEPL)

GMR Bajoli Holi Hydropower Private Limited (GBHHPL)
GMR Londa Hydropower Private Limited (GLHPPL)
GMR Kakinada Energy Private Limited (GKEPL)

GMR Energy (Cyprus) Limited (GECL)

GMR Energy (Netherlands) B.V. (GENBV)

PT Dwikarya Sejati Utma (PTDSU)

PT Duta Sarana Internusa (PTDS!)

PT Barasentosa Lestari (PTBSL)

SJIK Powergen Limited (SJK)

PT Unsoco (PT)

GMR Warora Energy Limited (GWEL) (formerly EMCO Energy Limited)

GMR Maharashtra Energy Limited (GMAEL)

GMR Bundelkhand Ene  Private Limited GBEP

GMR Rajam Solar Power Private Limited (formerly GMR Uttar Pradesh Energy Private
Limited)

GMR Genco Assets Limited

(forme  GMR Hosur Limited) (GG

GMR Gujarat Solar Power Limited (GGSPPL)

Karnali Transmission Company Private Limited (KTCPL)
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66
67
68

69
70
71

72
73
74
75
76
77
78

79

80
81
82

83
84
85
86
87
88

89

90
91
92
93

94
95

96

97
98

Marsyangdi Transmission Company Private Limited (MTCPL)

GMR Indo-Nepal Energy Links Limited (GINELL)
GMR Indo-Nepal Power Corridors Limited (GINPCL)
GMR Generation Assets Limited (formerly GMR Renewable Energy Limited) (GREEL)

GMR Energy Projects (Mauritius) Limited (GEPML)
GMR Infrastructure re) Pte Limited (Gl
GMR Coal Resources Pte Limited (GCRPL)

GMR Power Infra Limited (GPIL)

GMR Highways Limited (GMRHL)

GMR Tambaram Tindivanam Expressways Limited (GTTEL)

GMR Tuni Anakapalli Expressways Limited (GTAEL)

GMR Ambala Chandigarh Expressways Private Limited (GACEPL)
GMR Pochanpalli Expressways Limited (GPEL)

GMR Hyderabad Vijayawada Expressways Private Limited (GHVEPL)

GMR Chennai Outer Ring Road Private Limited (GCORRPL)

GMR Kishangarh Udaipur Ahmedabad Expressways Limited GKUAEL)
GMR High ects Private Limited GHPPL &
GMR Hyderabad International Airport Limited (GHIAL)

Gateways for India Airports Private Limited (GFIAL)
Hyderabad Menzies Air Cargo Private Limited (HMACPL)

Hyderabad Airport Security Services Limited (HASSL)

GMR Aerostructure Services Limited (Formerly GMR Hyderabad Airport Resource
Mana ement Limited) (G

GMR erabad is Limited (HAPL)

GMR Hyderabad Aviation SEZ Limited (GHASL)

GMR Aerospace Engineering Limited (formerly known as MAS GMR Aerospace
Engineering Company Limited) (GAECL)

GMR Aero Technic Limited (formerly known as MAS GMR Aero Technic Limited) (GATL)

GMR Airport Developers Limited (GADL)
GADL International Limited (GADLIL)

GADL (Mauritius) Limited (GADLML)

GMR Hospita ity and Ret  Lim ted (former y GMR Hotels and Resorts Limited) (GHRL)

GMR Hyderabad Ai Power Distribution Limited GHAPDL)
Delhi International Airport Private Limited (DIAL)

Delhi Aerotropolis Private Limited (DAPL)
Delhi Duty Free Services Private Limited (DDFS)
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100

101
102
103

104
105

106

107

108

109
110

111

112
113
114

115

116
117
118
119
120
121
122
123

124
125
126

127
128
129

130
131

132
133

Delhi Airport Parking Services Private Limited (DAPSL)
GMR Airports Limited (GAL)

GMR Malé International Airport Private Limited (GMIAL)
GMR Airports (Mauritius) Limited (GALM)
GMR Aviation Private Limited (GAPL)

GMR Krishnagiri SEZ Limited (GKSEZ)
Advika Properties Private Limited (APPL)

Aklima Properties Private Limited (AKPPL)
Amartya Properties Private Limited (AMPPL)

Baruni Properties Private Limited (BPPL)

Bougainvillea Properties Private Limited (BOPPL)
Camelia Properties Private Limited (CPPL)

Deepesh Properties Private Limited (DPPL)

Eila Properties Private Limited (EPPL)
Gerbera Properties Private Limited (GPL)
Lakshmi Priya Properties Private Limited (LPPPL)

Honeysuckle Properties Private Limited (HPPL)

Idika Properties Private Limited (IPPL)
Krishnapriya Properties Private Limited (KPPL)
Larkspur Properties Private Limited (LAPPL)
Nadira Properties Private Limited (NPPL)
Padmapriya Properties Private Limited(PAPPL)
Prakalpa Properties Private Limited (PPPL)
Purnachandra Properties Private Limited (PUPPL)
Shreyadita Properties Private Limited (SPPL)

Pranesh Properties Private Limited (PRPPL)
Sreepa Properties Private Limited (SRPPL)
Radhapriya Properties Private Limited (RPPL)

Asteria Real Estates Private Limited (AREPL)
Lantana Properties Private Limited (formerly GMR Hosur Industrial City Pvt Ltd)
Namitha Real Estates Private Limited (NREPL)

Honey Flower Estates Private Limited (HFEPL)
GMR Hosur EMC Limited (GHEMC)

GMR SEZ and Port Holdings Limited (GSPHL)
East Godavari Power Distribution Company Private Limited (EGPDCPL)



134 Suzone Properties Private Limited (SUPPL)

135 GMR Utilities Private Limited (GUPL)

136 Lilliam Properties Private Limited (LPPL)

137 GMR Corporate Affairs Private Limited (GCAPL)

138 Dhruvi Securities Private Limited (DSPL)

139 Kakinada SEZ Limited (KSL)

140 GMR Business Process and Services Private Limited (GBPSPL)
141 GMR Infrastructure (Mauritius) Limited (GIML)

142 GMR Infrastructure (Cyprus) Limited (GICL)

143 GMR Infrastructure Overseas Limited (GIOSL)
144 GMR Infrastructure (UK) Limited (GIUL)

145 GMR Infrastructure (Global} Limited (GIGL)

146 GMR Energy (Global) Limited (GEGL)
147 GMR Infrastructure (Overseas) Limited (GIOL)
148 Raxa Security Services Limited (RAXA)

149 Indo Tausch Trading DMCC (ITDD)

150 Kakinada Gateway Port Limited (KGPL)
151 GMR Goa International Airport Limited (GGIAL)

152 GMR SEZ Infra Services Limited (GSISL)

153 GMR Infra Developers Limited
Associates & Joint Ventures of GIL:

154 GMR Rajahmundry Energy Limited (GREL)
155 GMR Chhattisgarh Energy Limited (GCHEPL)

156 East Delhi Waste Processing Company Private Limited (EDWPCPL)
157 GMR OSE Hungund Hospet Highways Private Limited (GOSEHHHPL)

158 Delhi Aviation Services Private Limited

159 Travel Food Services (Delhi T3) Private Limited

160 Delhi Aviation Fuel Facility Private Limited

161 Celebi Delhi Cargo Terminal Management India Private Limited
162 TIM Delhi Airport Advertisement Private Limited

163 Wipro Airport IT Services Limited

164 Asia Pacific Flight Training Academy Limited
165 Lagshya Hyderabad Airport Media Private Limited



166

167
168
169
170

171
172

173

174

175

176
177
178
179

180
181

182
183
184

185
186

GMR Megawide Cebu Airport Corporation

Megawide - GISPL Construction JV

Limak GMR Construction JV

Rampia Coal Mine and Energy Private Limited
PT Golden Energy Mines Tbk

PT Roundhill Capital Indonesia

PT Borneo Indobara

PT Kuansing Inti Makmur
PT Karya Cemerlang Persada

PT Bungo Bara Utama

PT Bara Harmonis Batang Asam
PT Berkat Nusantara Permai

PT Tanjung Belit Bara Utama
PT Trisula Kencana Sakti

PT Gems Energy Indonesia
GEMS Trading Resources Pte Limited

PT Karya Mining Solution {KMS) (Formerly PT Bumi Anugerah Semesta)
Shanghai Jingguang Energy Co. Ltd
PT Era Mitra Selaras (EMS)

PT Wahana Rimba
PT Berkat Satria Abadi

#does not include Company limited by guarantee
S Associates include Joint Ventures.
& In the process of striking off.
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1. INTRODUCTION

Pursuant to Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013 the Board of Directors of every listed
Company shall constitute a Nomination and Remuneration Committee (“NRC"). The Company
having its Non-Convertible Debentures Listed with BSE has obtained the status of being a listed
entity and thus has constituted a Nomination and Remuneration Committee as required under
the provisions of Companies Act, 2013.

This Committee and the Policy is formulated in compliance with Section 178 of the Companies
Act, 2013 read along with the applicable rules.

1.1. Purpose of the Policy

The Key Objectives of the Committee are:

(a) To guide and recommend the Board in relation to appointment and removal of Directors,
Key Managerial Personnel and Senior Management.

(b) To formulate criteria for determining qualifications, positive attributes and independence
of the Directors and to recommend to the Board on Remuneration payable to the Directors, Key
Managerial Personnel and Senior Management.

() To evaluate the performance of the members of the Board and provide necessary report
to the Board for further evaluation.

(d) The level and composition of remuneration is reasonable and sufficient to attract, retain
and motivate Directors of the quality required to run the Company successfully,

(e) Relationship of remuneration to performance is clear and meets appropriate
performance benchmark; and

4] Remuneration to Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and Senior Management involves
a balance between fixed and incentive pay reflecting short and long term performance
objectives appropriate to the working of the Company and its goals.

1.2. Definitions

1.2.1. “Board” means the Board of Directors of the Company
1.2.2. “Company” means "GMR Enterprises Private Limited”

1.2.3. “Independent Director” means a director referred to in Section 149 (6) of the
Companies Act, 2013.

1.2.4. “Employees’ Stock Option” means the option given to the directors, officers or
employees of a company or of its holding company or subsidiary company or
companies, if any, which gives such directors, officers or employees, the benefit or right
to purchase, or to subscribe for, the shares of the company at a future date at a pre-
determined price.



Nomination & Remuneration Policy

1.2.5. “Key Managerial Personnel” or “KMP" means Key Managerial Personnel of the
Company in terms of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules made thereunder.
(As per Section 203 of the Companies Act, 2013, the following are whole-time Key Managerial
Personnel:

() Managing Director or Chief Executive Officer or the Manager and in their absence a

whole-time Director;
(il  Company Secretary; and
(iiiy ~ Chief Financial Officer.)

1.2.6. “Nomination and Remuneration Committee” shall mean a Committee of Board of
Directors of the Company, constituted in accordance with the provisions of Section 178 of the
Companies Act, 2013 and the Listing Agreement.

1.2.7. “Policy or This Policy” means, “Nomination and Remuneration Policy.”

1.2.8. “Remuneration” means any money or its equivalent given or passed to any person for
services rendered by him and includes perquisites as defined under the Income-tax Act, 1961.

1.2.9. “Senior Management” means personnel of the Company who are members of its core
management team excluding Board of Directors. This would include all members of
management one level below the executive directors, including all the functional heads.

1.3. Interpretation

Words and expressions used in this Policy shall have the same meanings respectively assigned
to them in the following acts, listing agreement, regulations, rules:

(i) The Companies Act, 2013 or the rules framed thereon;

(i) Debt Listing Agreement with the Stock Exchanges;
(i)  Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956;
(iv)  Securities and Exchange Board of India Act, 1992;

(v)  Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations 2009;

(vi)  Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and
Takeovers) Regulations, 2011;
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2 NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

21. Role of the Committee

(a) |dentifying persons who are qualified to become directors and who may be appointed in
senior management in accordance with the criteria laid down, recommend to the Board their
appointment and removal and shall carry out evaluation of every director’s performance;

(b) Formulating the criteria for determining qualifications, positive attributes and
independence of a director and recommend to the Board a policy, relating to the remuneration
for the directors, key managerial personnel and other employees;

(c) Formulating the criteria for evaluation of Independent Directors and the Board,

(d) Devising a policy on Board diversity;

(e) Ensuring that the Board comprises of a balanced combination of Executive Directors and
Non-Executive Directors;

f All information about the Directors / Managing Directors / Whole time Directors / Key
Managerial Personnel i.e. background details, past remuneration, recognition or awards, job
profile shall be considered and disclosed to the shareholders, where required,

(9) The Committee shall take into consideration and ensure the: compliance of provisions
under Schedule V of the Companies Act, 2013 for appointing and fixing remuneration of
Managing Directors / Whole-time Directors;

(h) While approving the remuneration, the Committee shall take into account financial
position of the Company, trend in the industry, qualification, experience and past performance of
the appointee;

0] The Committee shall be in a position to bring about objectivity in determining the
remuneration package while striking the balance between the interest of the Company and the
shareholders.

2.2. Composition of the Committee

The composition of the NRC, at any point of time shali:

(a) comprise of at least three (3) Directors, all of whom shall be Non-Executive Directors;
(b) constitute a quorum for the Committee meeting by minimum two (2) members present;
(c) disclose membership of the Committee in the Annual Report;

(d) continue application of the terms of the Committee unless terminated by the Board of
Directors

(e) reconstitute the Committee as and when required to comply with the provisions of the
Companies Act, 2013 and applicable statutory requirement;
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2.3. Chairperson of the Committee

(a) Chairperson of the Committee shall be elected among themselves;

(b) Chairperson of the Company may be appointed as a member of the Committee but shall
not Chair the Committee;

(c) In the absence of the Chairperson, the members of the Committee present at the
meeting shall choose one amongst them to act as Chairperson;

(d) Chairperson of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee shall be present at the
Annual General Meeting or may nominate some other member to answer the shareholders’
queries.

2.4. Frequency of the Meetings of the Committee

The meeting of the Committee shall be held at such regular intervals as may be required.

2.5. Committee Member’s Interest

(a) A member of the Committee is not entitled to be present when his or her own
remuneration is discussed at a meeting or when his or her performance is being evaluated.

(b) The Committee may invite such executives, as it considers appropriate, to be present at
the meetings of the Committee.

2.6. Voting at the Meeting

(a) Matters arising for determination at Committee meetings shall be decided by a majority
of votes of Members present and voting and any such decision shall for all purposes be deemed
a decision of the Committee.

(b) In the case of equality of votes, the Chairperson of the meeting will have a casting vote.

2.7.  Minutes of the Meeting

Proceedings of all meetings shall be minuted and signed by the Chairperson of the said meeting
or the Chairperson of the next succeeding meeting. Minutes of the Committee meeting shall be
tabled at the subsequent Board and Committee Meeting.

3. APPLICABILITY
This Policy is Applicable to
(a) Directors (Executive, Non-Executive and Independent);

(b) Key Managerial Personnel (KMP);
(¢} Senior Management Personnel;
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(d) Such other employees as may be decided by the Nomination and Remuneration
Committee from time to time.

4, APPOINTMENT AND REMOVAL OF DIRECTOR, KMP AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
PERSONNEL

4.1. Appointment criteria and qualifications

(a) Subject to the applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, the Debt Listing
Agreement, other applicable laws, if any and GMR Group HR Policy, the Committee shall
identify and ascertain the integrity, qualification, expertise and experience of the person for
appointment as Director, KMP or at Senior Management level and recommend to the Board his
/ her appointment;

(b) The Committee has discretion to decide the adequacy of qualification, expertise and
experience for the concerned position,

(c) The Company shall not appoint or continue the employment of any person as Managing
Director / Whole-time Director / Manager who has attained the age of seventy years. Provided
that the term of the person holding this position may be extended beyond the age of seventy
years with the approval of shareholders by passing a special resolution based on the
explanatory statement annexed to the notice for such motion indicating the justification for
extension of appointment beyond seventy years.

4.2. Term/ Tenure

4.2.1. Managing Director / Whole-time Director / Manager (Managerial Personnel)

The Company shall appoint or re-appoint any person as its Managerial Personnel for a term not
exceeding five years at a time. No re-appointment shall be made earlier than one year before
the expiry of term.

4.2.2. Independent Director
On appointment of Independent Directors by the Company, the following shall be applicable:

(a) An Independent Director shall hold office for a term up to five consecutive years on the
Board of the Company and will be eligible for re appointment on passing of a special resolution
by the Company and disclosure of such appointment in the Board's report;

(b) No Independent Director shall hold office for more than two consecutive terms, but such
Independent Director shall be eligible for appointment after expiry of three years of ceasing to
become an Independent Director:

Provided that an Independent Director shall not, during the said period of three years, be
appointed in or be associated with the Company in any other capacity, either directly or
indirectly.

(c) At the time of appointment of Independent Director it should be ensured that number of
Boards on which such Independent Director serves is restricted to seven listed companies as an
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Independent Director and three listed companies as an Independent Director in case such
person is serving as a Whole-time Director of a listed company;

(d) The maximum number of public companies in which a person can be appointed as a
director shall not exceed ten.

For reckoning the limit of public companies in which a person can be appointed as director,
directorship in private companies that are either holding or subsidiary company of a public
company shall be included.

4.3. Familiarization Programme for Independent Directors

The company shall familiarize the Independent Directors with the company, their roles, rights,
responsibilities in the company, nature of the industry in which the company operates, business
model of the company, etc., through various programmes from time to time.

4.4, Evaluation

In terms of Section 178 and subject to Schedule IV of the Companies Act, 2013, the Committee
shall carry out the evaluation of every Director’s performance periodically.

4.5. Removal

Due to reasons for any disqualification mentioned in the Companies Act, 2013, rules made
thereunder or under any other applicable laws, rules and regulations, the Committee may
recommend, to the Board with reasons recorded in writing, removal of a Director, KMP, subject
to the provisions and compliance of the applicable laws, rules and regulations.

4.6. Retirement

The Director, KMP and Personnel of Senior Management shall retire as per the applicable
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the prevailing policy of the Company. The Board will
have the discretion to retain the Director, KMP, Personnel of Senior Management in the same
position / remuneration or otherwise even after attaining the retirement age, in the interest and
for the benefit of the Company.

5. PROVISIONS RELATING TO REMUNERATION OF MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL,
KMP AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT PERSONNEL

5.1. General

(a) The remuneration / compensation / commission etc. to Managerial Personnel shall be
determined by the Committee and recommended to the Board for approval. The remuneration /
compensation / commission etc. shall be subject to the approval of the shareholders of the
Company and Central Government, wherever required,

(b) The remuneration and commission to be paid to the Managerial Personnel shall be as
per the statutory provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, and the rules made thereunder for the
time being in force;
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(c) Increments to the existing remuneration / compensation structure may be recommended
by the Committee to the Board which should be within the slabs approved by the Shareholders
in the case of Managerial Personnel;

(d) Where any insurance is taken by a company on behalf of its Managing Director, Whole-
time Director, Manager, Chief Executive Officer, Chief Financial Officer or Company Secretary
for indemnifying any of them against any liability in respect of any negligence, default,
misfeasance, breach of duty or breach of trust for which they may be guilty in relation to the
company, the premium paid on such insurance shall not be treated as part of the remuneration
payable to any such personnel.

5.2. Remuneration to Managerial Personnel, KMP, Senior Management and Other
Employees

5.2.1. Fixed Pay

Managerial Personnel shall be eligible for a monthly remuneration as may be approved by the
Board on the recommendation of the Committee in accordance with the statutory provisions of
the Companies Act, 2013, and the rules made thereunder for the time being in force. The break-
up of the pay scale and quantum of perquisites including, employer’s contribution to provident
fund, pension scheme, medical expenses, club fees etc. shall be decided and approved by the
Board on the recommendation of the Committee and approved by the shareholders and Central
Government, wherever required.

5.2.2. Minimum Remuneration

If, in any financial year, the Company has no profits or its profits are inadequate, the Company
shall pay remuneration to its Managerial Personnel in accordance with the provisions of
Schedule V of the Companies Act, 2013 and if it is not able to comply with such provisions, with
the prior approval of the Central Government.

5.2.3. Provisions for excess remuneration

If any Managerial Personnel draws or receives, directly or indirectly by way of remuneration any
such sums in excess of the limits prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013 or without the prior
sanction of the Central Government, where required, he / she shall refund such sums to the
Company and until such sum is refunded, hold it in trust for the Company. The Company shall
not waive recovery of such sum refundable to it unless permitted by the Central Government.

5.2.4. The remuneration to Personnel of Senior Management shall be governed by the GMR
Group HR Policy.

5.2.5. The remuneration to other employees shall be governed by the GMR Group HR Policy.
5.3. Remuneration to Non-Executive / Independent Director
5.3.1. Remuneration/ Commission

The remuneration / commission shall be in accordance with the statutory provisions of the
Companies Act, 2013, and the rules made thereunder for the time being in force.
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5.3.2. Sitting Fees

The Non- Executive / Independent Director may receive remuneration by way of fees for
attending meetings of Board or Committee thereof:

Provided that the amount of such fees shall not exceed the maximum amount as provided in the
Companies Act, 2013, per meeting of the Board or Committee or such amount as may be
prescribed by the Central Government from time to time.

The sitting fee paid to Independent Directors and Women Directors, shall not be less than the
sitting fee payable to other directors.

5.3.3. Limit of Remuneration / Commission

Remuneration / Commission may be paid within the monetary limit approved by shareholders,
subject to the limit not exceeding 1% of the net profits of the Company computed as per the
applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013.

5.3.4. Stock Options

An Independent Director shall not be entitled to any stock option of the Company.

10
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6. DISCLOSURES

The Company shall disclose the Policy on Nomination and Remuneration on its website, if any,
and the web-link shall be provided in the Board’s Report.

11
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7. AMENDMENT

Any amendment or modification in the Listing Agreement and any other applicable regulation
relating to Nomination and Remuneration Committee shall automatically be applicable to the
Company.

12
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B. Purushotiam & Co.,

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the members of GMR Enterprises Private Limited

Report on the Standalone Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying standalone financial statements of GMR Enterprises
Private Limited (“the Company”), which comprises the Balance Sheet as at 31% March, 2017,
the Statement of Profit and Loss, the Cash Flow Statement for the year then ended and a
summary of the significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5)
of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) with respect to the preparation of these financial
statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance and cash
flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India,
including the Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of
the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014. This responsibility also includes maintenance of
adequate accouating records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the
assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection
and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are
reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal
financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of
the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements
that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We
have taken into account the provisions of the Act, the accounting and auditing standards and
matters which are required to be included in the audit report under the provisions of the Act and
the Rules made thereunder.

WO/

Flat No.3-D, "PIONEER HOMES", 23/A, North Boag Road, T. Nagar, Chennai - 600 017
Phone : 28152515, 42013486, Fax : 42013485 Email : bpcchennai@gmail.com '

@ Member of Integra International a global association of independent accounting and consulting firms having offices across the world
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We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing specified under Section
143(10) of the Act. Those Standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are
free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and the
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers
internal financial control relevant to the Company’s preparation of the financial statements that
give a true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of the accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of the accounting estimates made by the Company’s Directors, as
well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion on the financial statements.

Opinion

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us,
the aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Act in the manner so
required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally
accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31% March, 2017, and its loss and
its cash flows for the year ended on that Jate.

Emphasis of Matter: We draw attention to Item no in note 28 ( Notes to Accounts) of the
financial statements, where in the management is of the opinion that no provision is required on
its investment of Rs. 314.97 Crores in its overseas subsidiary company. Our opinion is not
qualified in respect of this matter.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1) As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order”) issued by
the Central Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Companies
Act, we give in the Annexure, a statement on the matters specified in Para 3 and 4 of the said
Order.
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2)

As required by Section143 (3)of the Act, we report that:

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the
best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the
Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books.

©) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss, and the Cash Flow
Statement dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account.

(@ In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Accounting
Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies
(Accounts) Rules, 2014.

(e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on
31% March, 2016 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is
disqualified as on 31%March, 2016 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section
164(2) of the Act.

® With respect to the adequacy of internal financial controls over financial reporting
of the Company and the operating offectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate
report in ¢ Annexure B”.

(2) With respect to the other maiters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in
accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our
opinion and to the best of our information a «l according to the explanations given to us:

i.  The Company has disclesed the impact of pending litigations on its financial
position in its financial statements. Refer note no 26 (b) to the notes to accounts.

ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts
for which there were any material foreseeable losses;

iii. There were no amounts which are required to be transferred to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund by the Company
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iv.  The company has provided requisite disclosures in its Notes No.17.1 of financial
statements as to holdings as well as dealings in Specified Bank Notes during the period
from 8" November 2016 to 30" December 2016 and these are in accordance with the
books of accounts maintained by the company.

Place : New Delhi
Date : 30™ May, 2017.
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ANNEXURE A TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

With reference to the Annexure referred to in paragraph 1 under the heading “Report on Other
Legal and Regulatory Requirements” of the Independent Auditor’s report to the members of
GMR Enterprises Private Limited on the standalone financial statements for the year ended 31%
March 2017, we report that:

(i) (a) The company is maintaining proper records showing full particulars, including
quantitative details and situation of fixed assets;

(b) Fixed assets have been physically verified by the company at reasonable intervals.
According to the information and explanations given to us, no material discrepancies were

noticed on such verification.
(c) The title deeds of immovable properties are held in the name of the company.

(i) The Company does not have any inventory during the year and hence reporting under this
clause does not arise.

(iii) 'The company has granted loans, secured or unsecured to companies covered in the register
maintained under section 189 of the Companies Act, 2013.

(a) The terms and conditions of the grant of such loans are not prejudicial to the company’s

interest;

(b) The schedule of repayment of principal and payment of interest has been stipulated and the

repayments or receipts are regular;
(c) There is no overdue amount for more than ninety days.

(iv) in respect of loans, investments, guarantees, and security, The provisions of section 185 and
186 of the Companies Act, 2013 have been complied with.

(v) The company has not accepted deposits within the provisions of sections 73 to 76 or any
other televant provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the rules framed thereunder.

(vi) Maintenance of cost records is not preseribed under sub-section (1) of section 148 of the

Companies Act, 2013, hence reporting under this clause does not arise.
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(vii) (a) The company is regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues including provident
fund, employees’ state insurance, income-tax, sales-tax, service tax, duty of customs, duty of

excise, value added tax, cess and any other statutory dues to the appropriate authorities.

(b) According tc the information and explanations given by the management of the
company, no undisputed amounts payable in respect of provident fund, employees’ state
insurance, income tax, wealth tax, service tax, sales tax, duty of customs, duty of excise, cess and
other material statutory dues were outstanding, at the year end, for a period of more than six

months from the date they became payable.

(¢ ) No dues of income tax or sales tax or service tax or duty of customs or duty of excise or
value added tax have not been deposited on account of any dispute except the following:

S.No Nature of dues Financial Forum  where the Amount (Rs.In
Year dispute is pending Crores)
1 Punjab VAT 2006-07 S.T.A.T. Punjab 1.24
2. Tamilnadu 2009-10 High Court, Chennai 9.62
VAT
3. Karnataka 2009-13 KVAT Appeal 1V, 3.76
VAT Bangalore
4. Service Tax 2006-11 CESTAT - Bangalore 17.84
5 Income Tax 2007-08 and ILT.A.T - Bangalore 5.95
2009-10

(viii) According to the information and explanations given to us by the management, the
company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or borrowing to a financial institution, bank,

Government or dues to debenture holders.

(ix) According to information and explanations given to us by the management, the Company
has not raised moneys by way of initial public offer or further public offer (including debt

instruments) and term loans, hence reporting under this clause does not arise.

x) According to the information and explanations given to us no fraud by the company or no
fraud on the Company by its officers or employees has been noticed or reported during the year.

(xi) The Company has not paid or provided any managerial remuneration during the year hence

reporting under this clause is not applicable.
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(xii) The Company is not Nidhi Company hence reporting under this clause is not applicable.

(xiii) All transactions with the related parties are in compliance with sections 177 and 188 of
Companies Act, 2013 where applicable and the details have been disclosed in the Financial

Statements etc., as required by the applicable accounting standards;

(xiv) The company has made private placement of non convertible debentures during the year.
According to the information and explanations given to us by the management the company has
complied with the provisions of section 42 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the amount raised

has been used for the purposes for which the funds were raised.

(xv) The company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with directors or persons

connected with him.

(xvi) The company is registered under section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934.

Place : New Delhi
Date : 30" May, 2017
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Annexure B to Auditors’ Report of even date

Report on the Internal Controls on Financial Controls under clause (i) of sub-section (3) of
section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of GMR Enterprises
Private Limited (“the Company”) as of 31 March 2017 in conjunction with our audit of the
financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial
controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the
Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note
on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India (‘ICAI’). These responsibilities include the design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating
effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct cf its business, including adherence to
company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and
errors, the accuracy and completeness of the ‘accounting records, and the timely preparation of
reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over
financial reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance
Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”)
and the Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAIl and deemed to be prescribed under section
143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial
controls, both applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Controls and, both issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that
we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was
established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our sudit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the
internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our
audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding
of internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness
exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based
on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud
or erTor.
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We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over financial
reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting
A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide

reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting

principles. A al financial
and procedur to the main
and fairly re ions and di
reasonable assurance that transactions are re
in accordance accounting principles, and that
tures of the com in accordance with authorisations
directors of the e reasonable assurance regarding

prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's
assets that could have a material effect on the fir ancial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any
evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject
to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate
becausc of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or
procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls
al reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were
y as at 31 March 2017, based on the internal control over financial reporting
by the Company considering the essential components of internal control
stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over F inancial Reporting
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

Place : New Delhi
Date : 30" May, 2017



Particulars

I. EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

(1) Shareholders' Funds
(a) Share Capital
(b) Reserves and Surplus

(2) Non - current liabilities
(a) Long term borrowings
(b) Trade Payables
(c) Other Long Term Liabilities
(d) Long term provisions

(3) Current Liabilities
(a) Short term borrowings
(b) Trade Payables
(¢c) Other current liabilities
(d) Short term provisions

TOTAL

Il. ASSETS

(1) Non - current assets
(a) Fixed Assets
(i) Tangible assets
() Non - current investments
(c) Long term Loans and advances
(d) Trade receivables
(e) Other Non current assets

(2) Current Assets
(a) Trade receivables
(b) Cash and Bank Balances
(c) Short term loans and advances
(d) Other current assets

TOTAL

Summary of significant accounting
policies

accompanying notes form an integral part
As per our report of even date attached.
For B. Purushottam & Co

Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration number: 002808S

Place : New Delhi
Date :30th May'2017

GMR ENTERPRISES PRIVATE LIMITED
Regd.Offlce :Rlaz Garden, Old No.12, New No.29, Kodambakkam High Road

Chennal - 600 034

CIN:U74900TN2007PTC102389

Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2017

Note
No

~N O O

©

12
13
14
15
16

March 31, 2017

6,457.09
225,565.03
232,022.12

217,206.30

154.03

256.04

496.54
218,112.91

77,110.95
888.13
154,898.85

13.44 232,911.37

683,046.40

1,909.73

583,640.81

8,697.24

386.12
8.34 594,642.24

2,126.80
2,5638.46
78,686.59
5.,052.31 88,404.16

683.046.40

statements

Rs.in

March 31, 2016

6,457 09
266,481 49

236,248.80
129.86
64,256.04
535 60

50,130 72
328.13
46,269.34
20.15

1,922.42
586,681 86
1,81550
299.89
508.33

1,437 95
1,823 52
73,051 32
3,316.43

272,938.58

301,170.30

96,748.34

670,857.22

591,228.00

79,629.22

670,857.22

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of

GMR Enterprises Pvt Ltd

i
!
Z2u
7 A
T Govindarajulu

Director
DIN.02734169

K.Sreemannarayana
Chief Financial Officer

/
8'6 115V s
M.V.Srinivas

Director
DIN.02477894

juria
Company Secretary



GMR ENTERPRISES PRIVATE LIMITED
Regd.Office :Riaz Garden, Old No.12, New No.29, Kodambakkam High Road
Chennai - 600 034
CIN:U74900TN2007PTC102389

Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended March 31, 2017

Rs.in
Particulars Noe March 31, 2017 March 31, 2016
Income
Revenue from Operations 20 6,662.94 5,321.22
Other Income 21 2,702.78 300.32
Total revenue 9,365.72 5,621.54
Expenses
Cost of materials consumed & sub-contracting exps 30.49
Employees Benefits 22 130.62 117.26
Other expenses 23 1,022.18 1,847 57
Deprecialion and amoriization expenses 12 27.69 34.79
Finance costs 24 49,243.77 47,198.22
Total Expenses 50,424.26 49,228.33
Profit/(Loss) before exceplional items and tax (41,058.54) (43,606.79)
Exceplional ltems
Profit before tax (41,058.54) (43,606 79)
Tax expense:
(1) Current tax
(2) Earlier Year tax (142 7.18
(3) Deferred tax (142.08) 7.18
Profit/(Loss) for ihe period from continuing operations (40,916.46) (43,613.97)
Profit/(loss) from discontinuing operations
Tax expense of discontinuing operations
Profit/{loss) from discontinuing operations (after tax)
Profit/(Loss) for the period (40,916.46) (43,613.97)
Earning per equity share ( Face value of Rs.10 each)
(1) Basic and diluted (Rs ) (65.28) (69.59)
nificant 1

The accompanying noles form an integral part of the financial statements
As per our report of even date attached.
For B. Purushottam & Co For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of

Chartered Accountants GMR Enterprises Pvt Lid
Firm Registration number: 0028085

. /
Qenives
K.V RE T Govindarajulu M.V.Srinivas
Partner Director Director
M.No0.206734 DIN.02734169 DIN.02477894
n
e
Place New Delhi K.Sreemannarayana Yogindu

Date 30th May'2017 Chief Financial Ofticer Company Secretary



GMR ENTERPRISES PRIVATE LIMITED
Riaz Garden, Old No.12, New No.29, Kodambakkam High Road

Chennai - 600 034

CIN:U74900TN2007PTC102389
Cash Flow Statement for the year ended March 31, 2017

in
Particulars March 31, 2017 March 31, 2016
Cash flows from operating activities
Profit before taxation (41,058.54) (43,606 79)
for:
Provision for diminution in value of investments ( credit taken to P&L) (1,703.92) 280.99
Depreciation and amortization expense 27.69 34.79
(Profit)/Loss on sale of investments (3.68)
(Profit)/Loss on sale of Mutual Funds (1.89) (15.08)
Dividend and other income (0.75) (1.00)
Interest Income (3,022.73) (2,502 65)
Interest Expense 49,243.77 47,198 22
Short term Provisions (6.71) 1345
Long term Provisions
44,496.40 865.09
3,437.86 1,258.30
(Increase)/decrease in Long Term Loans and Advances (6,881.74) 169 26
(Increase)/ decrease in trade and other receivables (775.08) (117.30)
(Increase)/decrease in Short Term Loans and Advances (5,635.28) 1,559.28
(Increase)/ decrease in Current & Non Current Assets (1,235.89) (446.45)
Increase/ (decrease) in Trade Payables 584.17 (438 62)
increase/ (decrease) in Currrent Liabilities
30.685.70 7
34,123.56 (16,102.58)
Income taxes (paid)/Refund 142.08 7.18
Net cash from operating activities 34,265.64 (16,095.40)
flows from investing activities
Purchase of Fixed Assets (15.00) (150.27)
(Purchase)/Sale of Investments(Net) 4,744.97 (11,257.72)
Profit on Sale of Investments 3.68
Profit/(Loss) on Sale of Mutual Funds 1.89 1508
Interest Income 3,022.73 2,502 67
Dividend and other income 0.75 1.00
Interest Expense 47 198 22
Net cash from investing activities (41,488.43) (56,083.78)
flows from financing activities
Proceeds from issue of shares
Proceeds from long term borrowings 42,707 00
Proceeds from short term borrowings 7127
Net cash from financing activities 7,937.73 25,579.94
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 714.94 (46,599.24)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of reporting period 1.823.52 48,422.76
Cash and at end of 2,538.46 1,823.52

As per our report of even date attached

For B. Purushottam & Co
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration number: 002808S

Place : New Delhi
Date : 30th May'2017

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
GMR Enterprises Pvt Ltd

7
\JA SS‘\'H\IW\

u M.V.Srinivas
Director Director
DIN.02734169 DIN.02477894
W il
Yogindu Khajuria
Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary
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Note 1: Statement on Significant Accounting Policies and Notes to the Accounts

1. Corporate information:

GMR Enterprises Private Limited (GEPL’ or ‘the Company’) is a private limited company
domiciled in India.

A. Significant Accounting Policies

i)

Basis of preparation of financial statements

of the Company are prepared in accordance with the generally

ciples in India (‘indian GAAP’). The Company has prepared

to comply in all material respects with the accounting standards
notified. The financial statements have been prepared on an accrual basis and under the
historical cost convention.

The accounting policies adopted in the preparation of financial statements are consistent
with those of previous year.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Indian GAAP requires the
management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the reported
amounts revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities and the disclosure of contingent
liabilities, at the end of the reporting period. Although these estimates are based on
management’s best knowledge of current events and actions, uncertainty about these
assumptions and estimates could result in the outcomes requiring a material adjustment to
the carrying amounts of the assets or liabilities in future periods.

iii) Revenue Recognition

The Company recognizes significant items of income and expenditure on accrual basis
except in case of those with significant uncertainties.

Interest

Interest income is recognized on a time proportion basis taking into account the amount
of outstanding and the rate applicable.

Dividends

Dividend income is recognized when the shareholders’ right to receive payment is
established by the Balance Sheet date
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Note 1: Statement on Significant Accounting Policies and Notes to the Accounts

iv)

v)

vi)

Trade mark and License fee

Trade mark and License fee accrues to the Company as a percentage of revenue of
Licensees as per the terms and conditions of the agreements entered into with the
Licensees.

Consultancy fee

Income from consultancy services is recognized as per terms of the agreement and on
the basis of services rendered.

Fixed Assets

Fixed Assets are stated at cost of acquisition less depreciation. Cost of acquisition is
inclusive of fees paid for the services received towards acquisition, freight, duties, levies
and all incidentals attributable to bringing the asset to its working condition.

All the fixed assets are assessed for any indication of impairment at the end of each
financial year. On such indication, the impairment (being the excess of carrying value
over the recoverable value of the asset) is charged to the Profit and Loss account in the
respective financial year. The impairment loss recognized in the prior years is reversed
where the recoverable value exceeds the carrying value of the asset upon re-assessment
in the subsequent years.

Depreciation

Depreciation on fixed assets is calculated on a straight line basis using the rates arrived
at based on the useful lives estimated by the management or as per the rates prescribed
under Schedule Il of Companies Act, 2013 whichever is higher, except for assets of less
than Rs. 5,000, which are fully depreciated in the year of acquisition.

Leasehold improvements are amortized over the period of the lease or estimated useful
life whichever is shorter

Investments

Cost of acquisition is inclusive of expenditure incidental to acquisition.

Long term investments are valued at cost and provision for diminution in value is made
for any decline, other than temporary, in the value of such investments for each category.

The Current investments are valued at cost or market value whichever is lower.

Income from investments is recognized in the year in which it is accrued and stated at
gross.
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Note 1: Statement on Significant Accounting Policies and Notes to the Accounts

vii) Foreign Currency Transactions

Foreign currency transactions are recorded at the exchange rate prevailing at the time of
the transaction. Monetary assets and liabilities related to foreign currency transactions
remaining unsettled at the year-end are translated at the exchange rate prevalent at the
date of Balance Sheet and the resultant gain/loss is recognised in the financial
statements.

viii) Employee Benefits
a. Defined Contribution Plans

Retirement benefit in the form of provident fund, superannuation fund and pension fund
are defined contribution schemes. The Company has no obligation, other than the
contributions payable to the provident fund, pension fund and superannuation fund. The
Company recognizes contribution payable to the provident fund, pension fund and
superannuation fund schemes as an expenditure, when an employee renders the related
service. If the contribution payable to the scheme for service received before the balance
sheet date exceeds the contribution already paid, the deficit payable to the scheme is
recognised as a liability after deducting the contribution already paid. If the contribution
already paid exceeds the contribution due for services received before the balance sheet
date, then excess is recognized as an asset to the extent that the pre payment will lead
to, for example, a reduction in future payment or a cash refund.

The Company makes monthly contributions and has no further obligations under such
plans beyond its contributions.

b. Defined Benefit Plan

Gratuity liability is a defined benefit obligation and is provided on the basis of actuarial
valuation, based on projected unit credit method at the balance sheet date, carried out by
an independent actuary. Actuarial gains and losses comprise experience adjustments
and the effect of changes in the actuarial assumptions are recognised in full in the period
in which they occur in the statement of profit and loss as an income or expense.

c. Other Long term employee benefits

The Company treats accumulated leave expected to be carried forward beyond twelve
months, as long-term employee benefit for measurement purposes. Such long-term
compensated absences are provided for based on the actuarial valuation using the
projected unit credit method at the year end. Actuarial gains/ losses are immediately
taken to the statement of profit and loss and are not deferred. The Company presents the
entire leave as a current liability in the balance sheet, since it does not have an
unconditional right to defer its settlement for twelve months after the reporting date.
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Note 1: Statement on Significant Accounting Policies and Notes to the Accounts

ix)

X)

a.

d. Short term employee benefits

Accumulated leave, which is expected to be utilised within the next twelve months, is
treated as short-term employee benefit. The Company measures the expected cost of
such absences as the additional amount that it expects to pay as a result of the unused
entitlement that has accumulated at the reporting date.

Earnings per Share

The earnings considered in ascertaining the company's earnings per Share (EPS)
comprise the net profit after tax less dividend payable on preference shares, if any
(including dividend distribution tax). The number of shares used for computing the basic
EPS is the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the year.

Taxes on Income

Current tax is determined based on the amount of tax payable in respect of taxable
income for the year. Deferred tax is recognized on timing differences; being the tax on
difference between the taxable incomes and accounting income that originate in one year
and are capable of reversal in one or more subsequent years. Deferred tax assets and
liabilities are computed on the timing differences applying the tax rates and tax laws that
have been enacted or substantively enacted by the Balance Sheet date. Deferred tax
assets arising on account of unabsorbed depreciation or carry forward of tax losses are
recognized only to the extent that there is virtual certainty supported by convincing
evidence that sufficient future taxable income will be available against which such
deferred tax assets can be realized.

Borrowing Costs

Borrowing Costs that are attributable to acquisition of qualifying asset are capitalized as a
part of the cost of that asset. Other borrowing costs are recognized as expenditure in the
year in which they are incurred.
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Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2017

2 Share ital in
Particulars March 31, 2017 March 31, 2016
Number Rs in Lakhs Number Rs in Lakhs
Authorized:
Equity shares of Rs.10/- each 65,000,000 6,500.00 65,000,000 6,500.00
Preference shares of Rs. 10/- each 47,550,000 4,755.00 47,550,000 4,755.00
11,255.00 11,255.00

Issued, subscribed and fully paid up:

Equity shares of Rs.10/- each

At the beginning of the reporting period 62,674,948 6,267.49 62,674,948 6,267.49
Issued during the year

Cancelled during the year

At the close of the reporting period (A) 62,674,948 6,267.49 62,674,948 6,267.49

Preference shares of Rs. 10/- each

At the beginning of the reporting period 1,896,000 189.60 1,896,000 189.60
Issued during the year

Cancelled during the year

At the close of the reporting period (B) 1,896,000 189.60 1,896,000 189.60
Total .09 64 .09
Details of Share H Holdi more than 5% shares in the
March 31, 2017 March 31, 2016
N f the Share hol ’ ’
ame of the Share holders No.of Shares % of Holding No.of Shares % of Holding
a. Grandh Malli Trust 15,668,613 24.9998% 15,668,613 24.9998%
b. Srinivas Bommidala and Ramadevi Trust 15,668,613 24.9998% 15,668,613 24.9998%
C i Buchi u and Trust 15,668,613 24.9998% 15,66 24.9998%
d Grandhi Kiran Kumar and Ragini Trust 15,668,613 24.9998% 15,668,613 24.9998%
Terms / rights attached to equity shares
The Company has only one clas par value of Rs.10 per share. Every member holding equity shares therein shall have
voting rights in proportion to the up equity share capital. The Company declares and pays dividend in Indian rupees. The
dividend proposed by the Board ct o the approval of the shareholders in the ensuing Annual General Meeting.

In the event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of equity shares would be entitled to receive remaining assets of the Company, after
distribution of all preferential amounts. The distribution will be in proportion 1o the number of equity shares held by the equity shareholders.

Details of Preference Share Holders Hold ~ more than 5% shares in the
March 31, 2017 March 31, 2016
Name of the Share holders No.of Shares % of Holding No.of Shares % of Holding
10% Non  mulative R Shares
a GMR Banne Pro rties Pvt. Ltd 1.896.000 100.00% 1,896,000 100.00%
Total 1.896.000 100.00% 1,896,000 100.00%
Terms / rights attached to Redeemable Preference Shares
During the year ended March 31, 2011, the Company issued Non-cumulative non-convertible redeemable preference shares of face value of Rs.10
each at a premium of Rs.90 per share carrying a coupon rate of 10% per annum (‘p.a.’) and having a term of 10 years from the date of allotment.
The preference shares shall be redeemed along with the premium at the time of redemption.

The preference shares are scheduled to be redeemed on 8th November' 2020, however, the same can be prematurely redeemed at any time as
may be determined by the Board of Directors with a month notice to the preference shareholders.
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Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2017

and
Particulars

rities
Opening Balance
during the year
lised During the Year

Reserve ( on account of merger)
Opening Balance

Surplus i.e. balance in Statement of Profit & Loss
Balance
from/lo Protit & Loss Account

term

Particulars

Non Convertible Debentures ( Secured)

Indian Rupee Term Loans from Banks ( Secured)

Indian Rupee Term Loans from Financial Institutions ( Secured)
indian Rupee Term Loans from Others ( Secured)

Indian Rupee Deposits from Financial Institutions { Unsecured)
Indian Rupee Term Loans Irom Others ( Unsecured)

Indian Term Loans from es Unsecured

The above amounts includes
Secured borrowings
Unsecured borrowings

disclosed under the head * Other Current Liabilities’ (

Refer Note 10.)

Total

March 31, 2017

9,031.00

9,031.00

334.106.66
334,106.66

(76,656.17)

(40,916.46)
(117,572.63

225,565.03

March 31,2017

158,370.00

46,400.00

12,436.30

204,770.00
12,436.30

217,206.30

Details of security & Terms of repayment of term loans as on March 31,2017

Name of the Lender

India Financial Services Pvt Lid - Non Convertible
Dcbentures

KKR Capital Markets India Pvt Ltd - Non Convertible Debentures

KKR India Debt Fund | - Non Convertible Debenetures

KKR India Debt Opportunities Fund Il -Non Convertible
Debentures

Loan outstanding (

Rs. Lakhs)

18,000 00

190

0.00

21

( Rs. Lakhs)
March 31, 2016

9,031.00

9,031.00

334.106 66
334,106.66

(33,042.20)
(43,613.97)

(76,656.17)
266,48

March 31, 2016
156,370 00

58,650.00
11,228.80

10,000.00

236

226,248 80
10,000.00

236,248.80

Rs.

Current Portion

March 31, 2017

13,200.00
13,200.00

10,000.00
1,000.00

13,200.00
24,200.00

(37,400.00)

Details of security Tor secured
loans

Secured against

ot shares of

GMR Infrastructure Ltd held by the
Company

against

ge of shares ol

GMR Inlrastruciure Lid held by the
Company

Secu

against Pledge of

GMR Inlrastructure Lid held by the
Company

Secured against

ledge of shares

GMR Inlrastructure Lid held by the
Company

March 31, 2016

10,000.00
3,750.00
3,905 00

17

17,655.00

(17,655 00)

Due Date

4 Quarterly
Instaliments
cominiencing from
January 16, 2019

4 Quarterly
Installments
commencing [rom
January 16, 2019

4 uvarterly
Instaliments
commencing (rom
January 16, 2019

4 Quarterly
Installments
commencing from
January 16, 2019
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Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2017

Rs.
L&T Infrastructure Finance Ltd - Non Convertible Debentures 21,040.00 Secured against ledge of shares of 4 Quarterly
GMR Infrastructure Lid held by the Instaliments
Company commencing from
January 16, 2019
iramal Enterprises Ltd - Non Debentures 45,000.00 Secured nst of shares 4 Quarterly
GMR Inirastructure Ltd held by the Instaliments
Company commencing from
Aprit 1, 2019
Investments Holding B V - Non Convertible 45,000.00 red against ol shares of 4 Quarterly
GMR Infrastruclure Ltd held by the Instaliments
Company commencing from
April 1,2019
VTB Capital PLC Tranche | 12,000 00 against of shares payment
GMR Infrastructure Ltd held by the April'2020
Company
Capital PLC Tranche Il 10,000.00 against ge of shares of paymentin
GMR Infrastructure Lid held by the June'2020
Company
Lid-TLI 4,750.00 Secured nst ol 12
Properiies of various group installments

companies and Pledge ol GMR commencing from
Infrastructure Ltd. Shares held by the June'2015.

IFCILtd. -TL 1 8,450 00 Secured against Mortgage ol 4 Quarterly
Propenies of Group companies and Installments
other Companies pledge of Grandhi commencing

Enterprises Pvt Ltd and Rajam [rom Jun'2017
Enterprises Pvt Lid Shares held by
the com
HDFC Ltd 46,400.00 against ol shares of 4 Quarterly
GMR Infrastructure Lid.held by the Installments
Company commencing from

January 16, 2019

And nomic 10,000.00 Unsecured Loan October' 2017
4,000.00 Unsecured Loan Oclober' 2017
SREI Infrastructure -ICD I 9,200.00 Unsecured Loan September'2017
12,196.30 August'18
Ltd 240.00 Unsecured Loan November'18
1,000 00 Loan

Interest rates are applicable as per agreements executed with the Lenders

Details of security & Terms of repayment of term loans {or FY 2015-16

Loan outsta Details of security for secured

Name of the Lender Rs. Lakhs) Due Date
loans
KKR India Financial Services Pvt Ltd - Non Convertible Secured nst Pledge of shares of 4
Debentures GMR Infrastructure Ltd held by the Instaliments
company commencing [rom
January 16, 2019
Bank - Non Convertible Debentures 00 Secured Pledge of shares of  Rs 100 on
GMR Infrastructure Ltd held by lhe  January 6, 2017,
company Rs 100 Crs on

January 6, 2018
and balance Rs
100 Crs on
January 6, 2019



GMR ENTERPRISES PRIVATE LIMITED

Rlaz Garden, Old No.12, New No.29, Kodambakkam High Road,

Chennal - 600 034
CIN:U74900TN2007PTC102389

Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2017

Capital Markets India Pvt Ltd - Non Convertible Debentures

KKRI Debt Fund | - Non Convertible Debentures

India Debt Opportunities Fund Iit - Non Convertible

T Infrastructure Finance Ltd - Non Convertible Debentures

Piramal Enterprises Ltd - Non Convertible Debentures

Investments Holding B V - Non Convertible Debentures

IFCI Ltd -

Ltd. -TL H

HDFC Lid

KKR India Financial Services Pvt Lid

i Ports And Special Economic Zone Ltd

SREI Infrastructure Finance Ltd TL |l

ICICI Bank Ltd

* Interest rates are applica
** These are prematurely redeemed during the FY 2016-17

190.00

5,010.00

2,130.00

21,040.00

45,000.00

45,000.00

7,600.00

8,450.00

46,400 00

11,228.80

10,000 00

105 00

3,750 00

as per the agreements executed with the Lenders

Rs.
Secured against Pledge of shares ol
GMR Infrastructure Ltd held by the
company

Secured against Pledge of shares of
GMR Inirastruclure Ltd held by the
company

Secured against Pledge of shares of
GMR Inlrastruclure Ltd held by the
company

Secured against Pledge of shares ol
GMR Infrastructure Ltd held by the
company

Secured against Pledge of shares of
GMR Infrastructure Ltd held by the
company

Secured against Pledge of shares of
GMR Inlrastructure Ltd held by the
company

Secured against Mortgage of
Properties of various group
companies and Pledge ol GMR
Inlrastructure Ltd Shares held by the
company

Secured against Morlgage ol
Properties of Group companies and
other Companies pledge of Grandhi

Enterprises Pvt Lid and Rajam

Enterprises Pvt Lid Shares held by
the company
Secured against Pledge of shares of
GMR Infrastructure Ltd held by the
company

Secured against Pledge ot shares of
GMR Infrastructure Ltd held by the
company

Unsecured Loan

Secured against Mortgage ol
Properiies ol various group
companies and Pledge of GMR
Infrastructure Ltd. Shares held by the
company

Againsl Corporate Guaratnee

4 Quarterly
Installments
commencing from
January 16, 2019

4 Quarterly
Instaliments
commencing from
January 18, 2019

4 Quarterly
Instaliments
commenging from
January 16, 2019
4 Quarterly
Instaliments
commencing from
January 16, 2019

4 Quarterly
Installments
commencing from
April 1, 2019

4 Quarterly
Installments
commencing from
April 1,2019

12 Quarterly
instaliments
commencing from
June'1s

4 Quarterly
Instaliments
commencing from
Jun'i7

4 Quarterly
Instaliments
commengcing from
January 16, 2019

4 Quarterly
Installments
coommencing
from January 16,
2019

Oclober' 2017

Monthly 0 46 Crs
From Dec'2014 1o
Oct'2016 &
Balance Loan ol
Rs 2342 Crs In
the Month ol
Nov'2016

8 Quarterly
installments
commencing from
September 7th'
2014
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Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2017

5Tra
Total

6.0ther Term

Particula

money

Advances Irom Customers
7 term Provisions

Particulars

March 31, 2017
154.03
154.03

March 31, 2017
256.04

256.04

March 31. 2017

( Rs. Lakhs)
March 31, 2016
129.86
129.86
March 31, 2016
256.04

64,000.00

64,256.04

March 31, 2016

Provision for Gratuity, Leave encashment & Superannuation 39.43 13.84
Provision for Exnenses 457 11 521.76
Total 496.54 535.60

8.Short
Particulars March 31, 2017 March 31, 2016
Indian rupee over drait from bank ( Unsecured) 6,190.99 6,220.01
Indian rupee demand loan from banks { Unsecured) 70,919.96 41,291.67
Loan from 2,619.04
otal Short Term Borrowings 77.110.95 50.130.72

Additional Information:
Information relating to 2016-17

Loan outstanding (

Name of the Lender Details of security

Rs. Lakhs)
Loan from Bank 57,110.95
Secured Against Pledge of Fixed
Deposits of Other Companies
Kotak Mahindra 20,000.00 Secured Against Pledge ot Fixed
Deposits of Other Companies
Total 77,110.95

* Interest rates are applicable as per the agreements executed with the Lenders
Information relating to FY 2015-16

Loan outstanding (

Name of the Lender Details of security

Rs. Lakhs)

Over Demand Loan from Bank 36,761.46 Secured Against Pledge ol Fixed
Deposits of Other Companies

Demand Loan from Oriental Bank of Commerce 10,750.22 Secured Against Pledge ot Fixed
Deposits of Other Companies

47,511.68
Details of Advances from Parties
Name of March 31, 2016 Details of security

GMR Infratech Pvl Ltd 1,255.00 Unsecured loan
Infrastructure Services Pvt. Ltd 136 04 Unsecured loan
R Pochanpalli Expressways Pvi Ltd 1,000.00 Unsecured loan
Pvi Lid 228.00 Unsecured loan
-B 2,619.04
50.130.72

* Interest rates are applicable as per the agreements executed with the Lenders
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Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31,2017

9.Trade
ToM Small and Enterprises
To others

Total

Current Liabilities

Received
malurities of long term debt ( Refer Note no.4)
Interest accrued but nol due on borrowings
Interest accrued and due on Borrowings
Stalutory Liabililies
Other
Total

11 Term Provisions

for Expenses
Provision for Leave Encashment & Bonus/

March 31, 2017
888.13

888.13

March 31, 2017

41,109.14
37,400.00
53,049.18
705.56
2,060.12
20,574.85
154,898.85

31 201

13.44

( Rs. Lakhs)
March 31, 2016
328.13

328.13

March 31, 2016

49.60
17,655.00
26,786.50

1,607.54
170.70
46,269.34

h 31
0.81
19.34
15
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Chennai - 600 034
CIN:U74900TN2007PTC102389

Notes to financials statements for the year ended March 31, 2017

13 Non Current Investments:

Details 31 7 201
No of Shares Rs. Lakhs No of Shares Rs. Lakhs

GMR Ltd 393 2
for of
Rs 10/-
6.00 4.00
Pvt Ltd .00
.30
Pvt
Pwvt 1 1 1 1
P 1 1
Konda rties
Estates 97 977 9770
1 132 1 1 45
Ltd 1.00 1 1.00
Real Ltd 1.00 1 1.00
Pvt Ltd 10 1.00 10 1.00
R 1 85.83
Inf Pvt Ltd
Pvt Ltd 1
1
Pvt
for n of 748
Total
of
1 1
123.25 123.26
Rs.1
42 0.20 421 0.20
0.20
10/- each
Prosoft T Ltd
Se
for in value of
158
Preference Rs.10/- nes
1% GMR Pyt Lid 100
Preference n
MR 10/- 3 0.00 31
each 173 1 960
T
d
Real
11
Total 1 1
GMR & Consu LLP 1 119,420 00
Less r 1 61
1.86
Additional Information March 31' 2017 March 31' 2016
i) Agpregate value of quoted investments and Market value
Cost 393,936.94 393,605 70
Markel Value 460,519.22 333,554 86
Aggregale amounlt of unquoled investments
Cosl 204,532.90 209,609 11

amount of on lor diminuilion in value ol investment 03
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Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2017

Particulars
14 Long term Loans and advances
Unsecued considered good
Loans to Group Companies
Loans to Individuals
DSRA De
Total
15 Trade receivables:
Outstanding for a period exceeding six months
Unsecured considered good
Others { < 6 months)
Unsecured considered
Total
16 Other Non Current Assets
Bank balances

Restricted Deposits”
*Deposit of Rs.500 Lakhs is pledged with Lakshmi Vilas Bank for the loan
availed by GMR Group Entity

Total

17 Cash and Bank Balance :
i)  Balances with banks
- In current accounts
iy Cash in hand

Other Bank Balance
iy Bank Deposits with maturity is more than 3 months and less than 12
months *

* Rs, 880 Lakhs FD as securi in connection with borrowi
Total

17.1 Cash Balance as on 30.12.2016
Closing Cash in Hand as on 08.11.2016
(+) Permitted Receipts
(-) Permitted Payments
(+) Amount depoisted in Banks
Clos Cash in Hand as on 30.12.2016

March 31 2017

6,932.00
1,765.00
0.24

.24

386.12

2126.80
12.92

8.34

8.34

1,658.46

880.00

SBN's

Rs. Lakhs
March 31 2016

1,765.50
50.00
1 15.50

299.89

95
1,737.84

8.33
500.00

508.33

673.52

1,150.00

1 52

Others
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Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2017

18

1

19

20

21

Particulars
Short term loans and advances:
i)  Loan to Group Companies
iy Loans to Others
iy Advances recoverable in Cash or Kind
iv) Prepaid Exenses
v) Advance payment of Income Tax (Net of provisions)
vi) Balances with Statutory / Government Authorities
Total
Less: Provision for doubtful advances
Total
itional information:
Breakup of above:
i) Secured, considered good
i)  Unsecured, considered good
ii)  Doubtful
Total
Less Provision for doubtful amounts
Total
Other Current Assels
Interest accrued on bank deposits
Interest receivable from group companies
Interest receivable others
Total

Revenue from operations:

i) Dividend

ii} Interest Income
i) Profit on Sale of Mutual Funds (net)
)

iv) Trademark and License fee
Consu fees
Total

Other Income

i)  Rental Income

iy  Other Income

i) Provisions no longer required

iv) Provisions etc., no longer required written back

v) Profit on sale of Shares
Provision for diminution in value of investments -Reversal
Total

March 31 2017

70,290.03
20.00
4,776.89
2,314.66
1,164.59
120.42

78,686.59

78,686.59

7 59

24.25
4,234.53
793.53

0.75
3,022.73
1.89
704.76

2
94

4.06
950.00
41.00
3.80

702.78

Rs. Lakhs
March 31 2016

51,043.71
20.00
15,390.48
4,335.16
2,245.68
16.29
051.32

73 1.32

73,051.32

73,051.32

051.32

20.08
2,654.27
642.08
3316.43

1.00
2,502.67
18.75
369.41
39

22

3.70
150.30

141.16
5.16

300.32
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Notes to financial statements for the yeatr ended March 31, 2017

Rs.
Particulars March 31 2017 March 31 2016
22 Employee benefits expense
Salaries, wages and bonus 116.63 96.67
Contribution to provident and other funds 6.98 6.02
Gratuity expense 2.62 13.34
Staff welfare 4.39 1.23
Total 130.62 117.26
23 Other expenses:
Administration and other Expenses
Lease rental and equipment hire charges 4.42
Communication Expenses 0.30 0.46
Conveyance Expenses 2.63
Rent(Locker) 0.06
Advertisement & Sponsership Exp 1.40 300.55
Bidding Charges 1.16
Contract Expenses 1.79
Demat Expenses 2.68 7.66
Processing Charges 10.82
Rates & Taxes 63.35 183.17
Professional & Consultancy fees 180.55 652.88
Property Tax 0.46 1.12
Security Transaction tax 0.33 12.62
Software Expenses 3.65
Printing & Stationery 0.53 0.51
Movement Cost 40.08
Insurance 4.58 11.15
Interest on Delayed Payment of Taxes 120.89
Repairs and maintenance-Others 8.33 0.89
Security expenses 0.25 5.67
Other Expenses 4.37 16.24
Courier Inland 0.06
Certification Fee 13.18 1.38
Consent fee 599.05 314.00
Payment to Auditors - (Refer Note no.33) 12.70 2.84
Provision for diminution in value of investments 280.99
Total 1 18 1 7.57
24 Finance Costs:
i) Interest -Banks,Financial Institutions and Others 46,494.52 44,548.68
iy Bank Guarantee Commission 705.06 1,111.37
iiiy Bank charges 8.21 1.48
iiv. Other Finance Ch 6.69

Total 77 47 198.22



GMR Enterprises Private Limited
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2017
26. Contingent Liabilities

a. Guarantees etc.

2016-17 ( Rs. Lakhs)

Co rate Guarante s a 19177.20 21 29
Performance Bank Guarantees 30 000.00 3 000.00
Financial Bank Guarantees 20992.00 23 703.35
70169.20 7 11.64
b Appeals pending against Tax Liabilities under dispute Rs. 3,841.45 Lakhs (2016:Rs.3,246.00
Lakhs)
S.No Nature of dues Financial Forum where the dispute is ~ Amount (
Year din Rs. Lakhs
1 VAT 2006-07 S T.AT.Pu 124.00
2 10 Hi h Court, Chennai 962.00
3 T 2009-13 KVAT , Ban alore 376.00
4 Service Tax 2006-11 CESTAT-Ba ore 1784.00
5 Income Tax 2007-08 & 09- |.T.A.T, Bangalore 595.45
10
Total 3 841.45

¢. Fixed Deposits pledged for loans taken by Group entities —Nil- (2016:Rs. 500 Lakhs).

27. The following long term investments included in Note No 13 have been pledged by the company
towards borrowings of the Company/Group Companies

201617 2015-16
S. No Name of the Scrip No. of Face Value No. of Face lue
Shares Rs Shares
GMR Infrastructure Ltd  232,68,16,444 Rs. 1/- per 254,9597,532 Rs. 1/- per
share share
Sports Pvt Ltd 3,00,000 Rs. 10/- per 3,00,000 Rs. 10/-per
share share
3 Grandhi Enterprises 1,34,00,000 Rs. 10/- per 1,34,00,000 Rs. 10/- per
Pvt. Ltd share share
4 Rajam Enterprises Pvt 1,34,00,000 Rs.10/-per 1,34,00,000 Rs.10/- per
Ltd share share
5 GMR Solar Energy Pvt 7,20,000 Rs.10/-per

Ltd share
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2017

29. Related Party Transactions

() Management ne

(i) mpan and
(Direct & Ind rect)
transactions taken lace

T.G uu - Director
Mr. Chakka Srin Rao - Director
Mr. M.V.Srinivas — Director
Mr. Sreemannarayana K — Chief Financial Officer
Mr. Ravi Majeti - Manager
Ms. Yogindu Khajuria — Company Secretary

GMR Lid
G  Airports
GMR Am a arh Pvt L

GMR Aviation Pvt Lid

GMR Badrinath ropower Generation Ltd
GMR Bajoli Holi ropower Pvt Ltd

G Ban atta Properties Pvt Ltd

GMR Bundelkh ergy Ltd
Business & Con
GMR Chennai Ring Road Pvt Ltd

GMR Chhattisgarh Pvt Ltd
Coasta Energy Ltd

GMR Consulting Services Pvt Lid

GMR Corporate  airs Pvt Ltd
Energy

G  Energy rading Ltd

GMR Family Fund rust

GMR Gu ara Solar Powe PvtlLtd

G enco Assets Ltd

GMR rabad Expressways Pvt Ltd

GMR Indo Nepal Energy Links Ltd

G ndo Nepal Power  rridors td

GMR Infrastructure

GMR Infratech PvtL

GMR nfraventures LLP

GMR inada Energy Pvt

GMR Kamalanga Energy Ltd

GMR nagir SEZ Lid

MR angarh  aipur Ahmedabad
Ex Ltd
G Llonda ropower Pvt L
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2017

GMR Maharashtra Energy Pvt Ltd
GMR Mining & Energy Pvt Ltd
GMR ower Corporation L
GMR Power Infra
G  Pochanpalli Expressways Ltd
GMR Rajahmundry Energy Ltd

R Generation Assets Ltd

MR Rajam Solar Power Pvt Ltd
GMR & Port  Iding Pvt Lid
GMR Sports Pvt L
Tambaram Tindivanam Expressways L

GMR uni Anakapalli Expressways Ltd

R Uttar radesh Energy Pvt Ltd

Vemag Power eration
GMR arora Energy Ltd
Grandhi  terprises Ltd
Rajam En ses Pvt
ldeaspace Sol ons PvtL
Corporate Infrastructure Services Pvt Ltd
Pvt Lid
GMR eague Games Pvt L
Vijay Nivas Real Estates Pvt Ltd
Fabicity Properties Pvt Lid
Ja | Prope Pvt Ltd
Smt. B Rama Devi
r. G.M Rao
nada Refinery & P emicals Ltd

Kakin SEZ L

L Infrastructure Finance Co Pvt Ltd
SJ owergen td
Maru Transmission ice Co
Aravali Transmission Service Co Ltd
Sreega Enterprises Pvt Ltd
Leora | Estates Ltd
Welfare Trust for GMR Infra Employees
National SEZ Infra Services Pvt Ltd
GMR So ar Energy Pvt Ltd

vi Pt

Welfare Trust for GMR Group Employees
GMR Holding (Mauritius) Ltd
Raxa Security  rvices Ltd
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2017

Summary of transactions with the above related parties is as follows

Transactions
Interest Paid
Interest Income
Rental Income
Trademark & License Fee received
Consent Fee Paid
Claims Paid
Investments in Equity shares
Disinvestments in Equity shares
Investment in Debentures
Disinvestment in Debentures

Contribution to Partnership Firms

Divestment investment in Partnership

Firms

Loans Taken

Loans Repaid

Loans Taken Closing Balance
Loans Given

Loans Repayment received

Loans Given Closing Balance

Mob Advance received & outstanding

Amount in Lakhs

667.55

2,553.44
(1,830.23)
4.06

(3.69)
704.76
(369.41)
599.05
(314.00)
3,985.00
(NIL)
573.24
(12,913.04)
51.00
(14,244 ,47)
NIL
(11,200.00)
NIL

(NIL)

NIL
(22,372.39)
9,879.10
(NIL)
13,061.00
(6,309.32)
2,243.73
(7,387 .54)
13,436.30
(2,619.03)
61,483.35
6,052.15)
35,305.29
(7,811.97)
78,987.03
(52,808.98)

38,086.70
(64,000.00)
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2017

Mob. Advance given & outstanding (3,985I:l.|0L0)
Interest Receivable (35’2(:12643472)
Interest Payable (;:,:i375‘,13(551
Rent Receivable (13384(;
Consent fee payable (3%?'11313
Trade receivable ! 2{%9808816;
Claims Payable gs(ij'ﬁ_z

a. Previous year figures are indicated in brackets

b. Transactions and outstanding balances in the nature of reimbursement of expenses incurred
by one company on behalf of another have not been considered above.
30. Mutual Fund Transactions during the year

In Lakh
. Purchased Sold
Particulars No of Units  (Rsinlakhs) NoofUnits  RsinlLa
rla Sun Plus — Growth
Plan - Plan (15,58,157.33) (3,500.00) (15,58,157.33) (3,501.69)
ICl Liquid egular 23,76,799.46 5,350.00 23,76,799.46 5,351.89
Plan — Growth (34,42,151.66) (7,330.00) (34,42,151 66) (7,343,39)

a.) Previous year figures are indicated in brackets

31. Earnings Per Share (EPS)
in humbers and amount in Rs Lak

Particulars 2016-17 2015-16
Nominal Value of ui Shares Rs Share 10 10
otal number of Equity outstanding at e beginning , 74,948 626,74
of the
Add:- ares iss duri  the r
Less:- Shares cancelled du the r
Total number of Equity Shares outstanding at the end of 626,74,948 626,74,948
the riod/ ar
Weighted average number of Equity Shares outstanding at 626,74,948 626,74,948
the end of the  riod /
Net Profit oss after tax for the of EPS 6.46 43 13
S — Basic & Diluted Rs 65
N
* 2
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2017
32. Deferred Tax asset is not considered as a matter of prudence.

33. Other Information:

a.) Remuneration to Auditors

Pa 2016-17
Audit fees the 2.00
fees to ier ancials 7
Other certification fees 0.40
Audit nses 3.30
otal 12.70

b.) Expendifure in Foreign Currency : Nil (2016: 453.87 Lakhs)

Rs In
2015-16
2.70

0.14
2.84

34. There are no dues to the creditors under Micro Small Medium Enterprises Development

(MSMED) Act 2006.

35. The previous year's figures have been regrouped wherever considered necessary

As per our report of even date attached

For B.Purushottam & Co For and on behalf of Board of Directors of

Chartered Accountants GMR Enterprises Pvt Ltd

Firm Regn No: 002808S

K V. HORE
Partner Director
M. No: 206734 DIN No: 02734169
W
Place: New Delhi K.Sreemanna
Date: 30" May’ 2017 Chief Financial Officer

Sinives™
M.V.Srinivas

Director
DIN No: 02477894

z

Y u Khajuria
Company Secretary

EN



B. & Co.,

ACCOUNTANTS

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
To the Members of GMR Enterprises Private Limited
Report on the Consolidated Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying Consolidated Financial Statements of GMR Enterprises Private
Limited (hereinafter referred to as ‘the Holding Company’ or ‘GEPL), its subsidiaries, jointly
controlled entities and associates (collectively hereinafter referred to as ‘the Group’) comprising of
the cdnsolidated Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2017, the consolidated Statement of Profit and
Loss,the consolidated Cash Flow Statement for the year then ended and a summary of significant

accounting policies and other explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as ‘the Consolidated
Financial Statements’).

Management’s Responsibility for the Consolidated Financial Statements

The Holding Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of theseconsolidated
finandial statements in terms ofthe requirements of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act))that give a
true and fair view of the consolidated financial position, consolidated financial performance and
consolidated cash flows of the Group in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted
in India, including the Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with
Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014. The respective Board of Directors of the
companies included in the Group are responsible for maintenance of adequate accounting records
in accordance with the provisions of the Act;for safeguarding the assets of the Group and for
prevehting and detecting frauds and other irregularities; the selection and application of
apprapriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates tkat are reasonable and
prudent; and the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls
that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting
records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give a true
and feir view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, which have
been lused for the purpose of preparation of the consolidated financial statements by the Directors
of the Holding Company, as aforesaid.

Audi*or’s Responsibility
i
e consolidated financial statements based on our
en into account the provisions of the Act, the
which are required to be included in the audit

es made thereunder.

tandards on Auditing, issued by the Institute of
er Section 143(10) of the Act. Those Standards
nts and plan and perform the audit to obtain
ated financial statements are free from material

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence the
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements. The procedu the
audij)or’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of m the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or er risk
asse{sments, the auditor considers internal financial controls relevant to the Holding Company’s
preparation of the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in order to

design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of the accounting policies used and the reasonableness of the
accounting estimates made by the Holding Company’s Board of Directors, as well as evaluating the
overdll presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

Flat No.3-D, "PIONEER HOMES", 23/A, North Boag Road, T. Nagar, Chennai - 600 017.
Phone : 28152515, 42013486, Fax : 42013485 Email : bpcchennai@gmail.com

@ Member Integra International a global association of independent accounting and consuliting firms having offices across lhi;‘\ygorld

\ N
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We e that the audit evidence obtained by us and the audit evidence obtained by the other
a in terms of their reports referred to in the Other Matters paragraph, is sufficient and

te to provide a basis for our qualified audit opinion on the consolidated financial
Q

In opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us,
and sed on the consideration of reports of other auditors on separate financial statements and
on other separate financial information of the subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures, the
con dated finannial ctatnencin o a0 e a ' by the Act in the manner so
requi accounting principles generally
acce its associates and joint ventures
as at consolidated statement of cash
flows vvrSvLUaLoU SLELEIIENT O changes 1n equity for the year ended on that date.
Jor Qualified Opinion

1. jam Enterprises Private Limited (REPL’) is a registered NBFC, q subsidiary of the company, as
lailed in note no. 45 C (iii) to accompanying financial statements for the year ended 31st March
17. The Company granted a loan of Rs. 50 Crores to DSC Limited and the outstanding balance
on 31st March 2017 is Rs. 49.72Crores including unrealized interest up to 315t March 2015.. As
" the terms of the facility documents the loan was repayable on 30* July 2015 by DSC limited.

sever DSC limited failed to repay principal and interest dues. The company stopped
)gnizing the interest w.e.f, 1st April 2015. The company has been vigorously following upwith
party for the recovery of the duesand it could recover an amount of Rs.13,60,00,000 (Rupees
rteen Crores Sixty Lakhs only)from the party during the current financial year and
2,00,00,000 (Rupees Two Crores only)subsequent to the close of the Jfinancial year. REPL is
fident of recovery of the balance dues. In view of this, REPL has not created any prouvision in
books of accounts against the amount outstanding..

Qua Opinion

In our pinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, except
for effect of the matters described in the Basis Jor Qualified opi iion, the aforesaid consolidated
"1 statements give the information in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in

Yy with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the consolidated state of

of the Groupas at March 31, 2017, its consolidated loss and its consolidated cash Sflows for
the r ended on that date.

of Matter

We d attention to the following matters in the notes to the accompanying consolidated financial
ts for the year ended March 31, 2017:

: 45 D(iijwhich indicates that the entire matter relating to claims / counter claims arising
of the Power Purchase Agreement (PPA’) and Land Lease Agreement, filed by GMR Power
»nration Limited (‘GPCL), a subsidiary of the Company, not audited by us, and Tamil Nadu
tion and Distribution Corporation Limited (TAGENDCO)), is sub-judice before the
n’ble Supreme Court of India and has not attained finality. Pending the resolution of matter,
adjustments have been made in the accompanying consolidated financial statements for the
't ended March 31, 2017. Considering that substantial amount, though under protest, has
n received, GPCL, based on an expert opinion, offered the amount of claims received upto
ch 31, 2014 as income in its income tax returns and has claimed the deduction under
tion 80IA of the Income Tax Act, 1961.

45 B(i)regarding losses being incurred by GMR Ambala Chandigarh Expressways Private
ed (‘GACEPLY), a subsidiary of the Company, not audited by us ,since the commencement
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its commercial operations and ongoing arbitration regarding compensation for losses arising
a result of diversion of partial traffic on parallel roads. Based on management’s internal
ment and legal opinion obtained by the management of GACEPL, the management of the

is of the view that the carrying value of the net assets (after providing for losses till date)
GACEPL as at March 31, 2017 is appropriate.

e 45 D (vii) regarding reduction of operation and the losses including cash losses incurred
GMR Energy Limited(‘GEL) and GMR Vemagiri Power Generation Limited(‘GVPGL), a
bsidiary of GEL and the consequent of erosion of net worth of these entities resulting from
® unavailability of adequate supply of natural gas and rescheduling of the commercial
" ation date and the repayment of certain project loans by GMR Rajahmundry Energy
ted(‘GREL) and the consequent implementation of the Strategic Debt Restructuring
" to convert part of the debt outstanding into equity and to undertake flexible
ag of balance debt for improving viability and revival of the project pending linkage of
tural gas which is necessary to conduct operations at varying levels of capacity in the future
d the appropriateness of the going concern assumption of these entities is dependent on the
ility of the aforesaid entities to establish consistent profitable operations as obligations. In
: opinion of the management , the carrying value of the investments in the aforesaid entities
at March 31.2017 is appropriate for the reasons explained in the said note.

45D(iii)regarding 300 MW hydro based power plant on Alaknanda river, Uttarakhand

constructed by GMR Badrinath Hydro Power Generation Private Limited (‘GBHPL?, a
bsidiary of the Company, not audited by us. The Hon’ble Supreme Court of India (‘the
preme Court’), while hearing a civil appeal in the matters of a hydro power company,
"7 vide its order dated May 7, 2014 that no further construction work shall be
idertaken by any of the 24 projects until further orders. The management of the Group is
nfident of obtaining the requisite clearances and based on a business plan and valuation
sessment is of the view that the carrying value of the net assets of GBHPL as at March 31,
17 is appropriate.

te 45D(viii) regarding uncertainties in tying up power supplies, achieving profitability in

srations, mega power status, refinancing of existing loans at lower rates of interest and
T key assumptions made in the valuation assessment of the investments in GMR
ttisgarh Energy Limited (‘GCEL’), a subsidiary of the company, not audited by us. The
ying amount of the investments in GCEL is critically dependent upon the achievement of
key assumptions as discussed in the aforesaid note. In the opinion of the management of
Group, no adjustments are considered necessary at this stage in the accompanying
olidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2017 for the reasons explained

the said note.

> 45A (iv) regarding the recovery/adjustment of incurred towards residential quarters for
tral Industrial Security Force (‘CISF’) deployed at the Rajiv Gandhi International Airport,
derabad, operated by GMR Hyderabad International Airport Limited (‘GHIALY), a subsidiary
the Company, not audited by us, and other costs which continue to be adjusted against PSF
™ fund pending the final decision from the Hon’ble High Court at Hyderabad for the State of

1gana and State of Andhra Pradesh and consequential instructions from the Ministry of
il Aviation.
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s 45D(i) regarding the achievement of certain assumptions made by the management in
valuation assessment of entities which are engaged in the operation and development of
mines. In the opinion of the management of the Group, no provision for diminution in the
of investments is considered necessary at this stage in the accompanying consolidated
statements for the year ended March 31, 2017 for the reasons explained in the said

9. ote 45 A(xii) regarding the call option exercised by the Company to acquire Class A
mpulsorily Convertible Preference shares(’CCPS A”) , issued by GMR Airports Limited(‘GAL”)
the Private Equity Investors(The Investors’), subject to obtaining the requisite regulatory

s. However the investors have initiated arbitration proceedings against GAL and the
pany, seeking conversion of CCPS A. In view of ongoing arbitration and considering the
ncertainty regarding the conversion/ settlement of CCPS A, no adjustments have been made
the call option exercised by the Company to purchase CCPS A and that Class B
y Convertible Preference Shares(“CCPS B”) issued to the company continue to be

at cost of Rs. Nil.

10. ote 45 Bfii)regarding the losses being incurred by GMR Hyderabad Vijayawada Expressways
Limited (‘GHVEPL’), a subsidiary of the Company, not audited by us,. GHVEPL has
n incurring losses since the commencement of commercial operations. As detailed in the
note, the management believes that these losses are on account of certain events
ituting a Change in Law as per the Concession Agreement with National Highways
thority of India(“NHAI”) and accordingly, GHVEPL is entitled to claim for losses and hence
initiated arbitration to recover the losses. For the reasons explained in the aforementioned
the management believes that the carrying value of the net assets (after providing for
till date) in GHVEPL as at March 31,2017 is appropriate.

ion is not qualified in respect of the aforesaid matters.

Matters

Infrastructure Ltd (GIL) , a subsidiary of the Company and its step down subsidiaries
their financial statements including the consolidated financial statements of GIL for
financial year 2016-17 as per the Ind AS principles. The said Consolidated Financial
ts of GIL and its subsidiaries were converted by the management using the principles
per IGAAP. The said special purpose consolidated financial statements so prepared as per
P principles were audited / reviewed by an independent Chartered Accountant and
the Report on the same. The attached consolidated financials of the Company are
by the management using the said special purpose financial statements and we have

on the said Report of the independent Chartered Accountant.

2. financial statements and other financial information of 9 subsidiaries, with total assets of
4244.02 crore as at March 31, 2017, total operating revenue of Rs.99.69 crore, total loss
Rs. 417.02 crore and net cash inflow amounting to Rs. 2.41 crore for the year then ended

been audited by us.

3. e did not audit the financial statements and other financial information of (i) 133
bsidiaries (including 2 subsidiaries consolidated for the period January 01, 2016 to

ber 31, 2016) with total assets of Rs. 47,312.30 crore as at March 31, 2017, total

ing revenue of Rs.13,508.40 crore, total loss of Rs. 449 crore and net cash outflow

nting to Rs. 344.60 crore for the year then ended; (ii) 27 jointly controlled entities

uding 17 jointly controlled entities consolidated for the period January 01, 2016 to

31, 2016) with the Group’s share of total assets of Rs. 2475.85 crore as at March

1, 2017, total operating revenue of Rs. 1010.48 crore, total profit of Rs. 338.63 crore and net

h inflow amounting to Rs. 84.14 crore for the year then ended; and (iii) 4 associates with

Rs. 133.97
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for the year then ended These financial statements and other financial information of
subsidiaries and jointly controlled entities have been audited by other auditors, whose
»orts have been furnished to us by the management and our opinion on the consolidated
ancial statements, in so far as it relates to the amounts and disclosures included in respect
these subsidiaries, jointly controlled entities and associates, and our report in terms of sub-

stion (3) of Section 143 of the Act, to the extent applicable, is based solely on the reports of
ch other auditors.

4. e did not audit the financial statements and other financial information of (i) 10 subsidiaries
th total assets of Rs. 465.14 crore as at March 31, 2017, total operating revenue of Rs.
*.68 crore, total loss of Rs. 26.40 crore and net cash outflow amounting to Rs. 3.77crore for
> year then ended; (ii) 4 jointly controlled entities(including 1 jointly controlled entity
"solidated for the period January 01, 2016 to December 31, 2016) with the Group’s share of

1 assets of Rs. 87.65 crore as at March 31, 2017, total operating revenue of Rs. 23.02
", total profit of Rs. 4.02 crore and net cash inflow amounting to Rs. 10.19 crore for the
then ended. These financial statements and other financial information for these
bsidiaries, jointly controlled entities and associates are unaudited and have been furnished
us by the management and our opinion on the consolidated financial statements, in so far
it relates to the amounts and disclosures included in respect of these subsidiaries, jointly
itrolled entities and associates and our report in terms of s ib-section (3) of Section 143 of
Act, to the extent applicable, is based solely on such unaudited financial statements and
1 financial information as certified by the management. In our opinion and according to
information and explanations given to us by the management, these financial statements
other financial information are not material to the Group.

Our inion on the consolidated financial statements, and our report on Other Legal and
Regu ory Requirements above, is not qualified in respect of the above matters with respect to our

on the work done and the reports of the other auditors and the financial statements and
other ancial information certified by the management.

on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
1. As required by section 143(3) of the Act, we report, to the extent applicable, that:

(a) W /the other auditors whose reports we have relied upon have sought and obtained all the
" rmation and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for
purpose of our audit of the aforesaid consolidated financial statements;

(b) In our opinion proper books of account as required by law relating to preparation of the
resaid consolidated financial statements have been kept so far as it appears from our
~“ination of those books and the reports of the other auditors;

consolidated Balance Sheet, the consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss and the
solidated Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the relevant
"~ of account maintained for the purpose of preparation of the consolidated financial

A

ot for the effect of the matters described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion paragraph, in
opinion,the aforesaid consolidatedfinancial statements comply with the Accounting

1ards specified under section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts)
Ru 2014,

mattersdescribed in the Basis for Qualified Opinion paragraph,the matters in sub-
raphsl to 10 in the Emphasis of Matter paragraphand Qualified Opinion in our opinion,
have an adverse effect on the functioning of the Group;

(f) On
as «
the
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subsidiaries, jointly controlled entitiesand associates incorporated in India, none of the
of the companies incorporated in India is disqualified as on March 31, 2017 from
appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act.

qualification relating to the maintenance of accounts and other matters connected
ith are as stated in the ‘Basis for Qualified Opinion’ paragraph above.

respect to the adequacy and the operating effectiveness of the internal financial controls
financial reporting of the Holding Company and its subsidiaries, jointly controlled entities
associates incorporated in India, refer to our separate report dated September 29, 2017 in
iexure ” to this report;

(i) th respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with
11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditor’s) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of
r information and according to the explanations given to us:

The consolidated financial statements disclose the impact of pending litigations on
theconsolidated financial position of the Group— Refer note36, 45D(ix),45 A(i),45
A(ii),45A(iv),45 A(v),45 A(x),45 A(xi),45 A(xi),45 B(i),45 B(ii),45D(i),45D(ii) ,45D(iii)
,45D(vi),45D (vii) and 45D(viii)to the consolidated financial statements;

The Group, its associates and joint ventures does not have any material foreseeable losses
on long-term contracts including derivative contracts.

There have been no delays in transferring amounts, required to be transferred, to the
Investor Education and Protection Fund by the Holding Company, its subsidiaries, jointly
controlled entitiesand associates incorporated in India.

The Group has provided requisite disclosure in Note no 17.1 to these consolidated financial
statements as to the holdings of Specified Bank Notes (SBNs) on November 8, 2016 and
December 30, 2016 as well as dealings in SBNs during the period from November 8, 2016
to December 30, 2016. Based on our procedures and relying on management
representation and as reported by the other auditors who audited financial statements /
financial information of certain entities of the group and its associates and joint ventures,
except for (a) the segregation between SBNs and other denominations in the books of the
GMR Infrastructure Limited and certain other entities and upon which we/other auditors
are unable to comment on in the absence of necessary details (b) non-permitted collection
of Rs. 1.18 Crore in certain entities, as reported by the other auditors who have audited the
financial statements / financial information of the Group, its associates and joint ventures,
as more fully in Note no 17.1 to these consolidated financial statements. We report that the
amounts disclosed in the said note is in accordance with the books of accounts maintained
by the Group, its associates and joint ventures and as produced to us/other auditors for
verification.

Chennai
29thSeptember, 2017,



B. Pu & Cﬂ., Continuation Sheet No.
ACCOUNTANTS

{E TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT OF EVEN DATE ON THE
DATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF GMR ENTERPRISES PRIVATE LIMITED

)rt on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section
of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’)

the Members of GMR ENTERPRISES PRIVATE LIMITED

conjunction with our audit of the consolidated financial statements of GMR

ERPRISES PRIVATE LIMITED as of and for the year ended March 31, 2017, we have

ed the internal financial controls over financial reporting of GMR ENTERPRISES

ATE LIMITED (hereinafter referred to as the Holding Company’ or ‘GEPL), its
bsidiaries, jointly controlled entities and associates, which are companies incorporated in
dia, as of that date (together referred to as the ‘Covered entities’ in this report). Refer
mevre II for the list of Covered entities

Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

respective Board of Directors of the Covered entities are responsible for establishing
maintaining internal financial controls based on the internal financial control over
ncial reporting criteria established by the Covered entities considering the essential
ponents of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial
trols Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of
a (ICAI’). These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of
‘uate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly
efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to the respective company’s
sies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and erTors,
accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of
k1= financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act).

Responsibility

r responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls

r financial reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the

G ‘dance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the

“ idance Note”) and the Standards on Auditing, specified under section 143(10) of the Act,

the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both issued by the ICAI.

ose Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements

1 plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate

nal financial controls over financial reporting was established and maintained and if
controls operated effectively in all material aspects.

“audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of

internal financial controls over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our

* of internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an

tanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that

\aterial weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating

tiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend

on the auditor’s judgment, incl g the assessment of the risks of material misstatement
of he financial statements, whe due to fraud or error.

believe that the audit evidence we have obtained and the audit evidence obtained by the
’r auditors in terms of their reports referred to in the Other Matters paragraph below, is

~~~t and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the internal financial
trols over financial reporting.
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of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to
ovide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial remorting and the

*naration of financial statements for external purposes i with generally

pted accounting principles. A company's internal fina nwar finecscial
porting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain e of
cords that, in reasonable letail, accurately and fairly reflect and

spositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that

ansactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in

~~rdance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and
nditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of
agement and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding
ention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the
““““ 's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

se of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting,

ing the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material

tements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any

tion of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are
bject to the risk that the int rnal financial control over financial reporting may become
idequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the
'i~i~s or procedures may deteriorate.

our opinion, the Covered entities, which are companies incorporated in India, have,

intained in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over

'woial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were

ting effectively as at March 31, 2017, based on the internal control over financial

re rting criteria established by the Covered entities considering the essential components
of ternal control stated in the Guidance Note issued by the ICAI

Matters

' report under Section 143(3)(i) of the Act on the adequacy and operating effectiveness of
internal financial controls over financial reporting of the Holding Company. in so far as
relates to these 117 subsidiaries, 4 associates and 10 joint ventures, which are
npanies incorporated in India, is based on the corresponding reports of the auditors of
" subsidiaries, associates and Joint ventures incorporated in India.

B. PURUSHOTTAM & CO
:: Chennai Chartered Accountants
: September 29, 2017.



GMR ENTERPRISES PRIVATE LIMITED

3rd Floor, Old No.248 New No.114, Royapettah High Road, Royapettah, Chennai - 600 014.

CIN:U74900TN2007PTC102389

Consolidated balance sheet as at March 31, 2017

Equity and Liabilities
Shareholders' funds
Share capital
Reserves and surplus

Preference shares issued by subsidiaries
Minority interest

Non-cutrent liabilities
Long-term borrowings
Delerred Lax liability
Trade payables

Other long-term liabilities
Long-term provisions

Current liabilities
Short-term borrowings
Trade payables

Other current liabilities
Short-term provisions

Total

Non-current assets
Fixed assets
Tangible assets
Intangible assets
Capital work-in-progress
Intangible assets under development
Non-current imvestments
Deferred tax assel
Long-term loans and advances
Trade receivables
Other non-current assets

Current assets

Current investments
Inventories

Trade receivables

Cash and bank balances
Short-term loans and advances
Other current assets

Total

ary of significant accounting policies

accompanying notes form an integral part of the consolidated financial statements

per our repori of even date
B. Purushottam & Co

Accountarnts
Firm Regn No: 0028088

206734

Mumbai
Date: 29th September'2017

Notes

34

33

)]

9

11
12
32 (a)
32 (b)

33
10
14
15

18
16
14
17
10
15

21

March 31, 2017
Rs.

62.67
1.426.02
1,488.69

415 36
3,821.84

31,199.48
477.70
87 95
2,747.68
179.26
34,692.07

2,673.58
2,219.48
8,920.05
353.89
167.00
96

20,909.04
12,163.32
4,576.08
510.65
2,250.82
44 75
1,826 45
19.55

43,373.18

3,227.74
384 94
2,873.49
2,788.29
1,191.68
745.64
211.78
96

Mazch 31, 2016

62.67
2,499.04
2,561.71
1,003.43
3,583.68

39,779 53
81.15
33.14

2,220.27
125.85
42,239.94

3,115.98

1,961.37

16,282.22

276.71

21 36.28
7

37,792.65
12,815.29
4,073 08
526.69
163.27
70.93
1,725 93
43.17
68.74
60,879.75

1,841.31
469.30
2,499.72
3,173.89
1,365.09
795.98
145.29

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of

GMR Enterprises Pvt. Ltd

B. Grandhi Kiran Kumar
Director
DIN.00051167 DIN.00061669
Y uria

Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary



ENTERPRISES PRIVATE LIMITED
Floor, Old No.248 New No.114, Royapettah High Road, Royapettah, Chennai - 600 014.

statement of profit and loss for the year ended March 31, 2017

. March 31, 2017 March 31, 2016
Particulars Notes ) )
Rs. in crore Rs. in crore
Income
Revenuc from opcrations:
Sales / income [rom operalions 19 14,436.68 13,282.52
Other operating income 20 223 35 265.00
Other income 21 1,381 52 A71 68
Total (A) 16,041.75 14,019.20
Expenses
Revenue share paid / payable lo concessionaire grantors 2.762.93 2,412.29
Consumplion ol fuel 1,913 62 2,525 96
Cost ol materials consumed 22 170 80 38 86
Purchase of tiaded goods 23 910.36 840.02
/ decrease in slock in Lrade 24 20,90 (32.80)
NE eXpenses 63545 628 39
Imployee benefits expenses 25 794 23 0675 00
Other expenscs 26 2,429.71 2,159.88
Deprecialion and amorlisalion expenses 27 2,176.92 2,301.73
Finance costs 28 5,471 54 4,560.14
Total (B) 17,295.46 16,110.07
Loss| rofit before exceptional items, tax expenses, minority interest and share of (loss
(proﬁl): f)fpassociates (A-B) ? ' F ' Y ( ' (1,253.71) {2,090.87)
Exceplional items - (losses) [/ gains (nel) 29 149,
(1,939.72) (2 240 67)
{Loss) / profit before tax expenses, minority interest and share of (loss)/ profit of associates
(Loss) / profit from continning operations before tax expenses, minority interest and share of
(loss) / profit of associates (2,479 82) 940 5
Tax expenses of continuing operations
Current lax 494.59 287.90
Tax adjusiments [ur prio years (4 88) (15.07)
Less: MAT credit entitlement {108 01) (10.93)
Deferred tax expense / (eredit) 423.50 45 30)
/ profit from continuing operations after tax expenses and hefore minority interest and
of (loss) / profit of associates (3,284.99) (2,157.11)
Sharc ol (loss) / prelil of associales (netl) (325.23) {5.52)
interest - share ol loss / (profit) flom conlinuing operations 1,005 41 663 91
Loss/(Profit) transferred to Pre aquisition reserves 5.13
{Loss) / profit after minority interest and share of (loss)/ profit of iates from continuing
operations (C) (2,514.81) {1,493.59)
Profit / (loss) from discontinuing operations hefore tax expenses and minority interest 540.10 (300.16)
Tas expenses of disconlinuing operations
Current tax 148 1.35
‘I'ax adjustments for prior years
Less: MAT credit wrilten oll / (entitlement)
Nelerred tax expense [ (credif)
/ (loss) from discontinuing operations after tax expenses and before minority interest 31 3k 62 (301.51)
Minolity interest - share of loss / (prolit) fiom discontinuing operations (122.57) 3192
/ (loss) after minority interest from discontinuing operations (D) 416.05 (269.59)
/ profit after minority interest and share of (loss) / profit of associates from continuing
discontinuing operations (C+D) (2,098.76) (1,763.18)
Earnings per cquity share [Rs.) - Basic and diluted (per equity shaie of Rs.10 cachy) 30 (334 806) (281.32)
Earnings per cquity share (Rs.) from continuing opcrations - Basic and diluted {per equity share of
Ru.10 each) 30 (401 25) (238 31)
Farnings per equily share (Rs ) from discontinuing operations - Basic and diluted (per equity share
of Rs.10 cach) 30 66 38 (43.01)
Summary ol 2.1
The accompanying noles form an integral parl ol the consolidated linancial stalements
per our report of even date
B. Purushottam & Co For and on behalf of the Board of of
Accounlants GMR Enterprises Pvt.
Registration number: Q028085
B. - Grandhi Kiran Kumar
Director
DIN.00051167 DIN.00061669

Place: Mumbai

Date: 29th 17 Chief Finanecial Officer



GMR ENTERPRISES PRIVATE LIMITED
3rd Floor, Old No.248 New No.114, Royapettah High Road, Royapettah, Chennai - 600 014
CIN:U74900TN2007PTC102389
Consolidated cash flow statement for the year ended March 31, 2017
Particulars

March 31, 2017 March 31, 2016

Asg pet our report of even dale atlached.

For B. Purushottam & Co
Chaitered Accountants
Firm Registration number: 0028088

Place : Mumbai
Date: 29th September'2017

(1,939.72) (2,240.67)
0.73 2.26
2,176.92 2,301.73
(20.90) 32.80
(007) {0 07)
(14.44) (8.42)
5,471.54 4,560.14
1.46 1.75
77.18 (2.00)
53.41 61.49

7,745.83 6,949.68

5,806.11 4,709.01
(100.52) 8.54
(350.15) (745.90)
173.41 (160.36)
2,672.74 935.21
312.92 (85 19)

(6,438.2 5

(3,729.81) 5,358.50

2,076.30 10,067.51

(806.65) (217.95)

1,269.65 9,849.56
14,870.24 (3,353.62)
(3,474.71) (579.97)
84.36 (160.01)
20.90 (32.80)
14,44 8.42
0.07 0.07
471 0.14)

6,043.76 (8,678.05)
1,323.44 462.27
(8,580.05) (870.70)
(442.40) (2,021.60)

(7,699.01) (2,430.03)

(385.60) (1,258.52)

3,173.89 4,432.41

2.788.29 3,173.89

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of

GMR Enterprises Pvt Ltd

B.V.N.R%/

Director
DIN.00051167

Chief Financial Officer

Grandhi Kiran Kumar
Director
DIN.00061669

Yo uria
Company Secretary

Fcs-6252



GMR Enterpris

Private Limited

Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2017

1.

CORPORAT

i, INFORMATION

GMR Enterprises Private Limited (‘GEPL.” or “the Company’) and its subsidiarics, associates and joinily controfled entities (hereinalter collectively referred to as
‘the Group’) are mainly engaged in generation of power, mining and exploration activities, development of highways, infrastructure development such as
development and maintenance of airports and special economic zones. construction business including Engincering. Procurement and Construction (“EPC?)
contracting activitics and operation of airports and special economic zones

Power sector

Certain enlitics of the Group are involved in the generation of power. These are separate Special Purpose Vehicles ("SPV?) which have entered into Power Pui chase
Agreements (‘PPA’) with the electricity distribution companies of the respective state governments / other government authorities (cither on the basis of
Memorandum ot Understanding or through a bid process) or shorl-term power supply agreements o generate and sell power directly to consumers as a merchant
plant Certain entities of the Group are involved in the mining and exploration activities The Group is also involved in energy and coal trading activities

Airport scctor

Certain entities of the Group are cngaged in development and operation of airport infrastructure such as greenfield international airport at Hydeiabad and
modeinisation and operation of international airports at Delhi, Male and Cebu on build, own, operate and tiansfer basis

Development of 1Tighways

Certain entitics of the Group are engaged in development of highways on build, operate and (ransler model on annuity o1 toll basis These are SPVs which have
entered into concessionaire agreements with National Ilighways Authority of India (‘NHAI') o1 the respective state governments for carry ing out these projects

Construction business

Certain enlities of the Group are in the business ol construction including as an EPC contractor These entitics are engaged in handling of EPC solution in the
infrastructure sector

Others

Entities of the Group which cover all residual activities of the Group that include special economic zones, operations of hotels, investmenl activitics and management
/technicat consultancy

PRINCTIPLLES OI' CONSOLIDATION

The consolidated [inancial statements include accounts of the subsidiaries (accounted as per Accounting Standard (‘AS™) 21), associates (accounted as per AS 23)
and jointly controlled entities (accounted as per AS 27). Subsidiary undertakings are those entitics in which the Company, directly or indircetly, has an interest of
more than one half of voting power or otherwise controls the composition of the Board / Governing Body so as to obtain cconomic benelits [rom its activities.
Subsidiaries are consolidated fiom the date on which effective control is transferred to the Group till the date such control ceases The vonsolidated financial
statements have been prepared to comply in all material respects with the accounting standards specified under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”),
read with Rule 7 of (he Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014. The consolidated financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention on an
accrual basis The accounting policies have been consistently applied by the Group as in the previous year.

The consolidated financial statements of the Group have been prepared based on a line-by-line consolidation of the balance sheets and the statements of profit and
loss of the Company and its subsidiaries All inter-company transactions, balances and unrealised surpluses and deficits on transactions between the entities in the
Group are eliminated unless cost cannot be recovered.

The excess of the cost to the Company of its investments in subsidiaries, over its proportionate share in equity ol the investee Company as at the date ol acquisition
is recognised in the consolidated linancial statements as goodwill and disclosed under intangible assets In case the cost of investment in subsidliaries is less than the
proportionate share in equity of the investee Company as on the date of investment. the diflerence is treated as capilal reserve and shown under reserves and surplus

The gains arising trom the dilution of interest on issue of additional shares to third parties, without loss of control is recorded as capital 1eserve Gains or losses
arising on the direct sale by the Company of its investment in its subsidiaries are transferred 1o the statement of profit and loss Such gains or losses are the difference
between the sale proceeds and the net carrying values of the investments.

I'he consolidated financial statements have been prepared using uniform policies lor like transactions and other events in similar circumstances and aie presented to
the extent possible in the sume manner as the Company’s separate financial stalements

Investments in the associates have been aceounted in the consolidated financial statements as per AS 23 on “Accounting for Investments in Associates”™ Investments
in associates. which have been made for (emporary purposes, have not been considered lor consolidation

Investments in the jointly controlled entities have been accounted using proportionate consolidation method whereby the Group includes its share of the asscts,
liabilities, income and expenses of the jointly contiolled entities in its consolidated financial statements as per AS 27 on “Financial Repoiting of Interests in Joint
Ventures 7
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GMR Enterprises Private Limited
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2017

2.1.

Significant accounting policies

a)

b)

Change in accounting policy

Component accounting ;
The Group has adopted component accounting as required under Schedule IT o the Act from April 1, 2015 for domestic entities. The Group was previously not
identifying components of fixed assets separately for depreciation purposes; rather, a single useful life/ depreciation rate was used to depreciate each item of
[ixed asset.

Due to application of Schedule II to s changed the manner of depreciation for its fixed assets. Now, the Group identifies and determines
cost of each component/ part of the component/ part has a cost which is signilicant to the total cost of the asset having useful life that is
materially difterent from that of the components are depreciated over their useful lives; the principal asset is depreciated over the life of

such asset. The Group has used transitional provisions of Schedule II to the Act to adjust the impact of component accounting arising on its first application. If
a component has Nil remaining useful life on the date of component accounting becoming effective, i.e., April 1, 2015, its carrying amount, after retaining any
residual value, is charged to the consolidated statement of profit and loss. The carrying amount of other components, i.e., components whose remaining useful
life is not nil on April 1, 2015, is depreciated over their remaining useful lives

Change in accounting estimate
Amortization of intangible asscts

Upto March 31, 2015, DIAL amortized upfront fee and other costs paid to Airport Authority of India (* AAI’) over the initial and extended periods of Operation,
Management and Development Agreement (‘OMDA?), i e, 60 years.

However, DIAL, considering the prevalent regulatory and economic conditions, has revisited and revised the estimate for amortizing the upfront fees and other
cost paid to AAL over the initial period of 30 years of OMDA prospectively.

Had DIAL continued to use the earlier estimate of amortizing the intangible assets, the amortization expenses and losses after tax of the Group before minority
interest for the year ended March 31, 2017 would have been lower by Rs. 12.01 crore.

Depreciation of certain power assets
Uplo March 31,2015, GKEL depreciated all its fixed assets as per Central Electricity Regulatory Commission (‘CERC”) Regulations.

During the year ended March 31, 2016, GKEL has changed the method of depreciation with respect to Boiler, Turbine and Generator (‘BTG’) of'its Unit Tand
Unit I and transmission lines to the rates as per Schedule IT to the Act.

Jsc of estimates

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles in India (‘Indian GAAP’) requires the
management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities and the disclosure of
contingenl liabilities, at the end of the reporting period Although these estimates are based on the management’s best knowledge of current events and actions,
uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in the outcomes requiring a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets or liabilities
in {uture periods

Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised to the extent (hat it is probable that the economic benefits will low 1o the Group and the revenue can be reliably measured The following
specific recognilion criteria must also be met before revenue is recognised

Power sector business:

In case of power generating and trading companies, revenue from energy units sold as per the terms of the PPA and Letter Of Intent (‘LOI’) (collectively
hereinafter referred to as ‘the PPAs’) is recognised on an accrual basis and includes unbilled revenue accrued up to the end ol the accounting year Revenue
from energy units sold on a merchant basis is recognised in accordance with billings made 1o customers based on the units of energy delivered and the rate
agreed with the customers, Revenue/ charges from unscheduled interchange for the deviation in generation with respect o scheduled generation are recognized/
charged al rates notified by CERC from time to 1ime, as revenue from sale of encrgy and adjusted with revenue from sale of energy Further, revenue is
recognized/adjusted towards truing up in terms of the applicable CERC regulations

Revenue from electrical energy transmission charges is recognized on an acerual basis in accordance with the provisions of the (ransmission service agreements.
Revenue from sale of coal is recognised when the risks and rewards of ownership passes to the purchaser in accordance with the terms of sale, including delivery
ol the product, the selling price is fixed or determinable, and collectability is reasonably assured. Revenue eamed in the pre-production stage and related

operaling costs have been 1ecorded against the carrying value of mining and exploration and development properties

Claims o delayed payment charges and any other claims, which the Group is entitled Lo under the PPAs, are accounted for in the year ol acceplance by the
customers



GMR Enterprises Private Limited
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2017

Development of highways:

In case of companies involved in construction and maintenance of 10ads, toll revenue from operations is recognised on an accrual basis which coincides with
the collection of toll from the users of highways In annuity based projects, revenue recognition is based on annuity accrued on time basis in aceordance with
the provisions of the concessionaire agreement entered into with NHAT or with respective State Governments Claims raised on NHAI under concessionaire
agreement are accounted for in the year of acceplance

Revenue share paid / payable to concessionaire grantors:

Revenue share paid / payable Lo concessionaire / grantors as a percentage of revenues, pursuant to the terms and conditions of the relevant agreement for
development, construction, operation and maintenance of the respective carriageways has been disclosed as revenue share paid / payable to concessionaire
grantors in the stalement of profit and loss. .

Airport sector business:

In case of airport infrastructure companies, aeronautical and non-aeronautical revenue is recognised on an accrual basis and is net of service tax, applicable
discounts and collection charges, when services are rendered and it is possible that an economic benefit will be received which can be quantified reliably
Revenue from aeronautical operations include user development fees, fuel farm, passenger service charges, landing and parking charges of aircrafl, operation
and maintenance of passenger boarding and other allied services Revenue from non-aeronautical operations include granting rights to use land and space
primarily for catering 1o the necds of passengers, air traffic services, air transport services and Maintenance, Repair and Overhaul facility (MRO) of aircralls
and allied services

In case of cargo handling revenue, revenue from oulbound cargo is recognised at the time of acceptance of cargo with respect to non-airline customers and at
the time of departure of aircraft with respect 1o airline customers and revenue from inbound cargo is recognised at the time of arrival of aireraft in case of airline

customers and at the point of defivery of cargo in case of non-airline customers. Interest on delayed receipts from customers is recognised on acceptance

Revenue [rom commercial property development 1ights granted to concessionaires is recognised on accrual basis, as per the terms of the agreement entered into
with the customers.

Revenue trom sale of goods at the duty free outlets operated by the Group is recognised at the time of delivery of goods to customers which coincides with
transfer of risks and rewards to its customers. Sales are stated net of returns and discounts.

Revenue from hotel operations comprises of income by way of hotel roomrent, sate of food, beverages and allied services relating to the hotel and is recognised
net of taxes and discounts as and when the services are provided and products are sold.

Revenue from sale of fuel is recognised when fuel is translerred to the customers and is measured based on the consideration received or receivable, net of
returns and trade discounts.

Revenue from developing, operating, maintaining and managing the sites at the airport for display of advertisements is recognised on pro-rata basis over the
period of display of advertisements, net of taxes and rebates.

Revenue from flight training operations related 1o aircrafl flying hour’s fee is recognized on accrual basis based on actual flying hours of flying training imparted
during the period and revenue from fees for other training courses is recognized on accrual basis across the training period on straight line basis.

Revenue from MRO contracts is recognised as and when services are rendered

Construction business:

Construction revenue and costs are recognised by reference o the stage of completion of the construction activity at the balance sheet date, as measured by the
proportion that contract costs incurred for work performed to date bear to the estimated total contiact costs. Where the outcome of the construction cannot be
estimated reliably, revenue is recognised to the extent ol the construction costs incurred if it is probable that they will be recoverable In the case of contracts
with defined milestones and assigned price for cach milestone, revenue is recognised on transfer of significant risks and rewards which coincides with
achievement of milestone and its acceptance by its customer. Provision is made for all losses incurred till the balance sheet date. Any further losses that are
foreseen in bringing contracts to completion are also recognised Variations in contract woik, claims and incentive payments are 1ecognised to the extent that it
is probable that they will result in revenue and they are capable of being reliably measured

Othars:
i Dividend income is recognised when the right to reccive dividend is established by the reporting date
i Income from management / technical services is recognised as per the terms of the agreement on the basis of services rendered
iii  Interest income is recognised on a time proportion basis taking into account the amount invested and the applicable interest rate Interest income is
included under the head “other operating income” for companies engaged in investing activities and under the head *other income” for other companies

in the statement of profit and loss

v Benefits arising out of duty liec serips utilised Jor the acquisition of [ixed assets or inventlory are recognised as income once it 1s probable that the
wed

cconomic benelits will flow to the Group and the revenue can be reliably meas



GMR Enterpri

s Private Limited

Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2017

)

d)

v On disposal of current investments, the difference between its carrying amount and net disposal proceeds is charged or credited Lo Lhe statement of profit
and loss Such income is included under the head “other operating income’ for companies engaged in investing activities and under the head ‘other
income” for other companies in the statement of profit and loss.

vi  Revenue from certified emission reductions is recognised as per the terms and conditions agreed with the customers on sale of the certified emission
reduction units, when the risks and rewards are passed on 1o the custome

vii  Insurance claim is recognised on acceptance of the claims by the insurance company
viii  Revenue [rom charler services is recognised based on services provided as per the terms of the contracts with the customers.

Revenue earned in excess of billings has been included under ‘other assets’ as unbilled revenue and billings in excess of revenue has been disclosed under “other
labilities” as uneamed revenue

Expenditure including pre-operative and other incidental expenses incurred by the Group on projects that are in the process of commissioning, being recoverable
from the respective SPVs / subsidiaries incorporated for carrying out these proje cts, are not charged to the statement of profit and loss and are treated as advances
to the respective entities.

Operation and maintenance contracts

Certain entities engaged in power generation have entered into a Long-Term Service Agreements (‘LTSAs”), Technical Service Agreement (“TSA’) for
maintenance of the power plants, Operations and Maintenance Agreement (‘OMA”) for regular and major maintenance and Long Term Assured Parts Supply
Agreement (‘LTAPSA’), Repair Work Supply Agreement (‘PRWST’) for supply of parts for planned and unplanned maintenance over the term of the
agreements Amounts payable under the LTSAs / TSA are charged to the statement of profit and loss based on actual factored fired hours of the gas turbines
during the year on the basis of average factored hour cost including customs duty applicable at the current prevailing rate. Periodical minimum payments are
accounted for as and when due. Amounts payable under PRWST are charged to the statement of profit and loss on an accrual basis.

OMAs have been entered by cerlain subsidiaries in the road sector for operations, regular and major maintenance of the highways Amounts payable under such
agreements are charged to the statement of profit and loss on an accrual basis.

Fixed asscts

Fixed assets are stated al cost, net of accumulated depreciation / amortization and accumulated impairment losses, if any. The cost comprises of purchase price
and freight, duties, levies and borrowing costs if capitalisation criteria are met and directly attributable cost of bringing the asset to its working condition for the
intended use. Any trade discounts and rebates are deducted in arriving at the purchase price.

Subsequent cxpenditure related 1o an item of fixed asset is added to its book value only if it increases the future benefits from the existing asset beyond ils
previously assessed standard of performance. All other expenses on existing tangible assets, including day -to-day repair and maintenance expenditure and cost
of replacing parts, are charged to the statement of profit and loss for the period during which such expenses are incurred.

The Group adjusts exchange differences arising on translation / settlement of long-term foreign currency monctary items pertaining to the acquisition of a
depreciable asset to the cost of the asset and depreciates the same over the remaining life of the asset In accordance with the MCA circular dated August 09,
2012, exchange differences adjusted to the cost of fixed assets are total differences, arising on long-term foreign currency monetary items pertaining to the
acquisition of a depreciable asset, for the period. In other words, the Group does not differentiate between exchange differences arising from foreign currency
borrowings to 1he extent they are regarded as an adjustment to the interest cost and other exchange differences

Gains or losses arising trom de-recognition of fixed assets are measured as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the
fixed asset and are recognised in the statement of protit and loss when the asset is de-recognised

Tangible assets under installation or under construction as at balance sheet are shown as capital work-in-progress, intangible assets under development as at
balance sheet date are shown as intangible assets under development and the related advances are shown as loans and advances

In case of airport infrastruclure companies, amounts in the nature of upfront fee and other costs incurred pursuant to the terms of the respective concession
agreements are recognised as intangible assets

Carriageways represents commercial rights to collect toll fee in relation to roads projects and 1o receive annuity in the case of annuity based projects which has
been accounted at the cost incurred on the project activity towards reconstruction, strengthening. widening, rehabilitation of the roads on build. operate and
transfer basis. 11 includes all direct material, labour and subcontracting costs, inward freight, dutics, taxes, obligation (owards negative grant payable to
concessionaires. if any. and any directly attributable expenditure on making the commercial right ready for its intended use

Research and development cost:

Research costs are expensed as incurred Development expenditure incurred on an individual project is recognised as an “intangible agset” when all of the below
conditions are met:
i The technical [easibility of completing the intangible asset so that it will be available for use o1 sale

i1 The Group’s intention to complete the asset

i The Group’s ability to use or sell the assct

iV The asset will generate future cconomic benefits

v The availability ol adequate resources (o complete the development and to use or sell the asset

\i The ability to measure reliably the expenditure attributable to the intangible asset during development
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Exploration and cvaluation expenditure / mining properties under construction and production

Exploration and evaluation expenditure

Exploration and evaluation expenditure incurred for potential mineral 1eserves and related Lo the project arc recognised and classified as part of ‘intangible assels
under development” when one of the below conditions are met:

1. be either recouped in full through successiul exploration and development of the area of interest or alternatively by its sale, or
il. luation activities in the area of interest have not yet reached a stage which permits a reasonable assessment of he existence or
available reserves and active and significant operations in relation to the area are continuing or are planned for [uture.

These expenditures include materials and fuel used, surveying costs, drilling. geneial investigation, administration and license, geology and geophysics
expenditure, stripping costs and payments made to contractors before the commencement of production stage

Ultimate recoupment of nditure carried forward is dependent upon a successful development and commercial exploitation, or alternatively,

sale of the respective ar tion costs shall be assessed for impairment when facts and circumstances suggest that the carrying amount of an
exploration and evaluati its recoverable amount.

Exploration and evaluation assels are transterred to ‘Mines under construction’ in the “Mines properties’ account after the mines are determined Lo be
cconomically viable to be developed.

Expenditure on mines under construction

Expenditure for mines under construction and costs incurred in developing an area of interest subsequent 1o the transfer from exploration and evaluation assets
but prior to the commencement of production stage in the respeclive area, are capitalised 10 “Mines under construction’ as long as they meet the capitalization
criteria.

Producing mines

The Group assesses the stage of each mine under construction to determine when a mine reaches the production phase. This oceurs when the mine is substantially
complete and ready for its intended use. Upon completion of mine construction and commencement of production stage, the ‘Mines under construction’ are
transferred to ‘Mining properties’, which are stated at cost, less accumulated an ortization and accumulated impairment losses

Intangible assets under development include expenditure incurred on cxploration and evaluation of assets, expenditure incurred on mines under construction
Stripping costs
Stripping costs are the costs of removing overburden from a mine. Stripping costs incurred in the development of a mine before production commences are

capitalized as part of the cost of developing the mine, and are subsequently depreciated or amortized using a unit-of-production method on the basis of proven
and probable reserves, once production starts.

reliably

The st y asset is initially m Julation of costs direetly incurred to perform the stripping activity that improves
aceess ed component of ore attributable overhead costs. If incidental operations are ocerring at the same time
as the ipping activity, but a stripping aclivity to continue as planned, the costs associated with these incidental
operat cluded in the cost of

When the costs of the stripping activity asset and the inventory produced are not separately identifiable, the Group uses an allocation basis that is based on a
relevant production measure. This production measure is caleulated for the identified component of the ore body, and is used as a benchmark to identify the
extent 1o which the additional activity of ereating a future benelit has taken place. The Group uses the actual versus expected volume of waste extracted.

Subsequently, Lhe stripping activity asset i« carried al cost less depreciation or amortization and any impairment losses, il any. The stripping aclivity assct is
depreciated or amortized using the vnits of production method over the expected useful lile of the identificd component if the ore body that becomes more
accessible as a result of the stripping activity unless another method is appropriate

Leases

For |

Finance leases. which effectively transfer to the Group substantially all the risks and benelits incidental W ownership of the Jeased item, are capitalised at the
inception of the lease Lerm at the lower of the fair value ol the Teased property and present value of minimum lcase payments. Lease payments are apportioned
¥
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between the finance charges and reduction of the lease liability so as to achieve a constant rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability. Finance
charges are recognised as linance costs in the statement of profit and loss. Lease management fees, legal charges and other initial direct costs of lease are
capitalised.

A leased asset is depreciated on a straight-line basis over the useful life of the asset. However, if there is no reasonable certainty that the Gioup will obtain the
ownership by the end of the lease term, the capitalised asset is depreciated on a straight-line basis over the shorter of the estimated useful life of the asset o1 the
Jease term.

Leases, where the lessor effectively retains substantially all the risks and benefits of ownership of the leased item, are classitied as operating leases Operating
lease payments are recognised as an expense in the statement of profit and loss on a straight -line basis over the lease term

For lessor:

Leases in which the Group transfers substantially all the risks and benelits of ownership of the asset are classified as finance leases Assets given under finance
lease are recognised as a receivable al an amount equal to the net investment in the lease. Aller initial recognition, the Group apportions lease rentals between
the principal repayment and interest income so as to achieve a constant periodic rate of return on the net investment outstanding in respect of the finance lease.
The interest income is recognised in the statement of profit and loss Initial direct costs such as legal costs, brokerage costs, elc are recognised immediately in
the statement of profit and loss.

Leases in which the Group does not transfer substantially all the risks and benelits of ownership of the asset are classified as operating leases Assets subject to
operating leases are included in fixed assets Lease income on an operating fease is recognised in the statement of’ profit and loss on a straight-line basis over
the lease term Costs, including depreciation, are recognised as an expense in the statement of profit and loss Initial direct costs such as legal costs, brokerage

costs, ete. are recognised immedialely in the statement of profit and loss.

Depreciation on tangible assets

In case of entities under CERC Regulations:

In case of GKEL, depreciation on plant and machinery (other than BTG of Unit I and Unit II and transmission lines) is provided using straight line method at
the rate of 5.28% per annum. After a period of 12 years from the date of commencement of commei cial operations, the remaining written down value shall be
depreciated over the balance useful life of the asset estimated by the management or in the manner prescribed under Central Electricity Regulatory Commission
(Terms and Conditions of Tariff) Regulations, 2009 in terms of MCA Circular No: 31/2011 dated May 31, 2011 (‘CERC regulations’) BTG of Unit I and Unit
11 and transmission lines of GKIL are depreciated at the rates as per Schedule 11 to the Act.

Other tangible assets are depreciated using straight line method at the rates specified in the CERC regulations, which is estimated by the management to be the
estimated useful lives of the fixed assets, except for fixed assets individually costing Rs 5,000 or less, which are fully depreciated in the year of acquisition The
management has estimated the usefu] lives of asset individually costing Rs, 5,000 or less to be less than one year, which is lower than those indicated in Schedule
IL.

L. No. Block Rate of depreciation
1 Buildings:
- Factory and ofTice 334%
2 Oftice cquipments
- Computers 15.00%
- Others 6.33%
3 Vehicles 9 50%
4 Fumniture and fixtures 633%

Other entities:

For other domestic subsidiarics, jointly controlled entities and associates in the energy sector, the depreciation on (he tangible fixed assets is calculated on a
straight-line basis using the rates arrived at, based on useful lives estimated by the management, which coincides with the lives pres cribed under Schedule 11 of
the Act except in case of plant and machinery where the tife of the asset is considered as 25 years as prescribed by CERC being the regulatory authority in the
energy sector. as against 40 years as per Schedule 11 of the Act Further. the management has estimated the uselul lives of asset individually costing Rs, 3.000

or less 10 be less than one vear, which is lower (han those indicated in Schedule 11.

On June 12, 2014, the Airport Economic Regulatory Authority (* ALRA”) has issued a consultation paper whereby it proposes to fay down, to the extent required.
the depreciation 1ates Tor certain airport assets Pending issuance of final notification by the Authority on the useful lives of airport specific assets, the Group
has continued 1o depteciate these asscls over their estimated useful lives as determined by the management of the Group based on technical evaluation

For entities other than aJoresaid domestic subsidiaries. jointly controlled cntities and associales, the depreciation on the tangible fixed assets is caleulated ona

straight-line basis using the rates arrived al. based on uselul lives estimated by the management, which coincides with the lives prescribed under Schedule [T ol
the Act
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Leasehold land is amortised over the tenure of the lease except in case of power plants where it is amortised from the date of commercial operation Leasehold
improvements are amortised over the primary period of the fease or estimated useful life whichever is shorter

Depreciation on adjustments to the historical cost of the assets on account of foreign exchange [luctuations is provided prospectively over the residual useful
lite of the asset

For overseas subsidiaries, jointly controlled entities and associates, the Group provides depreciation based on estimated useful lives of the fixed assets as
determined by the management of such subsidiaries, jointly controlled entities and associates In view of different sets of environment in which such foreign
subsidiaries, jointly controlled entities and associates operate in their respective countiies, depreciation is provided based on local laws and management
estimates These entities follow straight line method of depreciation spread over the useful life of each individual asset It is practically not possible to align
rates of depreciation ol such subsidiaries. jointly controlled entities and associates with those of the domestic subsidiaries, jointly controiled entities and
assoclates

The estimated useful lives of the assets considered by such overseas entities are as follows

Useful life in vears
Asset category

Minimum Maximum
ILease hold improvements 3 16
Buildings 3 20
Plant and machinery 3 16
Fumniture and fixtuies 3 20
Computer equipments, ollice equipment 3 20
Motor vehicles 4 8
Other tangible fixed assets 5 10

Amortization of intangible asscts

Goodwill arising on consolidation is not amortized but tested for impairment except in case of goodwill paid for the acquisition of entities which owns mining
reserves where goodwill attributable 1o mining reserves is amortised based on quantum of actual production during the year to the total estimated mining reserves
which are re-assessed on a yearly hasis and goodwill attributable to the other benefits derived by the Group are amortised based on other benefits received during

the year to the total other estimated benetits

Amortization of mining properties is based on using unit-of-production method from the date of commencement of commercial production of the respective

area of interest over the Jesser of the life of the mine or the terms of the coal contracts of work or mining business license
Technical know-how is amortised over five years from the date of issuance of certificate from a competent authority

Intangible assets representing uptiront fees and other payments made to concessionaires of the respective airports, pursuant 1o the terms and conditions of
concession agreements are amorlized on a straight line method over the initial and extended periods of concession agreements, as applicable

Carriageways related to annuity based projects are amortized over the period of the respective Concessionaire Agreements on a straight line basis

Carriageways related Lo toll based road projects are amortized based on proportion of actual revenue received dwing the accounting year to the total projected
revenue 1ill the end of the coneession period in terms of MCA notificalion dated April 17, 2012 and in terms of the amendments to the Schedule 1T of the Act
vide MCA notilication dated March 31. 2014

The totat projected revenue for the entire uselul life is reviewed at the end of each linancial year for expected changes in tiattic and adjusted 1o reflect any
changes in the estimate which will lead 1o actual collection at the end of usefull life.

Intangible assels representing carriageways and airport concessionaire rights are amortized over the concession period, 1anging from 17.5 to 25 years and 25 to
30 years respectively. which is beyond the maximum period of 10 years as specified in AS 26 on Intangible Assets. as the economic benefits from the underlying
assels would be available to the Group over such period as per the respective concessionaire agreements

Depletion of producing mines are based on using unit-of-production method from the date of commencement of commercial production of the respective area
of'interest over the Iesser of (he life of the mine or the terms of the coal contracts of work or mining business license

Softwaie is amortised based on the useful life of six years on a straight line basis as estimated by the management
Impairment of tangible and intangible assets

The Group assesses at cach 1eporting date whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired I any indication exists, or when annual impairment
Lesting for an assctis required. the Group estimates the asset’s recoverable amount An assel’s recoverable amount is the higher ofan asset’s or cash-generating
units ("CGU") net selling price and its value in use The recoverable amount is determined for an individual assct. unless the assel does not generate cash inflows
that are largely independent of those [rom other assets or Groups ol asscls Where the carrying amount of an assel or CGU exceeds its recoverable amount. the
asset is considered impaired and is written down to its recoverable amount In assessing value in use. (he estimated future cash flows are discounted to their




GMR Enterprises Private Limited
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2017

K)

m)

present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset In determining
net selling price, recent market transactions are taken into account, if available. If no such transactions can be identified, an appropriate valuation model is used.

The Group bases its impairment calculation on detailed budgets and forecast calculations which are prepared separately for each of the Group’s CGUs to which
the individual assets are allocated These budgets and forecast calculations are generally covering a period of five years. For longer periods, a long term growth
rate is calculated and applied 1o project future cash flows afler the fifth year

Impairment losses including impairment on inventories, are recognised in the statement of profit and loss, except for previously revalued tangible fixed assets,
where the revaluation was taken to revaluation reserve In this case, the impairment is also recognised in the revaluation reserve upto the amount of any previous
revaluation.

Afler impairment, depreciation / amortisation is provided on the revised carrying amount of the asset over its remaining useful life.

An assessment is made at each reporting date as to whether there is any indication thal previously recognised impairment losses may no longer exist or may
have decreased. If such indication exists, the Group estimates the asset’s or CGU’s recoverable amount. A previously recognised impairment loss is reversed
only if there has been a change in the assumptions used to determine the asset’s recoverable amount since the last impairment loss was recognised. The reversal
is limited so that the carrying amount of the asset does not exceed its recoverable amount, nor exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net
of depreciation, had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior years Such reversal is recognised in the statement of profit and loss unless the
assel is carried at a revalued amount, in which case the reversal is treated as a revaluation increase

Investments

Investments, which are readily realisable and intended 1o be held for not more than one vear from the date on which such investments are made, are classified
as current investments, All other investments are classified as long-term mvestments

On initial recognition, all investments are measured at cost The cost comprises purchase price and directly attributable acquisition charges such as brokerage,
fees and duties. If an investment is acquired, or partly acquired, by the issue of shares or other securities, the acquisition cost is the fair value of the securities
issued Ifan investment is acquired in exchange for another asset, the acquisition is determined by reference to the fair value of the asset given up or by reference
1o the fair value of the investment acquired, whichever is more clearly evident

Current investments are carried in the consolidated financial statements at lower of cost or fair value determined on an individual investment basis. Long-term
investments are carried at cost. However, provision for diminution in value is made to recognise a decline other than temporary in nature in the value of the
investments.

On disposal of an investment, the difference between its carrying amount and net disposal proceeds is charged or credited to the statement of profit and foss
Inventories

Inventories are valued as follows:

Raw materials components, stores and spares:

Raw materials, components, stores and spares are valued at lower of cost and net realisable value. However, materials and other items held for use in the
production of inventories are not written down below cost if the finished producls in which they will be incorporated are expected to be sold at or above cost.
Cost is determined on a weighted average basis and includes all applicable costs in bringing goods to their present Jocations and condition

Contract work-in-progress:

Costs incurred that relate to future activities on the contract are recognised as contract work-in-progress Conlract woik-in-progress comprises of construction
cost and other directly attributable overheads and are measured at lower of cost and net realisable value

Traded / Finished goods:

Traded goods are valued at lower of cost and net 1ealisable value Cost is determined on a weighted average basis and includes all applicable costs incurred in
bringing goods to thetr present Jocation and condition.

Self-generated certified emission reductions are recognised on grant of credit by United Nations Framework Convention on Climate Change and are measured
at lower of cost and net realisable value.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated costs of completion and estimated costs necessary to make
the sale

Iimployee benefits
i Defined contiibution plans

Retirement benelits in the form of provident fund, pension fund and superannuation fund cte are defined contribution schemes except in case of certain
entities, wherein only pension {und and superannuation fimd form part of the defined contribution scheme The Gioup has no obligation, other than the
contributions payable to the defined contribution schemes The Group recognises contribution payable to the defined contribution schemes as an
expenditure. when an employee renders the related service 1 the contribution payable to the scheme for sevice received before the balance sheet date
exceeds (he contribution already paid. (he deficit payable to the scheme is recognised as a liability afler deducting the contribution already paid 1f the
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contribution already paid exceeds the contribution due for services received before the balance sheet date, then excess isrecognised as an asset Lo the extent
that the pre-payment will lead 1o, for example, a reduction in future payment or a cash refund.

ii Defined benefit plans
The liability as at the balance sheet date is provided for based on the actuarial valuation, based on projected unit credit method at the balance sheet date,
carried ot by an independent actuary Actuarial gains and losses comprise experience adjustments and the effect of changes in the actuarial assumptions
and are recognised immediately in the statement of profit and loss as an mcome or expense.
Retirement benefit in the form of provident fund is a defined benefit scheme in DIAL DIAL contributes a portion of contribution to DIAL Employees
Provident Fund Trust (‘the Trust”) DIAL has an obligation to make good the shortfall, if'any, between the return from the investments of the Trust and the
notified interest rate which is detesmined by actuary and accounted by the DIAL as provident fund cost.

i, Other long-term employec benefits
The Group treats accumulated leave expected to be carried forward beyond twelve months, as long-term employee benefit for measurement purposes, Such
Jong-term compensated absences are provided for based on the actuarial valuation using the projected unit credit method at the year-end Actuarial gains /
losses are immediately taken 1o the consolidated statement of profit and loss and are not deferred. The Group presents the entire leave as a current liability
in the balance sheet, since it does not have an unconditional right o defer its settlement for twelve months after the reporling date

iv Short term employee benetits
Accumulated leave, which is expected to be utilised within the next twelve months, is treated as short-term employee benefit The Group measuies the
expected cost of such absences as the additional amount that it expects to pay as a result of the unused entitlement that has accumulated at the reporting
date

Forcign currency transactions

Foreign currency {ransactions and balances

i Initial recognition

Foreign currency transactions arc recorded in the reporting currency, by applying to the foreign currency amount the exchange rate between the reporting
currency and the foreign curtency at the date of the tiansaction.

ii. Conversion

Foreign currency monelary jtems are retranslated using the exchange rate prevailing at the reporting date Non-monetary items, which are measured in
terms of historical cost denominated in a foreign currency, are reported using the exchange rate at the date of the transaction Non-monetary items, which
are measured at fair value or other similar valuation denominated in a foreign currency, are translated using the exchange rate at the date when such value
was determined

ili  Exchange differences

The Group accounts for exchange differences arising on translation / settlement of foreign currency monetary items as below:

1 Exchange differences arising on a monetary item that, in substance, forms part of the Group’s net investment in a non-integral forcign operation is
accumulated in the foreign currency ranslation reserve until the disposal of the net investment On the disposal of such net investment, the cumulative
amount of the exchange differences which have been deferred and which relale (o that investment is recognised as income or as expenses in the same
period in which the gain or loss on disposal is recognised

2 Exchange differences arising on long-term foreign currency monetary items related to acquisition of'a fixed assct are capitalised and depreciated

over the remaining uselul life of the asset

3 ILixchange differences arising on other long-lerm foreign currency monclary items are accumulated in the “Foreign Currency Monelary Item
Translation DifTerence Account” and amortised over the remaining life of the concerned monetary item

4 All other exchange difTerences are recognised as income or as expenses in the period in which they arise.

For the purpose of 2 and 3 above. the Group treats a foreign currency monetary item as ‘long-term foreign currency monelary item” i it has a term ol 12
months o1 more al the date ol its origination In accordance with MCA circular dated August 9, 2012, exchange differences for this purpose, are total
difTerences arising on long-term foreign currency monetary items for the period  In other words, the Group does nol differentiate between exchange
difTerences arising from toreign currency borrowings Lo the extent they are regaided as an adjustment to the interest cost and other exchange diflerence

iv Forward exchange contracts entered into Lo hedge foreign currency risk of an existing asset / liability

The premium or discount arising at the inception of forward exchange contract is amortised and 1ecognised as an expense ¢ income over the life of the
contract  Exchange difTeicnces on such contracts. excepl the contracts which are long-term foreign currency monetary items. are recognised in the
consolidated statement of profit and loss in the period in which the exchange 1ates change Any profit or loss arising on cancellation or rencwal of such
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forward exchange contract is also recognised as income or as expense for the period. Any gain / toss arising on forward contracts which are long-term
foreign currency monetary items is recognised in accordance with paragraph (iii)(2) and (iii)(3) above.

v Translation of integral and non-integral foreign operations

The Group classifies all its foreign operations as either ‘integral foreign operations’ or ‘non-integral foreign operations’
The financial statements of integral foreign operations are translated as if the transactions of the foreign operations have been those of the Company itself

The assets and liabilities of non-integral foreign operations are translated into the reporting currency at the exchange rate prevailing at the reporting date.
Their statement of profit and loss are translated at exchange rates prevailing at the dates of transactions or weighted average rates, where such 1ates
approximate the exchange rate at the date of transaction. The exchange differences arising on translation are accumulated in the foreign currency translation
reserve On disposal of a non-integral foreign operations, the accunmulated foreign currency translation reserve relating to that foreign operation is recognised
in the statement of profit and loss.

When there is a change in the classification of foreign operations, the translation procedures applicable to the revised classification are applied from the
date of the change in the classification.

Any goodwill or capital reserve arising on acquisition of non-integral operations is ianslated at closing rate.
Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity shareholders (alter deducting preference dividends
and attributable taxes) by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period. Partly paid equity shares are treated as a fraction of an
equity share to the extent that they were entitled 1o participate in dividends relative to a fully paid equity share during the reporting period  The weighted average
numbers of equity shares outstanding during the period are adjusted for events such as bonus issue. bonus element in arights issue, share split, and reverse share
split (consolidation of shares) that have changed the number of equity shares outstanding, without a corresponding change in resources

For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity shareholders and the weighted average number
of shares outstanding during the period are adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares

Government grants and subsidies

Grants or subsidies including airport development fee from the government or any regulatory authority are recognised when there is reasonable assurance that
the grant / subsidy will be received and all conditions attached to the grant / subsidy will be complied with

When the grant or subsidy relates to revenue, it is recognised as income on a systematic basis in the statement of profit and loss over the periods necessary to
mateh them with (he related costs, which they are intended to compensate.

Where the grant or subsidy relates to an asset, the grant or subsidy amount (net of direct amount incurred to earn aforesaid grant or subsidy) is deducted from
the gross value of the asset concerned in arriving at the carrying amount of the related asset

Government grants of the nature of promoters” contribution are credited to capital reserve and treated as a part of shareholders” funds

Taxes on income

Tax expense comprises current and deferred tax Current income tax is measured at the amount expected to be paid 1o the tax authorities in accordance with the
Tncome Tax Act, 1961 (‘IT Act’) enacted in India and tax laws prevailing in the respective tax jurisdictions where the entities in the Group operates. The tax
rates and Lax laws used to compute the amount are those that are enacted or substantively enacted, at the reporting date Cuirent income lax relating to items
recognised directly in equily is recognised in equity and not in the statement of profit and loss

Deferred income taxes reflect the impact of timing difTerences between taxable income and accounting income originating during the current year and reversal
of timing differences for the earlier years Deferred tax is measured using the tax rates and the tax laws enacted or subslantively enacted at the reporting date
Deferred income tax relating to items recognised directly in equity is recognised in equity and not in the statement of profit and loss

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable timing differences. Deferred tax assets are recognised for deductible timing differences only to the extent
that there is reasonable certainty that sufficient [uture taxable income will be available against which such deferred tax assets can be realised Tn situations where
the entitics in the Group have unabsorbed depreciation or carry forward tax losses, all deferred tax assels are recognised only ifthere is virtual certainty supported
by convincing evidence that they can be realised against future (axable profits.

In the situations where the entities in the Group are entitled 10 a tax holiday under IT Act enacted in India or tax laws prevailing in the respective tax jurisdictions
where it operates, no deferred (ax (asset or liability) is recognised in respect of timing differences which 1everse during the lax holiday period. to the extent the
entity’s gross lolal income is subject to the deduction during the tax holiday period Defered tax in respect of liming difTercnces which reverse afler the tax
holiday period is recognised in the year in which the timing differences originate However, (he entities in the Group restricts recognition ol deferred Lax assets
10 the extent that it has become reasonably certain or virtually certain, as the case may be. that sullicient future taxable income will be available agamst which
such deferred tax assets can be realised For recognition of deferred taxes, the timing differences which originate first are considered to reverse first

Al each reporting date. the entities in the Group re-assess unrecognised deterred taxassels It recognises umccognised deferred ax assel 1o the extent thal it has
become reasonably certain or virtually certain. as the case may be, that sufficient luture taxable income will be available gainst which such deferred tax assets
can be realised
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The carrying amount of deferred tax assets are reviewed at each reporting date, The entities in the Group writes-down the carrying amount of defesred tax asset
(o the extent that it is no longer reasonably certain or virtually certain, as the case may be, that sufficient future laxable income will be available against which
deferred tax asset can be realised. Any such write-down is reversed to the extent that it becomes reasonably certain or virtually certain, as the case may be, that
sufticient future taxable income will be available.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are ofTset, if a legally enforceable right exists (o set -oft current tax assets against current tax liabilities and the
deferred tax assets and deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity and the same taxation authority

Minimum Alte is charged (o the statement of profit and redit
available as an is convincing evidence that the entities i riod,
i.e., the period to be carried forward. In the year in wl el in
accordance wit ng for Credit Availuble in respect o Min way
of credit to the own as ‘MAT credit entitlement’. The en each

reporting date and writes down the asset to the extent the entities in the Group does not have convincing evidence that it will pay normal tax during the specified
period.

Segment reporting policies

Identification of segments:

‘The Group’s operating businesses are organised and managed separately according to the nature of products and services provided, with each segment
representing a strategic business unit that offers dilterent products and serves different markets. The analysis ol geographi cal segments is based on the areas in
which major operating divisions of the Group operate

Inter segment transfers:

The Group accounts for intersegment sales / transfers at cost plus appropriate mai gins

Allocation of common costs:

Common allocable costs are allocated to each segment according to the relative contribution of cach scgment to the total common costs
Unallocated items:
Unallocated items include general corporate income and expense items, which are not allocated to any business segment. It includes income tax, defered tax

charge or credit and the related tax liabilities and tax assets, interest expense or interest income and related interest generating assets, interest bearing liabilities,
which are not allocated to any business segment

Segment accounting policies:

The Group prepares its segment information in conformity with the accounting policies adopted for preparing and piesenting the consolidated linancial
statements of the Group as a whole

Provisions

A provision is recognised when the Group has a present obligation as a result of past events, it is probable that an outflow ol resources embodying economic
benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable eslimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. Provisions arc not discounted to their present
value and are determined based on the best estimate required 1o settle the obligation at the reporting date These estimates are reviewed at each reporting date
and adjusted to reflect the current best estimates

Where the Group expects some or all of a provision to be reimbursed, for example under an insurance contract, the reimbursement is recognised as a separate
asset but only when the reimbursement is virtually certain. The expense r slating 1o any provision is presented in (he statement of profit and loss net of any
reimbursement

Derivative instruments

In accordance with the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (‘ICAI™) announcement. derivative contiacts, other than loreign currency forward contracts
covered under AS 11, are marked 1o market on a portfolio basis. and the net loss. if any. afler considering the offsetting effect of gain on the underlying hedged
item, is charged to the consolidated statement of profit and loss Net gain. if any. afler considering the offsetting eflect of loss on the underlying hedged item, is
ignored

Shares / debentures issue expenses and premium on redemption

Shares issue expenses incurred are adjusted in the year ofissuc and debenture issue cxpenses and1edemption premium payable on preference shares / debentures
are adjusted over the term of preference shares . debentures. These are adjusted 1o the securilies premium account. net of taxes. as permitled/preseribed under
Section 78 of the Companies Act, 1956/ Section 32 of the Act to the extent of balance available in premium account

Cash and cash cquivalents

ES

EN
E\



GMR Enterprises Private Limited
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2017

w)

X)

y)

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and in hand and short-term investments with an original maturity of three months or less.
Borrowing costs
Borrowing cost includes interest, amortisation of ancillary costs incurred in connection with the arrangement of borrowings.

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of an asset that necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready for
its intended use or sale are capitalised as part of the cost of the respective asset. All other borrowing costs are expensed in the period they occur.

Contingent liabilities

on that nce will be ¢ or non-occurrence of one or more
of the not recognis ¢ that an outflow of resources will

ingent cases where ot be recognised because it cannot
recogl but discloses its existence in the consolidated financial statements.

Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) expenditure

The Group has charged its CSR expenditure during the year lo the consolidated statement of profit and loss.
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3 Share

65,000,000 Equily shares of Rs. 10 each

47,550,000 Prelelience shares of Rs.10 each
Authorised Share capital

Issued, subscribed and fully paid-up:
62,674,918 equity shares ol Rs. 10 each

Total issued, subscribed and share capital

2017
Rs. in crore

62.67

62.67

(a) Reconciliation of the shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the reporting year

Equity Shares

March 31, 2017

Particulars

Number Rs. in crore
At the beginning of Lthe year 62,074,948 62.67
Add:- Issued during the reporting period
Less:-Cancelled during the reporting period
Outstanding at the end of the year 62,674,948 62.67

b) Details of Equity Share Holders Holding more than 5% shares in the Company

of the Share holders

March 31, 2017

No.of Shares % of Holding
15,668,613 24.9998%
Grandhi Varalakshmi Mallikarjuna Rao Trust
Srinivas Bommidala and Ramadevi Trust 15,668,613 24,9998%

Grandhi Buchi Sanyasi Raju ancl Satyavathi Smitha
Trust

Grandhi Kiran Kumar and Ragini Trust

Terms / rights attached to equity shares

15,668,613

15,668,613

24.,9998%

24,9998%

March 31, 2016

Rs. in crore

65 00
47.55

112.55

62.07

62.67

March 31, 2016

Number
62,674,948

62,674,948

Rs. crore
62.67

62.67

March 31, 2016

No.of Shares
15,668,613

15,668,613
15,668,613

15,668,613

24.9998%

24.9998%
24.9998%

24,9998%

The Company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of Rs.10 per share. Every member holding equity shares therein
shall have voting rights in proportion to the member's share of the paid up equity share capital. The Company declares and pays

dividend in Indian rupees

In the event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of equity shares would be entitled to receive remaining assets of the Company,

after distribution of all preferential amounts. The distribution wi

shareholders

Reserves and

Sceurities premium account
Specinl Reserve ufs 451C ol Rescrve Bank of India Act
General Reserve
Capilal Redemption Rescive
Capilal Reserve
- On account ol meiger
~On account ol Forleituie ol Iquity shates warrants
FOM Translation Reseirve
3% hange Flucluation Reseive
Net surplus/(Delicil) in the Statement of Prolit & Loss

Total Reserves and Surplus

March 31, 2017

Rs.

3,341.07
86.10

21.08

179.80

(2,845 30)

426.02

Il be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the equity

March 31, 2016
crore

603 89

17.99

3,341 07
856.10

(0.93)

249,96

(1,790 50}

2,499.04
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5 Long-term borrowings

Bonds / debentures

Non-current nortion
March 31,2017 March 31,2016

Rs. in crore

Rs. in crore

Current maturities
March 31,2017 March 31,2016

Rs. in crore

Rs. in crore

Debentuies (secuied) 2.635 86 3,373 49 183.63 33425
Debentures (Unsccured)
Foicign currency senijor notes (secured) 5,322 46 1,927.98
Foicign cuirency conveilible bonds (unsecuied) 1,969.91 2,003 10
Term loans
Indian rupce term loans from banks (secut ed) 13.578.93 22,330 58 1,412.76 4,689 34
Indian rupee term loans fiom financial institutions (secured) 3,415 28 6,022 70 58351 288 45
Indian rupee teim loans from others (secured) 0.14 012 0.21 39.10
Foreign cutiency loans fiom banks (secured) 3,627 67 2,596.91 761 78 4,783 64
Foreign cmrency loans from financial institutions (secured) 259.71 674 38 19.30
Indian rupee term loans fiom banks (unsecured)
Indian rupec teim loans from financial institutions (unsceured) 0.06
Indian rupee term loans from others (unsecured) 10 62 111.44 123.33 2.27
Foreign curiency loans fiom banks (unsecured) 323.00 317.34 7.51
Foteign currency loans from othets (unsecuied) 7.24 33.01
Indian rupee term loans against development fees (secutcd) 84.00
Supplier's ciedit (secuted) 19.69 19 69
Suppliet's credit (unsecured) 48.00
Other loans
Bills discounted (sccured)
Buyer's Credit 56 61 066
Finance lease obligation (secured) 001 003 068
Negative giant (unsecured) (Refer note 36) 66.41 66.41
From the State Government of Telangana (GoT") (unsecuicd) 31505 315.05
31.1 39.779.54 3.468.93 10.315.34
The above amount includes
Secured botrowings 28.896.67 36,945.88 2,961 85 10,239.15
Unsecuied borrowings 2,302.82 2,833.66 507.08 76.19
Amount disclosed under the head 'Other current labilities' (Refer note 9) (3,468.93) (10,315 34)
Net amount 31.1 39.779.54

During the year ended March 31, 2012, GEL has issued 8,000 secured, redeemable and non-convestible debentures (NCD") of Rs. 0.10 crore (Rs. 1,000,000)
each to ICICI Bank Limited (ICICT) The debentures me secured by way of fist 1anking: (a) pati passu charge on the fixed assets of GVPGL; (b) pari passu
pledge over 30% of fully paid-up cquity shares of Rs 10 each of GEL held by GREEL; (c) pari passu pledge over 30% of fully paid-up equity shares of Rs 10
each of GVPGL held by GEL; (d) pati passu charge over GVPGL's excess cash flow account, as defined in the subscription agreement executed between GEL
and ICICL; and (e) exclusive charge over Debt Service and Reserve Account ('DSRA") maintained by GEL with ICICL . GEL has fully redeemed its balance
debentures and the revised face value of these debentwes afler iedemption is Rs. Nil (March 31, 2016: Rs 0.08 crore (Rs. 830,500)) per debenture. These
secured, 1edecmable and non-convertible debentures wesc fisted on the Wholesale Debt Segment of National Stock Exchange of India Limited.

During the year ended March 31, 2012, the GIL had entered into an agreement Lo issue 7,000 secured, redeemable, non-conveitible debentuies of Rs. 0 10
crore cach to ICICI (‘Tranche 1). During the year ended Maich 31, 2013, the GIL had further entered into an agieement with ICICI to issue 3,000 secured,
redeemable, non-conveitible debentures of Rs 0 10 crore each (‘Tranche 2Y). These debentures are secuted by way of first ranking: (a) pari passu charge on the
fixed assets of GVPGL; (b) pari passu pledge over 30% of fully paid-up equity shares of Rs 10 each of GEL held by GREEL; (¢) pari passu pledge over 30%
of fully paid-up equity shares of Rs 10 each of GVPGL held by GEL; (d) pati passu charge over GVPGL's excess cash [low account, as defined in the
subscriplion agreement exceuted between the GII and ICICL: and (¢} exclusive charge over DSRA mainlained by the GIL with ICICI The Tianche 1 is
redeemable in thirty seven quattetly unequal instalments commencing from March 25. 2012 and Tianche 2 is redeemable in thirly six quarteily uncqual
instalments commencing from June 2012 As at Maich 31, 2016, GIL has partially redeemed these debentures and the 1evised face value of these debenturcs
after 1edemption is Rs.0.07 crore (Rs 717,500) (Maich 31, 2016: Rs 0 08 croe (Rs. 830,000)) per debenture

Secured. 1edeemable and non-convertible debentures of Rs. 0 10 ciore each issued by GPEPL amounling to 443 29 cioie (March 31, 2016: Rs. Rs 475 04
crore) e sceured by way of fitst charge over all assets of GPEPL, both movable (including future annuity 1eceivable) and immovable properties, both picsent
and future, excluding project assets (unless permilted by National Highways Authority of India (NITAT) under the Concession agreement). These debentures
are redeemable in 34 unequal half yearly instaiments commencing fiom April 2010 and ending in Oclober 2026

Secured. redeemable and non-converlible debentuies of Rs 0 10 crore each issued by GWEL amounting lo Rs 75 00 croie (March 31, 2016: Rs 75.00) are
securcd by way ol first pari-passu chaige by way of morigage on all the immovable properties and hypothecation of movable assets including plant and
machinery, machinery spates, tools and accessories, furniture, fixturcs, vehicles and other movable assets and further secured by first charge/ hypothecalion of
book debts, opetaling cash flows, receivables. other curenl asscls, 1evenucs whatsoever in nature. piesent and future, assignment on all projecl iclated
documents, all benelits incidental 1o the project as well as 1ights under letier of eredit or such other securily Lo be provided by the procurer of power under the
terms of PPA and pledge of shares represcnling 51%% of the lotal paid up equity share capital of GWEL These debentures are 1epayable in 3 equal instalments
in Seplember 2022, Seplember 2023 and November 2023 1 hese secured . tedeemable and non-conveilible debentures are listed on the Bombay Stock
Exchange
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During the year ended March 31, 2015, DIAL has issued Senior Secured Foreign Currency Notes (Notes') of Rs.1894.20 Crore(March 31,2016 Rs. 1,820.86
crore) from Intemational capital market . The Notes are due for repayment in February 2022. The notes arc secured by a first rank pari-passu charge on all the
future 1evenues, 1eceivables, Trust and Retention account ('TRA"), any other reserve, other bank accounts and insurance proceeds of DIAL and all the rights,
titles, interests, pesmils in respect of the project documents as detailed in the lenders agreements, to the extent permissible under Opetation Management and
Development Agieement (OMDA') '

During the year ended March 31, 2017, DIAL has issued Senior Securcd Foreign Curtency Notes ('Notes') of Rs.3428.26 Crore(March 31, 2016 Rs. Nil) in
International capital markel. The Notes are due for repayment in October 2026. The notes are secured by a first rank pari-passu charge on all the [uture
revenues, reccivables, Trust and Relenlion account (‘'TRA"), any other reserve, other bank accounts and insurance proceeds of DIAL and all the rights, titles,
interests, permits in tespect of the project documents as detailed in the lenders agreements, to the extent permissible under Operation Management and
Development Agreement ('OMDA")

Pursuant to the apptoval of the Management Commitlee of the Board of Directors dated December 10,2015, the GIL has issucd Unlisted FCCBs ol USD 30 00
Ciote to Kuwait Investment Authority with a maturity period of 60 years. The Subsctiber can exercise the conversion option on and after 18 months from the
closing Dale uplo close of business on maturity date. Interest is payable on an annual basis. The FCCBs are convertible at 18 per share which can be adjusted
downwards at the discretion of the GIL, subject to the regulatory floor price. The exchange rate for conveision of FCCBs is fixed at 66.745/ USD. The GIL
needs to lake necessary steps incase the bondholders direct the GIL 1o list the FCCBs on the Singapore Exchange Tiading Limitcd

Secured Indian rupee term loans from banks of Rs. Nil (Maich 31, 2016: Rs 124.79 crore) of GHRL ate secured by first pari passu charge by way of equitable
mortgage of GHRL’s immovable properties pertaining to the hotel project (including assignment of leasehold rights in the case of leasehold land, if any) and
assels of the project consisting of land admeasuring 5.37 acres together with all the buildings, structures ete. on such land; further secured by first pari passu
charge on the whole of stocks of raw materials. goods-in-process, scmi-finished goods and finished goods, consumable stores and spares, book debls, bills,
movable plant and machinery. machinery sparcs, tools and accessorics and other movables, whole of equipments including its spaies, tools and accessories,
soflwate, whether installed or not and whethet in the possession or under the control of GHRL o1 not, all bank accounts (whelher esciow and no liecn or
otherwise) and all estale, rights, title, inlerest, benefits, claims and demands, trade receivables, all cash flows and receivables and moceeds of GHRL. Fusther
the Toan is secuted by corporate guarantce given by GHIAL.. The loan was repayable in 48 unequal quarterly instalments commencing from Dccember
2012.However, during the current year, lhe above term Joans obtained from banks have been prepaid and settled in full by utilizing the procceds of a fresh lerm
loan facility availed fiom a Non Banking Financial Company (NBI'C)

Secured Indian rupee lerm loan from a bank of Rs. Nil (March 31, 2016: Rs 180 00 crotes) of GEL is sccured by (a) exclusive charge on assels created oul of
the loan facility; (b) cash margin of 10% of outstanding facilily amount in the form of fixed deposils lien marked in favour of the lenders; (¢) pledge of shares
of GEL, valucd at Rs 300 00 ciore; and (d) non disposable undertaking of the shares of the GIL held by GEPL of Rs. 60 00 crore. The loan is repayable in 16
unequal quarterly instalments commencing after 15 months from the date of first disbursement The bank has a put option for full or part of the facility amount
at the end of 36 months fiom the date of fitst disbursement and every 3 months thereafter As at Maich 31, 2017, the GEL has tepaid entite Loan Amount

Secured Indian rupee term loan fiom a bank of Rs. Nil (March 31, 2016: Rs. 264.00 crores) of GEL is secured by (a) exclusive charge on assels created out of
the Toan facility; (b) cash maigin of 10% of outstanding facility amount in the form of fixed deposit lien marked in favour of the lenders; (¢) pledge of shares of
GEL, valued at Rs. 210 00 crore; (d) corporate guarantee of the GIL; (¢) exclusive charge by way of mortgage on immovable fixed assets owned by GEL or any
associate Company/ Group Company/ promoters, such that a cover of 0.5x of the outstanding facility amount (net of fixed deposit margin) is maintained
throughout the tenuic of the facility; and (f) pledge of 25% equity shares of GVPGL held by GEL. The loan is sepayable in 16 unequal quailely instalments
commencing afler 15 months from the date of first disbursement The bank has a put option for full or part of the facility amount at the end of 24 months fiom
the date of first disbursement and every 3 months theieafler As at Maich 31, 2017, the GEL has Prepaid entite Loan Amount.

Secured Indian rupee term loan fiom a bank of Rs Nil (March 31, 2016: Rs. 408.86 crores) of GEL is securcd by (a) exclusive chaige on assets crealed out of

the Toan A of oulstanding facility amount in rked in favour of Lhe lenders; (c) pledge of shares of GEL
valued a corporale guarantee of the GIL; () age on office space at Bandra Kurla complex, Mumbai; (f)
pledge o . and (g) non-disposablc undertakin eld by GEL. The loan is repayable in 16 unequal quarterly
instalme 15 months from the dale of lirst dis he lender has a put option for [ull o1 part of the facility amount at the end ol 36

months from the date of first disbussement and every 3 months thereafler. As at March 31, 2017, the GEL has Prepaid Lntire Loan Amount

Seeused Indian rupee lerm loan fiom a bank of Rs 150 crote (March 31, 2016: Rs  150.00 ciore) of GLI is sceured by pledge of total paid up equily shate
capital of GEL held by the GIL for an amount equivalent to the oan facility, subject lo Banking Regulation Actl, 1949 and corporale guaranice by the GIL
guaianlecing the repayment of the loan and payment of inlerest and othet chaiges theieon. The loan is repayable afler 3 vears fiom the diawdown dale

Secured Indian rupee lerm loans fiom financial institution of Rs 124 37 Crote (Maich 31, 2016: Rs Nil) of GIIRL are secured by a pari passu fist charge on
immovable assets (including assignment of leasehold 1ights in the case of leasehold land) , movable asscls. tevenues. book debts, bank accounts and a pledge
over 30% of the equily shares of the GHRL. Fuither the loan is secured by corporate guarantee given by GHIAL ‘The loan was tepavable in 54 quarterly
instalments commencing lrom January 2017 to Apil 2030

Seeured Indian 1upee term loan fiom a bank of Rs 120 crore (March 31, 2016: Rs. 125 00 cro1e) of the GIL is scewred by a fust chaige over certain immoz able
propertics. airerafls. lien marked fixed deposil and an exclusive charge on loans and advances provided by the GIIL out of this loan lacility, charge over 30%
shares of GEPL in GNR Sports Private Limited (GSPL) and non-disposable undertaking with 1cgard 1o 19% ol sharcholding of GHPL in GSPL The Toan is
repayable in 8 cqual quarteily inslalments commencing fiom Maich 2017 as per the revised agicement dated May 23.2016
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Secured Indian rupee term loan from a bank of Rs. 500 00 crore (March 31, 2016: Rs. 500 00 croic) of the GIL is secured by (a) fiss( pari passu charge on 998
acres of Jand held by GKSEZ; (b) subservient charge on 8,236 acres of SEZ land held by KSPL; (¢) pledge of 30% (Maich 31,2016 : 30%) equity shares of
GCHEPL held by GGAL The loan is repayable in 12 structured quarterly instalments commencing from April 2021 and ending in January 2024 as pet the
ievised agreement dated May 27,2016, Theie me certain mandatory prepayment evenls agiced with the bank including further issue of equity
shares/divestment of stake in certain entities

Secured Indian rupee tetm loan fiom a bank of Rs. 185.01 crore (March 31, 2016: Rs. Nil of the GIL is secured by (a)first paii passu charge over 998 acies of
land held by GKSEZ (b) subservient chaige on 8,236 acres of SEZ land held by KSPL (c) charge over Dividend / Interest Eserow Account of the GIL into
which all dividends and/ot intetest 1eceivable by the GIL fiom GEL and GGAL would be deposited and (d) fitst 1anking pledge/NDU over 49%% of equity
shates of GGAL. The loan is repayable in eighteen structured quarterly instalments commencing from December 25, 2016 and ending on March 25, 2021
Further the lender has cestain mandatory prepayment 1ights as per the terms of the agreementls, including amendments thereof.

Secured Indian rupee term loan from a bank of Rs. 63 crore (Maich 31, 2016: Rs. 64 75 crote) of the GIL is securcd by (a) 10% of cash maigin on the
outstanding amount in the form of lien on fixed deposits in Favour of the lender; (b) exclusive chaige on asscts provided by the GIL cieated out of this facility;
(¢) pledge of 6.71 crote cquity shares of Re. 1 each of the GIL, held by GEPL and (d) Corpoiate guarantee of GEPL The loan is 1epayable in 10 stiuctured
quarterly instalments commencing fiom March 2017as per the revised agreement dated May 23,2016, The bank has a pul option for full or part of the facility
amount at the end of 36 months from the date of first disbursement and every 3 months thereafier.

Secured Indian rupee term loan from a bank of Rs. 75 ciore (March 31, 2016: Rs. 120 00 crore) of the GIL is secuicd by (a) 10% of cash margin on the
outstanding amount in the form of lien on fixed deposits in favour of the lender; (b) exclusive charge on assets provided by the GIL created out of this tacility;
(c) pledge of shares of the GIL on completion of 18 months fiom the date of [iist disbussement to cover the outslanding amount of loan facility less amount of
fixed deposil as slated aforesaid on such date; and (d) cross collaletization with existing securities ol the GIL with the lender The loan is repayable in 8 equal
quarterly instalments commencing January 2018 as per the revised agieement dated May 23,2016 The bank has a put option for full o1 part of the facility
amount at the end of 18 months from the date of first disbursement and every 3 months (hereafler

Secured Indian rupee term loan fiom a bank of Rs 84.83 crore (Maich 31, 2016: Rs. 87 08 crore) of the Gl1, is sccured by (a) 10% of cash matgin on the
outstanding amount in the form of lien on fixed deposits in favour of the Iender; (b) cross collaterization with existing secuities available to the lender undes
various facilitics extended to the Group by the lender; (c) pledge over 8.3% shareholding of GEL held by the GIL; (d) exclusive charge on assets created out of
underlying facility by GISPL in favour of lender approved comespondent bank; (e) pledge on CCPS invested by GISPL in GCRPL in favour of lender approved
correspondent bank; (f) cash flows of GISPL fiom the underlying contract with the GIL or its subsidiarics lo be esciowed / charged in favour of Jender
approved correspondent bank; (g) exclusive chage on foans given to GEL, and / or exclusive chatge on all the movable/immovable fixed assets of Raxa
Sceurities Services Private Limited (RSSLY) and / or charge on other assets acceptable to the lender to cover Lhe oulstanding loan amount; and (h) DSRA
covering interest payment for the first 3 months. The loan is repayable in 14 unequal semi-annual instalments commeneing afler 12 months from the date of
first disbwsement.

Secuted Indian rupec term loan from a bank of Rs. 45 23 crore (Maich 31, 2016: Rs. 75 39 crore) of the GIL is securcd by an exclusive first mostgage and
charge on (a) residential property of Mr. G.B S Raju at Bengaluru; (b) certain immovable properties of Boyance Infiastructure Private Limited (BIPLY); (c) non-
agricultural land of Hyderabad Jabilli Piopertics Private Limited (HIPPL) at AP; (d) non-agiicultural lands of Mr G. M Rao; (e) commercial apartment
owned by Honey Flower Estates Private Limited (HFEPL') and additionally secured by a) an irnevocable and unconditional guarantee of BIPL and HJPPL
limited to the extent of the value of their property as stated aforesaid b) an inevocable and unconditional guatantec of GEPL, BIPL and HFEPL and ¢) demand
promissory note equal to principal amount of the loan and interest payable on the loan given by the GIL The loan is 1epayable in 13 equal quartetly
instalments commencing from July 2015 as per the 1evised agieement dated Apil 10, 2015.

Secured Indian rupee term loan from a bank of Rs 378 00 ctore (March 31. 2016: Rs.Nil) of the GII is secured by i) first chaige on assets cieated out of this
facility ii) 10% of cash margin on the outstanding amounl in the form of lien on fixed deposits in favout of the lender The loan is 1epayable in twenty eight
structwred quarleily instalments commencing fiom October, 2017,

Secured loan fiom a bank of Rs. 0 23 crore (Maich 31, 2016: Rs. 0.38 ciore) of the GIL ate secured on certain vehicles of the GIL The loan is tepayable in 60
cqual monthly inslalments commencing liom October 2013

Secured Indian jupee Lerm loan from a bank of Rs. 270 00 ciote (Maich 31, 2016: Rs 285 00 Crorc) of the GIL is sceured by (a) 10% DSRA in the form of
lien on fixed deposit in favor of the lender; (b) exclusive fist chaige on asset provided by the GIL cicated oul of the facility: {¢) pledge over 5% sharcholding
of GEL held by the GIL; (d) pledge over 26% of ¢quily shares of GWEL held by GEL The loan is tepayable in 14 stiuctwied quarterly instalments commencing
from January 2017 as per the 1evised agicement dated May 23,2016
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Secured Indian rupee term loans from banks and financial institutions of Rs 1586 44 crore (March 31, 2016: Rs. 1,637 14 crore) of GHVEPL are secuted by
way of pari passu first chaige over GHVEPL's movable properties, both present and future, including plant and machinery. Further secured by the rights, title,
interest, benefit, claims of GHVEPL in respect of the project agreements executed / to be executed, insurance policies both present and futuie, and all 1ights,
title, interest, benefit, claims, demands of GITVEPL in respect of monies lying to the credil of TRA and other accounts and substitution agreements and
collection of tolls unless restricted by NIIAT under the concession agteement and by pledge of 1,300,000 equily sharcs and 7,733,000 preference shaies held by
GMRHL in GHVEPL. The loans are repayable in 46 unequal quartely instalments commencing from Apiil 2013.Inteiest on secured loan amounting to Rs.
38 61 Cr. (March 31,2016 Rs 35.51 C1.) for a period of three months (approx) is overdues for payments.

Secured Indian rupee term loans fiom a bank of Rs 25 27 crore (Match 31, 2016: Rs 35 00 ciorc) of GHVEPL is secured by way of first pari passu charge on
the same securitics offered as secuily for the Pioject Loan and is 1epayable in 36 monthly instalments commencing afler 24 monlths fiom the date of first
disbursement i.e., March 2014 Principal instaliment of Rs. 2.92 Cr against wotking capital loan overdue.

Secured Indian rupee term loans fiom banks of Rs 253.13 crore (March 31, 2016: Rs 254 54 cio1¢) of GACIPL are sccured by way of pari passu first charge
over GACEPL's movable properties, both present and future, including plant and machinery. Further secured by the 1ights, title, interest, benefit, claims of
GACEPL in respect of the pioject agicements execuled / lo be executed, insurance policies both present and futwie, and all 1ights, title, interest, benefit,
claims, demands of GACEPL in 1espect of monies lying to the credit of TRA and other accounts Fuither securcd by way of pledge of 100% equity shares of
GACEPL held by the GIL , GEL and GMRHL. During the year ended March 31,2016, the loans have been restiuctured. The loan is repayable in 42 uncqual
quarterly instalments with the Jast installment due in September 2025.

Secured Indian rupce term loans fiom banks of Rs. 129 73 croie (March 31, 2016: Rs 168 43 cioie) of GTTEPL mie secured by way of mortgage of all the
present and futme immovable fixed assets of GTTEPL, hypotheeation of movable fixed assets of the GTTEPL and the annuity / 1eceivables, investments made
out of the balance lying in TRA, assignment of all contraclor guarantee, performance bond guaranice and liquidated damages, assignment of all the 1ights,
titles, interest in the assets of the project and all project documents, assignment ol all insurance policics, pledge of 51% of equity shares of GTTEPL,
assignment of revolving letter of ciedit issued by NHAL, corporate guarantee by GEPL to cover any short fall in the amount payable in 1espect of the facility in
the event of terminalion due to any evenl of default other than NHAI event of default The loans ate repayable in 29 unequal half yearly instalments
commencing from November 2005.

Secured Indian rupee term loans from banks of Rs 671 89 crore (Maich 31, 2016: Rs 673.74 crore) of GCORRPL ate secured by way of first charge on all
immovable and movable propertics of GCORRPL, both piesent and futwe; assignment of all rights, titles and inlerests in respect of all assets (as permitted by
Concession Agreement) and a fitst chasge on all revenues and receivables and by way of pledge of 26% of paid up equity capital of GCORRPL held by the
shaicholders.. Duiing the year ended March 31, 2015, GCORRPL has undertaken negotiation with the lenders pursuant to which, the repayment of the
aforesaid loans has been 1cscheduled. The loans are repayable in 27 unequal half yearly instalments commencing from June 2014,

Secured Indian rupee term loans fiom banks of Rs 101 10 crore (March 31, 2016: Rs. 130.70 ciore) of GTAEPL are secured by way of mortgage of all the
present and future immovable fixed assets of GTAEPL, hypothecation of movable fixed asscts of GTAEPL and the annuity / 1eceivables, investments made out
of the balance lying in TRA, assignment of all contiactor guaiantee, petformance bond guarantee and liquidated damages, assignment of all the rights, titles,
interest in the assets of the project and all project documents, assignment of all inswance policies, pledge of 51% of equity shares of GTAEPL, assignment of
revolving LC issued by NHAL corporate guaantee from GHPL to cover any shost fall in the amount payable in sespect of the facility in the cvent of
termination due to any event of default other than NHAI event of default The loans are 1epayable in 29 unequal half yearly instalments commencing from
November 2005.

Secured Indian rupee term loans from banks and financial institutions of Rs Nil (Maich 31, 2016: Rs 2,964.31 crore) of DIAL are secured by first rank pari
passu charge on all the futuie ievenues, 1eceivables, TRA, DSRA, major maintenance reserve, any other 1eserve, other bank accounts and insurance proceeds
of DIAL and all the rights, titles, interests, permits in respecl of the project documents as detailed in the lenders agieements, to Lhe extent permissible under
OMDA and further by the pledge of requisite shares of DIAL held by GAL, Malaysia Aiipotts (Maurilius) Private Limiled (MAMPL") and Frapoil AG
Frankfurt Airpoil Services Worldwide (FAG') (shateholdets of DIAL) The rupee (erm Joans fiom banks and financial institutions carry an interest rate al base
rate plus agieed spread, which is subject Lo reset at the end of agreed interval. The Loan is fully repaid during the year

Sccured Indian rupee lerm loan fiom a bank of Rs. 113 22 crote (Maich 31, 2016: Rs 146.87 crore) of DDFS is secured by hypothecation of DDFS's entite
stock of raw materials, semi-finished and finished goods, consumable slores and spares and such other movables including book debts, bills whether
documentary or clean, oulstanding monies, teccivables both present and futuie in a form and mannet satisfaclory to the banks Turther secured by a fust charge
on movable fixed assets of DDFS, both piesent and futwe (excepl those financed by other financial institutions) and pledge of 30% of sponsois' shareholding
held in DDFS worth Rs 24 00 Crore and an esciow agreement belween Lhe Tenders and DDEFS for fust and exclusive charge on ieceivables The loan of Rs
110 40 crore is 1epayable in 36 unequal quartesly instalments commencing liom December 2011 to September 2020 and the loan of Rs. 0 20 crore is tepayable
in 11 equal quarterly instalments commencing fiom Maich 2015 to December 2017 and the balance Toan of Rs 2 62 ciote is repayable in 4 cqual quailerly
installiments commencing from Seplember 2017 to June 2018
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Secured Indian rupee term loans from banks and financial institutions of Rs 1586 44 crore (March 31, 2016: Rs. 1,637 14 crore) of GHVEPL are secuted by
way of pari passu first chaige over GHVEPL's movable properties, both present and future, including plant and machinery. Further secured by the rights, title,
interest, benefit, claims of GHVEPL in respect of the project agreements executed / to be executed, insurance policies both present and futuie, and all 1ights,
title, interest, benefit, claims, demands of GITVEPL in respect of monies lying to the credil of TRA and other accounts and substitution agreements and
collection of tolls unless restricted by NIIAT under the concession agteement and by pledge of 1,300,000 equily sharcs and 7,733,000 preference shaies held by
GMRHL in GHVEPL. The loans are repayable in 46 unequal quartely instalments commencing from Apiil 2013.Inteiest on secured loan amounting to Rs.
38 61 Cr. (March 31,2016 Rs 35.51 C1.) for a period of three months (approx) is overdues for payments.

Secured Indian rupee term loans fiom a bank of Rs 25 27 crore (Match 31, 2016: Rs 35 00 ciorc) of GHVEPL is secured by way of first pari passu charge on
the same securitics offered as secuily for the Pioject Loan and is 1epayable in 36 monthly instalments commencing afler 24 monlths fiom the date of first
disbursement i.e., March 2014 Principal instaliment of Rs. 2.92 Cr against wotking capital loan overdue.

Secured Indian rupee term loans fiom banks of Rs 253.13 crore (March 31, 2016: Rs 254 54 cio1¢) of GACIPL are sccured by way of pari passu first charge
over GACEPL's movable properties, both present and future, including plant and machinery. Further secured by the 1ights, title, interest, benefit, claims of
GACEPL in respect of the pioject agicements execuled / lo be executed, insurance policies both present and futwie, and all 1ights, title, interest, benefit,
claims, demands of GACEPL in 1espect of monies lying to the credit of TRA and other accounts Fuither securcd by way of pledge of 100% equity shares of
GACEPL held by the GIL , GEL and GMRHL. During the year ended March 31,2016, the loans have been restiuctured. The loan is repayable in 42 uncqual
quarterly instalments with the Jast installment due in September 2025.

Secured Indian rupce term loans fiom banks of Rs. 129 73 croie (March 31, 2016: Rs 168 43 cioie) of GTTEPL mie secured by way of mortgage of all the
present and futme immovable fixed assets of GTTEPL, hypotheeation of movable fixed assets of the GTTEPL and the annuity / 1eceivables, investments made
out of the balance lying in TRA, assignment of all contraclor guarantee, performance bond guaranice and liquidated damages, assignment of all the 1ights,
titles, interest in the assets of the project and all project documents, assignment ol all insurance policics, pledge of 51% of equity shares of GTTEPL,
assignment of revolving letter of ciedit issued by NHAL, corporate guarantee by GEPL to cover any short fall in the amount payable in 1espect of the facility in
the event of terminalion due to any evenl of default other than NHAI event of default The loans ate repayable in 29 unequal half yearly instalments
commencing from November 2005.

Secured Indian rupee term loans from banks of Rs 671 89 crore (Maich 31, 2016: Rs 673.74 crore) of GCORRPL ate secured by way of first charge on all
immovable and movable propertics of GCORRPL, both piesent and futwe; assignment of all rights, titles and inlerests in respect of all assets (as permitted by
Concession Agreement) and a fitst chasge on all revenues and receivables and by way of pledge of 26% of paid up equity capital of GCORRPL held by the
shaicholders.. Duiing the year ended March 31, 2015, GCORRPL has undertaken negotiation with the lenders pursuant to which, the repayment of the
aforesaid loans has been 1cscheduled. The loans are repayable in 27 unequal half yearly instalments commencing from June 2014,

Secured Indian rupee term loans fiom banks of Rs 101 10 crore (March 31, 2016: Rs. 130.70 ciore) of GTAEPL are secured by way of mortgage of all the
present and future immovable fixed assets of GTAEPL, hypothecation of movable fixed asscts of GTAEPL and the annuity / 1eceivables, investments made out
of the balance lying in TRA, assignment of all contiactor guaiantee, petformance bond guarantee and liquidated damages, assignment of all the rights, titles,
interest in the assets of the project and all project documents, assignment of all inswance policies, pledge of 51% of equity shares of GTAEPL, assignment of
revolving LC issued by NHAL corporate guaantee from GHPL to cover any shost fall in the amount payable in sespect of the facility in the cvent of
termination due to any event of default other than NHAI event of default The loans are 1epayable in 29 unequal half yearly instalments commencing from
November 2005.

Secured Indian rupee term loans from banks and financial institutions of Rs Nil (Maich 31, 2016: Rs 2,964.31 crore) of DIAL are secured by first rank pari
passu charge on all the futuie ievenues, 1eceivables, TRA, DSRA, major maintenance reserve, any other 1eserve, other bank accounts and insurance proceeds
of DIAL and all the rights, titles, interests, permits in respecl of the project documents as detailed in the lenders agieements, to Lhe extent permissible under
OMDA and further by the pledge of requisite shares of DIAL held by GAL, Malaysia Aiipotts (Maurilius) Private Limiled (MAMPL") and Frapoil AG
Frankfurt Airpoil Services Worldwide (FAG') (shateholdets of DIAL) The rupee (erm Joans fiom banks and financial institutions carry an interest rate al base
rate plus agieed spread, which is subject Lo reset at the end of agreed interval. The Loan is fully repaid during the year

Sccured Indian rupee lerm loan fiom a bank of Rs. 113 22 crote (Maich 31, 2016: Rs 146.87 crore) of DDFS is secured by hypothecation of DDFS's entite
stock of raw materials, semi-finished and finished goods, consumable slores and spares and such other movables including book debts, bills whether
documentary or clean, oulstanding monies, teccivables both present and futuie in a form and mannet satisfaclory to the banks Turther secured by a fust charge
on movable fixed assets of DDFS, both piesent and futwe (excepl those financed by other financial institutions) and pledge of 30% of sponsois' shareholding
held in DDFS worth Rs 24 00 Crore and an esciow agreement belween Lhe Tenders and DDEFS for fust and exclusive charge on ieceivables The loan of Rs
110 40 crore is 1epayable in 36 unequal quartesly instalments commencing liom December 2011 to September 2020 and the loan of Rs. 0 20 crore is tepayable
in 11 equal quarterly instalments commencing fiom Maich 2015 to December 2017 and the balance Toan of Rs 2 62 ciote is repayable in 4 cqual quailerly
installiments commencing from Seplember 2017 to June 2018
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Secured Indian rupce lem loans fiom banks and financial institutions and foreign cumency loans including the interest rate swap ('IRS') anangement fiom
banks of Rs. 1766 26 croic (March 31, 2016: Rs 1,797.44 ciore) of GHIAL are secured by mortgage of leasehold right, tille, interest and benefit in 1espect of
leaschold land to the extent of 2,136 acies,ficehold land of 8 82 acies and first pari passu charge on all movable and immovable assets, operating cash flows,
book debls, 1ecetvables, intangibles and 1evenues, bolh piesent and futuie, as well as assignment of all 1ight, title, intcicst, benclits, claims and demands
available under the concession agreement and other project documents, security interest in the TRA, DSRA and furtha secured by pledge of 16.41 crore and
2 87 crore equily shaies, bolh present and future, held o1 (o be held, upto 51% of the paid up share capital of GHIAL, as the case may be, by both, GAL and
MAHB (Mauritius) Private Limited respectively. The forcign currency loans fiom banks of Rs 479.86 crore (Maich 31, 2016: Rs. 548 18 cioie) carry an
interest 1ate of LIBOR plus agreed spread; however GHIAL has entered into an IRS arrangement to conveit floating ralc of interest inlo fixed 1ate of interest, as
pet the terms of (he loan agreement.. The Indian rupee lerm loans from banks and financial institutions of Rs 1,286.40 crore (March 31, 2016: Rs 1,249.26
crote) cairy interest at basc rate plus agreed spicad, which is subject to reset at the end of agreed interval.. The secured Indian rupee term loan fiom banks and
financial institulions were refinanced during the year and Lhe loan is repayable in 51 quarterly installments beginning fiom October 31,2016 Out of the above,
Indian rupee term loans from banks and financial inslitutions are repayable in 52 quarterly instalment beginning from July 2016 as against 56 quartetly
instalments beginning fiom July 2010 The securcd foreign currency loan from a bank is repayable in 56 quarterly instalments beginning fiom July 2010

Secured Indian rupee term loan fiom a bank of Rs. 19 32 ciote (Maich 31, 2016: Rs. 24 97 cio1¢e) of CDCTM is secured against charge on fixed assets and
sutplus account in accordance with an escrow agicement entercd with the bank . The loan is 1epayable in 28 cqual quarterly instalments commencing fiom
June 2012 and 20 equal quaiterly instalments commencing fiom September 2014

Sceured Indian rupee term loans fiom banks and financial institutions of Rs. 4234.27 crore (March 31, 2016: Rs 4,212 40 crore) of GKEL are secured by first
mortgage and charge by way of 1egistered morlgage in favour of the lenders / security trustees of all the immovable properties of GKEL, present and future / a
first charge by way of hypothecation of all GKEL's movable fixed assets including movable plant and machinery, machinery sparcs, lools and accessories,
present and futute, GKEL's stock of 1aw materials, semi-finished and finished goods and consumable goods, a fist charge on the book debls, opciating cash
flows, 1cceivables, commissions, 1cvenues of whalsoever nature and whercver m ising present and future, inlangibles, goodwill, uncalled capital, presenl and
future / fist charge on the TRA including the DSRA and other 1eserves and any other bank accounts, wherever maintained piesent and future fitst charge by
way of assignmenl ot ciealion of charge of all the right, title, interest, benefits, claims and demands whatsoever of GKEL in the piojecl documents / in the
clearances / in any letler of ciedit, guatantee, performance bond provided by any party to the project documents and all insurance contiacts / insurance
proceeds, pledge of shaics (in the demat form) tepresenting a minimum of 85 99% (March 31, 2016: 85.99%) of the tolal paid up equily share capital of
GKEL  All the securilics set oul above shall sank pati passu amongst the lenders of the project for an aggregate rupee term Joans including foreign currency
loans and working capital lendets for an amount acceplable to the lenders  During the year ended March 31, 2015, GKEL has undertaken negotiation with the
lenders puisuant to which the tepayment of the aforesaid loans has been rescheduled The loans (excluding cost overrun funding) are 1cpayable in 47 equal
quarterly instalments commencing fiom Aptil 2015, in line with the revised schedule date of commeicial operations. Furthet, cosl overtun lunding is 1epayable
in 48 sttuctwed quarterly instalments fiom April 2016.

Sceured Indian yupee term loans fiom banks and financial institutions of 3,314.59 crote (March 31, 2016: 3,418.32 ciote) of GWEL except term loans under
subscrvient charges ate sccured by way of a {iist chaige by registered mortgage of all the immovable properties (present and [utuwe) and by hypothecation of
movable assels including plant and machinery, machinery spares, tools and accessories, stock of raw materials, semi-finished goods and consumable goods
Further, secuted by way of a first charge on book debts, operating cash flows, 1eceivables, 1evenues whatsocver in naluie, presenl and futuie, 1etention account,
esclow account, DSRA and any other bank account, assignment / hypothecation on all rights, titles, interest, profit, benefits, claims, demand whatsoever of
GWEL in the projeet documents/ cleaiances perlaining to the project / letter of credit / guatantee / performance bond/ corporale guarantee/ bank guarantee /
provided by any paity to the pioject documents as amended fiom time to time. Turther, the loan is secured by pledge of equity shares repiesenting 51% of the
tolal paid up equity shate capilal of GWEL The beneficial interest in the sccurity shall rank pmii passu among all the rupce lenders and the lenders
participating in the bank boriowings for the working capital requirements / bank guaantee facility to the extent as approved by the 1upee lenders and secured
bond holders Rupee term loan fiom a bank of 200.00 crore is sceured by a subservient chaige with existing lenders on all the movable properties including but
not limited to plant and machinery spares, tools, spares and accessories of the project and other movables both present and future During the year ended March
31, 2015, GWEL had undeitaken 1efinancing of existing loans pussuant to which the Joans carry an interesl iate of basc 1ate plus 215 bbps (presently 11.45%
p a)and the loans as¢ 1epayable afler a moratorium of 18 months with first instalment becoming due fiom June 2016, further 72% of the loans are 1epayable in
54 unequal structuied quartely instalmenls and balance 28% are 1epayable in September 2029 by way of refinancing Rupee term loan from a bank of 105.00
crore (March 31, 2016: 105 00 cioie) is 1epayable in 20 equal quarterly instalmenls commencing fiom July 2016 Futther rupee term loan fiom a bank of
100 00 crotc is repayable in 72 uncqual quarterly instalments commencing fiom June 2016 and rupce term loan fiom a bank of 93.00 croic is repayable in 31
unequal quarterly instalments commencing fiom September 2017. The loan fiom a financial institution of 100 00 crore (Masch 31, 2015: Nil) is 1cpayable in
20 equal quarlerly inslalments commencing liom Ap1il 2017

Sceured Indian rupee term Joan fiom a financial institulion of Rs 500 crore (Maich 31, 2016: Rs 600 00 crore) of the GIL is sccwied by a first paii passu
chaige on 8.236 acies of land held by KSPL The loan is tepayable in 10 equated annual instalments commencing from December 2012

Secwred Indian rupec term loan fiom a financial institution of Rs 150 00 ciore (Maich 31, 2016: Rs 150 00 crore) of the GIL is sccured by exclusive fust
chaige on land held by GKSLZ 'The loan is repayable in 7 cqual annual instalments commencing fiom the end ol fow years from (he date of fusl

disbursement

Seceured Indian 1upee term loan [tom a financial institution of Rs 19 00 crore (Maich 31, 2016: Rs 28 75 croc) of the GIL is secured by a charge on the assets
of the GIL. The loan is icpayable in 57 monthly instalments commencing fiom April 2014
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Seceured Indian rupee term loan from a financial institution of Rs. 173 32 crore (March 31, 2016: Rs. 195 00 croic) of the GIL is sccured by way of (a) first
mortgage and charge on non-agricultuie lands of SIK; (b) pledge of 2 croie equity shares of Re. 1 each of the GIL, held by GEPL and (c) pledge of such
number of equity sharcs of Rs. 10 each of GEL having book value of minimum of Rs 400 00 crore held by the GIL and in case of default in 1epayment of loan,
the lender has the right to convert the loan into equity The loan is repayable in 18 quarterly instalments commencing [rom October, 2016

Sceured Indian rupee term loan from a financial institution of Rs. 260 crore (Match 31, 2016: Rs. 260 00 crote) of the GIL is secuted by exclusive first charge
on certain immovable properties located in the Slatc of AP owned by NREPL, Corporate Infrastructure Seivices Private Limited, a fellow subsidiary,
Varalaxmi Jute & Twine Mills Privale Limited, Vijay Niwas Real Estates Privale Limited and Smt G Varalakshmi The loan is repayable in 6 equal annual
instalments commencing at the end of five years fiom Lhe date of first disbursement.

Sceured Indian rupee term loan from a financial institution of Rs 700 crore (Maich 31, 2016: Rs. 700.00 ciore) of GEL is secured by way of first pari-passu
charge on (he land of KSPL and corporate guatantee given by the GIL. The loan is repayable in 6 equal instalments afler the fifth year from the date of fust
disbursement. The loan was taken during the year ended March 31, 2013.As at March 31, 2017, the GEL has defaulted in the quarterly payment of interest of
Rs 20.71 Crore (March 31, 2016: Rs 20 94 Chroic)

Secured Indian rupee term loans from banks and financial institutions of Rs. 225 76 crote (March 31, 2016: Rs. 196.53 cio1¢) of GGSPPL except in case of
one bank are secuted by way of pledge of shares aggiegating 51% of the total paid up capital of GGSPPL and first charge by way of mortgage of immovable
properties of GGSPPL. Further, rupce term loan fiom the iemaining one bank is secuted by a subservient chaige/ hypothecation/ mortgage/ assignment/
secutity interest on all movable and immovable assets present and future in favour of lender or sccwity trustce The Loans from Banks is fully repaid during
the year The loans fiom financial institulions are repayable in 53 & 55 quatteily inslalments commencing fiom September 2016 & March 2017, .

Sccuted Indian rupee term loans fiom banks of Rs 9 90 crore (March 31, 2016: Rs 14.30 cro1c) of DASPL ate secured by exclusive chaige on movable assets
of DASPL,entite cunent assels ol DASPL and DASPL's escrow account receivables The Joans are repayable in 32 quarteily instalments commencing from
Juty 2011 till Apeil 2019

Secuted Indian rupee Lerm loans from banks of Rs. Nil (March 31, 2016: Rs. 12.28 cro1e) ol HASSL ate secured by an cquitable mortgage of leasehold right
and title in respect of leasehold land belonging to GHIAL and other immovable properties and first chaige on all movables, including movable machinery,
machinery spaires, tools, accessories, fumiture, fixtures, vehicles and other movable assets, book debts, opetating cash flows, receivables, intangibles, uncalled
capital, commissions, 1evenues, piesent and future and assignment of all claims and demands from insuiance, TRA, DSRA of HASSL and further secured by
pledge of 0.37 erore equity shares of HASSL held by GHIAL.The loan is repayable in 21 equal quarterly inslalments commencing fiom Maich 2012,

Secured Indian rupee term loans trom banks of Rs 60.61 crore (March 31, 2016: Rs 55 20 ciore) of GHASL are secured by mortgage of leasehold right, title,
interest and benefit in 1espect of leasehold land and an exclusive charge on all movable and immovable assets, operating cash flows, book debts, receivables,
commissions, 1evenue of whatsoever nature, both present and future, and an exclusive charge on all bank accounts of the project, including TRA, escrow
accounts ete.. Further, on account of 1estructuring, GHASL got the additional lerm loan facility by way of additional funded interest term loan (FITL). Further,
GHASL also got the moratorium of two years for tepayment of loans (term loan and FITL) iepayable over 32 unequal quaste: ly instalments beginning from
June 2017 as against an earlier repayment term of over 40 unequal quarterly instalments beginning fiom November 2013.

Sceured Indian rupee term Joans (including FITL) fiom banks of Rs. 278.39 crore (March 31, 2016: Rs 281 99 croie) ol GAECL are secured by first pari-
passu charge by way of (a) cquitable mortgage of leasehold rights of land of GAECL and GATL lo the extent of 16.46 acies on which MRO facilities are
consliucted with all the buildings, structuies, etc on such land; (b) hypothecation of all the movable assets of the GAYCL and the subsidiaiy, GATL,
including, but not limited to plant and machinery, machinery spares, tools and accessories, current assets; (¢) book deblts, operating cash tlows, receivables,
commissions, revenue of whatsoever natute and wherever aiising, present and future of GAECL and GATL; (d) all rights, title, interesls, benefits, claims and
demands whatsoever of GAECI. and GATL, with respect to the inswance contracls; (¢) on all the bank accounts of GAECL and GATL; () pledge of 51% of
paid up share capital of GAECI, held by GHIAL; and (g) un-conditional and irrevocable corpaiate guarantee of GHIAL pmi passu among the lenders for their
1espective term loans and funded interest term loan. During Lhe yeat ended March 31, 2015, rupee term loans fiom banks wete testiuctured with a moratorium
petiod of two years in 1epayment of loan The loans are repayable in 40 quaiterly unequal instalments beginning fiom Junc 2016 as against cailier repayment
term of 40 quarterly uncqual instalments beginning fiom February 2014 Further, the intetest for a period of 25 months commencing fiom March 2014 has
been converted into FITL and the FITL is 1epayable in 28 quaiterly unequal instalments beginning from June 2016

Sceured Indian rupee term loans fiom banks of Rs 28.73 ciore (Maich 31, 2016: Rs 28 50 crote) of DAFF are sceured by a charge on receivables / cash flows
/ 1evenue under esciow account. bolh presenl and future, afler payment of slatutory ducs and license fees payable to DIAL - The loans weie taken in two
tianches. the fitst tanche is repayable in 48 quarterly instalments commencing fiom July 2011 and the sccond tranche is icpayable in 20 quarter ly inslalments,

caleulated based on actual disburscments



GMR ENTERPRISES PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2017

48

49

51

53

w
[

56

Secured Indian rupee term loans fiom banks of Rs. 109.99 crore (March 31, 2016: Rs 136.04 crore) of DAPSL are secured by way of an exclusive fiist charge
on Lhe 1evenue, profil, 1eceivables, book debts, oulstanding monics, recoverable claims and cash flows, both present and futue and by way of pledge of 30% of
the issued and paid up capital of DAPSL, to be pledged at all the times duiing the tenure of loan. The loans were catlier 1epayable in 38 unequal quarterly
instalments commencing fiom Oclober 2015, however puisuant 1o refinancing the loans are repayable in 32 quarterly structured instalments commencing from
June 2017.

Secured Indian rupee term loans from banks of Rs 4.50 crore (March 31, 2016: Rs. 5 37 crore) of TIM are secured by a charge on entire book debts of TIM,
bills whether documentary or clean, outstanding monies and 1cceivables of TIM, both piesent and futute, under esciow account TIM has also given an
undertaking to the bank for first right on security deposit of Rs 17.47 crore (given to DIAL) so released by DIAL for appropriation towaids dues of the lendet,
if any. The loans weie laken in two tianches, the fitst anche is 1epayable in 24 equal quarterly instalments commencing from December 2011 and the second
tranche is 1epayable in 16 equal quarteily instalments commencing fiom May 2014 and the thiid tianche is repayable in 42 equal monthly instalments
commencing fiom July 2016 and the third tianche is 1epayable in 38 equal monthly installments from November 2016.

Secured Indian rupee term loans fiom banks and financial institutions of Rs. 669.94 crore (March 31, 2016: Rs. 425.10) of GBHHPL arc secured by first
charge on all movable, immovable propertics including stock of 1aw material and consumables, all book debts, cash flows receivables, TRA, DSRA and other
ieserves and any other bank accounts of GBIHPL bolh piesent and future Further secured by way of assignments / hypolhecation of secuity interest ol all the
lights, title, interest, benefils, claims and demands of GBITHPL in the pioject documents. Further secured by way of pledge of 51% of its equity shares held by
GEL  The loans are repayable in 54 unequal quarteily instalments commencing from July 2019.

Secured Indian rupee term loan fiom a bank of Rs. 77.50 crore (March 31, 2016: Rs 87.50 crore) of GADL is secured by first exclusive charge on GADL’s
loans and advances, current assets, cash flows and interest on inter corporale deposits/ sub debt including corporate guarantee fiom the GIL and GAL The loan
is repayable in 28 quarteily instalments commencing liom December 2013

Scewed Indian rupee term loans fiom financial institutions of Rs Nil (March 31, 2016: Rs 100.00 crore) of GMRHL are secured by way of a pledge of 26%
equity shares of GMRHL held by the GIL This term loan is repayable in a lumpsum within 37 months from Lhe date of agiecment i.e. Match 2013,

Secused foreign cunency loans from banks of Rs. 352 66 Crore (Maich 31, 2016: Rs. 362.70 crote) of GKEL aie secured by first ranking chaige/ assignment /
mottgage / hypothecation / secutity intetest on pari passu basis on all the immovable (including land) and movable properties (excluding mining equipment's)
including plant and machinery, machine spares, tools and accessories, furniture, fixtures, vehicles and other movable assets of GKEL, both present and futwie
in rclation to the project, all the langible and intangible asscts including but not limited to its goodwill, undertaking and uncalled capital, both piesent and
future in relation to the project, all inswiance policies, performance bonds, contractors guarantees and any letter of credit provided by any person under the
project documents, all the rights, titles, permits, clearances, approvals and interests of GKEL in, to and in respect of the project documents and all contracts
relating to the project, all the book debts, opetating cash flows, 1cceivables, all other current assets, commission, revenues of GKEL, both present and future in
relation to the project and all the accounts and all the bank accounts of GKEL in relation to the project and pledge of shares (in the demat form) held by GEL,
conslituting 51% of the shares which shall be 1educed to 26% of shares on repayment of balf the loans subject to the compliance of conditions put forth by the
lenders. All the securities set out above shall 1ank pari passu amongst (he lenders of the project for an aggiegate rupee term loans including foreign currency
loans and working capital lenders for an amount acceptable 1o the lenders.. GKEL has to tepay 1% p a. of the total foreign cunency loans drawdown amount
commencing 12 months from the initial diawdown dale for fitst four yeass and thereafter the balance amount is to be paid in 32 quarterly instalments fiom fifth
vear onwards

Secured foreign currency loans from banks of Rs Nil (March 31, 2016: Rs. 577 24 crore) of DIAL are secured by first rank paii-passu charge on all the futuie
revenues, receivables, TRA, DSRA, major maintenance reserve, any othet reserve, other bank accounts and insurance proceeds of DIAL and all the rights,
titles, interests, permils in respect ol the project documents as detailed in the lenders agreements, to the extent permissible under OMDA and further secured
by the pledge of requisitc shares held by the consortium of GAL, MAMPL and FAG (sharcholders of DIAL). The loans cairy an interest at 6 months LIBOR
plus agieed spread of 480 bbps However, DIAL had cntered inlo an IRS arrangement to convert floating 1ate of interest into fixed 1ate of inteicsl, as per terms
of the loan agicement

Sccured foreign currency loan from a bank of Rs 100 45 crore (Maich 31, 2016:Rs. 99 30 Croie) of PI'GEMS is secured by ceilain properties and equipments
of PTGEMS and its subsidiaries; and pledge of shares and corporale guarantees from Gioup companies. The loan is repayable over a petiod of 10 years

Secured foreign currency loans fiom banks of Rs 2,451 86 crore (Maich 31, 2016: Rs 2,528 98 crote) of GCRPL e secured by a chaige over all tangible and
intangible assets of GCRPL and a charge over the shares of GCRPL held by GEL and the GIL. Further, secuted by way of guarantee by (he GIL and a non-
disposable undertaking with respect to shares held in PTGEMS by GCRPL The term loans are repayable in 4 instalments of 5% of the loans wilhin 24 months
fiom the first utilisation dale i ¢ in October 2011, 10% within 36 months from the first utilisation date, 10% within 48 months from the fust utilization date
and the final instalment of 75% on the maturity dale i ¢ in Oclober 2016
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Secured foreign currency loans from banks of Rs 945.56 crore (March 31, 2016:Rs. 801.00 Crore) of GMCAC are secured against the collateral secuiity of all
monies deposited by GMCAC and from time to time standing in the cash flow waterfall accounts; the project receivables; the procceds of any asset and
business insurance obtained by GMCAC, except for the proceeds of insurance policies arising from damage of any project asscls; the project documenls
(accession agreement, lechnical service agicement and engineeling and procurement contract); and the 100% of the total issued and outstanding capital stock
of GMCAC The loans shall be repayable in 12 uncqual yearly instalments with the final instalment being paid 15 yeats after initial drawdown date

Secured foreign currency loans from banks of Rs 53.75 ciore (March 31, 2016: Rs 36.25 cio1e) of GUKPL is secuicd by mortgage of land and building
existing or o be created in future owned by GUKPL in favor of the lender Further, secuted by way of letter of comfort in favor of the lender by GEL and also
secured by way of acknowledgment letter from Government of Nepal through Investment Board of the Government of Nepal, as per Section 14.1 of Project
Development Agreement of GUKPL's assignment/transfer of GUKPL's rights or benefits Further sccured by way of assignment of 1ightls and beneits as pet
Section 14.1 of Project Development Agteement and hypothecation of entire woik in progress. The biidge gap loan is for lhree years fiom (the first
disbursement date (i.c. December 2014) or till three months after financial closuie whichever is earlier. The intercst rate shall be 1eviewed semi-annually

Unsecuted Indian rupee term loan from others of Rs 0.60 crore (March 31, 2016: Rs. 0 70 crote) of HMACPL is interest fice. The loan is 1epayable in 15
cqual annual instalments of Rs. 0.10 crore each commencing fiom April 2009.

Sceured loan from others of Rs 0.12 crore (March 31, 2016: Rs. 0 17 crore) of the GIL is secured by certain vehicles of the GIL. The loan is 1epayable in 60
equal monthly instalments commencing from Ap1il 2014

Unsecured foreign currency loan fiom a bank of Rs 317.34 crore (Maich 31, 2016: Rs. 330.51 croie) of GISPL is securcd by an inccoverable and
unconditional standby letter of credit up to a limit of USD 5 00 crore guaranteed by the GIL. The loan is 1epayable over a period of 5 yems over 9 instalments
of 1% within 12 months from the first utilisation date, 1% within 18 months from the first utilisation date, 1.25% within 24 months fiom the fusl utilisation
date, 2.50% within 30 months from the {irst utilisation date, 7 50% within 36 months fiom the first utilisation date, 9 25%6 within 42 months fiom the fiist
utilisation date. 9 50% within 48 months fiom (he fist utilisation date, 9 50% within 54 months fiom the first utilisation date and a final instalment of 58 50%
on the maluiity peiiod of 60 months

Unsecured foreign cuniency loans trom others of Rs. 6 74 crore (March 31, 2016: Rs 6.90 crore) of CDCTM is 1epayable in a single instalment on matutity i e
May 2018.

Sccured Indian rupee term loans from banks and financial institutions against development fees receipts of Rs. Nil (Maich 31, 2016: Rs. 84 00 crore) of DIAL
are secured by pari passu first charge on development fees The loans are repayable from collection of development fees receipls and the 1epayment
commitments are as pei the loan agreement.

Indian rupee term loan from a bank of Rs.Nil (Maich 31, 2016: 18.17 Crore) of GVPGL is secured by way of fixed deposits and corporate guatantees of
GREEL The loan is repayable in seven equal quarlerly instalments from the end of 3 months from the date of fiist disbursement of the facility

Unscewed suppliers' credit of Rs.Nil of GGSPPL (Maich 31, 2016: Rs. 48 00 crore) represents interest free retention money repaid during the cunenl year

Finance leasc obligations of Rs 0 66 crote (Maich 31, 2016: Rs. 0.66 crore) of GPCL a1e secued by underlying assels taken on finance leasc amangement The
lease lerm 15 5 ycars

Negative grant of Rs 66 41 croie (March 31, 2016: Rs 66.41 crore) of GACEPL is interest fice Negalive grant is tepayable in unequal yearly instalments over
the next 5 years As at Maich 31, 2016, an amount of Rs. 66 41 crore (Mmch 31, 2016: Rs. 61.16 crote) is due and GACEPL has obtained an inlerim stay
otder fiom the atbitiation tiibunal against the recovery of the negative grant till further orders

Interest frec loan fiom others of Rs 315 05 ciore (Maich 31, 2016: Rs. 315 05 crote) of GHIAL received from the Slate Governmenl of Telangana (cistwhile
State Government of Andhia Pradesh) is 1epayable in 5 equal instalments commencing fiom 16th anniversary of the commercial operations date of GHIAL i ¢
Nareh 2008

Secured Indian rupee term loan fiom a bank of Rs 41.67 erore (March 31, 2016: 83 34 croic) of KSPL. is sccuted by pai passu fhst charge on land and
buildings appurtenant thercon and fist ranking exclusive charge over DSRA. Turther sccured by an inevocable and unconditional guarantee given by the GIL
The loan is 1epayable in 12 equal quatterly instalments commencing from the end of 27 months fiom the firsl drawdown date i ¢ October 20144

Finance lease obligation of 3 40 crore (March 31, 2016: 0 05 Ciore) of TIM on account of vehicle Jease is sccured by hypothecation of vehicle The loan is
1epayable in 36 unequal monthly instaliments
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Secured Indian rupee term loans fiom financial institutions of Rs. 10.97 crore (March 31, 2016: Rs. 15.85 ciore) of GAPL are secured by way of hypothecation
of aitcrafts of GAPL and guarantee issued by the GIL. The loan is repayable in quarterly instalments of Rs 1.22 cioie each with an option to pseclose at the
end of year 1 and thereafier on every interest reset date with 30 days written notice to the lender without any prepayment premium.

Secured suppliers' credit of Rs. 19 30 crore (Maich 31, 2016: Rs. 39.38 crore) of GAPL is secured by way of hypothecation of aircrafls, guasantee issued by the
GIL and a bank guarantee given by GAPL The rate of interes is six months LIBOR plus spread of 115 bbps. The loan is repayable in 16 equal half yearly
instalments commencing from Apiil 2010

Secured Indian rupee loan fiom a financial institution of Rs 62.49 crore (March 31, 2016: 55 42 Croic) of SJK is sceusred by the way of (a) pledge on 1.70
crore equity shares of the STK; (b) pledge on 100% equity shares of GPEL; (c) pledge on 49% equity sharcs of GTAEPL; (d) pledge on 49% equity shares of
GTTEPL; (¢) pledge on 26% equity shates of GHVEPL; (f) Fitst pati passu charge on loans and advances of the above mentioned 10ad companies; (g) pledge
on 21% equity shates of GMRHL; (h) pledge on 26% preference share capital of GMRHL; (i) charge by the way of mortgage on certain properties; and (j)
chatge by the way of mortgage on 82 acies of immovable property located at Maharashtia The enlite loan is 1epayable on bullct repayment on the date falling
36 months fiom the date of first disbursement i.e. Seplember 2018

Secured Indian rupee loan from a financial institution of Rs. 75 00 ciore (March 31, 2016: Nil) of RSSL is secuied by the way of a inevocable Corporate
Guarantee issued by GMR Infrastrucure Limited (GIL), chaige on present and future assets of the RSSL ciealed out of the term loan, charge on 10% of FD
margin of the outstanding facility amount, mortgage of vaiious immovable pioperties of the gioup and pledge ol the shares of various companics of the
group..The loan is repayable in 28 quarterly instalments commencing from October 31, 2017

Unsecuted Indian rupee term loans fiom financial institulions of Rs 125 Crotes (March 31, 2016: Nil ) of GREEL Loan is iepayable in monthly installments
starting fiom July'17 The last repayament date is December 2021

Secured Indian rupee term loan from a financial institution of Rs 150.00 ciore (Maich 31, 2016:Rs 150 Cioie) of KSPL is secured by pati passu st charge
on land to the extent of 8,236.50 acres along with escrow ol ieceivable fiom land leasing of 916 acies under Phase-T and lien on fixed deposil of 5.65 crore
Tuither secured by an irrevocable and unconditional guasantee given by the GIL The loan is repayable in 8 equal quateily instalments commencing fiom the
cnd of 27 monlths from the first diawdown date i € September 2017.

Sceured Indian rupee term loan from a bank of Rs. 405 00 ciore (March 31, 2016: Rs 450 00 Ciore ) of GAL is secured by exclusive first charge by way of
hypothecation on GAL's movable fixed assets (except investments) and current assets, 1evenues and receivables, both present and futue, monies lying in the
accounts of GAL, including TRA. Further secured by pledge of 26% equity shares of GAL held by the GIL, an unconditional and inevocable corporate
gumantee fiom the GIL, non-disposal undertaking and power of attorney executed in favor of bank (1o be executed for any acquisition of shares by GAL in
DIAL beyond 54%). The loan canies interest at base rate plus agreed spread, which is subject to 1eset at the end of agreed interval. The loan is repayable in 15
quarterly equal instalments commencing from March 2017 Lill September, 2020, The balance 24% of the loan shall be repaid as a bullet 1epayment in
September 2020

Unsceured Indian rupee term loan from olhers of Rs.10 79 crore (March 31, 2016: Rs 12.96 ciore) of Lagshya is inlerest free. The loan is 1epayable in 6
unequal annual instalments commencing from the financial year 2015-16

Sceured foreign curency loans from banks of Rs. 5.91 ciote (March 31, 2016: Rs.4.38 Crore) of HHPPL is secuted by mortgage of fixed asscls existing or to
be crealed in future owned by HHPPL in favor of the lender Further, secured by way of letter of comfoit in [avor of the lender from GEL The tenure of the
loan is for 3 5 years from the first disbursement dale i e June 2015 or till three months aller financial closure whichever is earlier.

Sceured Indian rupee term loan fiom a bank of Rs. 4.10 crore (Masch 31, 2016: Rs 2.90 Croic) of GRSPPI, is scewed by way of first charge on all the
goods,book debts and all the other movable assets The loan is repayable in 11 yeatly instatments with initial gestation period of 12 months commencing fiom
February 2017.

Seeured Indian tupee term loans fiom banks of Rs 1 72 crore (March 31, 2016: Rs 2 58 crote) of TI'S are secured by pledge of 30% of the shareholding in
TS and by way of lien on escrow account.The loans are repayable in 28 equal quarterly instaliments commencing fiom July 2011

Sceured. 1edeemable and non-convertible debentures (NCD") of Rs 0 10 crote (Rs 1,000,000) each issucd by the company to KKR India Financial Services
Pvt Ltd Rs.180 crore ( March 2016, Rs. 180 cio1¢) The debentues are secured against Pledge of shares of GMR Infrastructure Lid and repayable in 4 Quarterly
installments commencing from January 16, 2019

Sceured. redeemable and non-convertible debentures (NCDY) of Rs 0 10 croic (Rs 1,000,000) cach issucd by the company to KKR India Capital Maikets
India Pvt.Ltd Rs.1.90 ciore ( Match 2016, Rs 190 crote). The debenlures are sceured against Pledge of shares of GMR Infiastructure Lid and iepayable in 4
Quarterly installiments commencing from January 16, 2019

Scewred. 1edeemable and non-convertible debentures ('NCDY) of Rs 0 10 @oie (Rs 1,000,000) each issucd by the company lo KKR India Debt Fund 1
Rs 30 10 crore ( March 2016, Rs 50.10 crore). The debentuies are sceured against Pledge of shares of GNR Infiastructuie Lid and tepayable in < Quartely
instalimenls commencing fiom January 16. 2019
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Secured, redecmable and non-conveitible debentures (NCD') of Rs. 0 10 crore (Rs 1,000,000) each issued by the company to KKR India Debl Opportunities
Fund 101 Rs.21.30 crote ( March 2016, Rs.21.30 crore) The debentwies are sccured against Pledge of shares of GMR Infiastructuse Lid and repayable in 4
Quatlerly installments commencing fiom January 16, 2019,

Secured, redeemable and non-convertible debentutes ('NCD') of Rs. 0 10 crore (Rs 1,000,000) each issued by the company to L&T Infrastructure Finance Ltd
Rs 210.40 ciore ( Maich 2016, Rs.210.40 ciore). The debenlures are secuted against Pledge of shares of GMR Infiastructure Ltd and repayable in 4 Quarterly
installments commencing fiom January 16, 2019.

Secuted, redeemable and non-convertible debentures (NCD') of Rs 0 10 crote (Rs. 1,000,000) each issued by the company to Piramal Enlemprises Limited
Rs 450 00 crore ( March 2016, Rs.450 00 crore). The debentuics arc secured against Pledge of shares of GMR Infrastructure Ltd and 1epayable in 4 Quaiterly
installments commencing from April 1, 2019

Sccured, redeemable and non-convertible debentuics (NCD') of Rs 0 10 cro1e (Rs. 1,000,000) each issued by the company to Baboon Investmenls Holdings
B.V Rs 450.00 ciore ( March 2016, Rs 450 00 ctore) The debentuies arc secuted against Pledge of shares of GMR Infrastructure Ttd and repayable in 4
Quatterly installments commencing fiom April 1, 2019

Secured, redeemable and non-convettible debentures (NCD') of Rs 0 10 ciote (Rs 1,000,000) each issued by the company to VIB Capital PLC Rs 220 00
crore ( March 2016, Nil) The debentures are secured against Pledge of shares of GMR Infiastructute Ltd and repayable Rs.120 crote in April2020 & another
Rs 100 Crores in June2020

Sceured loan fiom linancial instilution of Rs 464 croie ( Naich 2016: Rs 464 Ciote) of the Company is secumed against Pledge of GMR Infiastructure Ltd
shares and 1epayable in 4 quarterly installments commending fiom January 16, 2019

Unsceured Indian rupee term loan from others of Rs 100 Crores ( March 2016: Rs 100 crore) of the company tepayable in Oct2017

Unsecured Indian rupee term loan financial institution of Rs 132 Crores ( March 2016: Rs Nil) of the company repayable Rs 92 crote in september2017 &
another Rs. 40 crore payable in Octobe1'2017

Secuied loan from financial institution of Rs 47.50 crore ( Maich 2016: Rs. 76 Croie) of the Company is secuied against Mortgage of Piopeities of various
group companies and Pledge of GMR Infrastructuie Lid shares and iepayable in 12 Quailerly installments commencing fiom Junc'l5

Secured loan fiom financial institution of Rs.84.50 crore ( Maich 2016: Rs 84.50 Croie) of the Company is sccuted against Mortgage of Propeilics of various
group companies and Pledge of GMR Infiastructuie Ltd shares and repayable in 4 Quarterly installments commencing from June'l7.

Secuted loan fiom financial institution of Rs Nil ( Maich 2016: Rs 112.29C101¢) of the Company is secuted against Pledge of GMR Infiastructure Lid shares
and repayable in 4 quarterly installments commending [iom Januaty 16, 2019

Secured loan fiom financial institution of Rs Nil ( Maich 2016: Rs 1 05 ciore of the Company is secuied against Moitgage of Pioperties of various group
companies and Pledge of GMR Infiastructure Ltd shares and 1epayable in Monthly 0 46 Cis Fiom Dec'14 to Oct'16 & Batance Loan of Rs 21 70 Crs In the
Month of Nov'16

Scewred, redeemable and non-conver tible debentures (NCI) of Rs 0 10 ciore (Rs 1,000,000) each issued by the company to Fitst Gull Bank Rs Nii ( Maich
2016, Rs, 300 crore), These are repayable in 3 veaily installments commencing [tom Januaty'2017

Secured indian rupee term loans fiom a bank of Rs Nil ( Maich 2016: Rs 37 50 crore) of the company is secured by way of of Corporate Guaratnee and
repayable in 8 quartetly installments commencing [iom Seplember 7th 2014

Scewed loan fiom financial institution of Rs 11229 ( March 2016: Nil) of the GBCLLP is securcd against Pledpe of GMR Infiastructure Ltd shares and
1epayable in 4 quarterly installments commending fiom Januany 16,2019

Unsceured Indian 1upec term loan fiom others of Rs 107 Crores ( March 2016: Nil) of the KIPL 1epayable in Seplember2018

Unsceuted loan iom others of Rs. 1 15 crore ( NMarch 2016: Nil) of the REPL repayable in Ap1il2018

Sceured indian rupee term loans fiom a bank of Rs 451 crore ( March 2016: Nil) of the GSEPL is secured by way of exclusive chaige on all project asscls
including plant & machinery and repavable in 44 quartetly installments commencing fiom January'2017

ES

it

EN

¥



GMR ENTERPRISES PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2017

6 Other liabilities

Particulars March 31, 2017

To Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises

To others 87.95 33.14
87.95 33.14

Others
Advance / deposits received from customers 263.60 317.62
Unearned revenue 9.48 13.26
Deposits / advances [rom concessionaires 596.80 104.33
Deposits / advances [rom commercial property cevelopers 1,566.57 1,471.51
Concession lee payable 229.87 183.67
Non-trade payable (including retention money) 81.36 129.88
2,747.68 2,220.27

7 Provisions

Long-term Long-term
Provision for employee benefits
Provision for gratuity 19.07 4.59 11.39 1.86
Provision lor leave benelits 13.44 69.55 13.17 58.39
Provision for voluntary retirement compensation 17.83 17.07 34.90 17.61
Provision [or other employce benelits 38.66 8.24 33.03
Total (A) 50.34 129.87 67.70 110.89
Other provisions
Provision for taxation (net) 8.80 107.82 51.96
Provision for wealth tax
Provision for cebenture recemption premium 1.91 3.94
Provision [or mark to market losses on derivate
contracts 75.41 50.12
Provision for operation and maintenance (net of 120.12 38.44 58.15 53.71
advances)
Provision [or tax on proposed cquity dividend 0.43 5,08
Proposed prelerence dividend 0.01
Provision lor tax on proposed preference dividend 0.11
Total (B} 128.92 224.02 58.15 165.82
Total Provisions ( A+B) 179.26 353.89 125.85 276.71
€S
=
w
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8 Short-term borrowings March 31, 2017 March 31, 2016
Rs. in crore Rs. in crore
Sccured:
Cash credit and overdraft from banks 692 05 1.071.88
Letters of credit/ bills discounted 10.98
Indian rupee short term loans from banks 36270 227.90
TForergn currency short term loans from banks 436.94 702.79
Indian rupee short term loans from financial institutions 711.92 246.02
Short Term Loans from others 102
Unsecured:
Foreign currency short term loan from bank 224 67 360.55
Indian rupee short term loans from banks 192.30 42542
Indian rupee short term loans from others 34.14 104
Others 17.84 69.40
2,673.58 3,115.98
The above amount includes
Secured borrowings 2,204 63 2,259.57
Unsecured borrowings 468 95 856 41
2,673.58 3.115.98

| Cash credit [rom a bank of Rs 10.02 crore (March 31, 2016: Rs. Nil) of GETL is secured by exclusive charge on current assets of GETL
and an unconditional and irrevocable corporate guarantee by GEL and the GIL

2 Cash credit from a bank of Rs 2 87 crore (March 31, 2016: Rs. 0.95 crore) of GAPL is secured by way of a corporate guarantee [rom the
GIL and a charge over current assets of GAPL

3 Cash credit from a bank of Rs. 21 05 crore (March 31, 2016: Rs. 23.42 crore) of GATL 1s secured by first charge on entire current assets
and cash flows including stocks, receivables, bank balances etc , first pari passu charge by way of extension of equitable mortgage of
leasehold rights ol land to the extent of 16.46 acres registered in the name of GAECL on which MRO facilities have been created along
with all the buildings and structures, first pari passu charge by way of hypothecation of all the movable assets belonging to GATL and

GAECL and including but not limited to plant and machinery, machinery spares, tools and accessories and corporate guarantee from
GALCL

4 Cash credit from a bank of Rs. Nil crore (March 31, 2016: 4.24 crore) of GHRL is secured by way ol [irst pari passu charge on entire
curtent assets and cash tlows including stocks, receivables, bank balances cte with existing term lenders and collateral first pari passu
charge by way of extension of equitable mortgage of the immovable properties and assets pertaining to the hotel project (including
assignment of leasehold rights in the case of leasehold land, if any) and assets of the project consisting of Jand admeasuring 5 37 acres
together with all the buildings, structures etc on such land

S Cash eredit from banks of Rs. 158 37 crore (March 31, 2016: Rs. 110 10 crore) of GKEL are secured by way of first charge and registered
mortgage ol all the immovable properties and movables including plant and machinery, machinery spares, tools and accessories, stock of
raw materials, semi-finished goods and consumable goods and by book debts, operating cash flows, receivables, revenues whatsoever in
nature, present and future. Further, they are secured by pledge of shares representing 87 42%(March 31,2016: 85 99%) ol the total paid
up equity share capital of GKEL held by GEL The benclicial interest in the security shall rank pari passu among all the rupee lenders
and the lenders participating in the bank borrowings for the working capital requirements / bank guarantee (acility to the extent as
approved by the rupee lenders



GMR ENTERPRISES PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2017

6

10

L4

16

Cash credit from banks of Rs 270.47 crore (March 31, 2016: Rs. 237 48 crore) of GWEL are secured by way of a first charge and
registered mortgage of all the immovable properties and movables including plant and machinery, machmery spares, tools and
accessories, stock of raw materials, semi-finished goods and consumable goods and by book debts, operating cash flows, receivables,
revenues whatsoever in nature, present and future Further, they are sccured by pledge of shares representing 51% of the total paid up
equity share capital of EMCO. The beneficial interest in the security shall rank pari passu among all the rupee lenders and the lenders
parlicipating in the bank borrowings for the working capital requirements/ bank guarantee facility to the extent as approved by the rupee
lenders and secured bond holders.

Cash credit from a bank of Rs. 1 09 crore March 31, 2016: Rs. 5.32 crore) of DASPL is secured by way of [first charge on DASPL
escrow account afler payment of statutory dues and dues to DIAL

Cash credit from banks of Rs.Nil (March 31, 2016: Rs 19 90 crore) of DDFS are secured by first charge by way of hypothecation on
DDES's entire stocks of raw materials, semi-finished and finished goods, consumable stores and spares and such other movables
including book-debts, bills whether documentary or clean, outstanding monies, receivables, both present and future, in a form and manner
satisfactory to the bank and first charge on movable fixed assels of DDFS, both present and future (except those financed by other
financial institution), in a form and manner satisfactory to the bank and pledge of 30% of sponsors' shareholding in DDI'S worth Rs.
24.00 crore in accordance with section 19(2) and 19(3) of the Banking Regulation Act and escrow agreement between the bank and
DDFS [or first and exclusive charge on receivables.

Rank overdraft of Rs 76.31 crore (March 31, 2016: Rs 77.46 crote) of the GIL is secured by a first charge on current assets of the EPC
division of the GIL and a lien on fixed deposits with banks of the GIL

Secured Indian rupee short term loans from banks of Rs Nil crore (March 31, 2016: Rs. 9.41 crore) of KSPL are secured by way of a
charge on fixed deposits of PAPPL

Bills discounted of Rs Nil (March 31, 2016: Rs 10.98 Crore) of GVPGL are secured by first charge over the current assets of GVPGL
and a corporate guarantee by GPCL

Secured Indian rupee short term loan from a bank of Rs. 2 59 crore (March 31, 2016: Rs.Nil) of CDCTM is secured against trade
receivables including unbilled revenue.

Secured Indian rupee short term loan from a bank of Rs 46 85 crore (March 31, 2016: Rs 18 75 Crore) of GETL 1s secured by an
exclusive charge over the current assets of GETL and an unconditional and irrevocable corporate guarantee by GEL and the GIL

Secured Indian rupee short term loans from a bank of Rs 4 89 Crore (March 31, 2016: Rs 0 01 Crore) of DAIT was secured by way of
charge on receivables / cash flows / revenue under escrow account, both present and future, after payment of statutory dues and license
fees payable to DIAL

Secured Indian rupee short term loans from banks of Rs 7 93 crore (March 31, 2016: Rs 55 69 crore) of DSPL are secured against [ixed
deposits ol certain Group Companies

Secured Indian rupee short term loans from banks of 0.02 crore (March 31, 2016: 11 45 Crore) of GREL are secured by first charge on
all movable, immovable properties, including stock ol raw material and consumables, all book debts, cash flows receivables, TRA,
DSRA and other reserves and any other bank accounts of GREL both present and [uture; [urther secured by way of
assignments/hypolhecation of security interest of all the rights, title, interest, benefits, claims and demands of GREL in the project
documents including all insurance contracts and clearances and all benefits incidental thereto; further secured by way of book debt,
commissions, revenues ol whatsoever nature and wherever arising, present and [uture, intangibles, goodwill and uncalled capital, present
and future; Further sceured by way of pledge of 115 70 crore shares held by GEL

"1
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Unsecured Indian rupee short term loans from banks of Rs. Nil (March 31, 2016: Rs 118.75 crore) of GETL.

A standby letter of credit had been invoked by the bank and the amount outstanding and due for payment as at March 31,2016 was Rs.
84 69 crore. The loan was secured by a first charge over the current assets of GEL and a second charge over the entire fixed assets of
GEL 1t has repaid the entire amount

Secured Indian rupee short term loans trom banks of Rs Nil (March 31, 2016: Rs 5.88 crore) of GEL are secured against fixed deposits
of GPCL and GVPGL

Unsecured Indian rupee short term loans from a bank of Rs. 144 80 crore (March 31, 2016: Rs. 211.70 crore) of GI3HPL

Unsecured short term loans from Bank of Rs.5 25 Crores (March 31,2016:Rs Nib) is secured against third party fixed deposit repayable
on or before 12th Apr'2017

Bank Overdraft of Rs 14.58 Crore (March 31,2016 :Nil) of GMRHL is secured by the Pledge of FD of GTTEL of Rs 14 16 Cr and GIL -
SIL. JV of Rs 20 Cr.The principle is repayable as per tenure of 2 months on demand

Secured Indian rupec loan from bank of Rs 11 Crore (March 2016 : Nil) of GMRHL is secured by way of pledge of FDs of GPEL of Rs
11.65 Cr.

Cash credit from a bank of Rs 152 crore (March 31, 2016: Rs 0 98 crore) of TIM is secured by charge on entire book debts of TIM,
bills whether documentary or clean, outstanding monies and receivables of TIM both present and future under escrow account. TIM has
also given an undertaking to the bank for (irst right on security deposit of Rs 17.47 crore (given to DIAL) so released by DIAL for
appropriation towards dues of the lenders, if any.

Unsecured Indian rupee shorl term loans [rom a bank of 47 50 crore (March 31, 2016:47.50 Crore) of GBEPL

Secured Indian rupee short term loan from a bank of Rs 0 17 (March 31, 2016: 0 29 crore) of GSPIHPL The Loan is repayable in 108
month installments

Bank overdraft of 16 32 crore (March 31, 2016: 23.62 crore) of the GIL is secured by a charge on trade receivables and a licn on fixed
deposits with banks amounting to 6 00 crore and irrevocable corporate guarantee issued by the GIL

Secured Indian rupee short term loans from a financial institution of Rs | 02 Crore (March 31, 2016: Rs. 1 02 c1ore) of GEL 1s secured
against (a) exclusive charge by way of pledge on 100% equity shares of GPEL; (b) exclusive charge by way of pledge on 49% equity
shares of GTAEPL; (¢) exclusive charge by way of pledge on 49% cquity shares of GTTEPL: (d) exclusive charge by way of pledge on
26% cquity shares of GIIVEPL; (e) cross collateralisation with existing securities (including pledge of the Company's shares, morlgage
of propertics, DSRA deposits and others at the sole discretion of the financial institution) offered for the existing lacilitics extended to the
Group by the lender under the existing loan agreements; (I) corporate guarantee of GMRHL and (g) DSRA deposit of | quarter principal
and interest obligations on 1oll over basis The lender at the end ol 6 months from the initial drawdown date and everv 12 months
thereafter has an option to require GEL to repay the entire loan The loan is repayable unequally over a period ol four years, aller a
moratorium period of six months The GEL has prepaid the entire loan during the year
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Secured Indian rupee short term loans from a financial institution of Rs Nil (March 31, 2016:Rs. Rs.245 Crore) of GEL is secured
against (a) exclusive charge by the way of pledge on 1.70 crore equity shares of the GIL held by GEPL; (b) exclusive charge by way of
pledge on 100% equity shares of GPEPL; (c) exclusive charge by way of pledge on 49% equity shares of GTAEPL; (d) exclusive charge
by way of pledge on 49% equity shares of GTTEPL; (e) exclusive charge by way of pledge on 26% equity shares of GHVEPL; () First
pari passu charge on loans and advances of the above mentioned road companies; (g) exclusive charge by the way of mortgage on certain
immovable properties of GHPL; (h) exclusive charge by the way of mortgage immovable properties located at Maharashtra and (1) NDU
on 11% equity shares of GAHL, held by the Company. The lender at the end of 6 months from the initial drawdown date and every 12
months thereafter has an option to require GEL to repay the entire loan The loan is repayable in 36 equal monthly instalments, after a
moratorium period of six months

Unsecured foreign currency short term loan from a bank of * 224.68 crore (March 31, 2016: Rs. 360 56 crore) of GISPL is secured by a
standby letter of credit provided by the Group, up to a limit of USD 5.50 crore .

Bank overdraft of Rs 61 91 crore ( March 2016 Rs. 62.20 crore) of the company is secured Against Pledge of Fixed Deposits of Other
Companies.

Demand Loans from banks of Rs. 709.20 crore ( March 2016 Rs. 412.92 crore) of the company is secured Against Pledge of Fixed
Deposits of Other Companies

Cash credit from a bank of Rs.24.98 Crore ( March 2016 23 48 crore )by GSPL is secured by first exclusive charge on all receivables
including share of Central rights income from BCCI, gate receipts and local sponsorship contract & undertaking from the company to
give a Corporate Guarantee in the event of default

Bank overdraft of Rs 32 54 crore ( March 2016 Rs. 47.70 crore) of GREPL is secured Against Pledge of Fixed Deposits of’ Other
Companies

Demand Loans from banks of Rs. 19.95 crore ( March 2016 Rs. 19.95 crore) of GREPL is secured Against Pledge of Fixed Deposits of
Other Companies.

Demand Loans from banks of Rs. 142.50 crore ( March 2016 Nil) of KTPL is secured Against Pledge of Fixed Deposits of Other
Companies. '

Secured demand loan from bank of Rs.Nil ( March 2016 Rs. 21 11 Crore ) of VREPL is secured against bank deposit of group
colmpanies.

Secured short term Foreign current loan from banks of Rs. 206.64 Crores ( March 2016: Rs. 237.03 Crore) of the GHML secured by the
SBLC arranged by GEPL

Secured short term Foreign current loan from banks of Rs. 230.30 Crores ( March 2016 Rs 696.06 Crore) of the CIL
Unsecured loan from others of RS. Nil ( March 2016: Rs.1.35 Crores) of the REPL

Demand Loans from banks of Rs. 126.44 crore ( March 2016 Nil) of GBPPL is secured Against Pledge of Fixed Deposits of Other
Companies.
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9 Other current liabilities

March 31, 2017

Particulars
Rs. in crore Rs. in crore
Trade payables (including acceptances) 2,219.48 1,961.37
2,219.48 1,961.37
Other liabilities
Current maturities of long-term borrowings (reler note 5) 3,468.92 10,315.37
Deposits / advances [rom concessionaires 146,43 14.14
Deposits / advances [rom commercial property developers 94.74 97.65
Interest accrued but not due on borrowings 811.45 478,49
Interest accrued and due on borrowings 361.89 529.56
Others
Advances [ deposits flom customers 1,099.81 1,559.72
Book overdralt 0.14 8.87
Non tracle payables (including retention money) 2,163.94 2,404.01
Statutory dues payable 234.09 161.98
Unearned revenue 116.10 84.65
Other liabilities 422,54 627.78
8,920.05 16,282.22
10 Loans and advances
Current Non-current
March 31, 2016
Rs. in crore
Capital advances
Unsecured, considered good 7.27 440.76
Unsecured, considered doubtful 0.15 0.07
7.42 440.83
Provision for doubtful Capital aclvances (0.02) (0.02)
(A) 7.40 440.81
Security deposit
Unsecured, considered good 50.42 37.54 108.37 39.68
Unsecured, considered doubtful 0.31 0.31
50.73 37.54 108.68 39.68
Provision for doubtful deposits (0.31) (0.31)
(B) 50.42 37.54 108.37 39.68
Advances recoverable in cash or kind
Unsecured, considered good 42.40 902.41 160.18 669.08
Unsecured, considered doubtlul 25.56 1.91 2.03
67.96 904.32 162.21 669.08
Provision for doubtful advances (25.506) (1.91) (2.07)
(C) 42.40 902.41 160.14 669.08
Other loans and advances
Unsecured, considered good
Advance income-tax (net), including paid under
protest 372,12 3905.11
MAT credit entitlement 267.52 10.85 163.70
Prepaicd expenses 30.13 80.84 15.10 115.06
Loan to others 825.32 106.57 227.08 460,63
Loans to employees 0.85 6.77 1.15 12.94
Deposits / balances with statutory / government
authorities 230.29 156 70 215.10 67.70
1,726.23 251.73 1,017.24 656.33
Unsecured, considered doubtful
Loans to others 21.22
Balances with statutory / government authorities .23 6.23
6.23 27.45
Provision lor doubtful acdvances (6.:23) (28.08)
(D} (0.63)
Total Loans and advances (A+B+C+D) 1,826.45 1,191.68 1,725.93 1,365.09
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GMR ENTERPRISES PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2017

13 Non-current investments

Particulars 3 March 31, 2016
Rs. in crore Rs. in crore
Long term - at cost, quoted
A. In Equity shares of companies - Trade
Karnataka Bank Limited 1.41 1.00
[1,75,800 ( Maich, 2016:1,17,200) cquity shares ol Rs, 10 each, fully paid upj
Parrys Sugar Industries Ltd Q.24 Q.24
,07,295 ( March 2016: 43,97,295 equity shares of Rs. 10 each, [ully paid up|

ndian Overscas Bank 0.00 0.00
[1,000 ( March, 2016: 1,000 equity shares of Rs. 10 each, lully paid up]

10.65 10.24

term - at cost, unquoted
In Equity shares of companies - Trade
magiri Power Seivices Limited
[50,000 (March 31, 2016:50,000) equity shares ol Rs. 10 each, [ully paid up] 0.05 006
Meclicon Marketing Pvt Lt
[3,27,500 (March 31, 2016: 3,27,500) equity shares of Rs. 10 cach, fully paid up]

0.33 033
Sri Varalakshmi Motors Private Limited
2,50,000 (March 31, 2016: 2,50,000) equity shares ol Rs, 10 each, fully paid up] 0.25 0.25
VIL international Pvt, Ltd
[60,000 (Maich 31, 2016:60,000) equity shares ol Rs. 10 cach, Tully paicd up] 0.06 0.06
Sectha Mahalakshimi Poullry & Farms Pt Ltcl
[1,01,000 (March 31, 2016: 2,34,000) equity shares of Rs. 10 each, [ully paid up] 0.10 0923
i Rayalaseema Paper Mills Limited
[3,23,210 (March 31, 2016: 3,23,210) equity shares ol Rs. 10 each, fully paid up] 0.39 0.39
Capital Limited
13,865 (March 31, 2016: 2,737) equity shares of Rs. 10 each, [ully paid up] 0.04 0.04
Power [Exchange India Limitecl
[Nil (March 31, 2016: 4,000,000) equity shares of Rs. 10 each, [ully paid upj 4.00
Indian llighways Management Company Limited
[565,370 (March 31, 2016: 5,65,370) equity shares ol Rs. 10 each, lully paid up| 0.56 0.56
Lexicon IMinance Ltd '
[65,000 ( March 31,2016: 65,000) equity shares of Rs.10 each, [ully paid up] 0.07 0.07
GMR Inlrastructure Invesiments (Singapore) Pte. Limited
[30,000 (March 31 2016: Nil) equily share of SGD 1 each] 0.11
B. Investment in equity shares of associates - Trade #
JEPL (net olf share ol losses amounting to Rs, 7.29 crore till the date on which JEPL
ceased to be a subsidiary and became an associate)
Nil (March 31, 2016: 49,117,388) equity shares of Rs. 10 each, fully paid up]
ss: Share of losses 28,34
UTIPL* (net off share ol losses amounting to Rs. 11.53 crore till the dale on which
ULEIPL ceased to be a subsicliary and became an associate)
| Nil (March 31, 2016: 68,783,615) equily shares of Rs. 10 each, [ully paid up|
Less: Share ol losscs
Less: Provision for diminution in the value of investments 32,50
GOSEHIIIPL (net off share of losses amounting to Rs.46.62 crore till the date on which
SOSEHEHIIPL ceased to be a subsicliary and became an associate) (82,823,000 (March 31,
2016:822,823,000) equity shares of Rs.10 each, fully paic up 20.24 36.:20
SCHIPL (net off share ol losses amounting to Rs 949.06 crore till the date on
which GCHEPL ceased to be a subsidiary and became an associate)
[272,05,38,505 (March 31, 2016:272,05,38,505 ) Lcuity shares ol Rs. 10 each Tully
paic-up) 2,243 10
.css: Shaire ol losses (124 38) 2,118.72
LEDWPCPL (nel ofl share of losses amounting lo Rs. 0 07 crore ill the date on which
LEDWPCEL ceased to be a subsidiary and became an associate)
[7,839 (Maich 31, 2016: 7,839) cquity shares ol Rs. 10 each, fully paid npj 007
Less: Share ol losses (©.
<
oz
=
o
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GMR ENTERPRISES PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2017

13 Non-current investments
31, 20 March 31, 2016

Rs. in crore Rs. in crore
C. In Equity shares of body corporates - Trade

PT DSSP Power Sumsel
[125 (March 31, 2016: 125) equity shares with nominal value ol Indonesia Rupiah "
1,000,000 each, Group's share being 30%] 0.02 0.01

PT Manggala Alam Lestari (MAL')
[12,939 (March 31, 2016: 12,939) equity shares with nominal value ol Indonesia
Rupiah 1,000,000 each, Group's share being 30%] 0.01 0.01

In Preference share of companies - Trade
Inclira Power Private Limited
[40,00,000 (March 31, 2016:40,00,000) Prelerence shares ol Rs. 10 each, Tully paid u))j 4.00 4.00

Lexicon Finance Ltd

[2,500 ( March 31, 2016 2,500) prelerence shares shares of Rs, 10 each, fully paid up]| 0.03 0.03

E. In Debentures of companies - Trade
Kakinada Infrastructure Holdings Private Limited ('KIHPL) *

[100 (March 31, 2016: 100) 0.10% cumulative optionally convertible Debentures of
Rs. 10,000,000 each} 100.00 100.00

anth Investements Pvt Ltd

13,000 (March 31, 2016: 3000) 0.001% Compulsory Convertible Debenture
res of Rs, 10,000 each] 3.00 3.00

F. In Equity shares of companies - Other than trade
Business India Publications Limitec
{5,000 (March 31, 2016: 5,000) equity shares of Rs. 10 each, Tully paic up] 0.01 0.01

G.Investment in other funds
Faering Capital Evolving Fund
[1,22,870 (March 31, 2016: 1,18,876) equity shares of Rs. 10 each, lully paid up]

11.36 12.07
H. In Government Bonds/ Sccurities
nvestment in Govt . Securities
[Government Bonds issued by Government ol Philippines] 1.51
(A to H) 2,271.50 232.39
Less: Current portion of non-current investments (20.24) 68.70)
Aggregate provision [or diminution in the value of non current investments - Rs. 0.44 0.4
0.44 crore (March 31, 2016: Rs. 0.42 crore) (0-44) (0.42)
2 163.27

# Puisuant to cliversements of its Investments in JEPL, UEPL and EDWPCPL by the group cluring the Year EBnded March 31, 2014 and
in GOSEHHHPL during the Year ended March 31, 2016 and in GREL and GCHEPL duwing the Year Ended March 31, 2017, these
entities ceased to be subsidiaries and have become associates.

* During the year ended March 31, 2011 GSPHPL had invested Rs. 100 Croie in KIMPL, a shareholder in KSPL, through Cumulative
Optionally Convertible Debentures with coupon rate of 0.10% p.a. GSPHPL is entilicd to exercise the option ot conversion of the
aloresaid debentures into Equity Shares of KIHPL at a mulually agreed valuation at any time not exceeding 36 months from the date ol
execution of the Debenture Agreement i,e., March 18, 2011. This period has been exlended by 18 months with elfect [rom Maich 18,
2014. During the Year Ended March 31, 2016 this period has been [urther extended by 36 Months Trom September 18, 2015, In the
cvent GSPHPL, does not exercise the option to convert the dcbentures into shayes within the said period, the debentures shall be
compulsorily converted by KIHPL into equity shares on expiry of Lhe alorementioned period.

Additional Information March 31' 2017 March 31' 2016
i) Aggregate value of quoted investments and Market value
Cost 10.65 10.24
Market Value 30.00 17.10
ii) Aggregate amount of unquoted investments
Cost 2,210.61 15315
iii) Aggregate amount of provision for diminuition in value of investment 0.44 012
-0
£ pe
(&)

&
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15

Trade receivables

Particulars

Outstanding for a period exceeding six months from
the date they are due for payment

Unsecured, considered good
Unsecured, considered doubtlul

Provision [or doubtiul trade receivables

(4)
Other receivables
Unsecured, considered good
Unsecured, considerec cdoubtful
Provision Tor cdoubtlul trade receivables
(B)

Total Trade receivables (A+B)

Other assets

Unsecured, considered good unless stated otherwise
Non-current bank balances (refer note 17)

(a)
expenditure
Ancillary cost ol arranging the borrowings
(B)
unsecured considered good unless stated
otherwise
Interest accrued on [ixed ceposits
Interest accrued on current investments
Development lund receivable
Non trade receivables
Non trade receivables, considered doubtiul
Grant receivable [rom authorilies
Unbilled revenue
Provision for doubtful non tracle receivables
(€)

Other assets

Non-current

19.55

19.55

Non-current

640.56

95.15
95.15

2.21

333.36

1.24
336.81

336.81

1,072.52

866.64

2,006.85

2,006.85

2,006.85

2,873.49

Current

16.30
16.30

37.30
10,75
28.51
3.55
649.23

729.34

'729.34

745.64

Non-current

43.17

43.17

43.17

1,839.25

305.71
305.71

7.37

1,516.41

1,523.78

1,523.78

3,668.74

672.64

1,827.08

1,827.08

1,827.08

2,499.72

132.23
132.23

52.32
0.64
83.99
114.48

0.08
412,24
663.75

663.75

795.98
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17

to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2017

Inventories alisable walhig)
Murch 31, 2017 Muaceh 81, 2016
Rz, o crove Rs. in crore
1 3560 189.62
135 60 160.50
Stores, spares and components 11274 119.18
Total Inventories 384.94 469.30
Cash and bank balances
Nom-crrrent CuYrent Non-eusrent Current
March 31, 2017 March 31, 2016
o o Rs. in crore Rs. in crore
Cash and cash equivalents
Cheques / drafts on hand 831 18.76
Cash on hand / credit card collection 36.60 826
with banks:
- On current accounts , 774.89 73129
— Deposits with less than three morths maturity 1,081 02 887.84
1,900.82 1,646.15
bank balances
~ Deposits with maturity for more than 12 months 3335 17.38 33 44
— Deposits with maturity for more than 3 months but
less than 12 months 230.49 680 65 103,60 487.23
. ’
- Restricted deposits 376.72 189.44 ; 1,702,21 1,040 51
640.56 887.47 : 1,839.25 1,527.74
Cf;sh and Bank balances 640.56 2,788.29 1,839.25 3,173.89
Amount disclosed under n('m-current assets (refer note
15) 640.56 1,839.25
Net Cash and Bank balances 2,788.29 $3,173.89
Specified Bank Notes { "SBNs")
Duri the ecified Bank Notes (‘SBNs') or other denomination notes as defined in the MCA notification G.S R,
308( rch details of SBNs held and transacted during the period from November 08, 2016 to December 30,

2016 ion other notes as per the notifications is given below:

Closing cash in hand
(*) Withdrawn from Banks
(+) Permitted receipts®

(*) Non permitted receipts’
(-) Permitted payments

1. For the purposes of this clause, the term ‘Specified Bank Notes' shall have the same meaning provided in the notification of the
Government of India, in the Ministry of Finance, Department of Economic Affairs number 8.0. 3407(E), dated the Bth November,
2016,

cash collected towards car parking charges, airport entry passes,
management has considered that the aforesaid collections are
subsequently waived through a government natification with elfect
ed these SBNs during the aforesaid period for uninterrupted

3. Rs. 5,000 of SBNs as on December 30, 2016 were stale which could not be deposited in bank and accordingly written off later
during the vear,

4. Amount disclosed under "Non permitied receipts” represents the amount directly deposited by employees out of imprest advance
made by the Company on various dates before Novemlber 08, 2016
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investme
Current investments

unquoted
Investment in equity shares of associates (refer note 13 for details)
UEPL [68 783,6 5 (March 3 20 68 78 ,6 5) equitly shares of Rs

Other than trade, unquoted
A. Investment in mutual funds
[CICI Prudential Super Institutional Plan Growth Option

[27,61,502 (March 31, 2016: 25,25,763) units of Rs. 100 cach]
Birla Sun Life Cash Plus Institutional Premium Growth
[3,26,86,154 (March 31, 2016: 56,00,2006) units of Rs.100 each]
la Sunlife Cash Plus Growth Regular Plan
[6,14,483 (March 31, 2016: 8,84,594) units of Rs.100 each]
Cash Fund Growih Regular Plan
|20,86,965 (March 31, 20106: 2,91,507) units of Rs.1,000 cach]
SBI Premicr Liquid Fund Regular Plan Growth
[5,12,957 (March 31, 2016: 10,40,238) unils of Rs.1,000 cachj
is Liquid Fund Growth
[10,44,960 (March 31, 2016: 8,33,505) units of Rs.1,000 cach]
ICICI Prudential Liguid Regular Plan Growth
[1,60,04,818 (March 31, 2016: 1,50,76,863) units of Rs, 100 each]
Sundaram Money Fund Regular Growth
[2,92,64,667 (March 31, 2016: 1,72,36,983) units of Rs.10 each]
IDFC Cash Fund Super Institutional Plan C Daily Dividend
[Nil (March 31, 2016: 1,839) units of Rs.1,000 each]
a Pioneer Liguid I'und Plan A Growth Option
[4,35,454 (March 31, 2016: 51,967) units of Rs. 1,000 each]
Liquid Institutional Growth Option
[Nil (March 31, 2016: 1,02,446) units of Rs.1,000 eacl)
Kotak Liquid Fund Institutional Premium Growth
[52,616 (March 31, 2016 : 55,500) units of Rs 1,000 each]
HDFC Liquid Fund
[6,25,481 (March 31, 20106 : 3,81,495) units of Rs.1,000 each]
Kotak Liquid Scheme
(577,803 (March 31, 2016 : 2,04,512) units of Rs.1,000 each]
DSP Mutual Fund
[8,20,156 (March 31, 2016 : 1,55,807) uuits of Rs.1,000 each|
HFL Praimncrica Liquid fund Growth
[20,90,558 (March 31, 2016 : 5,69,302) units of Rs.100 each]
SBJ Treasury Advance Fund Direcl Plan Growth
[Nil (March 31, 2016 : 17,928) units of Rs 1,000 each]
SBI Short Teim Debt Tand
[Nil (March 31, 2016 : 6,242) units of Rs.1,000 each]
Bilra Sunlife Cash Plus - Growth Scheme
{21,41,285 (March 31, 20106 : 22,33,489) units of Rs.223 8650 each]
Bilra Sunlife Cash Plus - Insl. Growth Scheme
[Nil (March 31, 2016 : 10,000) units of Rs 10 each]
LIC Nomura Liqud Fund
[170,270.79 (March 31, 2016 : Nil) Unijts of Rs 1000 each]
Reliance Mutual Fund
[7,728,843.10 (March 31, 2016 : Nil) Units of Rs. 1000 each}
BI Liquid Fund - Regular plan Growth
[2,88,640 (March 31, 2016 : Nil) Units ol Rs. 1000 each]
Birla Sunlile Cash Plus-Dircct Growth IFund
1,51,567 807 (March 31, 2016: Nil) units of Birla Sunlife Cash Plus-Direct Growth I'und
Other Mutual Funds

each fully paid up
GOSEHHHPL [82,823,000 (March 31, 2016: 82,823,000) equity shares of Rs 10 each, fully paid up]

March 31, 2017 March 31, 2016

crore

20 24

66 25

568.52

15.25

95 00

9%}

130 50

187.77

386.69

100.00

81.06

17 30

200 00

190 00

190 00

44,01

50 00

105 00

50 00

155
199 47

Rs. in

3250
3620

56.41

13545

2130

138 89

33460

54 91

120

900

1715

1701

11203

62 60

1113

300

1.26

0.05

013
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B. Investments in venture capital funds:
Faering Capital India Evolving Fund

Current investments

[15,90,022 (March 31, 2016: 15,90,022) units of Rs. 100 each]

SREI Infrastructure Resurrection Fund

[19,35,000 (March 31, 2016: 19,35,000) units of Rs.100 each]
SREI Infrastructure Project Development Capital
[20,00,000 (March 31, 2016: 20,00,000) units of Rs.100 eaclh]

C. Investment in hedge funds:
Haussmann Holdings

{32 (March 31, 2016: 32) units of USD 2,555 each]

Star Emerging Asia [Fixed Income Fund

[Nil (March 31, 2016: 9,998) units of USD 1,000 each]
Harrington Capital Emerging Market Bonds Fund
[Nil (March 31, 2016 : 9,997) units of USD 1,000 each]

lya Multisector Strategy I'und

[Nil (March 31, 2016: 100,000) units of USD 100 each]

Shs OPES Investments Limited Regular
[Nil {(March 31, 2016: 10,000) units of USD

D. Investment in other funds:
Harrington Master

1,000 each]

[4,863 (March 31, 2016 : 4,863) units of USD 1,000 each]
Shs Global Emerging Strategies Fund Limited The Amara Fund
INil (March 2016: 50,000) Units of USD 100 each]

E. Commercial Papers
SREI Infrastructure Finance Limited

[2000 units (March 2016 : 1500) Units of Rs.500,000 each }

Total

al Information

i} Aggregate value of quoted investments and Market value

Cost
Market Value

ii) Aggregate amount of unquoted investments
Cost

iii) Aggregate amount of provision for diminuition in value of investment

March 31, 2017

Rs. in crore

16.06

19.35

20 00

0.44

32,74

140.49

3.227.74

March 31' 2017

3,227.74

March 31, 2016

Rs. in crore

16.06

19.35

2000

0.53

67.64

6522

67.44

65.40

33.32

34.75

74.01

1.841.31

March 31' 2016

1,841.31
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19 Revenue from
Particulars

Sale of products

Power segment:
Income from sale of electrical energy 3,967.24 4,280.57
Income from mining activities 455.63 671.50

Traded goods

Power segment:
Income from sale of electrical energy 319.42 387.79
Income from coal trading 520.09 11291

Airport segment:
Duty free items 1,000.29 1,019.20

Sale of services / others
Power segment:

Electrical energy transmission charges 32.51 69.79

Airport segment:

Aeronautical 4,616.20 3,749.23
Non-aeronautical 1,661.10 1,359.81
Cargo operations 282.88 312.28
Income from commercial property development 103.98 100.06

Roads segment:
Annuity income from expressways 366.69 393.60
Toll income from expressways 267.66 394.01

EPC segment:
Construction revenue 386.01 179.13

Others segment:

Income from hospitality services 166.88 95.96
Income from management and other services 275.57 188.00
Interest - Others 14.44 8.42
Dividend 0.07 0.07
Profit on sale of Investemnt 0.19
Total Revenue from operations 14,436.68 13,282.52

20 Other income

Interest income on
Bank deposits 58.40 104.44
Current investments
Net gain on sale of current investments 12.75 7.95
Others 152.40 152.61

Total Other operating income 223.55 265.00
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22

23

24

25

Other income
Particulars

Interest income on
Bank deposits
Others

Net gain on sale of current investments
Miscellaneous income

Provisions no longer required, written hack
Exchange differences (net)

Profit on sale of fixed assets (net)

Lease income

Income from management fees

Liahilities written back

Dividend

Interest on investments

Total Other Income
Cost of materials consumed

Particulars

Inventory at the beginning of the year
Add: Purchases

Less: [nventory at the end of the year (1efer note no. 16)

Cost of materials consumed

Purchase of Traded
Particulars

Purchase of electrical energy
Purchase of coal for trading
Purchase of duty free items

Total Purchases

/ decrease in stock in trade
Particulars
Stock at the beginning of the year
Less: Stock at the end of the year

Increase in Stock in Trade

benefits
Particulars

Salaries, wages and bonus

Staff welfare expenscs

Contribution to provident and other und
Gratuity expense

Post cmployment benefits

Training Cost

Recruitiment expenses

Total Employee benefit expenses

March 31, 2017
Rs. in crore

140.58
87.92
171.75
837.17
50.18
75.71
1.49
12.98

1.03
0.01
2.70

1,381.52

189.62

122 78
312.40
132.60
179.80

March 31, 2017
Rs. in crore

8.73

548.53

353.10

910.36

March 31, 2017
Rs. in crore

160.50

139.60

20.90

March 31, 2017
Rs. in crore

692.53

30.25

56.20

8.67

0.59

3.60

2.39

794.23

155.50
58.42
131.64
43.98
38.36
1911
0.21
10.04

7.34
0.54%
6.24
471.68

March 31, 2016
Rs. in crore

95.08

133.40

228.48

189.62

38.86

211.21
232.15
396.66

840.02

127.70
160.50

{32.80)

March 31, 2016
Rs. in crore

585.01

32.78

1211

8.93

0.51

1.90

33

675.60
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27

28

Other

Rates and taxes
Insurance
Repairs and maintenance

Plant and Machinery

Buildings

Others
Travelling and conveyance
Comimunication costs
Printing and stationery
Legal and professional fees
Consumption of stores and spares
Electricity and water charges
Prompt payment rebate
Open access charges paid
Airport service charges / operator fees
Cargo handling charges
Freight
Rent
Manpower hire charges
Advertising and sales promotion

and distribution charges
’ sitting lees
ustments to the carrying amount of current investmerits

Provision / write off of doubtful advances and trade receivables
Donation {includes corporate social responsibility expenditure)
Fixed assets written off / loss on sale of fixed assets
Office maintenance
Security expenses
Miscellaneous expenses
Loss on sale of Investiments

Total Other expenses

Depreciation and amortisation expenses
Depreciation of tangible assets
Amortisation of Intangible assets

Total Depreciation and Amortisation expenses

Finance costs

Interest
Bank charges

Exchange difference to the extent considered as an adjustment to borrowing cost

(net)

Mark to market loss on derivative instruments
Amorlization of ancillary borrowing costs

Total Finance costs

Rs. in crore
92.53
41.47

207.28
36.51
236.49
56.92
12.82
6.80
420.16
88.89
229.44
27.89
175.20
167.16
16.62
16.86
87.38
82.82
35.38
81.01
2.18
24.24
73.40
43.77
4.67
45.05
16.37
100.40

2,429.71

1,879.97
296.95

2,176.92

5,074.60
177.61

(0.01)
1.21
218 13

5,471.54

4 OMR

79.16
46.28

187.47
42.63
2235.70
58.17
10.24
6.28
341.05
267.29
51.71
39.52
149.89
138.60
15.68
14.54
68.71
71.01
33.49
115.33
2.82

8.80
20.90
4.38
35.14
16.50
108.47
0.09

2,159.88

1,920.21
381.52

2,301.73

4,277.53
187.11

0.01
1.62
93 87

4,560.14

e
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30

items -
Provision for dimunition in value of investients in an associate (39.22)
Loss on impairment of assets in subsidiaries (164.30)
Reimbursement of expenses pertaining to earlier years received by a subsidiary S1.42
Loan prepayment interest & interest rate swap charges (48.97)
Profit on sals / equity dilution of subsidiaries / associates / jointly controlled entilies and others* 129.88 231
Impairment of fixed assets (454.20)
Loss on account of provision towards claims recoverable (312.72)
|Total Exceptional Losses (686.01) {149.79)

* Gain on Sale of Stake in GCHEPL is Rs. 1,168.56 Crore and Gain on Sale of GREL is Rs.787.56 Crore

share
March 31, 2016

Nominal value of equity shares (Rs. per share) 10.00 10.00
Weighted average number of equity shares used in computing earnings per share
) - 6.27 6.27
(in Crore)
Profit / (loss) after minority interest from continuing and discontinuing 2.098.76 763.18
operations (Rs. in crore) (2, 76) (1,763.18)
EPS - Basic and diluted (Rs. per share) (334.86) (281.32)
Profit / (loss) after minority interest from continuing operations (Rs. in crore) (2,514.81) (1,493.59)
EPS - Basic and diluted (Rs. per share) (401.25) (238.31)

/ (loss) after minority interest from discontinuing operations (Rs. in crore) 416.05 (269.59)

EPS - Basic and diluted (Rs. per share) 66.38 (43.01)
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GMR Enterprises Private Limited

Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2017

32 (a) Capital work-in-progress

Particulars

Capital expenditure incurred on tangible assets
Salaries, allowances and benefits to employees

Contribution to provident and other funds
Staff wellare expenses

& maintenance
Buildings
Others
Rates and taxes

and professional fees
and conveyance
Communication costs
Depreciation of tangible assets
Amortisation of intangible assets
costs
sation of ancillary borrowings costs
ank charges
and stationery
Exchange differences (net)
Trial run costs
Power and fuel
Community development expenses
Secunty charges

Less : other Income
Interest income on bank deposits
gain on sale of current investments
from sale of infirm power
mcome

Total - =

Less : Apportioned over the cost of tangible assets
s : Provision for impairment during the year

sociate entities the

Total- v m

March 2017
2,504.91
200.17
9.54
8.45
49.16

0.40
24.60
20.50
15.90

38778
73.30

7.45
10.91
3.75
1,611.18

32.55
2.70
0.04

3.36
11.07
92.50

169.52

592

46.61

222.05
4 19

272.11
v 272.11

Rs. in cro
March 31 2016
11,770.37
420.23
26.94
18.77
101.98

6.07
47.51
43.86
51.43

685.98

148.15
11.61
27.28

4.36
5.324.50
80.46
360.45
4.05

232.48

192.68
11.13
31.84
34.10
72.61

19 708.85

161.77
41.41
60.94

9.24
273.36

1 9

15,298.27
64.14

1 41



GMR Enterprises Private Limited
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2017

32 (b) Intangible assets under development

Particulars
Capital expenditure incurred on intangible assets
allowances and benefits to employees
to provident and other funds

Staff welfare expenses

and maintenance
Others

Rates and taxes

and professional fees
and conveyance
costs
of tangible assets

Amortisation of intangible assets
Interest costs
Amortisation of ancillary borrowing costs

charges

and stationery

Less : Other income
income on bank deposits

Miscellaneous income

Total
Government grant received
Apportioned over the cost of intangible assets (net of grant adjusted)
Accumulated impairment

Provision for claims recoverable

Total (v) = (iii) - (iv)

March 31, 2017
163.82

134 74

8.90

3.31

10.27

1.34

6 83
054
140.99
27.50
4.05
(13
018
86.94
13.36
3195
0.15
51.36
687.35

0.00
9.32
9.32
678.03
13 42
44 28
14 20
95.48
167.38
510.65

in crore

March 31, 2016
174 94

137.72

838

576

3.73

6.13
4.59
0.54
139.16
20 85
3.65
0.93
0.18
63.05
13.36
25.85
012
3362
642.56

621
6.21
636.35
11.71

247
95.48
109.66
526.69

& OMR
rad



GMR Enterprises Private Lid
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the period ended March 31,2017

33. Deferred Tax

Deferred tax (liability) / asset comprises mainly of the following
(Rs. in crore)

Particulars 3 207
Deferred tax asset tax liability tax assel tax liability
Deferred tax liability :
Depreciation 1,279 96 3,132 30
Carry forward losses/Unabsorbed depreciation 623 65 2.960 57
Intangibles ( Airport Concession rights) 69 96 73 84
Others 108 65 16 74
Sub- total (A) 802.26 1,279.96 3,051.15 3,132.30
Deferred lax liability (net) 47770 8115
Deferred tax assel :
Depreciation 633 16190
Carry fonward losses/Unabsorbed depreciation 10 58 196 09
Others 27 84 3674
Sub- total (B) 44.75 232.83 161.90
Deferred tax asset (net) 4475 70 93
Total (A+B)
Deferred tax assel/ (Deferred tax liability) (net) (432 95) (1007)
Change for the year (422 88) (44 26)
Foreign currency translation reserve 0 62) (105)
Additional Def. Tax due lo change in Fixed Assets useful life
Deferred tax assel/ (liability) on account of acquisition during the year
Charge/(credit) during the year (423.50) 4531)
34. Preference shares issued by subsidiaries
1
lars 3 2017 2016
by GEL

Non - cumulative compulsory convertible non-participatory preference shares issued by GAL 39618 39618
Preference shares issued by GIPL 300 300
Preference shares issued bv CISPL 1618 16 18
Total 415.36 1.003.43

i CCPs issued by GEL have been converted into equity shares during the year

ii During the year ended March 31, 2011, GAI issued 2,298,940 non-cumulative compulsory convertible non-participatory preference shares (*CCPS17) bearing 0 0001% dividend on the
face value of Rs 1,000 each fully paid up amounting to Rs 229 89 crore at a premium of Rs 2,885 27 each totaling to Rs 663 31 crore to Macquaire SBI Infrastructure Investments 1
Limited, (‘Tnvestor ') for funding and consolidation of airport related investments by the Group Further, during the year ended March 31, 2012 GAL issued 1,432,528 non-cumulative
compulsory convertible non-participatory preference shares CCCPS 2°) bearing 0 0001% dividend on the face value o[ Rs 1,000 each fully paid up amounting to Rs 14325 crore al a
premium of Rs. 3,080 90 cach totaling to Rs. 441.35 crore to Standard Chartered Private Equity (Mauritius) 11T Limited, IV TFinancial - Old Lane India Corporate Opportunities Fund
Limited, JM Vinancial Trustee Company Private Limited and Build India Capital Advisors LLP (“Investors 1I"). The GIL and GAL have provided Investor [ and Investors T1 various
conversion and exil options al an agreed internal rale of retumn as per the terms of the Restructuring Options Agreements and Investment agreements excculed between the GIL, GAL,

Investor 1 and Investors 11

Duiing the year ended March 31, 2015, DSPL purchased 84,398 C'CPS 2 from one of the Investors for a consideration of Rs 47 83 crore and accordingly an amount of Rs 13 39 crore

representing consideration paid in excess of face value of CCPS 2 has been adjusted against accumulated deflicit in the statement of profit and loss in the consolidated financial statements for

Lhe year ended NMarch 31, 2015

TFurther , as per the terms of CCPS 1 and CCPS 2, these weie either convertible into equity shares on or before April 6, 2015 or the GIL bad an optlion to exercise the call options anytime
between July 5. 2014 to April 5,2015 requiring the investors to wransler these shares in favour of the GIL On the basis of the Investor Agreement, the GIL, vide its letter dated April 1, 2015
has exercised the call Option 1o acquire CCPS 1 and CCPS 2, at a Call Price (o be computed in the manner provided in the respective agreements enteted belween the nvestors and the GIL

The pavment of call price is subject to the prior approval of the Reserve Bank of India.

G and the Investors thereatier, basis mutual discussions, decided to restructure the investments; (which is subject to prior approval of RBL) and have filed a joint application to the Reserve
Bank of Tndia on October 01, 2015 As per the revised understanding, Class A CCPS will be conver ted into cquily sharcs in two tranches ending on June 2017 Pending approval of RBBI, GIL
and the Class A CCPS Sharcholders and the Company have signed an “Amended and Restated Investent Agreement” on December 24, 2015 which shall be eflecuve upen receipl ol
approval [tom RI31

Further. the G, has also entered into a Share Purchase Agreement with IV Financials Trustee Private Limited (*JNMELY and Build India Capital Advisors ((BICAT) on Tecemnber 21,2015 to
buy out their Class A CCPS Share transfer is yet to be completed

As per (he terms of Non-cumulative Compulsary Convertible Non-par ticipatory Bonus Preference shares (CCPS) Class 13, each CCPS of Class B shall convert simullaneously at the time off
conversion ol CCPS of Class A

Dunng the year ended March 31 2014 the GIPL has issued 30,00,000 Non-cumulative Redeemable Preference Shares (NCRPS) face value of Rs 10 cach carnving 8% dividend at a
premium of Rs 20 per share and having a lerm ol 10 yeats from the date of allotment (on September 26. 2013 the Company issued 2 0,000 Non-cumulative Redeeimable Preference
Shares (NCRPS) face value of Rs 10 each carrymg 8% dividend at a premium of Rs 20 er share and on March 082014 the Compa issued 10,00,000 Non-cumulative Redeemable
Preference Shares (NCRPS) lace value of Rs 140 cach carrying 8% dividend ata premium of Rs 20 per share) The prelerence shares shall be redeemed along with Lize premuum at the time of

redemption

“Ihe above prelerence shares scheduled 1o be redeemed during September 2023 and March 2024 respectively Jowever the same can be prematurely redeermed at any bime as deteruined by
the Toard 0l D ectors with one-maonth notice to the preference shaicholders and on such terms and conditions as mutually agreed in accordance with the applicable law

CISPL has only one ¢lass of Prelerence Shares having a par value ol Rs 10 per share The Rate of disidend is 3% pa subject to availality ol di ¢ profits The jedemption tenure of

these preferences shares s 10 years Towever the Preference Shares can be prematurely redeemed al any time as Jetermined by the hoatd of dircetns with a one month netiee W the

prefirence sharcholders Uhe preference shares can e tedecimed on such terms and conditions as mutually agieed 1w aceordance with the applicable law

sU I case o) winding vp ol the

CISPI prelerence sharcholders shall have the right o attend the genetal meetings of the Company and vote an resolutions directly alfecung their inle

company the prefercnee sharcholder shall be eninled tor a preterential nght of return o the amount paid on shares



GMR Enterprises Private Limited
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2017

35 (a) Capital Commitments

in Crore
Particulars March 31, March 31,
‘ ‘ 2017 2016
Estimated value of contracts remaining to be executed on capital
account, not provided for (net of advances) * 1,686.07 2,140.00

*Includes Nil (March 31, 2016: Rs. 43.89 crore) payable towards certain coal mines allocated to the Group in
terms of the Coal Mines (Special Provision) Ordinance 2014 read with Coal Mines (Special Provision) Second
Ordinance, 2014 promulgated and the Coal Mines (Special Provision) Rules, 2014 framed for auction and
allotment of coal blocks.

(b) Other commitments

1.

Entities in roads sectors have entered into various Concession agreements with concessionaires for
periods ranging from 17.5 years to 25 years from achievement of date of COD / appointed date as defined
in the respective Concession agreements, whereby these entities have comumitted to comply with certain
key terms and conditions pertaining to construction of roads / highways in accordance with the timelines
and milestones as defined in the respective Concession agreements, COD as per the respective
Concession agreements, construction, management, payment of fees (including revenue share), operation
and maintenance of roads / highways in accordance with the respective Concession agreements,
performance of the obligations under the respective financing agreements, non-transfer or change in
ownership without the prior approval of the concessionaire and transfer of the roads / highways projects
on termination of relevant agreements or in case of defaults as defined in the respective Concession
agreements and utilisation of grants received as per the requirements of the respective concession
agreements.

a) Entities in airports sector have entered into various agreements with Concessionaires for periods
ranging from 25 years to 35 years extendable by another 30 years in certain cases on satisfaction of
certain terms and conditions of respective Concession agreements from dates as defined in the respective
agreements for development, rehabilitation, expansion, modernisation, operation and maintenance of
various airports in and outside India. Pursuant to these agreements, these entities have committed to
comply with various terms of the respective agreements which pertains to payment of fees (including
revenue share), development / expansion of Airports in accordance with the timelines and milestones as
defined in the respective agreements, achievement of COD as per the respective agreements,
development, management, operation and maintenance of airports in accordance with the respective
agreements, performance of various obligations under the respective financing agreements, non-transfer
or change in ownership without the prior approval of respective airport conces sionaires, compliance with
the applicable laws and permits as defined in the respective agrecments, transfer of airports on
termination of agreements or in case of defaults as defined in the respective agreements.

b) As per the terms of agreements with respective authorities, DIAL, GHIAL & GIAL are required to
pay 45.99%, 4% and 36.99% of the revenue for an initial term of 30, 30 and 35 years which is further
extendable by 30, 30 and 20 years respectively.

One of the entilies in airports sector is committed to pay every year a specified percent of previous year’s
gross revenue as operator fee to the airport operator for the period specified in the Airport operator
agrecinent

During the vear ended March 31, 2017, DIAL has entered into “Call spread Option™ with various banks
for hedging the repayment of 6.125% Senior secured notes (2026) of USD 522.60 million, which is
repayable in October 2026. Under this option, DIAL has purchased a call option for USD 522.60 million
at a strike price of Rs.66.85/USD and written a call option for USD 522.60 million at a strike price of
Rs.101.86/USD at October 31, 2026. As per terms of the agreements, DIAL is required (o pay premium
of Rs. 1.241.30 crores (starting from January 2017 to October 2026), which is payable on quarterly basis.
DIAL has paid Rs.14.96 crore towards premium till March 31, 2017 and remaining balance of Rs.
1.226.34 crores are pavable as at March 31. 2017,

During (he year ended March 31, 2017, DIAL has entered into “Call spread Option™ with various banks
for hedging the repayment of part of 6.125% Senior secured notes (2022) of USD 288.75 million, which



GMR Enterprises Private Limited
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2017

10.

11.

12.

13.

14.

is repayable in February 2022. Under this option, DIAL has purchased a call option for USD 80.00
million at a strike price of Rs.68.00/USD and written a call option for USD 80 million at a strike price
of Rs.85.00/USD at February, 2022. As per terms of the agreements, DIAL is required to pay premium
0f Rs.94.33 crore (starting from April 2017 to January 2022), payable on quarterly basis.

The Group has entered into agreements with the lenders wherein the promoters of the Company and the
Company have committed to hold at all times at least 51% of the equity share capital of the Company /
subsidiaries and not to sell, transfer, assign, dispose, pledge or create any security interest except pledge
of shares to the respective lenders as covered in the respective agreements with the lenders.

One of the entities in airports sector has entered into a tripartite MSA with the service provider and the
holding company of the service provider, whereby this entity is committed to pay annually to the service
provider if the receivable of the service provider falls short of subsistence level (as defined in (he said
MSA). Also in case of delay in payment of dues from customers to the service provider, this entity would
fund the deficit on a temporary basis till the time the service provider collects the dues from
aforementioned customers.

As at March 31, 2017, this entity has funded Rs. 11.09 crore (March 31, 2016: Rs. 10.03 crore) towards
shortfall in collection from the customers.

Certain entities in power sector have entered into PPAs with customers, pursuant to which these entities
have committed to sell power of contracted capacity as defined in the respective PPAs, make available
minimum PLF over the period of tariff year as defined in the respective PPAs. The PPAs contain
provision for disincentives and penalties in case of certain defaults.

Certain entities in power sector have entered into fuel supply agreements with suppliers whereby (hese
entities have committed to purchase and suppliers have committed to sell contracted quantity of fuel for
defined period as defined in the respective fuel supply agreements, including the fuel obtained through
the suppliers outside India.

The Group has provided commitment to fund the cost overruns over and above the estimated project cost
or cash deficiency, if any, to the lenders of its project stage subsidiaries, to the extent as defined in the
agreements executed with the respective lenders.

Refer note 37 for commitments relating to lease arrangements

Refer note 34 for commitments arising out of convertible preference shares.

Shares of the certain subsidiaries / joint ventures have been pledged as security towards loan facilities
sanctioned to the Group.

Refer note 5 (7), for commitments relating to FCCB.
R
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36 a) Contingent Liabilities

Particulars March 31, 2017 March 31,20
5,868.67 2,
Corporate guarantees
1,905.33 2,
Bank guarantees outstanding / Letter of credit outstanding
112.00
Bonds issued 1o custom authorities
5.00
Fixed Deposits pledged for loans taken by the enterprises where key management personnel and their
ielatives exercise significant influence
90 00
Fixed Deposits pledged for loans taken by the Welfare trust for GMR Group Employees ("WTGGE")
830.62
Claims against the Group not acknowledged as debts
259.33
Matters relating to income tax under dispute !
404.26
Matters relating o indirect taxes duty under dispute 23
Arrears of cumulative dividends on preference share capital issued by subsidiary 76.17

(b) Others in addition to (a) above:

1.

A search under section 132 of the IT Act was carried out at the premises of the Company and certain entitics
of the Group by the income tax authorities on October 11, 2012, followed by search closure visits on various
dates during the year ended March 31, 2013 to check the compliance with the provisions of the IT Act. The
income tax department has subsequently sought certain information / clarifications. During the year ended
March 31, 2015 and March 31, 2016, block assessments have been completed for some of the companies of
the Group and appeals have been filed with the income tax department against the disallowances made in the
assessment orders. The management of the Group believes that it has complied with all the applicable
provisions of the IT Act with respect to its operations.

The Director General of Central Excise Intelligence, New Delhi has issued a Show Cause Notice F. No.
574/CE/41/2014/Inv./PT. 11/11327 dated October 10, 2014 on DIAL, proposing a demand of service tax of
Rs.59.91 crore (excluding interest and penally) considering Advance Development Costs (‘ADC’) collected
by DIAL from the Commercial Property Developers under the service tax category ‘Renting of Immovable
Property’.

DIAL has replied to the show cause notice referred to above with appropriate authority on April 17, 2015.

Subsequently, Additional Director General (Adjudication), DGCEI has passed Order No. 10/2016-ST dated
May 02, 2016 confirming demand of service tax of Rs. 54.31 crore and imposed equivalent penalty in respect
of this matter.

However, based on an internal assessment and legal opinions obtained by DIAL in this regard, the management
is of the view that service tax is not leviable on ADC, as these are collected for development of certain
infrastructure facilities for the common use and not for the exclusive use of any developer. Service tax liability
on ADC, if any arises, shall be adjusted from ADC collected by DIAL from the Commercial Property
Developers.

DIAL has filed appeal before CESTAT, New Delhi on August 02, 2016 against the order dated May 02, 2016;
and has disclosed the demand along with penalty of Rs. 54.31 crore as contingent liability. Further, the
management of the Group is of the view that no adjustments are required to be made to these consolidated
financial statements of the Group for (he year ended March 31, 2017.

The Commissioner of Service Tax, New Delhi had issued a demand of service tax aggregating to Rs. 275.53
crore (excluding interest and penalty) on the collection of Development Fee (‘DF’) from passengers in airport
for the period from March, 2009 to September. 2013 Out of total demand of service tax of Rs. 275.53 crore,
service tax amounting to Rs. 130.17 crore has already been paid by DIAL under protest.

16

961.12

647.49

112.00

21.00

130.50

716.68

337.34

162 18

76 17
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Subsequently, the Commissioner of Service Tax, has passed Order No. C. No D
/ST/IV/16/Hqrs/Adjn/DIAL/153/2015/1862-ST dated July 12, 2016 confirming the demand of service tax
of Rs. 262.06 crore (after giving cum duty effect) and has appropriated amount deposited by DIAL under
protest towards service tax, and have further imposed a penalty of Rs.131.89 crore in respect of this matter.

However, based on an internal assessment and legal views obtained by DIAL in this regard, the management
is of the view that service tax is not leviable on DF, as the DF is a statutory levy and is meant to bridge
financing gap funding for the airport project. The collection of DF from passengers is not in lieu of provision
of any service to them. Further, there is no service provider and service recipient relationship between the
DIAL and the passengers paying DF. Service tax liability, if any arises on DF, shall be decided by AERA,
keeping in view the final pronouncement of the matter.

DIAL has filed an appeal against the order before CESTAT, New Delhi on October 10, 2016 and; has disclosed
the demand along with penalty of Rs. 131.89 crore as contingent liability. Further, the management of DIAL
is of the view that no adjustments are required to be made to these consolidated financial statements.

4 As at March 31, 2014, the South Delhi Municipal Corporation (‘SDMC’) [earlier known as Municipal
Corporation of Delhi (‘MCD’)] had demanded property tax of Rs. 105.18 crore on the land and properties at
Indira Gandhi International (IGI) Airport, New Delhi (‘Delhi Airport’). DIAL had filed a writ petition in the
Hon’ble High Court of Delhi challenging the applicability of the Delhi Municipal Corporation (Amendment)
Act, 1957 on the land and properties at the Indira Gandhi International Airport and had deposited an amount
of Rs.30.66 crore (paid in earlier years) under protest against these demands as at March 31, 2017. SDMC has
brought the ‘Airports & Airports properties within the purview of property tax w.e.f the financial year 2013-
14. Accordingly, from 2013-14 DIAL has started paying property tax and the same has been charged to
consolidated statement of profit and loss of respective years/ periods.

The Hon’ble High Court of Delhi vide its order dated September 13, 2013, directed DIAL to make a proposal
to the SDMC for settlement of property tax dues. Consequently, SDMC vide its order dated February 10, 2015,
revised its demand of property tax to Rs. 60.96 crore and also levied interest of Rs. 24.99 crore for assessment
years 2006-07 to 2012-13.

DIAL provided for Rs. 60.96 crore till March 31, 2017 (March 31, 2016: Rs. 60.96 crore). Further, interest of
Rs.24.99 crore had also been provided till March 31, 2017 (March 31, 2016: Rs. 24.99 crore), making the total
provision of Rs. 81.87 crore (March 31, 2016: Rs. 81.87 crore) [net of self assessment tax paid of Rs. 4.08
crore in earlier yeats].

However, DIAL has paid amount of Rs. 25.14 crore (after considering the amount of Rs. 30.66 crore paid
under protest and Rs. 4.08 crore paid as self-assessment tax) on February 27, 2017 to SDMC as per demand
letter no. Tax/ HQ/SDMC/2016/ D-1886 dated December 2, 2016 issued by SDMC under “Amnesty Scheme
2016-17" introduced by SDMC for waiver of full interest and penalty charges on payment of complete tax
dues payable up to March 31, 2017. However, the matter is still pending with the Hon’ble High Court of Delhi.

Accordingly, no further adjustments have been made to these consolidated financial statements of the Group.

5 During the year ended March 31, 2017, the Delhi Cantonment Board (DCB) has raised provisional invoice
demanding property tax of Rs. 9.01 crore in respect of vacant land at IGI Airport for the Financial Year 2016-
17.

The airport area majorly consists of vacant land area which cannot be commercially let out by the Company
because of operational safety, aircraft landing & take off and navigational requirements as per standards laid
down by International Civil Aviation Organization (ICAO). However, based on same computation method as
used for payment of property tax to SDMC, management has made payment of Rs. 1.15 crore towards property
tax for FY 2016-17 and requested DCB to withdraw its demand. The Company has disclosed remaining Rs.
7.86 crore as contingent liability in these special purpose financial statements related to pending demand of
FY 2016-17

The Company has obtained a legal opinion; wherein it has been opined that liability w.r.L. earlicr years cannot
be ruled out As DCB has not raised any demand for earlier years, and the Company’s application for adopling
the same compulation m 10d as considered by SDMC. while arriving at the demand for the FY 2016-17. is
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9.

pending / under consideration by DCB, the amount of liability for earlier years is unascertainable; and
therefore, no provision has been considered necessary by the Company against such demand in these special
purpose financial statements.

In case of DIAL, w.e.f. June 1, 2007, the Airports Authority of India (AAI) had claimed service tax on the
monthly annual fee (MAF) payable to them considering the same as rental from immovable property w.e.f.
June 1, 2007. DIAL has disputed the grounds of the levy under relevant provisions of the OMDA and based
on a legal opinion obtained in this regard, is of the view that (ransaction between AAI and DIAL is neither a
franchisee agreement nor a renting of immovable property, which are specified taxable services under Section
65(105) of Service Tax Act. DIAL has filed a writ petition with Hon’ble High Court of Delhi and was heard
on November 17, 2015 and favonrable jndgment has been received vide High Court order dated February 14,
2017.

The Ministry of Civil Aviation (MoCA) issued a Circular No. AV 13028/001/2009-AS dated January 8, 2010
giving fresh guidelines regarding the expenditure which could be met out of the PSF (SC) and was
subsequently clarified by MoCA vide order dated April 16, 2010. Based on the said circular, DIAL is not
debiting security expenditure to PSF (SC) escrow account. Further, vide circular No. AV 13024/43/2003-8S
(AD) dated May 17, 2012, it was further directed that any such expenditure already debited was required to
be credited back to PSF(SC) account. However, security expenditure amounting to Rs. 24.48 crore was already
incurred prior to April 16, 2010 and was debited to PSF (SC) account.

DIAL had challenged the said circulars issued by MoCA before the Hon’ble Delhi High Court by way of a
Writ Petition. The Hon’ble High Court of Delhi, vide its order dated December 21, 2012, has restrained MoCA
from taking any coercive measures in the form of initiation of criminal proceedings against DIAL and the
matter is now listed for hearing on August 10, 2017. Based on an internal assessment and aforesaid order of
the Hon'ble High Court, the management is confident that no liability in this regard would be payable and as
such no provision has been made in these consolidated financial statements.

During the year ended March 31, 2012, GEL received an intimation from the Chief Electrical Inspectorate,
Government of Andhra Pradesh (‘GoAP’), whereby GoAP had demanded electricity duty on generation and
sale of electrical energy amounting to Rs. 11.06 Crores calculated at the rate of six paise for each electricity
unit generated by the Company for the period from June 2010 to December 2011. The Company filed a writ
petition with the Hon'ble High Court of Judicature at Hyderabad for the States of Telangana and Andhra
Pradesh against the intimation by GoAP and it was granted a stay order on deposit of 1/3rd of the duty
demanded within a stipulated time. The Company had not made the requisite deposit and accordingly the
interim stay was automatically vacated.

However. based on an internal assessment and a legal opinion obtained by the Company, the management is
confident that the provisions of Electricity Duty Act and Rules, 1939 in respect of payment of electricity duty
are not applicable to the Company and accordingly, electricity duty liability of Rs. 14.61 Crores (March 31,
2015: Rs. 14.611 Crores) for the period June 2010 to March 31, 2016 has been considered as a contingent
Jiability as at March 31, 2017 and accordingly no adjustments have been made to the consolidated financial
statements of the Company for the year ended March 31, 2017.

The Company had entered into a PPA with Karnataka Power Transmission Corporation Limited for supply of
energy during the period December 15, 1997 to July 7. 2008. The Company had a Fuel Supply Agreement
(‘FSA’) with a fuel supplier towards purchase of Naphtha for generation of electricity during the
aforementioned period. The FSA provided for payment of liquidated damages to the fuel supplier in the event
{here was a shortfall in the purchase of the annual guaranteed quantity.

During the year ended March 31, 2013, the Company received a notice for good [aith negotiation under
erstwhile FSA entered into between the Company and the fuel supplier with respect to dispute regarding
liquidated damages amounting to Rs. 2.96.164 Crore along with an interest of Rs. 5.554 Crore towards failure
of the Company to purchase the annual guaranteed quantity for the period from November 21. 2001 to June 6.
2008. The Company vide its letter dated October 31. 2012 had disputed the demand from the supplier towards
the aforementioned damages.

During the year ended March 31. 2014, the [uel supplicr had .filed a petition in the Hon’ble High Court of
Karnataka secking appointment of a sole arbitrator for (he resolution of the dispute. The Company 1ts
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reply on January 8, 2014, and as per the High court order dated September 11, 2014 arbitrators have been
appointed. During the year ended March 31, 2015, the fuel supplier has submitted its statement of claim
amounting to Rs. 2,72.635 Crore (after adjusting dues of Rs. 29.083 Crore payable to the Company) towards
liquidated damages and interest at the rate of 15% p.a. on such liquidated damages. Further, the Company has
filed its statement of defense and counter claim amounting to Rs. 35.962 Crore along with interest at the rate
of 18% p.a. On 21.08.2016 Arbitration Tribunal passed the arbitral award directing BPCL to pay Rs.32.21
crores to GEL towards its Counter Claim and rejected BPCL's LC claim. Pursuant to it, BPCL has also filed
on an interim application under Section 36 of the Act for grant of interim stay on execution of the Arbitration
award. GEL has filed its reply to the interim application. Pursuant to the arguments by both the Parties on ad-
interim stay application of BPCL, the District City Civil vide its order dated 04.03.2017 passed stay order on
the operation of arbitral to BPCL furnishing a Bank Guarantee equivalent to 50% of counter claim amount.
The matter is next posted for hearing on 19.06.2017. The matter is currently pending.

10. HMACPL has accrued customs officer’s salaries stationed at air cargo terminal based on debit notes raised by

11.

the customs department on GHIAL. GHIAL had filed a writ petition under Article, 226 of the Constitution of
India in the Hon’ble High Court of Judicature of Andhra Pradesh at Hyderabad against the demand raised by
customs department. During the year ended March 31, 2013, GHIAL had received an order from the Hon’ble
High Court of Judicature of Andhra Pradesh at Hyderabad (Single Judge), stating that the grounds on which
the levy was made by customs department were wholly unsustainable and accordingly, HMACPL had reversed
the accrued cost of custom’s authorities amounting to Rs. 14.02 crore for the period from March 23, 2008 to
March 31, 2012.

Subsequent to the above order, the customs department preferred an appeal against the same and on November
2, 2012, a bench of two judges of the Hon’ble High Court of Judicature of Andhra Pradesh at Hyderabad
passed an order for interim suspension of the said order passed by the Hon’ble Single Judge. The management,
based on internal assessment / legal opinion, is confident that there is no financial impact of this interim
suspension order and accordingly, no further adjustment has been made to these consolidated financial
statements of the Group.

DIAL and GHIAL have been utilizing Passenger Service Fees (Security Component) (‘PSF (SC)’) towards
capital expenditure and cost of maintenance of such capital assel as per the provisions of Standard Operating
Procedure (‘SOP”), guidelines and clarifications issued by Ministry of Civil Aviation (‘MoCA”) from time to
time. MoCA has issued the order vide order no. AV 13024 /03/2011-AS (Pt. I) dated February 18, 2014
requiring the airport operators to reverse the expenditure since inception to till date, towards procurement and
maintenance of security systems / equipment’s and on creation of fixed assets out of PSF (SC) escrow account
opened and maintained by DIAL and GHIAL in a fiduciary capacity.

As at March 31, 2017, DIAL and GHIAL have incurred Rs. 297.25 crore and Rs. 93.83 crore (excluding
related maintenance expenses and interest thereon), respectively towards capital expenditure out of the PSF
(SC) escrow account as per SOPs, guidelines and clarification issued by MoCA from time to time on the
subject of utilisation of PSF (SC) funds.

In the opinion of the management of DIAL and GHIAL, the above order is contrary to and inconsistent with
SOPs, guidelines and clarification issued by MoCA from time (o time in this regard and as such had challenged
the said order before Hon’ble High court of Delhi and Hon’ble High Court of Judicature of Andhra Pradesh
respectively. In case of DIAL, the Hon’ble High Court, vide its order dated March 14, 2014, stayed recovery
of amount already utilized by DIAL from PSF (SC) Escrow Account till date. The maiter is now listed for
hearing on September 19, 2017.

Based on an internal assessment, the management is of the view that no adjustments are required to be made
in the books of accounts. Further, as directed by the Hon’ble High Court and pending further orders, DIAL
has charged Rs. 58.41 crore from April 1, 2014 till March 31. 2017 towards the expenditure incurred on repair
and maintenance of security equipment to the statement of profit and loss which includes Rs. 22.79 crore
during the year ended March 31, 2017. In case of GHIAL. the Hon’ble High Court of Hyderabad. vide its
Order dated March 3, 2014 followed by further clarification dated April 8, 2014 and December 24, 2014 stayed
the MoCA order with an undertaking that. in the event the decision of the writ petition goes against GHIAL,
it shall reverse all the expenditure incurred from PSF (SC). Accordingly, GHIAL is continuing to incur the
procurement and maintenance cost of security systems / equipment {rom PSF (SC) escrow account and during
the vear ended March 31, 2017 incurred an amount of Rs 2.88 crore on mainlenance of security systems /
equipment from the PSF (SC) escrow account.
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Based on an internal assessment, the management of the Group is of the view that no adjustments are required
to be made to these consolidated financial statements of the Group.

12. During the year ended March 31, 2011, GPCL had received a refund of customs duty of Rs. 29.57 crore which

13.

14.

15.

16.

was paid earlier towards the import of the plant and machinery and which was passed on to Tamil Nadu
Generation and Distribution Corporation Limited (‘TAGENDCO’) (formerly known as Tamil Nadu
Electricity Board “TNEB’) as a pass through as per the terms of the PPA. During the year ended March 31,
2012, GPCL received an intimation for cancellation of the duty draw back refund received earlier. The Group
does not foresee any liability in respect of the sme demand as a liability, if any, is to be recovered from
TAGENDCO, the ultimate beneficiary of the refund received earlier. However pending settlement of the
matter, the same has been considered as a contingent liability in these consolidated financial statements of the
Group.

During the year ended March 31, 2015, in respect of matter detailed in note 48(ii1), TANGEDCO has claimed
Rs. 285.00 crore before Tamil Nadu Electricity Regulatory Commission (“TNERC’) against GPCL.

In respect of ongoing land acquisition process of KSPL, there are claims of different types pending before
various judicial forums such as, disputes between claimants, or writ petitions filed against property
acquisitions, of land etc. As these cases are subject to judicial verdicts which are pending settlement and
accordingly, no adjustments have been made to these consolidated financial statements of the Group for the
year ended March 31, 2017.

During the year ended March 31, 2014, the Company along with its subsidiaries GIGL and GIOL entered into
a definitive agreement (‘SPA”) with Malaysia Airport MSC SdnBhd (‘the buyer’) for sale of their 40% equity
stake in jointly controlled entities Istanbul
SabihaUluslararasiHavalimani Y atirimYapim Velsletme AnonimSirketi (‘ISG’) and LGM
HavalimaniIsletmeleriVeTurizmAnonimSirketi (‘LGM’) for a sale consideration of EURO 20.90 crore (Net
of equity gap adjustment of Euro 1.60 crore and subject to debt and other working capital adjustments).
Pursuant to the SPA entered with the buyer, the group had provided a guarantee of Euro 4.50 Crore towards
tax claims, as specified in the SPA for a period till May 2019.

GSPL received a notices from the office of “ The Commissioner Excise, Entertainment & Luxary Tax” to
deposit entertainment tax amounting to Rs. 1413.52 lacs from IPL 2008 to IPL 2013. GSPL has deposited
1267.05 lacs with the department under protest. The Company has filed Writ petition for Hon’ble High Court
of Delhi against the same and stay has been granted on deposition of entertainment tax on sponsorship income
for IPL 2014, IPL 2015, and IPL 2016

Based on the opinion of senior advocates, management is of opinion that entertainment tax is not chargeable
on sponsorship receipts. However pending dispute, the amount paid has been recognized as an expense and
will be recognized as income in the year of receipt.

GSPL received a demand from The Commissioner of Service Tax for of Rs. 542.11 lacs (exclusive of interest
& penalties) on account of CENVAT credit wrongly availed on the input/input services while providing
exempted services. Based on the opinion of the consultant, management is of opinion that input credit has
been availed towards the business as a whole and not towards a particular output service, as the company was
rendering both taxable and exempt service and effect of the exempt service has been neutralised by reversing
certain percentage of exempt service (as required by CENVAT Credit rules), said demand is not maintainable
per se and filed an appeal with CESTATE.

GSPL received cheques totally Rs. 63.30 lacs received from League One Marketing Services Pvt. Ltd. were
dishonoured during the financial year 2008-09. GSPL complaint u/s 138 of the Negotiable Instruments Act
has been rejected by Magistrate. The company has filed appeal with Hon'ble High Court of Delhi. Pending
outcome of appeal, amount has been provided on prudence basis.
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17. Pursuant to the investor agreements (including amendments thereof) entered into during the years ended March
31, 2011 and 2012 (hereinafter collectively referred to as ‘investor agreements’), GAL, a subsidiary of the
Company, had issued 3,731,468 Class A Compulsorily Convertible Preference Shares (CCPS A" of Rs. 1,000
each at a premium of Rs. 2,885.27 each and Rs. 3,080.90 each aggregating to Rs. 663.31 crore and Rs.441.35
crore respectively, to certain Private Equity Investors (‘Investors’). Further, GAL had allotted bonus shares of
11,046,532 class B Compulsorily Convertible Preference Shares ('CCPS B') to the Company utilizing the
securities premium account.

As per the terms of the investor agreement, the Company had a call option to buy CCPS A from the Investors
for a call price to be determined as per the terms of the investor agreement. The call option was to be exercised
by the Company on or before April 6, 2015. If the call option was not exercised by the Company before April
6, 2015, each CCPS A was convertible into 82.821 equity shares of GAL with simultaneous conversion of
CCPS B held by the Company into equity shares of GAL as per Articles and Memorandum of Association of
GAL.

The Company vide its letter dated April 1, 2015, had exercised the call option to buy the CCPS A, subject to
obtaining the requisite regulatory approvals. However, Investors sought conversion of CCPS A and has
initiated arbitration proceedings against GAL and (the Company. The investors filed their statement of claim
and the Company along with GAL have filed their statement of defense / reply respectively.

In view of ongoing arbitration and considering the uncertainty regarding the conversion / settlement of CCPS
A, the Group has recorded CCPS A received from PE investors at the face value as at March 31, 2017. Further,
no adjustments have been made for the call option exercised by GIL to acquire CCPS A and the CCPS B
issued to the Company continues to be carried at cost of Nil in the consolidated {inancial statement of the
Group.
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37. Leases
a. Finance Lease
The Group has entered into tinance lease arrangements (as lessee) in respect of certain assets for periods of 3 to 5 years The lease has a primary period, which is

non-cancellable. The agreements provide for revision of lease rentals in the event of changes in taxes, if any, leviable on the lease rentals There are no
exceptional/ restrictive covenants in the lease agreements.

(1) Payable not later than 1 year 0.02 0.02 0.76 0.68
(ii) Payable later than 1 year and not later than 5 years 000 000 004 0.03
(i11) later than 5 years

Total — ()+(3i)+3i1) = (iv) 002 002 080 071
Less: Future finance charges (v) 000 009

Present Value of Minimum Lease Payments [(1v) - (V)] 002 0.71

b. Operating Leases

The Group has entered into certain cancellable operating lease agreements mainly for office premises and hiring equipments and certain non-cancellable operaling
lease agreements towards office premises and hiring office equipments. The lease rentals received during the year (included in note 21) and charged during the
year and the maximum obligation on the long term non-cancellable operating lease payable as per the agreements are as follows:

Lease rentals under cancelable and non cancellable leases 88 03 7222
Lease rentals 1161 877
on non-cancelable leases:
later than one 2319 2109
than one and not later than five 82 98 70 03
Later than five vears 164.40 59 80
Sp
= Z
Ll m
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38. Discloure in terms of AS -7 : Construction Contracts

s, in
Particulars 31-Mar-17 31-Mar-16
revenue the 386 01 178 01
Aggregate cost and recognised profits (net of losses) up to reporting date for contracts in 2,312 34 1,990 89
3. Amount customer advances contracts m 38172 27227
Retention due from customers for contracts m 10 89 469
5.Gross amount from customers for contract work as an asset 315.78 151 32

39. Negative Grant
Rs in Crores

Name of the subsidiary Date of Concession Total Negative Repayment Details Payable as at
Agreement Grant March 31,2017 March 31,2016
Unequal yearly installment
GACEPL November 16, 2015 17475 - nedualyeary mstiments 66.41 66.41

over 2 years

In accordance with the tenns of the Concession agreement entered into with NIIAI by GACEPL dated November 16, 2005, GACEPIL has an
obligation to pay an amount of Rs 174.75 crore by way ol Negative Grant to NITA! GACLPI. has paid an amount of Rs 108.34 crore (March
31, 2015: Rs.108 34 crore) and the balance amount of Rs 66 41 crore (March 31, 20135 Rs 66.41 crore) has been disclosed as negative grant
under ‘Long term borrowings™ in these conselidated [inancial statenients ol the Group Refer note 41(1) regarding the details of arbitration
pursuant to which the arbitration tribunal has stayed the payment of negative grant of GACIPILL during the years ended March 31, 2014, March
31,2015 and March 31,2016

40. Information on Jointly controlled entities as per AS - 27

Percentage of Effective Ownership

Name of Jointly Controlled Entities Iniﬁ::(:g t(i):)n or Indi
March3 2017 3 2016
RCMEPL India 9 16 10%
PTGEMS Indonesia 30 00% 27 89%
RCI Indonesia 29.70% 27 62%
BIB ~ Wlndongsia n 2943% 27.36%
KIM Indonesia 30.00% 27.89%
KCP Indonesia 30 00% 27.89%
BBU Indonesia 30.00% 27.89%
BITBA 30 00% 27.89%
BNP 30.00% 27.89%
TBBU 30 00% 27.89%
TKS 21.00% 19.52%
BAS 30.00% 27.89%
PTGEI Indonesia 30.00% 27.89%
PTEMS 30.00%
PTBSA 30.00%
PTWR 30 00%
GEMSCR 30.00% 27 89%
APFT 24 27% 24.51%
A

DASPL
TFS

India

India 16 17%
WAISL India
M India
AHDPL India 50 00%

40.00%

MGCIV 50.00%
SJECL China 30 00%

L
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41 (2) DERIVATIVE INSTRUMENTS

a. IRS outstanding as at the balance sheet date:

i, Incaseof DIAL, as per the condilions preccdent to disbursement of External Commercial Borrowing (‘ECB’) loan, DIAL
has entered into an IRS agreement from floating ratc of interest to fixed rate of interest against its foreign currency loan
of Nil (March 31, 2016: USD 8 65 crore).

IRS outstanding as at balance sheet Hcdge of variable interest outflow on ECB Swap to pay fixed rate of interest as
date: Nil (March 2016: USD 8.65 crore) mentioned below tranche wise and receive a variable rate equal Lo 6 months’
LIBOR:
March 31,2017 March 31, 2016 March 31, 2017 March 31, 2016
ECB amount ECB amount (USD Interest Rate Intercst Ratc
(USD in crore) in crore)
8.65 1.94%

However, these IRS of USD Nil (March 31, 2016: USD 86.453 million) [1.94% p.a. on notional amount payable semiannually
and receive USD 6 months LIBOR, semi-annually] were effective from June 30, 2015.

Since the critical terms of the IRS and those of the principal term loan were same, based on the internal assessment carried out by
the management, the net impact of the marked to market valuation of the IRS, net of gain/loss on the underlying loan, is not
expected (o be material and accordingly no adjustment had been made in the financial statements in earlier years.

However, during the year, Interest Rate Swap (IRS) which was outstanding on the external commercial borrowings was cancelled,
resulting in breakage cost of Rs. 8.17 crores. This breakage cost has been discloscd as “Exceptional items” in the statement of
profit and loss, as per the requierments of Accounting standard-5 ‘Net Profit or Loss for the period, prior period items and changes
in accounting Policies’.

ii. GAPL has entered into an IRS contract from floating rate of interest to fixed rate of interest against its foreign currency
loan amounting to USD 0.29 crore (March 31, 2016: USD 0.59 crore) covering the period from October 12, 2010 to
October 06, 2017. The outstanding balance of foreign currency loan as at 31* March 2017 is Rs. 19.30 Crore (March 31.
2016: Rs. 39.39 Crore). Bascd on the internal assessment carried out by the management of the Group, the net impact of
the mark to market valuation of the IRS. net of gain/ loss on the underlying loan is not expected to be material and
accordingly no adjustiment has been made in these consolidated financial statements of the Group.

In case of GHIAL, as per the conditions precedent to disbursement of forcign currency loan of USD 12 50 crore (March
31,2016: USD 12.50 crore). GHIAL has entcred into swap agreement (rom floating rate of interest to fixed rate of interesl
covering the period of the foreign currency loan from September 10, 2007 to April 01, 2024. The outstanding balance of
foreign currency loan as at March 31, 2017 is 479.86 crorc (March 31. 2016: 548 18 crore). Since the critical terms of the
IRS and the principal terms of the loan arc same, based on the internal asscssment carried out by the management of the
Group, the net impact of the mark to market valuation of the IRS. net of gain /loss on the underlying loan is not cxpected
to be material and accordingly no adjustment has been made in these consolidated financial statements of the Group.
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iv. During the year ended March 31, 2014, GKEL has entered into an IRS from floating rate of interest to fixed rate of interest
and a cross currency swap contract against its foreign currency loan amounting to USD 5.48 crore covering the period
from October 1, 2014 to December 1, 2017. The outstanding balance of foreign currency loan as at March 31, 2017 is
352.66 crore (March 31, 2016: 362.69 crore). Based on the internal assessment carried out by the management of (he
Group, the net impact of the mark to market valuation of the IRS, net of gain/ loss on the underlying loan is not expected
{0 be material and accordingly no adjustment has been made in these consolidated financial statements of the Group.

v MGAECL has entered into to a derivative contract and the outstanding amount as on 31* March 2017 is USD 40,819,651
(Marchi 31 2016: USD 41,318,353).
b. Derivatives as at the balance sheet date:

In case of DDFS, the Company uses forward exchange contracts and cross-currency options to hedge its exposure to
movements in foreign exchange rates. The Derivatives outstanding as the reporting date are as follows:

Amount in Amount in Amount in Amount in
Cross Currency Swap USD Crores USD Crores INR Crores INR Crores
2.14 2.84 110.40 146.40

Forward contract outstanding as at balance sheet date:

Amount in foreign currency in crore
Particulars Entity Currency
March 31,2017  March 31, 2016

Forward Cover for Hedging of Interest of FCCB ~ GIL USD 2.25

PR/

ERP
AN
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41 (b) Un-hedged foreign currency exposure for monetary items is as follows
rrencies and Indian Rs. in

Swiss Franc 000 0
Chinese Yuan
Euto 002 000 001 012
) (001 (0 05) (0 16)
Gieat Biitish Pound 003 000 004 004
('GBPY (0 05) (0 05) (0 06)
Indonesian Rupiah 1223
i P (6.99517) (57,856 87 (20,634 21) (12.050 17
Nepalese Runee 008 2529 007 021 369
! ' (21323) (103) (3 46) {65 00)
. 000 001
Singapote Dollm 00N (© 15) (0 04
Turkish Liia (001
Philippine Peso 76 85 879 58 142 24 13807 629 62
P (69 42) (644 76) (11218) (4348 (544 73)
Uniled States Dolla 555 64 50 8§52 27177 8693
('USD" (22 96) (55 50) (31 06) (29 18) (186 29
Austiahan Dolla 000
Canadian Dollar 000
Hongkong Dollat 000
Newzeland Dollal 000
Japanese Yen 000
Kuwail Dinham 000
Omani Rial 000
Qatari Rial 000
Saudi Riyal 000
Malaysian Ringgit 000
Thai Baht 000
United Arab Emirates 000 001
Ditham
Maldive Rufiyaa
Amount in Rs 467 24 5.406 65 747 43 2,013 08 6.520 85
: (1.673 77 (5,030 25) (2.03797) (2.083 65) (12,486 64)

Nole : Previous year figures ate mentioned in brackets
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42, Related party transactions

a. Names of the related s and of
S.No
(i) Shareholders having substantial interest /

enterprises exercising significant influence over the
subsidiaries or jointly controlled entities or associates

Where transctions have taken
Name of the
Airports Authority of India ( AAI)
Asia Pacific Flight Training Sdn Bhd (APFTSB')
Arcelormittal India Limited (AIL)
Bharat Petroleum Corporation Limited (BPCL)
Brindaban Man Pradhang
World Wide Flight Services India Private Limited (BWWFSIPL)
Cambata Aviation Private Limited (CAPL)
Cargo Service Center India Private Limited (CSCIPL)
Celebi Ground Handling Delhi Private Lunited (CELEDBI GIIDPL}
Celebi Hava Servisis A.S. (CHSAS)
Devyani International Limited (DIL)
Fraport AG Frankfurt Airport Services Worldwide (FAG)
GMR Institute of Technology (GMRIT)
Government of Andhra Pradesh (GoAP)
Government of Telangana (GoT)
Greenwich Investments Limited (GRIL)
Energy Management Limited
IDFS Trading Private Limited (IDFSTPL)
1L & FS Environmental Infrastructure and Services Limited (IEISL)
Investment and Infrastructure fund (IIF)
IL & FS Financials Services limited (IL&FS)
IL&FS Energy Development Company Limited (ILFSEDCL)
IL&FS Urban Infrastructure Services Limited (IUISL)
ILFS Renewable Energy Limited
Indian Qil Corporation Limited (IOCL)
Development Finance Company Limited (IDFC)
Leasing and Financial Services Limited (IL&FS Limited)
Kakinada Infrastructure Holdings Private Limited ( KIHPL)
Lanco Group Limited (LGL)
Lagshya Event IP Private Limited (LEIPL)
LGM Guvenik ( LGMG)
Limak Yatrim (LY)
Limak Insaat San. Ve Ticaret A.S. (LISVT)
Lagshya Media Private Limited (LMPL)
M/S G S.Atwal & Co.
Malaysia Airport Holding Berhad (MAHB)
Malaysia Airport (Labuan) Private Limited (MALPL)
Malaysia Airports Consultancy Services SDN Bhd (MACS)
Malaysian Aerospace Engineering Sdn. Bhd. (MAE)
Malaysian Airline System Bhd. (MAS)
MAMPL
Megawide Construction Corporation (MCC)
Mehment Senk Aipsoy (MSA)
Menzies Aviation Bobba (Bangalore) Private Limited (MABBPL)
Menzies Aviation Cargo (Hyderabad) Limited (MACHL)
Menzies Aviation India Private Limited (MAIPL)
Menzies Aviation PLC (UK) (MAPUK)
Menzies Bobba Ground Handling Services Private Limited (MBGHSPL)
SBI Infrastructure Investments PTE Limited  SI
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42, Related party transactions

a. Names of the related sand d on of

S.No

(i)

(i)

(iv)

Relationship

Enterprises where GEPL key management personnel
and their relatives exercise significant influence

Companies under cominon controf (where fransactions
have taken place)
Jointly controlled entities

Where transctions have taken
Name of the parties
NAPC Limited (NAPC)
Navabharat Power Private Limited (NBPPL)
Nepal Electricity Authority (NEA)
Odeon Limited (OL)
Oriental Structures Engineers Private Limited (OSEPL)
Oriental Tollways Private Limited (OTPL)
PT Dian Swastatika Sentosa Tbk (PT Dian)
PT Sinar Mas Cakrawala
Reliance Industries Limited (RIL)
Riverside Park Trading 164 (Pty) Limited (RPTL)
Rushil Construction (India) Private Limited
Somerset India Fund { SIF)
Sterlite Energy Limited (SEL)
Tenega Parking Services (India) Private Limited (TPSIPL)
Innovative Media Limited (TIML)
Finance Limited (TFL)
1 Foods Services (Delhi) Private Limited (TFSDPL)
TVS Communications Solutions Limited (TVSCSL)
TVS Sundram Iyengar & Sons limited
UE Development India Private Limited (UEDIPL)
Veda Infra-Holdings (India) Private Limited (VIHIPL)
Wipro Limited (WL)
Welfare Trust of GMR Group Employees ( WTGGE)
YL
Nismitha Real Estates Private

GMR Family Fund Trust

GMR Infraventures LLP

GMR Varalakshmi DAV Public School (GVDPS)
GMR Varalakshmi Foundation (GVF)

Welfare Trust of GMR Infra Employees (GWT)
Polygon

Parampara Family Business institute (PFBI)
GEORNO India Private Limited (GEOKNO)

APFT
BAS
BBU
BHBA
BIB
BNP
CDCTM
CJVv
DAFF
DASPL
Capital PTE Ltd
GIEMSCR
GMCAC
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42, Related party transactions

a. Names of the related s and n of re Where transctions have taken
S.No Relationship Name of the parties

KCP

KIM

de - GISPL Construction Joint Venture (MGCJIV)

PT Gems
RCI
RCMEPL
TBBU
TFS

TIM

TKS

v} Associates EDWPCPL
JEPL**
GCHEPL
GREL
UEPL**
GOSEHHHPL*
(vi) Key management personnel and their relatives Mr. K.Sremannarayana ( Chief Financial Officer)
Ms. Yogindu Khujaria ( Company Secretary)
Mr. Ravi

Consequent to disposal of stakes in GOSEHHHPL, the company has ceased to be a subsidiary from March 26, 2016 and accordingly as associate as on March 31, 2016
31,20 7
** Consequent to disposal of stakes m JEPL & UEPL, the companies has ceased to be associates during FY 20 6-17 and accordingly as associate as on March 3 2017



GMR ENTERPRISES PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2017

b. Summary of transactions with the above related parties are as follows:

in crore
March 31 March 31
Nature of Transaction 2017 ’ 2016 ’
Purchase of investment in equity shares
Shareholders having substantial interest / enterprises exercising significant
fluence over the subsidiaries or jointly controlled entities or associates
MAMPL 508.33
Sale of investments in equity shares
- Shareholders having substantial interest / enterprises exercising significant
influence over the subsidiaries or jointly controlled entities or associates
OSEPL 17.38
- Associate Companies
UEPL 47.35 -
JEPL 85.83
Share warrants forfeited
Enterprises where GEPL/GIL key management personnel and their relatives
significant influence
GIVLLP 141.75
Loans/ advances repaid by
- Shareholders having substantial interest / enterprises exercising significant
influence over the subsidiaries or jointly controlled entities or associates
LISVT 0.24
Nismita 0.05
- Jointly controlled entities
Lagshya 0.77 0.55
- Associates
JEPL 4.50
GCHEPL 425.60
UEPL 16.40
Enterprises where GEPL/GIL key management personnel and their relatives
ise significant influence
GVF 8.64
GFFT 4.00
GIVLLP 0.16
Companies under common control
Geokno 0.15
Loans/ advances given to
- Enterprises where GEPL/GIL key management personnel and their relatives
exercise significant influence
GVDPS 0.41
GFFT 4.00
GWT 0.04
GIVLLP 0.16
Associates

WTGGE 69.32



GMR ENTERPRISES PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2017

b. Summary of transactions with the above related parties are as follows:

March 31,

Nature of Transaction 2017

Loans taken from

Shareholders having substantial interest / enterprises exercising significant
fluence over the subsidiaries or jointly controlled entities or associates

OSEPL

Loans repaid

- Shareholders having substantial interest / enterprises exercising significant
influence over the subsidiaries or jointly controlled entities or associates

MAIPL 0.10

LMPL 2.17

4 Limited 1.04
Conversion of share application money into loans

- Shareholders having substantial interest / enterprises exercising significant
over the subsidiaries or jointly controlled entities or associates

MAHB

Liability written back

- Shareholders having substantial interest / enterprises exercising significant
influence over the subsidiaries or jointly controlled entities or associates

MAE 2.33

Sale of fixed assets
- Jointly controlled entities
APFT [Amounting to Rs. 13,321]
Associates
GCHEPL 0.15

Shareholders having substantial interest / enterprises exercising significant
influence over the subsidiaries or jointly controlled entities or associates

LMPL 0.01

Purchase of fixed assets/Services

- Shareholders having substantial interest / enterprises exercising significant
influence over the subsidiaries or jointly controlled entities or associates

WL 12.28
- Companies under common control
Geokno
Deposit received
- Enterprises where GEPL/GIL key management personnel and their relatives
exercise significant influence
GVF

GFFT . 0.39
- Jointly controlled entities

DAFF 7.87

Lagshya 0.01

TFS

DASPL

CDCTM

in
March 31,
2016

5.78

0.20
1.55

26.11

0.00

0.03

1.28

0.03

0.38
004
7.13



GMR ENTERPRISES PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2017

b. Summary of transactions with the above related parties are as follows:

Rs. in
. March 31, March 31,
Nature of Transaction 2017 2016
Deposit repaid
- Enterprises where GEPL/GIL key management personnel and their relatives
exercise significant influence
GFFT 16.35

Deposits given

- GEPL/GIL Key management personnel and their relatives
Mrs. B. Ramadevi 0.03
Mr. Madhva Bhimacharya Terdal 0.15
Mrs. G.Varalakshmi 0.06

Shareholders having substantial interest / enterprises exercising significant
fluence over the subsidiaries or jointly controlled entities or associates

APFTSB 0.04
- Enterprises where GEPL/GIL key management personnel and their relatives
exercise significant influence

GFFT 16.37

Deposit refund received
- Enterprises where GEPL/GIL key management personnel and their relatives
exercise significant influence
GFFT 1.25

Equity dividend paid by subsidiaries / jointly controlled entities

- Jointly controlled entities
TIM 4.61
DAFF 10.41
DASPL 1.25

Shareholders having substantial interest / enterprises exercising significant
influence over the subsidiaries or jointly controlled entities or associates

YL 13.81 14.82
MACHL 1.10 5.50

Preference dividend paid by subsidiaries

- Shareholders having substantial interest / enterprises exercising significant
influence over the subsidiaries or jointly controlled entities or associates

MACHL 2.16

Companies under common control

Geokno 4.22
Expenses

Shareholders having substantial interest / enterprises exercising significant
fluence over the subsidiaries or jointly controlled entities or associates

OSEPL 0.54 4.06



GMR ENTERPRISES PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2017

b. Summary of transactions with the above related parties are as follows:

Nature of Transaction

Revenue from operations

- Shareholders having substantial interest / enterprises exercising significant
influence over the subsidiaries or jointly controlled entities or associates

AAI

LMPL

TIML

Enterprises where GEPL/GIL key management personnel and their relatives
significant influence

GVF

Grandhi Kiran Kumar

GFFT

Companies under common control

Geokno

Associates

JEPL

GCHEPL

GOSEHHHPL

UEPL

Jointly controlled entities

Lagshya
TIM

PT GEMS
DAFF
CDCTM
TFS
DASPL
GMCAC
APFT

Fees received for services rendered

- Shareholders having substantial interest / enterprises exercising significant
influence over the subsidiaries or jointly controlled entities or associates

CELEBI GHDPL
BWWFSIPL

CAPL

Jointly controlled entities
PTGEMS

GMCAC

Fee paid for services received

- Shareholders having substantial interest / enterprises exercising significant
influence over the subsidiaries or jointly controlled entities or associates

WL
GoT
- Enterprises where GEPL/GIL key management personnel and their relatives
significant influence
GFFT

March 31,
2017

3.12
5.02
4.67

1.44
0.15
0.16

0.50

2.12
4.97
2:63
11.51

17.17
70.15
22.80

99.05
10.22
3.31
212.08
0.82

3.07
3.92
0.04

3.29

{Rs. in cro
March 31,
2016

3.00
4.67
6.83

0.09

44.72

11.99
60.02

11.83
101.64
10.89
3.24
7.35
0.67

3.04
3.07
2.21

2.99
2.61

9.31
3.12



GMR ENTERPRISES PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2017

b. Summary of transactions with the above related parties are as follows:

. March 31,
Nature of Transaction 2017
Interest income
- Associates
UEPL 0.01
JEPL 0.68
WTGGE 3.19
Jointly controlled entities
CDCTM
DASPL 0.10
TFS 0.58
Enterprises where GEPL/GIL key management personnel and their relatives
exercise significant influence
GIVLLP 0.12
PFBI 0.01
GFFT 4.39
Companies under common control
GEOKNO 0.60
- GEPL/GIL Key management personnel and their relatives
Mrs. B. Ramadevi 1.50
- Shareholders having substantial interest / enterprises exercising significant
over the subsidiaries or jointly controlled entities or associates
NEPL
Consent Fee paid
- GEPL/GIL Key management personnel and their relatives
Mr.G.M.Rao 5.99
Airport operator fees
- Shareholders having substantial interest / enterprises exercising significant
influence over the subsidiaries or jointly controlled entities or associates
FAG 151.05
share paid/payable to concessionaire grantors
Shareholders having substantial interest / enterprises exercising significant
fluence over the subsidiaries or jointly controlled entities or associates
AAI 2,634.84
Rental expenses
- Enterprises where GEPL/GIL key management personnel and their relatives
exercise significant influence
GFFT 4.98
- GEPL/GIL Key management personnel and their relatives
Mrs. B. Ramadevi 0.16
Mrs. G.Varalakshmi 0.15
Mr. G.B.S.Raju 0.26
Shareholders having substantial interest / enterprises exercising significant
fluence over the subsidiaries or jointly controlled entities or associates
Limited 0.00

AAI

Rs. in crore)
March 31,
2016

0.01
0.80

0.60
1.38

0.11
0.01
4.39

1.50

0.01

128.68

2,304.15

4.40
0.16

0.07
0.61

0.03



GMR ENTERPRISES PRIVATE LIMITED

Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2017

b. Summary of transactions with the above related parties are as follows:

remuneration to

Nature of Transaction

GIL Key management personnel and their relatives

Mr. G.M. Rao

Mr G.B.S Raju

Mr Srinivas Bommidala
Mr. B.V. Nageswara Rao
Mr. Grandhi Kiran Kumar

and consultancy fees

- Shareholders having substantial interest / enterprises exercising significant
over the subsidiaries or jointly controlled entities or associates

FAG
MACS
AAI
TIML
MAPUK
APFTSB

Other expenses - others

- Shareholders having substantial interest / enterprises exercising significant
influence over the subsidiaries or jointly controlled entities or associates

AAI

TPSIPL
MAPUK

BPCL
APFTSB
LEIPL

LMPL
BWWFSIPL
TIML

GHARL Novotel

- Jointly controlled entities

WAISL

Lagshya

TIM

TFS

CDCTM
- Associates

GCHEPL

- Companics under common control

GEOKNO

- Enterprises where GEPL/GIL key management personnel and their relatives

exercise significant influence

GFFT
GVF

GMR Varalakshmi DAV Public School (GVDPS)

Purchase of fuel

- Jointly controlled entities

BIB

March 31,
2017

4.57
1.69
5.70
1.01
3.99

0.07

7.21
0.35

0.08
3.45
0.59
0.11
0.00

0.98
2.02
0.62

2.57
0.12
0.06
3.73
0.32

9.54

1.81
0.26
0.93

Rs. in cro
March 31,
2016

4.07
1.42
4.95
2.70
3.42

0.28
3.03

3.01
6.99
0.33

0.03
2.68
0.66
0.11

0.05
0.40
0.91
0.68

15.01
0.14

0.34

0.72

7.97



GMR ENTERPRISES PRIVATE LIMITED

Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2017

b. Summary of transactions with the above related parties are as follows:

Nature of Transaction
ATC Development Fund Utilization

- Shareholders having substantial interest / enterprises exercising significant
influence over the subsidiaries or jointly controlled entities or associates

AAL
Reimbursement of expenses incurred on behalf of the Group

- Shareholders having substantial interest / enterprises exercising significant
influence over the subsidiaries or jointly controlled entities or associates

CHSAS
MAIPL
MAPUK
Times Innovative Media Ltd
Wipro Limited
LMPL
YL
CELEBI GHDPL
APFTSB
- Jointly controlled entities
GMCAC
TFS
- Enterprises where GEPL/GIL key management personnel and their relatives

exercise significant influence
GVF

GFFT to Rs. 37 961

Expenses incurred by the Group on behalf of / Expenses recovered by the Group

- Shareholders having substantial interest / enterprises exercising significant
influence over the subsidiaries or jointly controlled entities or associates

AAl
CELEBI GHDPL
TFS Pvt Limited
WL
LMPL
YL
- Jointly controlled entities

DASPL
CDCTM
TIM
TFS
Lagshya
APFT
Companies under common control
GEOKNO
- Enterprises where GEPL/GIL key management personnel and their relatives
exercise significant influence
GVF
GFFT
- Associates
GCIIEPL
MTSCL
UEPL

March 31,
2017

0.08
0.22
0.08
0.23
0.01

0.22
0.03
(0.04)

3.09
0.04

18.73
0.05
0.02

0.41
1.03

6.42
12.05
2.04
2.42
0.60
0.13

0.11

0.07

0.02
0 02

in
March 31,
2016

10.00

0.11
0.20
0.08

0.05
0.51
0.04
0.02

0.04

1.03
0.00

18.15
0.01

001
0.00
0.03

5.27
11.46
2.12
2.63
0 46
0.13

0.06
002

0.03



GMR ENTERPRISES PRIVATE LIMITED

Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2017

b. Summary of transactions with the above related parties are as follows:

Nature of Transaction

Donations
- Enterprises where GEPL/GIL key management personnel and their relatives
exercise significant influence

GVF

Lease income

Shareholders having substantial interest / enterprises exercising significant
over the subsidiaries or jointly controlled entities or associates

CELEB! GHDPL
10CL
BPCL
- Jointly controlled entities
TIM
DAFF
CDCTM
DASPL
- Associates
GCHEPL
Cargo handling charges paid

- Shareholders having substantial interest / enterprises exercising significant
nce over the subsidiaries or jointly controlled entities or associates

CELEBI GHDPL
BWWFSIPL
CAPL

Interest expenses
Jointly controlled entities
Laqshya
APFT

- Shareholders having substantial interest / enterprises exercising significant
influence over the subsidiaries or jointly controlled entities or associates

AAI
CHSAS
WL
of Raw Materials
Shareholders having substantial interest / enterprises exercising significant influence over the
or jointly controlled entities or associates
TFS Kolkatta Pvt Ltd
Provision no longer required written back
- Jointly controlled entities
RCMEPL

Corporate guarantee extinguished
- Associates
UEPL
JEPL
Bank guarantees extinguished
- Associates
ULEPL
JEPL

March 31,
2017

16.02

1.73
0.00
0.02

0.75
12.69
20.26
0.08

0.08

0.22
0.27
0.00

0.01
0.12

5.03
0.42
0.05

0.01

Rs. in
March 31,
2016

18.13

0.15
0.00
0.02

0.21
0.21
0.11

2.10
0.37
0.10

696.87
353.48

12.50
17.50



GMR ENTERPRISES PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2017

b. Summary of transactions with the above related parties are as follows:

March 31,
Nature of Transaction 2017
Arrears of cumulative dividends on preference share capital issued by a subsidiary
Shareholders having substantial interest / enterprises exercising significant
fluence over the subsidiaries or jointly controlled entities or associates
OL
Balance Payable / (receivable)
- Shareholders having substantial interest / enterprises exercising significant
influence over the subsidiaries or jointly controlled entities or associates
AAI 135.04
FAG 79.99
APFTSB 0.54
LISVT (0.06)
MACS 0.04
MAHB (0.29)
WL 11.94
LMPL 7.98
MAIPL 1.02
MAPUK 4.40
GoT 3.37
CHSAS 6.86
TPSIPL 0.84
CELEBI GHDPL (0.79)
BWWFSIPL (0.97)
CAPL
YL (0.01)
TFSPL 0.03
GHARL Novotel 0.07
MCC
BPCL 0.04
Enterprises where GEPL/GIL key management personnel and their relatives
significant influence
GFFT (281.41)
GVF 1.51
GWT (115.00)
WTGGE (72.50)
GVDPS
GIVLLP (143.76)
Polygon
PFBI (0.19)
- Companics under common control
GEOKNO (6.10)
J controlled entities
PTGEMS 2,335.20
GMCAC (64.81)
CJvV
MGCJV (1.97)
Lagshya (6.42)
APFT (1.58)
DASPL 7.09
TFS 0.55
DAFF 125.27
CDCTM 89 51
WAISL (4.63)
TIM 2.44

in crore
March 31,
16

20.65

104.16
68.35
0.28
0.28
15.42
1.10
11.36
11.01
0.70
0.80
318.25
6.97
0.73
(0.47)
(1.55)
(3.95)
0.53

0.39
0.04

(286.00)
2.96
(115.00)

1.90
(143.64)
(22.90)
(0.16)

34 52
(0.67)
(0.62)
(0.86)
4.75)
(1.23)
6.66
(2.35)

117.30

9109
(5.47)
6.74



GMR ENTERPRISES PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2017

b. Summary of transactions with the above related parties are as follows:

Associates
UEPL
JEPL
GCHEPL
GREL
GOSEHHHPL

- GEPL/GIL Key management personnel and their relatives

Mr. G.M. Rao

Mrs. G.Varalakshmi
Mr G Kiran Kumar
Mrs. B. Ramadevi

Mr. G.B.S.

Nature of Transaction

Outstanding corporate guarantees

- Associates
GCHEPL

Outstanding bank guarantees

- Companies under common control

GEOKNO
Associates
GOSEHHHPL

Outstanding pledge of fixed deposits

March 31,

2.56
1.08
(3,559.90)
(1,202.89)
(0.07)

10.48
(0.08)

(.
(25.55)

4,690.47

1.30

- Shareholders having substantial interest / enterprises exercising significant

influence over the subsidiaries or jointly controlled entities or associates

WTGGE

Arrears of cumulative dividends on preference share capital issued by a subsidiary

Shareholders having substantial interest / enterprises exercising significant

fluence over the subsidiaries or jointly controlled entities or associates

OL
Notes:

Rs. in crore)
March 31,
2016

(103.25)
(8.06)
(22.22)

4.22
(0.08)

(24.05)
0.31

2.48

1,080.00

130.50

76.17

a. The Group has provided securities by way of pledge of investments for loans taken by certain companies.

b. Certain GEPL/GIL Key management persontel have extended personal guarantees as security towards
borrowings of the Group and other body corporates. Similarly, the company and certain fellow subsidiaries have
pledged certain shares held in the Company as security towards the borrowings of the Group.

¢. Remuneration to GIL key managerial personal does not include provision for gratuity, superannuation and
for personal accidental policy, as the same are determined for the Group as a whole

d. Certain bank guarantees and corporate guarantees given on behalf of subsidaries have not been considered in the
above transactions and outstanding balances.



GMR Enterprises Private Ltd.
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31,2017

43 Gratuity and other post employment benefits plans

a) Defined contribution plan

The details of the fund and plan asset position are as follows:

mn

Particulars 31 2017 2016

assets at Lhe year end, at 94.27
value of benefit ob at end 94 27 8223
asset in the balance
used in the value of the interest rate under the Deterministic

March 31,2017 March 31,2016
Rate 7.80%
Rate 9. 9.30%
EPFO Rate 8.60%
Withdrawal Rate 5.00%
Indian Indian Assured
Lives
Mortality
(2006-08;
(modified)Ull *

*As published by Insurance Regulatory and Development Authotity (TRDA") and adopted as Standaid Mortality Table as recommended by Institute of Actuaries of
India eflective April 1,2013

Gratuity Plan
The Group has a defined benefit gratuity plan. Every employee who has completed five years or more of service gets a giatuity on departure at 15 days salary (based

on last drawn basic) for each completed year of service. The scheme is funded with an insutance Company in the form of a qualifying insurance policy.

The following tables summaiise the components of net benefit expense recognised in the statement of profit or loss and the funded status and amounts recognised in
the balance sheet for defined benefit plans/ obligations.

Balance Sheet in
3 2017 2016
benefit 50 93
Fair value of assets 3795 3828

asset / 126



GMR Enterprises Private Lid.

Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31,2017

C in the value of defined benelit
iculars
benefit obligation
to / iansfer from the Group
acquisitions
cost
service cosl
paid
Acluarial (gains) / losses on obligalion
operations
defined benefit obli
Ch in the fair value assets are as follows:
fair value of plan assets
to / transfer from the Group
acquisilions
return on plan assets
by employer
paid
gain/ (loss) on plan assets
operations
fair value assets

Gioup expecls Lo contribute Rs. 7.80 crore (March 31,2016 : Rs 9.03 crore) towards gratuity fund in next yea

The of asa
Part
Investments with insurer managed funds

The na ions used in determinin

Discount 1ate (in %)
Salary Escalation (in %)
Expected rate of return on assets

Altrition rate (in %)

Mortality Rate

Notes :

are

of the fais value

total

follows:

assets is as follows:

March
50.50
(U
319
8.07
692)
405
(001
5849
March 31, 2017
3799
0.19)
2.39
344
(6 92)
123
3795
March 31, 2017
100 00%¢
March 31,2017
7 10%
6 00%
7 80%
500%
Indian Assured
Lives
Mortality
(2006-08;
(modifiedYUll

mn
31 2016

40.12
(090)
4.94
329
8.21
(6
143

50.50

mn

March 31. 2016

32,68
0 21)
009
335
902
(6 59)
(0.35)

3799

March 31.2016
100 00%

March 31,2016

7 80%
6.00%
7.10%
5.00%

Indian Assuied

Lives

Mortality

(2006-08)

(modified)Ult

i The long term estimate of the expected rate of return on fund assets has been amived at based on the prevailing yields on these assets Assumed 1ate of retum on

assels is expected to vary from year to year 1eflecting the retwns on matching government bonds.

i The estimales of future increase in compensation levels, considered in the actuarial valuation, have been taken on account of inflation, seniority, promotion and
other relevant factors such as supply and demand in the employment market
iii. As per Indian Assured Lives Mortality (2006-08) (modified) Ult. (March 31, 2016: As per Indian Assured Lives Mortality (2006-08) (moditied) Ult)

Amounts for curtent year and previous two years aie as follows

Particulars March3 2017
Rsin Crore
Present value of defined 58 49
Fai value of assets 3795
/
ence on n 405
123

on n assels

Gratu
March 3 2016 March 3 2015
Rsin Crore Rsin

5327
331

1

152 519

1



GMR Enterprises Private Ltd.
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31,2017

Other defined post employment benefit
Certain entities in the group located outside India have defined unfunded post employment benefits, for its employees.

The following tables summarises the components of net benefit expenses recognised in the statement of profit and loss and amounis recognised in the balance sheet
for these defined post-employment benefits..

Statement of profit and loss

Net benefit n
ars 7
cost 1.52
loss / (gain) 005
cost on benefit 0.20
benefit 0.63 0.83
in the value of the obli are as follows: in
March 3
obligation 7.96 8.39
cost 0.20 0.27
Current service cost 0.48 1.52
Benefits paid (222)
Actuarial (gains)/ losses on obligation
7.11 7.96

defined



GMR Enterprises Private Ltd

Notes to the ¢ lidated linancia

44.Segment Reporting

ts lor the period cnded March 31,2017

a) The segment 1eporting of the Group has been prepared in accordance with AS 17 on Segment Reporting. notified under section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013

b) For the purpose of 1eporting, business segments are primary segments and the geographical segments are secondary segiments

¢) The business segments of the Gioup comprise of the following;

Seement

Power

of
and of

aclivities

solution in the

d) Geographical segments are categolised as ‘India’ and ‘Outside India” and are based on the domicile of Lthe customers
¢) Various business segments comprise of the following companies:

Limited
Gateways for

Private
Hyderabad Airport
Aeyostruclure Limited

Hyderabad

Engineering

Aero Technic Limited(GATL)

Airport Media

Delhi Intemational Airport Limited

Delhi Aerotiopolis Private Limited

Delhi
(Delhi Termunal
Duty Fiee
Facility Private
Delhi Cargo T
Services Private

Delhi Aurport

Airports Limited
GMR Airports (Maunitius) Limited

GMR Aimports (Malta) T.imited
GMR Male Intemational

GMR

Goa Intemational Auport

GMR Energy Limited (GEL)

Power Corporation
GMR
Hydro Power
& Energy
Kamalanga Eneigy Limited
Hydro Power Company
Energy (Mauritius) Limited

Lion Energy Limited

GMR Energy Trading Limited
GMR

Genco Assets
Power Privale
Company
Company
Indo-Nepal Energy

GMR

Generation Assels Limiled
Era Mitra Selaias (PTEMS)

Berkat Satria Abadi (PTBSA)

Coal Resources Pte Limited

Golden Energy Mines Tbk

GMR Coastal Energy Private Limited PT Roundhill Capital Indonesia

Private

Londa Hydropowet

Coal Mine and Energy

Chhattisgarh Energy Limited
Energy (Cyprus) Limited
GMR Energy (Netherlands) B V
Dwikarya Sejati Utma
PT Duta Sarana Intemusa
PT Barasentosa Lestari
GMR Rajalunundry Energy Limited
Powergen Limited
Unsoco

Warota Energy Limited

Energy

PT Bomeo Indobara
Kuansing Inti Makmur
Karya Cemerlang Pessada
Bungo Bara Utama
Bara Harmonis Batang Asam
Berkat Nusantara Permai
Tanjung Belit Bara Utama

PT Trisula Kencana Sakti

GMR Energy
Karya Mining Solution (KMS)
GEMS Eneigy Indonesia

Tiading Resources Ple Limited
Power Inlia Limited

Shanghai Jingguang Eneigy Co Ltd

PT Wahana Rimba (PI'WR)

Hospitality and

Wipro Aurporl IT Services Limited
GMR Aviation Private Limited
Krishnagiri SEZ Limited
Properties Privale Limited
Properties Private Limited
Properties Private Limited
Pioperties Private Limited
Properties Piivate
Camelia Properties Private Limited
Pioperties Private Limiled
Pyopesties Private Limited

Properties Private Limited

Puiya Properties
Private
Idika Propertics Privale Limited
Private
Propettics Private Limited
Properties Private Limiled
Propeities Private

Properties Private Limited

Pioperties Privale

GMR Ulilities Pyivate Limited

Raxa Securilies Privale Lunited

(Mauritius)

Infrastructune (Cyprus) Limited
Infrastructure Overseas Limited
Infrastructure (UK) Limited

Infiastructure (Global) Limited

GMR Eneigy (Global) Limited
GMR

Kakinada Gateway Port

SEZ Limited

Inlra Developers Limited

Properties Private Limited

Business Process and
Ltd

GMR Hosur EMC Private Limited

Namitha Real Estates Pvt Ltd

Pioperties Private Lunited
Estates Pvt Ltd

Pioperties Private Limited

Power Distiibution
Private

Properies Private Limited

Real Lstates Private

Properies Private Limited Ravivaima Realty Private Limited

Shyeyadita Properties Private Limited

Sreepa Propertlies Private Limited

SEZ and Port Holdings Limiled

Corporale

Seculities

SEZ Limited

Relail Private Limited
GMR Business &
GMR 1loldings ¢ Overseas) Ltd
Grandhi
National SEZ Infia Services Pvt Lid

& Penrochemicals

Tunbers Pyt Lid

Artex Agencies Pvt Lid
Real Eslates Private Limited
Properties Pyt Ltd

Jabilli Properties Pvt Litd

GMR League Games Private Limited
Privale Lumited

AMG Healthcare Destination Pvt Ltd
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GMR Enterprises Pvt. Limited
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2017

45. Other matters:

A. Matters relating to certain airport sector entities:

DF Order

AERA DF Order No. 28/2011-12, 30/ 2012-13 and AERA tariff order No. 03/2012-13 on determination of
Aeronautical Tariff; issued on November 14, 2011, December 28, 2012 and April 24, 2012 respectively.

DIAL has accrued DF amounting to Rs. 350.00 crore during the year 2012-2013 earmarked for construction of Air
Traffic Control (ATC) tower, which is currently under progress as at March 31, 2017. DF amounting to Rs. 350
crore (March 31, 2016: Rs. 345.85 crore) has been adjusted against the expenditure on construction of ATC tower
incurred till March 31, 2017 and balance DF amounting to Rs. Nil (March 31, 2016: Rs. 4.15 crore and April 01,
2015: Rs. 41.17 crore), pending utilization, has been disclosed under other current liabilities.

The total expenditure incurred on construction of ATC tower is Rs. 393.07 crore till March 31, 2017 which
exceeds the earmarked DF of Rs. 350 crore, as the construction got delayed due to security reasons and additional
requirements from time (o time.

Pending discussion with AAI for the excess amount, DIAL has included the additional amount of Rs. 43.07 crore
(March 31, 2016: Rs. Nil and April 01, 2015: Rs. Nil) under Capital Work in Progress (CWIP) as at March 31,
2017.

While calculating such additional DF amount:

a. In accordance with the earlier Standard Operating Procedure (SOP) approved and issued by the AAI dated
February 19, 2009 read with the MoCA order dated February 9, 2009, DIAL was adjusting collection
charges against DF receipts. However, AERA vide its subsequent order no. 28/2011-12 issued on
November 14, 2011 has observed that in terms of Section 22A of the AAT Act, 1994 (amended from time to
time) as well as Section 13(1)(b) of the AERA Act, 2008, the function of AERA is limited only to
determining the rate / amount of DF and manner of collection and administration cost incurred thereupon
had already been prescribed by way of rules by the Central Government. In view of the fact that DF rules
notified by the MoCA dated August 2, 2011 do not prescribe adjustment of collection charges from the DF
receipts; DIAL has capitalized DF collection charges aggregating to Rs. 28.37 crore till March 31, 2017
(March 2016: Rs. 27.07 crore).

b. Airport Economic Regulatory Authority (AERA) has passed an order vide Order No 30/2012-13 dated
December 28, 2012 in respect of levy of Development fee at Delhi Airport. As per the said order, the rate
of Airport Development Fee (ADF) has been reduced from Rs. 200 to Rs. 100 and from Rs. 1,300 to Rs.
600 per embarking domestic and international passenger respectively. Further, as per the said order, such
revised rales have come into force with elfect from January 1, 2013 and estimated DF collection period has
been extended up to April 2016. Further, AERA has issued order No.47/2015-16 dated January 25, 2016,
restricting cut-off date for collection of ADF upto April 30, 2016. As per the order, AERA has granted AAI
six months’ time after cutolf date (i.e April 30, 2016) to reconcile and close the account, and to arrive at the
over recovery / under recovery of ADF. However, the same has not yet been finalized. This over / under
recovery will be accounted for on final reconciliation of ADF pending with AAIL However, DIAL has
collected the DF receivable in full and settled the DF loan on May 28, 2016.

In case of GHIAL, the Airport Economic Regulatory Authority (‘AERA’), passed an Aeronautical tari(f order No.
38 dated February 24, 2014, in respect of control period from April 1. 2011 to March 31, 2016. GHIAL had filed
an appeal, challenging the disallowance of pre control period losses. foreign exchange loss on ECB and other
issues for determination of its tariff with the AERA Appellate Tribunal (AERAAT) against the aforesaid order.
Duc to non-constitution of AERAAT Bench. GHIAL had filed a writ petition with the Hon’ble High Court at
Hyderabad for the State of Telangana and for the State of Andhra Pradcsh. which is vet to be heard.



GMR Enterprises Pvt. Limited
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GHIAL filed an application with AERA for determination of Aeronautical Tariff in respect of Second Control
period from April 1, 2016 to March 31, 2021 including True up for shortfall of receipt vis a vis entitlement for the
first control period. Pending determination of Aeronautical Tariff, AERA vide its order No. 19 dated March 31,
2017 has allowed to continuc to charge the Aeronautical tariff as prevailed on March 31, 2017 for a period of 6
months w.e.f. April 1, 2017 or till determination of tariff for the aforesaid period whichever is earlier.

GATL has been incurring losses including cash losses and has accumulated losses of Rs. 363.92 crore as at March
31, 2017. Though the networth of GATL is fully eroded, the losses have reduced and are Rs. 39.11 crore for the
year ended March 31, 2017 respectively vis-a-vis losses of Rs. 73.32 crore for the year ended March 31, 2016.
Further, the management of the Group expects that there will be a significant increase in the operations of GATL
that will lead to improved cash flows and long term sustainability. The Group has undertaken to provide such
financial support as necessary, to enable GATL to meet the operational requirements as they arise and to meet its
liabilities as and when they fall due. Accordingly, the management of the Group believes that the carrying value of
net assets of GATL as at March 31, 2017 is appropriate.

As per the advice from the Ministry of Home Affairs and the Standard Operating Procedures (“SOP’) issued by
Ministry of Civil Aviation (‘MoCA”) on March 6, 2002, GHIAL, through its wholly owned subsidiary, Hyderabad
Airport Security Services Limited (‘HASSL’) constructed residential quarters for Central Industrial Security
Forces (‘CISF’) deployed at the Hyderabad airport. After completion of such construction, the total construction
cost including the cost of land amounting to Rs. 69.92 (March 31, 2016: 69.92 crore) crore was debited to the
Passenger Service Fee (Security Component) Fund [PSF(SC) Fund] with intimation to MoCA. The Comptroller
and Auditor General of India (‘“CAG’), during their audits of PSF (SC) Fund, observed that, GHIAL had not
obtained prior approval from MoCA for incurring such cost from the PSF(SC) Fund as required by the guidelines
dated January 8, 2010 and April 16, 2010 issued by MoCA. However, management of the Group is of the opinion
that these guidelines were issued subsequent to the construction of the said residential quarters and approached
MoCA for approval to debit such costs to the PSF (SC) Fund account and also, made an application for increase in
PSF (SC) tariff to recover these dues and to meet the shortfall in discharging other liabilities from PSF (SC) Fund.

In earlier years, MoCA responded that, it is not in a position to consider the request for enhancement in the PSF
(SC) tariff. As a result, GHIAL requested MoCA to advice the AERA for considering the cost of land /
construction and other related costs regarding the aforesaid residential quarters in determination of Aeronautical
Tariff for the Hyderabad airport. Pending final instruction from MoCA, residential quarters continue to be
accounted in the PSF(SC) Fund and no adjustments have been made to the consolidated financial statements of the
Group for the year ended March 31, 2017.

In case of DIAL, the Airport Economic Regulatory Authority (‘AERA’) vide its powers conferred by Section
13(1)(a) of the AERA Act, 2008 passed an Acronautical tariff order Viz. 03/2012-13 issued on April 24, 2012
which determined the Aeronautical tariff to be levied at Delhi Airport for the fourth and fifth year of tariff period
of first five-year control period (i e. 2009 - 2014). The first five-year control period referred to above ended on
March 31, 2014.

DIAL had filed a writ petition before the Hon’ble High Court of Delhi seeking extension of existing tariff as
allowed vide AERA order No. 03/2012-13 till disposal of DIAL’s appeal pending before Airports Economic
Regulatory Authority Appellate Tribunal (‘AERAAT’). Subsequently, Hon’ble High Court of Delhi vide its final
order dated January 22, 2015 ordered that the tariff determined by AERA for the First Control Period vide Tariff
Order No. 03/2012-13 issued on April 24, 2012 shall continue till the disposal of the appeals pending against the
said Tarifl Order, by AERAAT.

Subsequently, AERA released the tariff order No. 40/2015-16 dated December 08, 2015 for second control period
i.e. 2014 -2019, which as per AERA order would be implemented upon the final outcome of the legal proceedings
pending before AERAAT. As per AERA order for second control period, tariff for aeronautical reverrue will be
reduced by 89.40% of the existing tariff (i.c tariff as compared to the first control period).

DIAL has filed an appeal against thc AERA order No. 40/2015-16 dated December 08, 2015 with AERAAT on
January 11, 2016. In view of above legal proceedings, the AERA order for second control period could not be
implemented till the disposal of all legal issues associated with the order. The revenue so collected by DIAL
during this interim period shall be adjusted from the aggregate revenue.

8
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Earlier, AERA has filed a Special Leave Petition (“SLP”) dated April 24, 2015 in the Hon’ble Supreme Court of
India, seeking interim relief from the final order of Hon’ble High Court of Delhi dated January 22, 2015. AERA
has also filed an application before Hon’ble Supreme Court seeking directions for the implementation of its tariff
order for second control period. The pleadings of the parties are complete and Hon’ble Supreme Court has
disposed off Special Leave Petition on May 12, 2016 with directions to AERAAT to dispose of the Tariff Appeals
within three months from receipt of this order. The tariff matters were listed for hearing by AERAAT on October
17, 2016; however, as extension for members of AERAAT was not approved till date, the matter was further
adjourned till the next communication by AERAAT.

In February, 2017, Air India filed an SLP for expeditious disposal of Tariff matters and the Supreme Court
directed AERAAT to dispose off the Tariff appeals within 2 months i.c. by April 2017. In compliance of the
aforesaid Supreme Court order Tribunal has decided to hear Tariff appeals on priority. The tariff appeal filed
against the AERA order no. 03/2012-13 are being heard and would be concluded in due course.

In the opinion of the management, in view of the profits earned over the last five financial years, DIAL’s business
plans and cash flow projections for the next one year, DIAL expects to earn sufficient cash profits and does not
foresee any difficulty in continuing its business / operations and meeting its financial obligations.

DIAL has received advance development costs of Rs. 660.06 crore (March 31, 2016: Rs. 653.13 crore) from
various Developers at Comumercial Property District towards facilitating the development of common
infrastructure there in. As per the term of the agreement, DIAL will facilitate the development of common
infrastructure upon receipt of advance towards development cost in accordance with the instructions and
specifications in the agreement. Further, DIAL has no right to escalate the development cost and in case any
portion of the advance development cost is not utilized by DIAL towards development of any infrastructure
facility, the same shall be returned to the Developers upon earlier of the expiry of the initial term of agreement or
upon termination of the development agreement. As at March 31, 2017, DIAL has incurred development
expenditure of Rs. 469.72 crore (March 31, 2016: Rs. 426.61 crore) which has been adjusted against the aforesaid
advance and balance amount of Rs. 190.34 crore (March 31, 2016: Rs. 226.52 crore) is disclosed under other
liabilities.

DIAL is collecting 'Marketing Fund' at a specified percentage from various concessionaires as per the agreement
with respective concessionaires and to be utilized towards sales promotional activities as defined in such
agreements in accordance with the Marketing Fund policy adopted by DIAL. The financial statements of such
marketing fund are being andited by one of the Joint Statutory auditors of DIAL. As at March 31, 2017, DIAL has
billed Rs. 92.48 crore (March 31, 2016: Rs. 71.04 crore) towards such Marketing Fund and has incurred
expenditure amounting to Rs. 39.05 crore (net of income on temporary investments) till March 31, 2017 (March
31, 2016: Rs. 31.50 crore) from the amount so collected. The balance amount of Rs. 53.43 crore pending
ulilization as at March 31, 2017 (March 31, 2016: Rs. 39.54); as marketing fund billing and utilization was not
forming part of marketing fund) against such sales promotion activities is included under 'Other current liabilities'
as specific fund to be used for the purpose to be approved by the Marketing fund committee constituted for this
purpose.

a) The consolidated financial statements of the Group do not include accounts for PSF (SC) of DIAL and GHIAL
as the same are maintained separately in the fiduciary capacity by these entities on behalf of Gol and are governed
by SOP issued vide letter number AV/13024/047/2003-SS/AD dated January 19, 2009 issued by MoCA, Gol.

b) The consolidated financial statements of the Group do not include billing to Airlines for DF by DIAL, as the
management of the Group believes that DIAL's responsibility is restricted only to the billing on behalf of AAI in
accordance with the provisions of AAI (Major Airports) Development Fec Rules, 2011 and DF SOP.

DIAL has a receivable of Rs. 564.47 crore as at March 31, 2017 (March 31, 2016: Rs, 516.37 crore) (including
unbilled revenue) from Air India Limited and its subsidiaries namely Indian Airlines Limited, Airline Allied
Services Limited and Air India Charters Limited collectively referred as “Air India’. In view of continuing
“Airport Enhancement and Financing Service Agreement” with the International Air Transport Association for
recovery of dues from Air India and considering the fact that Air India being a government enterprisc/
undertaking. the DIAL considers its dues from Air India as good and fully recoverable.

The Comptroller and Auditor General of India (CAG') had conducted the performance audit of Public Private
Partnership ('PPP') project of AAI at Delhi Airport for the period 2006 to 2012. CAG had presented its report
before the Rajya Sabha on August 17, 2012 wherein they had made certain observations on DIAL. The Public
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Accounts Committee (‘'PAC"), constituted by the Parliament of India, has examined the CAG report and submitted
its observations and rccommendations to Lok Sabha vide its ninety fourth report in February 2014. The
management of the Group is of the view that the observations in the CAG report and the PAC report do not have
any financial impact on these consolidated financial statements of the Group.

AERA had passed the tariff order No. 40/2015-16 dated December 8, 2015 (issued on December 10, 2015)
wherein Authority had decided to adjust DF of Rs. 3,241.37 crore out of allowed DF of Rs. 3,415.35 crore based
on the actual expenditure spent towards project. The authority had decided to adjust the balance amount of DF of
Rs. 173.98 crore on utilization basis as and when it is incurred. However, DIAL availed loans of Rs. 3,415.35
crore based on the DF Orders and DF collected from passengers is used for payment of interest and principal till
March 31, 2017. Accordingly, the differential interest i.c. paid by DIAL on DF loans and considered on actual
spent amounting to Rs. 48.06 crore (March 31, 2016: Rs. 47.90 crore) is required to be absorbed by DIAL.
Accordingly, during the year ended March 31, 2017 interest expense of Rs. 0.16 crore (March 31, 2016: Rs. 47.90
crore) has been provided in the books of accounts. Further, DIAL had incurred a sum of Rs. 17.29 crore towards
interest from December 2011 to February 2012 which was not allowed by AERA and accordingly interest expense
of Rs. 17.29 crore had also been provided in the books of accounts during previous year ended March 31, 2016.

Preference Shares issued by subsidiaries:

Pursuant to investor agreements (including amendments thereof) entered into during the years ended March 31,
2011 and 2012 (hereinafter collectively referred to as "investor agreement"), Company has issued 3,731,468 of
non-cumulative compulsorily convertible participatory preference shares (Class A CCPS) of Rs. 1,000 each fully
paid-up at a premium of Rs. 2,885.27 and Rs 3,080.90 per share for 2,298,940 Class A CCPS (‘First Tranche’) and
1,432,528 Class A CCPS (‘Second Tranche’) respectively. Further, Company had allotted bonus shares of
11,046,532 class B Compulsorily Convertible Preference Shares ("CCPS B") to GMR Infrastructure Limited
(“GIL” or “Holding Company”), utilising the securities premium.

As per the terms of the investor agreement, the Company had a call option to buy CCPS A from the Investors for a
call price to be determined as per the terms of the investor agreement. The call option was to be exercised by the
Company on or before April 6, 2015. If the call option was not exercised by the Company before April 6, 2015,
each CCPS A was convertible into 82.821 equity shares of GAL with simultaneous conversion of CCPS B held by
the Company into equity shares of GAL as per Articles and Memorandum of Association of GAL.

The Company vide its letter dated April 1, 2015, had exercised the call option to buy the CCPS A, subject to
obtaining the requisite regulatory approvals. However, Investors sought conversion of CCPS A and has initiated
arbitration proceedings against GAL and the Company. The investors filed their statement of claim and the
Company along with GAL have filed their statement of defence / reply respectively.

In view of ongoing arbitration and considering the uncertainty regarding the conversion / settlement of CCPS A,
the Group has recorded CCPS A received from PE investors at the face value as at March 31, 2017. Further, no
adjustments have been made for the call option exercised by GIL to acquire CCPS A and the CCPS B issued to the
Company continues to be carried at cost of Rs. Nil in the consolidated {inancial statement of the Group.

DIAL had entered in to an IT service arrangement with WAISL, a joint venture of the Group, to provide IT
services at the Airport on its behalf. As per the agreement, DIAL pays or receives a truc up amount 1o WAISL
depending upon the actual billing and subsistence level agreed. WAISL cannot offer such services to any other
customer and it is not economically feasible for WAISL to offer the level of services using any other equipment.
DIAL concluded that the arrangement contains a lease of the IT equipment and other assets. The lease was
classified as a finance lease at inception of the arrangement and payments were split into lease payments and
payments related to the other elements bascd on their relative fair values. The imputed finance costs on the
liability were determined based on incréemental borrowing rate of interest.

However, during the year ended March 31, 2017, there is modification in the terms of arrangement and as per the
modified terms; this arrangement no longer contains an embedded lease. Accordingly, DIAL has derecognised the
assets and liabilities recognised under finance leasc. Refer note 3 for further disclosure.

DIAL entered into a tripartite Master Service Agreement (MSA) with Wipro Airport IT Services Limited
(WAISL) and WIPRO Limited by which DIAL is committed to pay annually. premium [cc to WAISL, determined
and mutually agreed on the basis of estimated receivable and subsistence level (as defined in the said MSA further
amended vide addenduth number 14, dated January 20, 2017). During the year ended March 3 17. the
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Company accounted for Rs. 2.75 crore (Year ended March 31, 2016: Rs. 18.14 crore) towards such premium paid
to WAISL and this is disclosed as “Information technology and related expenses”.

Also in case of delay in payment of dues from customers to WAISL, the Company would fund the deficit on a
temporary basis till the time WAISL collects the dues from such customers. As at March 31, 2017, the Company
has funded Rs. 11.09 crore (March 31, 2016: Rs. 10.03 crore) towards shortfall in collection from customer.

X1v As per the transfer pricing rules prescribed under the Income tax act, 1961, DIAL is examining the domestic and
international transactions and documentation in respect thereof to ensure compliance with the said rules. The
management does not anticipate any material adjustment with regard to the transactions during year ended March
31,2017

XV A survey under section 133A of the Income Tax Act, 1961 was carried out at the premises of the DIAL by the
Income Tax authorities on June 22 -23, 2016. The Income Tax department has sought information vide its letter
dated July 18, 2016. The management has provided majority of the information and is in the process of providing
the rest of the information to the department. The management of the GIL believes that it has complied with all the
applicable provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961 and does not expect any additional tax liability on account of
survey operations

xvi.  During the year ended March 31, 2017, the DIAL refinanced its existing external commercial borrowings of USD
83.92 million and rupee term loans of Rs. 2,928.20 crore outstanding as at October 20, 2016; by issuance of
6.125% senior secured notes (2026) of USD 522.60 million. As a result of such refinancing, the DIAL has
incurred the following costs:

A. The prepayment charges of Rs. 40.80 crore have been paid to various erstwhile lenders on prepayment of
existing external commercial borrowings and rupee term loans outstanding as on the date of repayment /
prepayment.

B. Interest Rate Swap (IRS) which was outstanding on the existing external commercial borrowings was
cancelled, resulting in breakage cost of Rs. 8.17 crore.

The above amounts of Rs. 48.97 crore have been disclosed as “Exceptional Items” in the Statement of profit
and loss, as per the requirement of Accounting Standard — 5 ‘Net Profit or Loss for the Period, Prior Period
Items and Changes in Accounting Policies’.

In addition to above, the unamortized portion of other borrowing costs of Rs. 26.21 crore related to erstwhile
external commercial borrowings and rupee term loans has also been expensed off under ‘Finance costs’ in the
Statement of profit and loss.

xvit  GHIAL, has agreed to buy out the 60% stake i.e. 60% shareholding amounting to Rs. 5.34 crore, in Asia Pacific
Flight Training Academy Ltd.(APFTAL) held by its JV partner M/s Asia Pacific Flight Training Academy, SDN,
BHD, Malaysia (APFT-Malaysia) at a value of One US Dollar considering the market potential of flight training
business in India.

xviii. GHIAL has recognized, Minimum alternate tax (MAT) credit entitlement of Rs. 171.96 crore (March 31, 2016:
Rs.66.57 crore), as the Company based on estimates expects to adjust this amount after expiry of the tax holiday
period (i.e. AY 2022-23) w/s 80IA of the Income Tax Act, 1961. Management is confident that in view of the
anticipated tariff orders for the control periods which will be effective from financial year 2017-18, the
Company’s normal tax liability will be more than the MAT payable after considering the deduction under section
80IA of the Income Tax, Act, 1961.

B. Matters relating to certain road sector entities:

GACEPL, a subsidiary of the GIL has been incurring losses since the commencement of its commercial operations
and has accumulated losses of Rs. 302.35 crore as at March 31, 2017. The management of the Group believes that
these losses are primarily attributable to the loss of revenue arising as a result of diversion of partial traffic on
parallel roads. The matter is currently under arbitration and the arbitration tribunal has passed an interim order
staying the payment of negative grant which was due during the years ended March 31. 2014, March 31, 2015,
March 31, 2016 and March 31, 2017 till further orders Based on an internal assessment and a the

L
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management of the Group is confident that it will be able to claim compensation from relevant authorities for the
loss it has suffered due to such diversion of traffic and accordingly, the carrying value of net assets in GACEPL as
at March 31, 2017 is appropriate.

GMR Hyderabad Vijayawada Expressways Private Limited (‘'GHVEPL') a subsidiary of the GIL has been
incurring losses since the commencement of its commercial operations. These losses are primarily due to loss of
revenue arising as a result of drop in commercial traffic due to bifurcation of state of Andhra Pradesh and ban on
sand mining in the region. These events constitutes a Change in Law as per the Concession Agreement and
Company has filed a claim of Rs. 14.24 crore, Rs. 57.13 crore, Rs. 63.78 crore and Rs. 87.64 crore for FY 2012-
13, FY 2013-14, FY 2014-15 and FY 2015-16 respectively on NHAI. The management has also obtained a legal
opinion which confirms that these events are Change in Law and Company is entitled to the claim for losses
suffered on this account. NHAI has rejected these claims and consequently the Company has invoked dispute
resolution process as per the provisions of the Concession Agreement. NHAI has intimated that Conciliation has
failed. The Company has initiated arbitration proceeding and appointed nominee arbitrator in June 2016. NHAT
has appointed its nominee arbitrator as well in the month of Dec 2016. As discussions are going on between
company & NHAI on settlements of change in law issue, company has requested NHAI to keep arbitration in
abeyance till such time.

In the interest of the stakeholders, the Company has also issued notice of force majeure (Political Event) as per
article 34 of the concession agreement vide its letter dated June 13, 2016. Though NHAI has not reverted yet,
based on the preliminary discussions with NHAI, the management is confident that matter will be amicably settled
and the loss on account of change of law will be received in due course. Accordingly force majeure notice has not
been considered for preparation of accounts.

Further in accordance with the Concession Agreement, concession period for project is 25 years from the
appointed date. The project was initially developed from existing 2 lanes to 4 lane and be further developed to 6
lining subsequently (before 14th anniversary of the appointed date). If six laning is not carried out (if so required
by NHAI/desired by the Company), concession period will be restricted to 15 years.

Based on an internal assessment, legal opinion and expected traffic flow, the management is confident about
recovery of claim and 6 laning of the project. Accordingly concession period has been considered as 25 years and

impairment on the Carriageways does not arise.

C. Matters relating to certain other sector entities:

The GIL has given an interest free loan of Rs. 115.00 crore to Welfare Trust of GMR Infra Employees (‘\GWT")
during the year ended March 31, 2011 for the purpose of employee benefit scheme. Based on the confirmation
received from GWT, the trust has utilized the proceeds of the loan received from the GIL in the following manner:

(Rs. in crore)

U shares of GIL 101.55
Equity shares of GAL 11.28
Others 2.17
Total 115.00

SEBI had issued Circular CIR/CFD/DIL/3-2013 dated January 17, 2013 prohibiting listed companies from
framing any employee benefit scheme involving acquisition of its own securities [rom the secondary market. SEBI
had issued Circular CIR/CFD/POLICY CELL/14/2013 dated November 29, 2013 extending the date of compliance
to June 30, 2014. The management of the GIL submitted the details of the GWT to the stock exchanges. SEBI has
issued a Notification dated October 28, 2014 notifying ‘The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based
Employee Benefits) Regulations, 2014” (‘SEBI Regulations’) whereby the Companies having existing schemes to
which these regulations apply are required to comply with (hese regulations within one year of the elfective date of
the regulations and the (rusts holding shares, for the purposes of implementing general employee benefit schemes,
which exceed ten percent of the total value of the assets of the trusts, shall have a period of five years to bring
down trusts’ holding in such shares to the permissible limits. SEBI published Frequently Asked Question (‘FAQ’)
on SEBI Regulations and clarified that appropriation of sharcs towards ESPS / ESOP / SAR / General Employee
Benefits Scheme / Retirement Benefit Schemes bv October 27. 2013 would be considered as compliance with
proviso to Tegulation 3(12) of the SEBI Regulations. The GIL may appropriate towards individual employees or
sell in the market during next three years so that no unappropriated inventory remains thereafter
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have approved the revised terms and conditions of the scheme by passing a special resolution in the annual general
meeting of the GIL held on September 23, 2015 and the GIL will ensure compliance with other applicable
provisions of the new regulations within the permissible time period.

KSPL is in the process of acquiring land for implementing a Multi Product Special Economic Zone within the
meaning of Special Economic Zone Act 2005 and it has obtained an initial Notification from the Ministry of
Commerce, Government of India vide Notification No. 635(E) dated April 23, 2007 for an extent of 1,035.67
hectares. The formal approval for the same was initially given for 3 years from June 2006. Subsequently, the said
formal approval was extended till August 2016. KSPL has obtained further notification from Government of India
vide Notification No. 342(E) dated February 06, 2013 for an extent of 1,013.64 hectares and the formal approval
was given initially for 3 years from February 2012, which on application by KSPL was extended further upto
February 2016. KSPL's proposal for merger of both approvals is approved by Ministry of Commerce in December
2015 and extension of formal approval is no longer required. KSPL upon completion of acquisition of the desired
land will apply for an appropriate Notification, pending the same the entire land that is acquired till date by KSPL
is treated as land acquired for the purpose of implementation of Special Economic Zone awaiting notification.

Land acquisition for SEZ Project comprises direct purchases, land acquired from Andhra Pradesh Industrial
Infrastructure Corporation (‘APIIC’) and land awarded by Government of Andhra Pradesh (GOAP) through
notification. The land acquired through awards by GOAP includes, payment towards structures, standing crops.
solatlum and interest from the date of notification till the date of award. All the above costs are treated as part of
land acquisition cost.

In respect of ongoing land acquisition process, there are claims of different types pending before various judicial
forums such as, disputes between claimants, or writ petitions f{iled against property acquisitions, of land etc. As
these cases are subject to judicial verdicts which are pending, the final impact if any on financial statements of
KSPL towards the ongoing project execution is not determinable as on the date of the consolidated financial
statements.

Further to the acquisition of land for development of SEZs, KSPL has initiated various rehabilitation and
resettlement initiatives to relocate the inhabitants residing in the land acquired. The amount of expenditure
incurred by KSPL towards rehabilitation and resettlement initiatives amounting to Rs. 68.60 crore (March 31,
2016: Rs. 66.84 crore) is treated as part of land acquisition cost. However, no provision has been made towards
additional cost, in the consolidated financial statements, as the negotiations with the beneficiaries towards
obtaining possession of land necessitating the rehabilitation is still going on.

During the year, KSPL has incurred a sum of Rs. 190.23 crore (March 31, 2016 Rs. 479.77 crore) towards
expenditure incurred in respect of ongoing SEZ project under execution by KSPL. This expenditure is directly
connected with land acquisitions which is the primary asset of the project.

The expenditure during the previous year in respect of the project includes Rs. 314.89 crore towards non-
prejudicial additional compensation for land owners and farmers announced by special land acquisition to hasten
the proposed project activities, which was in addition to the statutory compensation already paid. An amount of
Rs. 122.44 crore has been paid by KSPL.

iii. REPL extended a Loan of Rs. 50,00,00,000/- ( Rupees Fifty Crores only) to DSC Limited on 28th March’
2013. As on 31st March® 2017 the total receivable from DSC Limited 49,72,34,340 /- (Rupees Forty nine crores
seventy lakhs thirty four thousand three hundred forty only) including interest recognised upto 31st March’ 2015.
As per the terms of the Facility Documents the loan was repayable on 30th July’ 2015 by DSC Limited. However
DSC Limited failed to repay the Principal and part of the interest dues. The company stopped recognizing the
interest w.e.f. April 1, 2015. The company has been vigorously following up with the party for recovery of the
dues and it could recover an amount of Rs. 13,60,00,000 (Rupees Thirteen Crores Sixty Lakhs only) from the
party during the current [inancial year and Rs.2,00,00,000/-(Rupees Two crores Only) subsequent to the close of
the financial year. The REPL is confident of recovery of the balance dues. In view of this the REPL has not
created any provision in the books of accounts against the amount outstanding.

D. Matters relating to certain power sector entities:

The Group (hrough its subsidiary GCRPL has investments of Rs 3.249.19 crore in PTGEMS, a joint venture of
the Group as at March 3 2017. PTGEMS along with its subsidiaries is engaged in the business of coal mining
and trading activities. TI  Group has a Coal Supply Agreement (‘CSA’) with PTGEMS whereby the Group is
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entitled to offtake stated quantity of coal as per the terms of the CSA at an agreed discount. The Group has not
significantly commenced the offtake of the coal under the CSA, however the management of the Group is of the
view that the same will not have an impact on their total entitlement of offtake of coal under the CSA. Though, the
coal prices had significantly declined during the year ended March 31, 2016, there has been an increase in coal
prices thereafter. Further, during the year ended March 31, 2017, Group has restructured its loan facility with the
lenders whereby the loan is repayable over a period of 5 years commencing January 2017. Based on these factors
and valuation assessment carried out by an external expert during the year ended March 31, 2017, the management
of the Group believes that the carrying value of investments in PTGEMS as at March 31, 2017 is appropriate.

GPCL, a subsidiary of the GIL, approached Tamil Nadu Electricity Regulatory Commission (“TNERC’) to resolve
the claims / counterclaims arising out of the Power Purchase Agreement (‘PPA’) and Land Leasc Agreement
(‘LLA’) in respect of the dues recoverable from Tamil Nadu Generation and Distribution Corporation Limited
(‘TAGENDCO’) on account of sale of energy including reimbursement towards interest on working capital,
Minimum Alternate Tax (‘MAT?), rebate, start / stop charges and payment of land lease rentals to TAGENDCO.
GPCL received a favourable order from TNERC and in pursuance of the Order, filed its claim on April 30, 2010
amounting to Rs. 481.68 crore and recognised Rs. 79.55 crore as income in the books of account. TAGENDCO
filed a petition against TNERC Order in Appellate Tribunal for Electricity ("APTEL’). In terms of an interim
Order from APTEL, TAGENDCO deposited Rs. 537.00 crore including interest on delayed payment of the claim
amount. APTEL vide its Order dated February 28, 2012, upheld the claim of GPCL and further directed GPCL to
verify and pay counterclaims of TAGENDCO in respect of the benefits earned if any, by GPCL with regard to the
delayed payment towards fuel supply that are not as per the terms of the FSA. GPCL had appealed to the Hon’ble
Supreme Court in Civil Appeals seeking certain interim relief with respect to the benefits pointed out by APTEL
on credit period of Fuel Supplies in terms of the FSA. The Hon’ble Supreme Court vide its Order dated April 24,
2014, has referred the dispute to TNERC for examining the claim of the contesting parties in so far as the quantum
of amount is concerned. GPCL and TAGENDCO have filed their respective petitions before TNERC during
August 2014. The matter was heard by TNERC and has been reserved for Order. Further, TAGENDCO has filed
the petition in the Hon’ble Supreme Court against APTEL order which is pending before the Hon’ble Supreme
Court, GPCL was availing tax holiday under Section 80IA of the Income Tax Act, 1961 (‘IT Act’) in respect of its
income from power generation. Considering that the substantial amount, though under protest, has been received
by GPCL, based on an expert opinion, GPCL offered the claims upto March 31, 2014 as income in its tax returns
and claimed the deduction as available under Section 80IA of the 1T Act. In accordance with the above, the
amount received towards the above mentioned claims after the date of Order is being disclosed as advance from
the customer in the books of account. Further, GPCL has been legally advised that pending adjudication of
petition, the entire matter is now sub-judice and has not attained the finality. Hence, pending acceptance of claims
by TAGENDCO and pending adjudication of petition before the Hon’ble Supreme Court, the Group has not
recognised such balance claim in the books of account.

GBHPL is in the process of setting up 300 MW hydro based power plant in Alaknanda River, Chamoli District of
Uttarakhand. The Hon’ble Supreme Court of India, while hearing a civil appeal in the matters of Alaknanda Hydro
Power Company Limited, directed vide its order dated May 7, 2014 that no further construction work shall be
underlaken by the 24 projects coming up on the Alaknanda and Bhagirathi basins until further orders. Further,
during the year ended March 31, 2016, Ministry of Environment Forest and Climate Change (‘MoEF’) has
represented to the Supreme Court of India that of the six hydro projects in Uttarakhand, two projects including
GBHPL requires certain design modifications as per the policy stipulations. However, based on its internal
assessment and a legal opinion, the management of the Group is confident of obtaining the requisite clearances
and based on business plan and a valuation assessment carried out by an external expert during the year ended
March 31, 2017, the management of the Group is of the view that the carrying value of investments of GBHPL by
GEL as at March 31, 2017 is appropriate.

During the year ended March 31, 2016, based on an internal assessment of its investments in certain power
cntities, the Group has made an impairment provision of Rs. 64.15 crore towards the carrying value ol the net
asscts in such entities. which has been disclosed as an “exceptional item’ in the consolidated financial statements
of the Group for the year ended March 31, 2016.

GWEL is engaged in the business of generation and sale of electrical energy [rom its coal based power plant of
600 MW situated at Warora. GWEL has accumulated losses of Rs 911.01 crore as at March 31. 2017 which has
resulted in substantial erosion of GWEL’s net worth. GWEL has achieved the COD of Unit 1 in March 2013 and
of Unit 11 in September 2013 and has tied up entire power supplies capacity with customers and has completed the
refinancing of its term and othcr loans with the lenders which has resulted in the reduction in the rate of interest
and extended repayment period. Though the net worth of GWEL is fully eroded. the WEL
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expects that the plant will generate sufficient profits in the future years and based on business plans and valuation
assessment by an external expert, the management of the Group believes that the carrying value of the investments
in GWEL by GEL as at March 31, 2017 is appropriate.

GKEL is engaged in development and operation of 3*350 MW under Phase I and 1*¥350 MW under Phase I, coal
based power project in Kamalanga village, Orissa and has commenced commercial operation of Phase I of the
project. GKEL has a fuel supply agreement for 500 MW with Mahanadi Coal Fields Limited, a subsidiary of Coal
India Limited. GKEL has accumulated losses of Rs. 1,767.55 crore as at March 31, 2017, which has resulted in
substantial erosion of GKEL’s net worth due to operational difficulties faced during the early stage of its
operations. However, pursuant to the Reserve Bank of India’s framework for revitalizing distressed asscts in the
economy (including strategic debt restructuring scheme), the consortium of bankers have amended the rupee term
loan agreement on June 29, 2015 and accordingly loan is to be repaid in 66 quarterly structured instalments from
October 1, 2017. During the year ended March 31, 2016, GKEL received favourable orders with regard to its
petition for ‘Tariff Determination’ in case of PPA with GRIDCO Limited and for ‘Tariff Revision’ in case of
PPAs with Haryana DISCOMS through PTC India Limited from Central Electricity Regulatory Commission
(‘CERC’). In view of these matters, business plans, valuation assessment by an external expert, the management is
of the view that the carrying value of the investments in GKEL by GEL as at March 31, 2017 is appropriate.

GEL and its subsidiary GVPGL are cngaged in the business of generation and sale of electrical energy from their
gas based power plants of 220 MW and 387 MW situated at Kakinada and Vemagiri respectively. In view of
lower supplies / availability of natural gas to the power generating companies in India, these entities are facing
limitations on fuel supply and PPA tie-up at competitive tariffs. As a result, the Company has not generated and
sold electrical energy since April 2013 and GVPGL has not generated and sold clectrical energy since May 2013
till March 31, 2015 and have been incurring losses including cash losses on account of the aforesaid shortage of
natural gas supply, thereby resulting in erosion of net worth.

In March 2015, the Ministry of Power, Gol issued a scheme for utilisation of the gas based power generation
capacity for the years ended March 31, 2016 and 2017. The scheme envisages supply of imported spot RLNG “e -
bid RLNG” to the stranded gas based plants as well as plants receiving domestic gas, up to the target PLF, selected
through a reverse e-bidding process and also sacrifices to be collectively made by all stakeholders. The Company,
GVPGL participated in the e- bidding process. GVPGL emerged as successful bidder in the e-bid RLNG process
and won the bid to operate the plant from April 2016 to September 2016 under phase IIT of the scheme. The plant
operated at PLF of around 20% during the said period due to lower availability of gas under the scheme. GVPGL
could also secure the bid for Phase IV of the e-Bid Scheme to operate the plant from October 2016 to March 2017,
however due to tariff unviability, as offered by DISCOM, it could not operate the plant from October 2016 to
March 2017.

The ¢-RLNG Scheme was valid till March 31, 2017 and no further extension has been announced so far. The
Company and the Association of Power Producers continue to monitor the macro economic situation and are
pursuing with appropriate authorities for extension of the scheme. The management of the Company is hopeful
that Gol would take further necessary steps / initiatives in this regard to improve the situation of the gas based
power plants. The Gol has come out with Deep Water Gas policy for production of natural gas from the KG basin
deep water fields. Presently, ONGC is producing 1.10 mmscmd gas from these fields and expected to increase the
production of gas to around 6.0 mmscmd from December 2017 onwards. ONGC is planming to invest around
USDS5.00 billion in these fields to increase the gas production. It is expecled that the production of gas would
increase to around 20.00 mmscmd by FY23 from these deep water gas fields

The management of GEL carried out valuation assessment of these gas based companies considering certain
assumptions relating to the availability and pricing of domestic gas from deep water fields and imported gas.
[uture PPA tariff and other operating parameters which it believes, reasonably reflect the future expectations from
(hese gas based power plants. The management of the Company will monitor these aspects closely and take steps
as is considered necessary and is confident that these gas based plants will be able to generate sufficient margin in
future years and would be able to meet their financial obligations as and when they arise.

Based on the above mentioned reasons. business plans and a valuation assessment carried out by an external
experl, (he management of the Company considers that the going concern assumption and the investments
(including advances) made by the Company directly or indirectly through its subsidiaries (‘investments’), in
GVPGL as at March 31, 2017 are appropriate. In the meantime, the Company has also committed to provide
necessary financial support to GVPGL as may be required for continuance of its normal business operations.
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The company is also negotiating for sale of Barge with identified parties. In this regard, definitive discussions
have been concluded and the Company expects to conclude the asset sale process expeditiously. The company is
actively considering strategic group restructuring which will provide additional leverage for borrowings and
further improve the liquidity position The Company has also taken active steps to diversify into transmission,
renewables and O&M projects. Based on the various initiatives and the options being considered, the management
of the Company is of the view that the aforesaid sale will not have an impact on the going concern of the Company
and the Company will be able to meet its obligations in the near future as and when they become due.
Accordingly. the special purpose standalone financial statements of the Company have been prepared on going
concern basis.

GCEL (formerly GCHEPL) has declared commercial operations of Unit I and coal mine on November 1, 2015 and
Unit If on March 31, 2016 of its 1,370 MW coal based thermal power plant at Raipur district, Chhattisgarh. GCEL
does not have any PPAs currently and has been incurring losses since the commencement of its commercial
operations and has accumulated losses of 2,032.78 crore as at March 31, 2017. GCEL is taking steps to tie up the
power supply through power supply agreements on a long/medium term basis with various customers including
State Electricity Boards and is hopeful of tying up significant part of generation capacity in the ensuring {inancial
vear. GCEL has experienced certain delays and incurred cost overruns in the completion of the prorject including
receipt of additional claims from the EPC contractors. The claims of the key EPC contractor, Doosan Power
Systems India Private Limited (‘DPS’) is under arbitration in the Singapore International Arbitration Centre (
SIAC). Based on the legal opinion, the management is confident that it has strong defence for the claims raised by
the EPC contractor and believes that the claims are not tenable in law and accordingly no financial implications
are expected out of fthe said arbitration. GCEL has also obtained provisional Mega power status certificate from
the Ministry of Power, GOI, and accordingly has availed an exemption of customs and excise duty against bank
guarantees of Rs. 955.68 crore an pledge of deposit of Rs. 50.94 crore. The grant of final mega power status of
GCEL was dependent on its achieving tie up for supply of power for 85% of its installed capacity through the loan
term power purchase agreement within stipulated time which been extended to 120 months from the date of
import, as per the recent amendment to Mega Power Policy 2009 by the Government of India. The management of
GCEL is certain of fulfilling the condition relating to Mega Power status in the foreseeable future, which cost of
customs and excise duty has not been included in the cost of the project.

During the year ended March 31, 2017, under a Framework for Revitalising Distressed Assets in the Economy by
RBI, the lenders of GCEL have implemented the Strategic Debt Restructuring Scheme on February 21, 2017
pursuant to which certain borrowings of GCEL got converted into equity shares and the bankers have taken over
52.38% of the paid up equity share capital of GCEL. GCEL was allotted two coal mines at Ganeshpur and
Talabira to meet its fuel requirements. During the quarter ended June 30, 2017, GCEL has filed writ petition with
Delhi High Court for surrendering both the coal blocks allotted during the year ended March 31, 2015. The
management is of the opinion that in view the recent decisions by the Delhi High Court in similar cases, no
adjustments are needed to the consolidated financial statement of the Group.

GCEL has entered into Bulk Power Purchase Transmission Agreement (‘'BPTA) with Power Grid Corporation of
India Limited(‘PGCIL’) per which GCEL was granted Loan Term Assets (‘LTA’) of 386MW in Western Region
and 430 MW in Northern Region. GCEL has written letters to PGCIL, for surrendering these transmission lines.
GCEL based on an internal assessment is of the view that the factors adversely impacting the supply of power by
GCEL is “ Force Majeure” as per BPTA and accordingly, believes that this will not have financial implications of
the Group. The Group has obtained a valuation report from an external expert during the year ended March 31.
2017 estimating the future cash flows of GCEL on discounted cash flow bssis. The valuation is dependent on the
achievement of certain key assuinptions considered by the management around GCEL entire generation capacity
for profitable rates through long term and medium term PPAs in a power scare market, achievement of higher
PLF, projected sales mix of PPA and merchant power, fuel linkage tie ups and refinancing of existing loans with
lower interest rates which banks, achievement of mega power status and successful gains from the government
announced initiatives of tolling linkage and continued financial support by the Company. The Group is monitoring
thesc assumption closely on a periodic basis and based on business plans and vavluation assessment carried out by
an external expert during the year ended March 31, 2017, the management of the Group is of the view that the
carrying value of the investments in GCEL is appropriate.

GWEL entered into a PPA with Maharashira State Electricity Distribution Company ( MSEDCL’) for sale of
power for an aggregate contracled capacity of 200mw, wherein power was required 1o be scheduled from power
plant’s bus bar. MSEDCL disputed place of evacuation of power with Maharashtra El



GMR Enterprises Pvt. Limited
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2017

X1

XI11.

Commission (“MERC”), wherein MERC has directed GWEL to construct separate lines for evacuation of power
through State Transmission Utility (‘STU’) through GWEL was connected in Central Transmission Utility
(‘CCTU”). Aggrieved by the MERC Order, GWEL preferred an appeal with APTEL. APTEL vide interim Order
February 11, 2014 directed GWEL to start scheduling the power from GWEL’s bus bar and bear transmission
charged of inter-state transmission system towards supply of power. GWEL in terms of the interium order
scheduled the power from its bus bar from March 17, 2014 and paid inter-state transmission charges. APTEL vide
its final order dated May 8, 2015 upheld GWEL’s contention of scheduling the power from bus bar and directed
MSEDCL to reimburse the inter-state transmission charges hitherto brone by GWEL as per its interim order.
Accordingly as at March 31, 2017, GWEL has raised claim of Rs. 222.76 crore towards reimbursement of
transmission charged from March 17, 2014 tiill March 31, 2017, MSEDCL preferred an appeal with Hon’ble
Supreme Court of India.

In view of the favourable Order from APTEL, receipt of substantial amount towards reimbursement of
transmission charges and the legal opinion stating the GWEL has tenable case with respect to the appeal filed by
MSEDCL against the said Order which is pending before Hon’ble Supreme Court of India. GWEL has recognized
the reimbursement of transmission charges of Rs.171.34 crore relating to the period from April 01,2015 to March
31, 2017 (including Rs.92.30 crore for the year ended March 31, 2017) as reduction from transmission expenses
and Rs. 51.42 crore as an ‘exceptional item’ in the consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31.
2016, as the said recovery pertained to the period prior to April 01, 2015.

As at March 31, 2017, GEL along with its subsidiary has investments of Rs. 4143.11 Million in GBHPL. GBHPL
is in the process of setting up 300 MW hydro based power plant in Alaknanda river, Chamoli District of
Uttarakhand. The Hon’ble Supreme Court of India, while hearing a civil appeal in the matters of Alaknanda Hydro
Power Company Limited, directed vide its order dated May 7, 2014 that no further construction work shall be
undertaken by the 24 projects coming up on the Alaknanda and Bhagirathi basins until further orders. Further,
during the year ended March 31, 2016, Ministry of Environment, Forest and Climate Change (MoEF") has
represented to the Supreme Court of India that of the six hydro projects in Uttarakhand, two projects including
GBHPL requires certain design nodifications as per the policy stipulations. However, based on its internal
assessment and a legal opinion, the management of the Company is confident of obtaining the requisite clearances
and based on business plan and a valuation assessment carried out by an external expert, the management of the
Company is of the view that the carrying value of the investments in GBHPL is appropriate. Accordingly, no
adjustments have been made in the standalone financial statements of the Company for the Year ended 31st
March,2017.

During the year ended March 31, 2017, GEL entered into an agreement with GGAL pursuant to which it had
novated a liability towards certain EPC contractors of GCHEPL for Rs.4,360.97 Million (including liabilities
payable in foreign currency, March 2016 Rs. 4,300.00 Million), after obtaining necessary regulatory approval
[rom the RBI.

During the year ended March 31, 2017, GEL entered into a Memorandum of Understanding for the sale of its
power plant. The management has assessed the fair value of the barge mounted power plant and its associated
facilities based on the agreed sale consideration and the excess of the carrying value over the fair value for Rs.
606.47 Million and Rs. 87.66 Million has been adjusted in the Property, Plant and Equipment and Inventories
respectively in the underlying financial statements.
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GMR Enterprises Pvt. Limited
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31,2017

46. Certain amounts (currency value or percentage) shown in the various tables and paragraphs included in the
consolidated financial statements of the Group have been rounded off or truncated as deemed appropriate by the
management of the Group.

47. Previous year’s figures have been regrouped and reclassified, wherever necessary, to confirm to those of the current
year’s classification.

As per our report of even date attached

For B.Purushottam& Co For and on behalf of Board of Directors of
Chartered Accountants GMR Enterprises Pvt Ltd

Firm Regn No: 002808S

K SHORE B.V.N.Rao Grandhi Kiran Kumar
Partner Director Director
M. No: 206734 DIN : 00051167 DIN : 00061669

Place: Mumbai Yo ajuria
Date: 29th September’2017 Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary
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